
Alison Sanders, Director of Corporate Services 
Easthampstead House, Town Square, Bracknell, Berkshire RG12 1AQ 

Contact: Katharine Simpson  
Telephone: (01344) 352308 
Katharine.simpson@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Date Published: 27 September 2010 

  
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

05 OCTOBER 2010 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the above Panel on 05 October 2010 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell, to 
transact the business set out in the attached agenda. 

 
 Alison Sanders 
 Director of Corporate Services 
 
 
Members of the Environment, Culture and Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillor Finnie (Chairman) 

Councillor McLean (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors Mrs Barnard, Beadsley, Bowers, Finch, Mrs Fleming, Leake and Mrs McCracken 
 

Substitute Members of the Panel 
 

Councillors Mrs Angell, Mrs Beadsley, Brossard, Harrison, Mrs Shillcock, Thompson and 
Turrell 

 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

If you hear the alarm: 
 

1 Leave the building immediately 
2 Follow the green signs 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so 
 



 

 

THE ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
05 October 2010 (7.30 pm) 

Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members.  
 

 

2. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING  1 - 6 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 

Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
held on 22 June 2010.  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND PARTY WHIP   

 Members are asked to declare any personal or prejudicial interest and 
the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of the 
party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting.  
 

 

4. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

5. PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT  7 - 114 
 To consider the latest trends, priorities and pressures in terms of 

departmental performance as reported in the Performance Monitoring 
Report for the first quarter of 2010/11 (April to June) relating to the 
Environment, Culture and Communities Department.  An overview of 
the second quarter will also be provided. 
 
Please bring the previously circulated Performance Monitoring 
Report to the meeting.  Copies are available on request and 
attached to this agenda if viewed online.  
 

 

6. REPORT OF THE INSPECTION OF THE HOUSING AND COUNCIL 
TAX BENEFITS SERVICE  

115 - 144 

 The outcome of the inspection of the Housing and Council Tax Benefits 
service is attached for consideration.  
 

 

7. RE3 UPDATE AND RECYCLING FIGURES  145 - 148 
 To receive an update in respect of the re3 waste disposal contract and 

recycling figures.   
 

 

 



 

 

OVERVIEW AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

8. PLANNING POLICY UPDATE FOLLOWING THE REVOCATION OF 
REGIONAL STRATEGIES  

149 - 154 

 An update in respect of new planning policy is attached.  
 

 

9. WORKING GROUP UPDATE REPORT  155 - 156 
 An update report in respect of the Working Group of the Panel 

reviewing highway maintenance and the Member Reference Group 
considering commercial sponsorship is attached.  
 

 

10. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BI-ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT  157 - 168 
 To note the bi-annual progress report of the Assistant Chief Executive.  

 
 

11. WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12  169 - 170 
 Members are invited to suggest possible items for inclusion in the 

Panel’s draft indicative Work Programme for 2011/12.  
 

 

HOLDING THE EXECUTIVE TO ACCOUNT 

12. EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  171 - 176 
 To consider forthcoming items on the Executive Forward Plan relating 

to environment, culture and communities.  
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND 
COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL 
22 JUNE 2010 
7.30  - 8.31 PM 
  

 
Present: 
Councillors Beadsley, Bowers, Finch, Finnie, Mrs Fleming, Brossard, Mrs Shillcock and 
Thompson 
 
Executive Members: 
Councillors Mrs Ballin and Mrs Hayes 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Mrs Barnard, Leake, Mrs McCracken and McLean 
 
Also Present: 
Richard Beaumont, Head of Overview and Scrutiny 
Jane Eaton, Head of Environmental Services 
Simon Hendey, Chief Officer Housing 
Bev Hindle, Chief Officer: Planning and Transport  
Steve Loudoun, Chief Officer: Environment & Public Protection 
Vincent Paliczka, Director of Environment, Culture and Communities 
Emma Silverton, Democratic Service Officer 

60. Election of Chairman  
RESOLVED that Councillor Finnie be elected Chairman of the Environment, Culture 
and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel for the municipal year 2010/11. 
 

COUNCILLOR FINNIE IN THE CHAIR 

61. Election of Vice-Chairman  
RESOLVED that Councillor McLean be appointed Vice-Chairman of the 
Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel for the 
municipal year 2010/11. 

62. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members  
The Panel noted the attendance of the following Substitute Members: 
 

Councill Brossard for Councillor Mrs Barnard 
Councillor Thompson for Councillor McLean 

63. Minutes and Matters Arising  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Environment, Culture and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel held on 9 March 2010 be approved as a correct record, and 
signed by the Chairman.  
 
There were no matters arising.  

Agenda Item 2

1



 

64. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip  
There were no declarations of interest. 

65. Urgent Items of Business  
There were no urgent items of business.  

66. Performance Monitoring Report  
The Director of Environment, Culture and Communities gave a presentation in 
respect of departmental performance with reference to the Performance Monitoring 
Report (PMR) for the 4th quarter of 2009/10 ending 31 March 2010. The presentation 
outlined the Department’s revenue and finances as at March 2010. Staffing, key 
highlights, fees and  charges and the forward look were also included.  
 
It was reported that there was a £409,000 change in the Gross Revenue Budget. The 
Net Revenue Budget was £35,939,000 with major variances totalling £827,000 which 
included; the extra cost of the severe weather conditions experienced in January 
2010, lower than expected waste payment fees, a change from revenue to capital of 
planned and highway maintenance revenue and building control and land charge 
ringfenced accounts operating at a surplus which was higher than predicted. 
 
Capital finance as at March 2010 was £11,642.30 with an anticipated spend of 
58.74%. Capital schemes identified for carry forwards included: 
 
• South Hill Park Restoration Project 
• Building maintenance  
• Programme of Leisure S106 schemes (budget only) 
• SPA Mitigation Strategy 
• Help to Buy a Home (Enabling more affordable Housing) 
• Bridge strengthening  

 
The average vacancy factor for the Department was low at 11.60%; overall vacancies 
had increased by 16 in the quarter with Leisure and Culture accounting for 11 of the 
vacancies. The Panel noted that recruitment of some posts had been delayed by up 
to a month to contribute towards savings for the Department. Staff turnover was at 
2.20% for the quarter which was lower than for the same period in 2009/10. Staff 
sickness for the quarter was 1.66 days which was lower than for the same period in 
2009/10 and reflected active management. The Director noted that the amount this 
equated to in monetary terms would be reported at the next Panel meeting in October 
2010. 
 
It was reported that the Director had exercised his delegated authority in making a 
number of mid year changes to Fees and Charges which were: 
 

• An increase in the cost of a Senior Persons Rails card from £6.00 to £6.90 
• A reduction in the disabled railcard from £3.70 to £3.40 
• A skip operator license fee charge of £60 to cover the administration costs of 

operating checks 
• Changes in pre application charges; 

o a reduction in the cost of 1 dwelling from £260 to £130 
o reduction in up to 40sq m commercial miscellaneous from £260 to 

£50 
o reduction in 41sq m – 250 sq m commercial from £360 - £160 

 

2



 

The Director highlighted key areas in the Department’s forward look. It was noted that 
the Department was experiencing a period of change as a result of the new 
Government which included announcements for planning and further in-year savings 
amounting to £300,000 of Capital expenditure. The Housing and Planning Delivery 
Grant and the Supporting People Administration Grant amounting to £258,000 would 
no longer be received. The Panel noted that judging of Bracknell in Bloom would take 
place on 13 July. A mapping exercise of planning was underway to allow a root and 
branch assessment of the service. 
 
Arising from Members’ questions and comments the following points were noted: 
 
• Officers across the council had made exceptional efforts to cope with the 

effects of the severe winter weather. 
• The cost for refurbishment of Edgbarrow Sports Centre was covered by 

insurance. The insurance also covered loss of revenue incurred during the 
period the centre was closed.  

• The Council’s mortgage scheme for shared ownership was launched in June. 
1 application had been received to date.  

• There was no cap relating to the value of a home for the mortgage scheme, 
however there was a minimum and maximum % of ownership shares allowed 
by an individual applying for the scheme. 

• Forest care was still working on the upgrade to PNC6 which would be 
completed in the quarter. PNC6 referred to the version of the Tunstall Lifeline 
Monitoring system which was used.   

 
The Panel congratulated officers and the Director on their successful work 
undertaken across a wide array of functions. 

67. Supporting People Working Group Update Report  
The Panel received from Councillor Mrs Shillcock, lead member, the Supporting 
People Programme Update report undertaken by a working group of the 
Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel.  
 
The Supporting People programme was a Government funded initiative which 
required local authorities to provide housing related support, enabling people with 
specified and assessed need to live independently in their own accommodation. The 
funding was ringfenced until April 2009, from April 2010 the funding had been 
included in the Area Based Grant, and had reduced each year by approximately 12%. 
 
A House of Commons Communities and Local Government Select Committee was 
established to look into the delivery of the Supporting People programme and 
expressed strong support for the programme which had proved to be extremely good 
value for money, providing low level and joined up support to retain people’s 
independence or help people to move out into more independent lives. The Working 
Group concurred with this view.  
 
The Supporting People service in Bracknell Forest had received a poor inspection in 
2005, however the team had now made steady progress with the Audit Commission 
satisfied with progress made. The Working Group had received positive feedback 
from people who used the service and concluded that good progress had been made 
in the Supporting People Team with the service now well embedded.   
 
RESOLVED that the report of the Supporting People Programme Update report, be 
agreed and commended to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission for adoption and 
for sending formally to the relevant Executive Member. 

3



 

68. Council Tax and Housing Benefits Working Group Report  
The Panel received from Councillor Finch, lead member, the review of the Council’s 
Housing and Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan report undertaken by a working 
group of the Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel.  
 
The report provided further monitoring of the Benefits Service following on from the 
Housing and Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan, June 2009.   
 
RESOLVED that; 
 

a) the conclusion of the Working Group’s review of the Housing and Council Tax 
Benefits Improvement Plan be noted; 

b) the Working Group’s work was now concluded; 
c) the report of the Housing and Council Tax Benefits inspection be brought to 

the Panel’s meeting in October 2010; 
d) the report be commended to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission for its 

consideration; 
e) the Panel invite the Overview and Scrutiny Commission to consider reviewing 

the progress on procuring and implementing the new IT system for Benefits 
administration. 

69. Severe Weather Working Group Report  
The Panel received the Severe Weather report undertaken by a working group of the 
Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Commission.  
 
The working group had met on several occasions and spoken to a number of Council 
staff and contractors to understand how the severe weather had affected service 
areas from across the Council. 
 
Arising from Members’ questions and comments the following points were noted: 
 
• That a recommendation be added to the report suggesting that officers look at 

the possibility of contracts with local plant hires and businesses who had 
equipment that may be of use during severe weather, to allow access to 
greater resources during future severe weather events. 

• Staff across the departments had worked well and put in extra effort to ensure 
service delivery where possible during the severe weather. Overall Bracknell 
Forest Council had coped well during the severe weather. It was agreed that 
this would be reflected in the conclusion of the working group report. 

• Some schools had used a text messaging service to keep parents informed of 
decisions to open and close the school for the day which had proved 
successful. It was agreed that recommendation 6.7 of the report would be 
expanded to include the use of text messaging.  

 
RESOLVED that the report of the Severe Weather report with amendments, be 
agreed and commended to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission for adoption and 
for sending formally to the Executive. 

70. "Be Prepared" - Report on Preparedness for Public Health Emergencies  
The Panel received a report by a working group of the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel which reviewed the preparedness of the Council and its partners for public 
health emergencies which was timely as it coincided with the outbreak of Swine 
Influenza A/H1N1 (Swine Flu).  

4



 

 
The Working Group found that the arrangements in place to prepare for a public 
health emergency were sound and effective. The report had been agreed by the 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel subject to two adjustments to recommendations 
as set out in the supplementary paper circulated to the Panel.  
 
The Panel noted the ‘Be Prepared’ review of preparedness for public health 
emergencies with adjusted recommendations, undertaken by a working group of the 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel.  
 
The Panel noted that there had been four working group reports on the agenda which 
reflected the good work and effectiveness of the Environment, Culture and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel. The Chairman thanked Members of the 
Panel who had participated in the working groups.   

71. Executive Forward Plan  
The Executive Forward Plan items relating to Environment, Culture and Communities 
were noted. 
 
The Panel noted that officers were waiting for direction from Government on whether 
or not to take forward the current Local Development Framework Site Allocations 
Development Plan. Although there was currently uncertainty in planning it was likely 
that the Warfield Supplementary Planning Document would continue to be 
progressed as scheduled in the Executive Forward Plan. The Panel noted that the 
panning department were keen to receive direction from Government on the way 
forward.   
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

5



This page is intentionally left blank

6



!
!
!

!
!
!

!"#$%#&'()"*+%(,-%#,(.*/"0%#-*
*

*

1(2,#%(&"(-3*456-5#"*7*
4%&&5(,-,"8*

*
9,#8-*:5'#-"#*;<=<>==*
?0#,6*@*A5("*;<=<*

*
!
"#$%&#'(#!)#'*+$,-!!
.#/01(''#$!2$,!23$4!53''(0!
.#/01(''#$!63'+!5($1)!
.#/01(''#$!2$,!6#$#%)4!734+,!
.#/01(''#$!83(0!21.$319+0!
!
!
6($+1%#$-!:(01+0%!"3'(1;93!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

1

Agenda Item 5

7



B")-,%(*C("D*1E")5-,2"*B5&&'#F*
!
!
<)+!&($,%!=/3$%+$!#&!%)+!4+3$!)3,!>++0!(01$+*(>'4!?3$(3>'+!@(%)!%)+!/,/3'!$+=/($+A+0%!%#!
*+'(?+$!3!@(*+!$30B+!#&!,+$?(1+,!%#!3!)(B)!=/3'(%4C!(0&'/+01+*!>4!%)+!(AD31%!30*!
*+1(,(#0,!#&!%)+!0+@!1#3'(%(#0!E#?+$0A+0%F!
!
"$#>3>'4!%)+!A#,%!1)3''+0B(0B!*+1(,(#0!>4!E#?+$0A+0%!@3,!(%,!*+1(,(#0!%#!300#/01+!
(%,!(0%+0%(#0,!%#!$+A#?+!$+B(#03'!D'300(0B!,%$3%+B(+,!&$#A!%)+!D'300(0B!&$3A+@#$9!3,!
,##0!3,!D#,,(>'+!>/%!(0!304!13,+!'#13'!3/%)#$(%(+,!,)#/'*!$+1#B0(,+!%)(,!(0%+0%!3,!3!
A3%+$(3'!1#0,(*+$3%(#0!(0!%)+($!*+1(,(#0!A39(0B!D$#1+,,F!!G#$!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!%)(,!
A+30%!%)3%!%)+!3**(%(#03'!HCIII!)#A+,!(AD#,+*!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!J#/%)!K3,%!"'30!1#/'*!
>+!*(,$+B3$*+*!@)(1)!@3,!@+'1#A+!0+@,!&#$!%)+!.#/01('F!!7#@+?+$C!30!3>,+01+!#&!
+&&+1%(?+!B/(*301+!3',#!A+30%!%)3%!#/$!@#$9!#0!#/$!J(%+!L''#13%(#0,!6+?+'#DA+0%!"'30!
6#1/A+0%C!@)(1)!@3,!@+''!3*?301+*C!)3*!%#!>+!*+'34+*!@)(1)!@3,!*(,3DD#(0%(0B!
B(?+0!%)+!3A#/0%!#&!@#$9!%39+0!%#!$+31)!%)(,!>/%!A#$+!(AD#$%30%'4!3!*+'34!(0!
+,%3>'(,)(0B!%)+!.#/01('M,!)#/,(0B!D'30,!/0%('!HIHNF!!<)+!KO+1/%(?+!)3,C!)#@+?+$C!
0#%+*!%)+!*$3&%!1#01'/,(#0,!$+31)+*!>4!%)+!"'300(0B!"#'(14!<+3AF!
!
<)+!*+1(,(#0!>4!E#?+$0A+0%!%#!1'3@>319!,(B0(&(130%!A#0+4!&$#A!3$+3!!>3,+*!B$30%,!
)3,!$+,/'%+*!(0!,(B0(&(130%!D$+,,/$+!31$#,,!%)+!.#/01('!30*!3',#!@(%)(0!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%F!!
"'300(0BC!J/DD#$%(0B!"+#D'+!30*!P#3*!J3&+%4!3''!)3*!&/0*(0B!$+A#?+*!30*!*+1(,(#0,!
)3?+!>++0!A3*+!3>#/%!)#@!%#!*+3'!@(%)!%)(,!,)#$%&3''F!
!
2+30@)('+C!%)+!6+D3$%A+0%!1#0%(0/+,!%#!D$#?(*+!3!@(*+!$30B+!#&!,+$?(1+,!@(%)(0!@)3%!
$+A3(0,!3!1)3''+0B(0B!+1#0#A(1!+0?($#0A+0%F!!801#A+!(0!#/$!13$!D3$9,!30*!B#'&!
1#/$,+!1#0%(0/+!%#!$+*/1+!3'%)#/B)!#%)+$!%$3*(0B!3$+3,!3DD+3$!%#!>+!Q/,%!3>#/%!,%3>'+F!!
<)+$+!(,!0#!*#/>%C!)#@+?+$C!%)3%!%)+!D/>'(1!3$+!>+(0B!?+$4!&#1/,,+*!#0!@)3%!%)+4!
,D+0*!,13$1+!$+,#/$1+,!#0F!!"$#>3>'4!$+'3%+*!(,!%)+!(01$+3,+*!*+A30*!&$#A!)#A+'+,,!
&3A('(+,!>/%!3!D#,(%(?+!0#%+!#0!%)(,!(,!%)+!,/11+,,!#&!#/$!)#A+'+,,!D$+?+0%(#0!%+3A!(0!
)3?(0B!,/11+,,&/'!(0%+$?+0%(#0,!(0!$+,#'?(0B!%)+,+!(,,/+,F!
!
<)+!,A3''!<$3*(0B!J%30*3$*,!30*!K0?($#0A+0%3'!7+3'%)!%+3A,!)3?+!3B3(0!D$#?+*!%)+($!
@#$%)!@(%)!%)+!<$3*(0B!J%30*3$*,!%+3A!(*+0%(&4(0B!#?+$!RII!(%+A,!(0!3!A3Q#$!,%#$+!
@)(1)!@+$+!>+4#0*!%)+($!S/,+!>4!*3%+M!T!D#%+0%(3''4!3!)+3'%)!$(,9!%#!%)+!D/>'(1F!!G'4!
%(DD(0B!(,!#0!%)+!*+1$+3,+!@)(1)!(0*(13%+,!)(B)+$!1#AA/0(%4!3@3$+0+,,!(0!%)+!
0+B3%(?+!(AD31%!#0!&'4!%(DD(0B!30*!%)(,!(,!$+U+0&#$1+*!%##!>4!(01$+3,+*!+0&#$1+A+0%!>4!
%)+!K0?($#0A+0%3'!7+3'%)!%+3AF!!P+%3(0(0B!3!&#1/,!#0!+0?($#0A+0%3'!(,,/+,C!%)+!/,+!#&!
3!&+''+*!%$++!%#!D$#?(*+!@)3%!@+!%)(09!(,!%)+!'#0B+,%!D(10(1!%3>'+!(0!%)+!VW!3%!X('4!7(''!
"3$9!(,!30!+O1+''+0%!(0(%(3%(?+!>4!%)+!!5$3190+''!.#0,+$?3%(#0!:#'/0%++$,!30*!%)+!
.#/01('M,!@#$9!#0!1'(A3%+!1)30B+!(,!,)#@(0B!&$/(%!@(%)!+0+$B4!1#0,/AD%(#0!*#@0!'3,%!
4+3$!>4!3>#/%!YZC!$+,/'%(0B!(0!3!$+*/1%(#0!#&!.IH!+A(,,(#0,!>4!3>#/%![ZF!
!
\)('+!%)+$+!(,!3'@34,!3!'#%!%#!(*+0%(&4!31$#,,!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%C!(%!(,!@#$%)!)(B)'(B)%(0B!%)+!
+O1+''+0%!(0%+$03'!$+?(+@!>+(0B!13$$(+*!#/%!>4!%)+!"'300(0B!J+$?(1+!(0!%+$A,!#&!
+&&(1(+014]!%)+!D3$%(3'!#D+0(0B!#&!K*B>3$$#@!JD#$%,!.+0%$+!(0!LD$(']!%)+!$+*/1%(#0!(0!
,(190+,,!31$#,,!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!30*!/0&#$%/03%+'4!%)+!$+,(B03%(#0!#&!X400+!6(19C!
.#AA/0(%4!L$%,!6+?+'#DA+0%!^&&(1+$F!
!
<)(,!)3,!>++0!3!?+$4!1)3''+0B(0B!=/3$%+$!&#$!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%C!>/%!8!>+'(+?+!%)+!$+D#$%!
(0*(13%+,!%)3%!(%!)3,!$(,+0!%#!%)+!1)3''+0B+!@+''F!
!

2
8



B")-,%(*GH%D*!#%.#"88*'.',(8-*B"#2,)"*!6'(*
*
*
!
L00+O!.!D$#?(*+,!*+%3(',!#&!D+$&#$A301+!3B3(0,%!$+'+?30%!_3%(#03'!80*(13%#$,!%)(,!
=/3$%+$C!3,!@+''!3,!30!/D*3%+!#0!%)+!#D+$3%(#03'!$(,9,!(*+0%(&(+*!(0!%)+!J+$?(1+!"'30F!
<)+!K0?($#0A+0%C!./'%/$+!`!.#AA/0(%(+,!J+$?(1+!"'30!&#$!HIRIaRR!1#0%3(0,!NR!
*+%3('+*!31%(#0,!%#!>+!1#AD'+%+*!(0!,/DD#$%!#&!%)+!Rb!2+*(/AU<+$A!^>Q+1%(?+,F!
L00+O!.!3',#!D$#?(*+,!(0&#$A3%(#0!#0!D$#B$+,,!3B3(0,%!+31)!#&!%)+,+!*+%3('+*!
31%(#0,F!^?+$3''![Y!31%(#0,!#&!%)+!NR!3$+!#0!%3$B+%!3%!%)+!+0*!#&!c/3$%+$!R!d!eF!!<)$++!
#&!%)+!$+A3(0(0B!31%(#0,!3$+!,)#@0!3,!f0#%!3DD'(13>'+g!3%!D$+,+0%F!!L1%(#0!RFNFRHC!
D$+D3$(0B!3!*+?+'#DA+0%!D'30!&#$!%)+!A3(0!'(>$3$4!>/('*(0B!(,!%)+!$+,D#0,(>('(%4!#&!%)+!
5/('*(0B!J/$?+4#$,!,+1%(#0!(0!%)+!.#$D#$3%+!J+$?(1+,!6+D3$%A+0%F!!!L1%(#0!hFiFHC!3!
D('#%!,1)+A+!%#!,@(%1)!#&&!,%$++%!'(B)%(0B!3%!,D+1(&(+*!%(A+,C!%)+!6($+1%#$!*+&+$$+*!/0%('!
30#%)+$!4+3$!&#''#@(0B!%)+!&+3,(>('(%4!,%/*4F!!L1%(#0!hFYFb!(,!3@3(%(0B!%)+!&(03'!
'+B(,'3%(#0!>+&#$+!@+!130!,%3$%!%)+!@#$9F!!!
!
L'%)#/B)!@+!3$+!,)#@(0B!31%(#0!bFhFb!3,!B$++0!3%!%)+!A#A+0%!@+!3$+!3!'(%%'+!
/01+$%3(0!3,!@)+%)+$!@+!130!31)(+?+!%)(,!#$!0#%F!V0&#$%/03%+'4!%)+!D+$&#$A301+!
A303B+A+0%!,4,%+A!*#+,!0#%!4+%!B(?+!/,!%)+!&'+O(>('(%4!%#!,)#@!%)(,!%3$B+%!3,!3A>+$F!!
L1%(#0!bFhFb!,34,!@+!@(''!1#AD'+%+!D$+D3$(0B!%)+!<$30,D#$%!L,,+%!2303B+A+0%!"'30!
>4!bR!23$1)!HIRRF!!\+!D'30!%#!D/%!%)+!@#$9!%#!#/$!0+@!7(B)@34,!.#0,/'%3014!
.#0%$31%#$F!!\+!3$+!3DD$#31)(0B!%)+!+0*!#&!'+%%(0B!%)(,!1#0%$31%!%)$#/B)!%)+!
73AD,)($+!.#/0%4!.#/01('!&$3A+@#$9!3B$++A+0%F!!<)(,!1#0%$31%!(,!*/+!%#!B#!'(?+!#0!
R!J+D%+A>+$F!!<)+$+&#$+C!@+!3$+!0#%!1'+3$!@)+%)+$!%)(,!@(''!3''#@!#/$!1#0%$31%#$!%(A+!
%#!1#AD'+%+!%)+!@#$9!>4!%)+!4+3$!+0*!3,!@+!)3*!#$(B(03''4!)#D+*F!!
!
!
!

3
9



*
B")-,%(*GI#""D*/"8%5#)"8*
*
*
B-'$$,(.*
*
"'+3,+!,++!L00+O!LF!
!
/"2"(5"*J5K."-*+%(,-%#,(.*
*
<)+!.#AA(%%++M,!$+?+0/+!>/*B+%!&#$!%)+!4+3$!HIRIaRR!@3,!,+%!3%!jbNCbNYCIIIF!!<)(,!
(,!,)#@0!(0!A#$+!*+%3('!3%!L00+O!5!<3>'+!RC!30*!3',#!)(B)'(B)%,!%)+!1)30B+,!%#!%)+!
$+?+0/+!>/*B+%!(0!%)+!D+$(#*!R!LD$('!%#!bR!234C!@)(1)!(01$+3,+,!%)+!#?+$3''!>/*B+%!%#!
jbNCYHbCIIIF!L!,/AA3$4!#&!%)+,+!1)30B+,!3$+!,)#@0!>+'#@F!!

! jIII
B-'$$,(.*4%8-8*L* L,!3 !$+,/'%!#& !$ +*/1%(#0,!(0 !,%3&&(0B !'+?+',!,+?+$30 1+!
D34A+0%,!) 3?+!>++0!( 01/$$+*!@)(1)!3$+!%#!& /0*+*!&$#A!%)+!J%$/1% /$3'!
.)30B+,!G/0*F!

!!!!Yi!

C(>C$$*B-#""-*!'#M,(.*L* <)+!%$30,&+$! #&!%)+!0+% !(01#A+!&$#A!
K3,%)3AD,%+3*!7#/,+!13$!D3$9(0B!%#!%)+!#&&(1+!311#AA#*3%(#0!311#/0%!(,!
%#!>+!*(,1#0%(0/+*F!!

!!!!!U[!

C(>C$$* B-#""-*!'#M,(.*L* L!,/A!@3,!13$$(+*!&#$@3$*!&$#A!HIIkaRI!%# !
1#AD'+%+!A3(0%+0301+!@#$9,F*

!!!!!RY!

J58*4%(-#')-8*L*5/*B+%,!&#$!%)+!>/,!$#/%+,!%)3%!3$+!&/0*+*!&$#A!J+1%(#0 !
RIN!A#0(+,!0++*!%#!>+!%$30,&+$$+*!&$#A!%)(,!&/0*F!

!!!!bHb!

!'#M83C0"(*B0')"8*7*4%5(-#F 8,K"*L*5/*B+%,!&#$!%)+!,%3&& (0B!(0!$+'3%(#0!
%#!%)+!A303B+A+0%!#&!JL_EJ!0++*!%#!>+!%$30,&+$$+*!&$#A!%)+!J+1%(#0!RIN!
J"L!A(%(B3%(#0!A#0(+,F!

!!!!!!RN!

9%#"8-*4'#"*L* L!,3?(0 B!3,!3 !$+,/ '%!#&!?+)(1'+ !'+3,(0B !1# ,%,!)3 ,!3$(,+0!
@)(1)!&#$A,!D3$%!#&!%)+!<$30,D#$%!P+?(+@C !(,!>+(0B!%$30,&+$$+* !%# !
.#$D#$3%+!J+$?(1+,F*

!!!!URI!

N"0'#-&"(-'6*B500%#-*B"#2,)"8 ! T!L!?($+A+0%!(,!$+=/($ +*!%#!&/0* ! %)+!
"$#B$3AA+!30*!"$#Q+1%!2303B+$!D#,%!@)(1)!(,!3!&(O+*!%+$A!1#0%$31%F!

!!!!h[!

N"0'#-&"(-'6*B500%#-*B"#2,)"8 ! T!L0!3* A(0(,%$3%(?+!D#,%!(,!>+(0 B!
%$30,&+$$+*!%#!.#$D#$3%+!J+$?(1+,F!

!!!!URk!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!GCG?O* ****PQQ****

!

L!&/''+$!+OD'303%(#0!#&!%)+,+!1)30B+,!(,!B(?+0!(0!LDD+0*(O!5!<3>'+!RF!

!
!"#$%#&'()"*?.',(8-*?00#%2"K*J5K."-**

<)+$+!)3,! >++0!#0+!?3$(301+!#& ! jkhCIII!(0! %)(,!D+$(#* C! 3!*+,1$(D %(#0!#&!@)(1) !(,!
,)#@0!>+'#@-!
!
! jIII

R'8-"*+'( '."&"(-*@* 801$+3,+!(0!>/,(0+,,!$3%+,!3,! 3!$+,/'%!#& !3!
$+?3'/3%(#0!&#''#@(0B!1#0,%$/1%(#0!#&!JA3''A+3*!30*!X#0B,)#%!X30+!30*!
3**(%(#03'!(0&'3%(#0!&$#A!R!LD$('!HIRI!>/*B+%+*!3%!HF[ZC!31%/3'![FhZF*

!!!!!!!!kh!

***************************************************************************************************GCG?O* SP

*

4
10



4'0,-'6*J5K."-*+%(,-%#,(.*
!
<)+!.#AA(%%++M,!13D(%3'!>/*B+%!&#$!%)+!4+3$!@3,!,+%!3%!jkCkHICIIIF!<)(,!(01'/*+*!
jHCkIICIII!#&!+O%+$03''4!&/0*+*!,1)+A+,F!L!13$$4!&#$@3$*!&$#A!HIIkaHIRI!#&!
jhChhIChIIC!B(?+,!30!3?3('3>'+!,D+0*!#&!jRhCbNIChIIF!
!!
<)+!13D(%3'!A#0(%#$(0B!,%3%+A+0%!(01'/*(0B!D+$&#$A301+!3B3(0,%!>/*B+%!(,!,)#@0!(0!
LDD+0*(O!5!<3>'+!HF!
!

4I'(."8*-%*9""8*7*4I'#."8*
!
<)+!6($+1%#$!3DD$#?+*!%)+!&#''#@(0B!1)30B+,!%#!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%M,!D/>'(,)+*!&++,!30*!
1)3$B+,!&#$!HIRIaRR-!
!
.+A+%+$4!`!.$+A3%#$(/A!
!
* !#"2,%58*9""** /"2,8"K*9""*

B'()-5&*;<<<T*4#"&'-"K*/"&',(8*UH,-I*$6%H"#*I%6K"#V* *

"$+D3$+!30*!*(,D'34!&#$!RI!4+3$!D+$(#*C!30!(0,1$(>+*!%3>'+!&#$!
%@#!,+%,!#&!$+A3(0,!(01'/*(0B!YI!'+%%+$,!#&!(0,1$(D%(#0!

kiIFiI!kk[FII

"$+D3$+!30*!*(,D'34!&#$!HI!4+3$!D+$(#*C!30!(0,1$(>+*!%3>'+!&#$!
%@#!,+%,!#&!$+A3(0,!(01'/*(0B!YI!'+%%+$,!#&!(0,1$(D%(#0!

RCHYiFhI!RCbHIFII

"$+D3$+!30*!*(,D'34!&#$!bI!4+3$!D+$(#*C!30!(0,1$(>+*!%3>'+!&#$!
%@#!,+%,!#&!$+A3(0,!(01'/*(0B!YI!'+%%+$,!#&!(0,1$(D%(#0!

RC[YbFi[!RCNH[FII

"$+D3$+!30*!*(,D'34!&#$![I!4+3$!D+$(#*C!30!(0,1$(>+*!%3>'+!&#$!
%@#!,+%,!#&!$+A3(0,!(01'/*(0B!YI!'+%%+$,!#&!(0,1$(D%(#0!

HCRh[FiI!HCRkkFII

.#01+,,(#03$4!G3$+,!

J+0(#$!"+$,#0,!P3('13$*! NFII! NFkI

"'300(0B!"$+ULDD'(13%(#0!K0=/($4!G++,!

/"8,K"(-,'6*N"2"6%0&"(-**@**W(,-,'6*9""*U!"#*B,-"V*
!

!

8!7#A+!
4%&&"#),'6*N"2"6%0&"(-**UW()65K,(.*)I'(."*%$*58"V*@**
W(,-,'6*9""*U!"#*B,-"V*
!

HNIFII!
!

RbIFII

G'##$!,D31+!'+,,!%)30!hI!,=FA!30*!A(,1+''30+#/,!A3%%+$,!0#%!
(0?#'?(0B!304!&'##$!,D31+!+FBF!3*?+$%(,+A+0%,C!,)#D!&$#0%,!
30*!#%)+$!1)30B+,!$+'3%(0B!%#!+O%+$03'!3DD+3$301+F!
!

bNIFII![IFII

hI!UH[I!,=FAF!!! bNIFII! RNIFII

RIIR!URICIII!,=FAF!!! [iIFII! [NIFII

!
!

5
11



5$3190+''!X+(,/$+!.+0%$+!

BH,&&,(.*0"#*8"88,%(* !

V0*+$!RN!a!NIl! G$++! HFII

BH,&&,(.*X*&%(-I8! !

V0*+$!RN!a!NIl! G$++! khF[I

! !

K3$'4!5($*!b!A#0%),!!NIl! G$++! hbFII

K3$'4!5($*!N!A#0%),!!NIl! G$++! N[FII

<)+!3>#?+!,@(AA(0B!1)3$B+,!@(''!>+!(0%$#*/1+*!@(%)!+&&+1%!&$#A!N%)!J+D%+A>+$!HIRI!
@)+0!%)+!1/$$+0%!&$++!,@(AA(0B!,1)+A+!&#$!/0*+$!RNM,!30*!#?+$!NIM,!(,!@(%)*$3@0!(0!
'(0+!@(%)!B#?+$0A+0%!D#'(14F*
*
*
4%&06',(-8*#")",2"K*
!
B-'."* Y%Z*

#")[K*
:=*

Y'-5#"*%$*)%&06',(-8*
U\566"-"K*6,8-V*

?)-,%(*-'M"(*'(K*6"88%(8*6"'#("K*
U\566"-"K*6,8-V*

_+@!J%3B+!H! H! RF! 5G24!.)#(1+!(,,/+,!#0!
>30*(0BF!

HF! 5G24!.)#(1+!(,,/+,!#0!
>309*(0B!

RF! 2++%(0B,!)+'*!30*!
1#0?+$,3%(#0,!1#0%(0/+!

HF! .)(+&!KO+1/%(?+!(0!'(3(,#0!@(%)!
1#AD'3(030%!D$#?(*(0B!
1'3$(&(13%(#0!#&!>30*(0B!D$#1+,,!

_+@!J%3B+!b! R! RF! 6(,,3%(,&31%(#0!@(%)!
$+&/,+!1#''+1%(#0!,+$?(1+!

RF!.#AD $#A(,+!$+31)+*!30*!
D#'(14!,+0%!#/%F!

_+@!J%3B+!h! R! RF! P+1$/(%A+0%!1301+''3%(#0!
(,,/+!

RF! .)(+&!KO+1/%(?+!(0!'(3(,#0!@(%)!
1#AD'3(030%!

^A>/*,A30! H! RF! .#AD'3(0%!3>#/%!6GE!
LDD'(13%(#0!dD$#B$+,,(#0e!

HF!.#AD' 3(0%!3B3(0,%!
*3A3B+!%#!3!&+01+!>4!
#D+$3%(?+,!30*!
,/>,+=/+0%!>/$B'3$4!

RF! 6($+1%#$!$+?(+@+*!30*!
1#AD'3(0%!0#%!/D)+'*F!!LB$++*!
$+&+$$3'!%#!^A>/*,A30F!

HF! 6(,A(,,+*!>4!^A>/*,A30!

!
KOD'303%(#0!#&!0+@!1#AD'3(0%!,%3B+,!
Stage 1: 80&#$A3'!0#%(&(13%(#0!%#C!30*!3%%+AD%!3%!$+,#'/%(#0!@(%)C!%)+!%+3A!D$#?(*(0B!%)+!,+$?(1+!(0!=/+,%(#0F!
Stage 2: 2#$+!&#$A3'!1#0%31%!d(0!@$(%(0B!#$!>4!D)#0+e!@(%)!%)+!A303B+$!#$!1)(+&!#&&(1+$!$+,D#0,(>'+!&#$!%)+!,+$?(1+F!
L%%+AD%+*!$+,#'/%(#0!(,!>4!(0?+,%(B3%(#0!30*!@$(%%+0!$+,D#0,+!%#!%)+!1#AD'3(030%F!
Stage 3: G#$A3'!@$(%%+0!1#AD'3(0%!%#!%)+!$+'+?30%!*($+1%#$F!L%%+AD%+*!$+,#'/%(#0!(0?#'?+,!(0?+,%(B3%(#0!>4!%)+!*($+1%#$!
#$!3DD#(0%++!30*!@$(%%+0!$+,D#0,+!%#!%)+!1#AD'3(030%F!
Stage 4: G#$A3'!@$(%%+0!1#AD'3(0%!%#!%)+!.)(+&!KO+1/%(?+C!@)#!*+1(*+,!@)+%)+$!%)+!1#AD'3(0%!)3,!>++0!*+3'%!@(%)!
3DD$#D$(3%+'4!3%!+31)!#&!%)+!D$+?(#/,!,%3B+,F!8&!0#%C!3!$+?(+@!D30+'!1#0,(,%(0B!#&!%@#!(0*+D+0*+0%!D+$,#0,!30*!3!
.#/01('!2+A>+$!(,!1#0?+0+*C!3%!@)(1)!%)+!1#AD'3(030%!A34!>+!D$+,+0%F!<)+!D30+'!A39+,!$+1#AA+0*3%(#0,!%#!%)+!
.)(+&!KO+1/%(?+!#0!@)+%)+$!%#!/D)#'*!%)+!1#AD'3(0%!30*!@)3%!$+A+*(3'!31%(#0!,)#/'*!>+!%39+0F!
Local Government Ombudsman: 8&!%)+!1#AD'3(030%!$+A3(0,!/0,3%(,&(+*!3%!%)+!+0*!#&!J%3B+!hC!,a)+!A34!1#0%31%!%)+!
X#13'!E#?+$0A+0%!^A>/*,A30C!@)#!@(''!$+?(+@!%)+!13,+!30*!&#$A!3!Q/*BA+0%!3,!%#!@)+%)+$!%)+!1#AD'3(0%!,)#/'*!
>+!/D)+'*F!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

*

6
12



W(-"#('6*'5K,-*'885#'()"8*
!
HIIkaRI!L/*(%!"'30!
!
<)+!*+D3$%A+0%!$+1+(?+*!Rb!&(03'!3/*(%!$+D#$%,!&#$!%)+!&(0301(3'!4+3$!HIIkaRI!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!!<)+!3/*(%#$,!B3?+!R!,4,%+A!3!,(B0(&(130%!3,,/$301+!#D(0(#0C!RR!3!
,3%(,&31%#$4!3,,/$301+!30*!R!3!'(A(%+*!3,,/$301+F!!<)+!3/*(%!1#0%3(0(0B!3!'(A(%+*!
3,,/$301+!$+1#AA+0*3%(#0!&#1/,,+*!#0!%@#!,D+1(&(1!3$+3,!#&!%)+!
7(B)@34,aP(0B@34,!1#0%$31%F!!!<)+!'(A(%+*!3,,/$301+!$+1#AA+0*3%(#0!@3,!&#$!%)+!
,%$++%!1'+30,(0B!,+$?(1+F!!<)+!1#01+$0!@3,!(03*+=/3%+!1#0%$31%!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!D3$%!#&!
%)+!,%$++%!1'+30,(0B!1#0%$31%C!(01'/*(0B!D/>'(1!%#('+%,F!!<)+!.)(+&!^&&(1+$-!K0?($#0A+0%!
30*!"/>'(1!"$#%+1%(#0!)3,!$+?(+@+*!%)+!,(%/3%(#0!30*!)3,!+0,/$+*!(AD$#?+*!1#0%$31%!
A#0(%#$(0B!0#@!%39+,!D'31+F!!
!
HIRIaRR!L/*(%!"'30!
!
<)+!*+D3$%A+0%!$+1+(?+*!&(03'(,+*!3/*(%!&$#A!%)+!HIRIaRR!L/*(%!"'30!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$F!!
<)(,!3/*(%!@3,!#&!$+1#01('(3%(#0,!>+%@++0!&(0301(3'!,4,%+A,!30*!$+1+(?+*!3!
,3%(,&31%#$4!#D(0(#0F!
*
1]5'6,-F*,&0')-*'88"88&"(-8*
!
\+!D/>'(,)+*!#0+!+=/3'(%4!(AD31%!3,,+,,A+0%C!&#$!6+?+'#DA+0%!2303B+A+0%C!
*/$(0B!=/3$%+$!#0+F!

7
13



B")-,%(*9%5#D*9%#H'#K*O%%M*
*
!
1Y^W/CY+1YG*7*!_JOW4*!/CG14GWCY*
*
1&"#."()F*!6'((,(.*7*J58,("88*4%(-,(5,-F*
*
<)+!P+,%!.+0%$+!D'30!30*!$+,#/$1+,!3$+!1/$$+0%'4!>+(0B!$+?(+@+*]!3!0/A>+$!#&!
3**(%(#03'!$+,%!A303B+$,!3$+!>+(0B!%$3(0+*F!!6/+!%#!%)+!1)30B+,!(0!%)+!+A+$B+014!
1#0%31%!#&&(1+$!3$$30B+A+0%,!A#$+!,+$?(1+!3$+3!A303B+$,!0++*!%#!>+!%$3(0+*!%#!
,/DD#$%!30!+A+$B+014!$+,D#0,+!30*!30!S80%$#*/1%(#0!%#!KA+$B+014!"'300(0BM!
%$3(0(0B!D$#B$3AA+!(,!>+(0B!*+?+'#D+*F!
!
<)+!1#$D#$3%+!>/,(0+,,!1#0%(0/(%4!D'30!@(''!>+!$+?(+@+*!*/$(0B!%)(,!D+$(#*!(01'/*(0B!3!
$+3,,+,,A+0%!#&!%)+!>/,(0+,,!(AD31%!303'4,(,!D$#1+,,F!!<)+!.#$D#$3%+!J+?+$+!
\+3%)+$!"'30!@(''!>+!D$#B$+,,+*!%)$#/B)!%)+!,/AA+$!$+3*4!&#$!1#0,(*+$3%(#0!>4!%)+!
KO+1/%(?+!(0!3/%/A0F!
!
<)+!(AD31%!#&!%)+!0+@!'+B(,'3%(#0!(0!$+,D+1%!#&!&'##*(0B!(,!,%(''!+OD+1%+*!%#!>+!1'3$(&(+*F!!
<)+!$+,#/$1+!(AD'(13%(#0,!3$+!'(9+'4!%#!>+!,(B0(&(130%!30*!,9(''!,)#$%3B+,!3$+!30!(,,/+!
03%(#03''4F!!<)+!G'##*!P(,9!P+B/'3%(#0,!HIIk!$+=/($+!30!3,,+,,A+0%!#&!&'##*!$(,9!30*!
3!D$+'(A(03$4!$+D#$%!%#!>+!1#AD'+%+*!>4!m/0+!HIRRF!!
*
1(2,#%(&"(-'6*`"'6-I*
*
<)+!7+3'%)!30*!J3&+%4!X3@!#/%%/$0!$+D#$%!&#$!HIIkURI!30*!+0&#$1+A+0%!D'30!HIRIURR!
(,!%#!>+!D$+,+0%+*!%#!%)+!X(1+0,(0B!`!J3&+%4!.#AA(%%++!&#$!3*#D%(#0!#0!R!m/'4!HIRIF!
<)+!G##*!X3@!^/%%/$0!P+D#$%!&#$!HIIkURI!30*!%)+!K0&#$1+A+0%!"'30!HIRIURR!(,!%#!
>+!$+D#$%+*!%#!%)+!KO+1/%(?+!2+A>+$!&#$!X+(,/$+C!.#$D#$3%+!J+$?(1+,!30*!"/>'(1!
"$#%+1%(#0!&#$!3*#D%(#0!#0!HN!m/'4!HIRI!3&%+$!@)(1)!(%!@(''!B#!%#!.#/01('!(0!J+D%+A>+$F!!!
!
<)+!,%$3%+B4!&#$!(AD$#?(0B!+O(,%(0B!)#/,(0B!,%#19!@3,!3*#D%+*!#0!RN!23$1)!HIRIF!L!
9+4!31%(#0!&#$!+0?($#0A+0%3'!)+3'%)!@3,!%#!,++9!%#!(0%$#*/1+!3!'30*'#$*!311$+*(%3%(#0!
,1)+A+F!<)+!D/$D#,+!#&!%)+!,1)+A+!(,!%#!$+1#B0(,+!30*!$+@3$*!'30*'#$*,!@)#!
A303B+!%)+($!D$#D+$%(+,!%#!3!B##*!,%30*3$*F!<#!%+,%!*+A30*!&#$!3!'30*'#$*!
311$+*(%3%(#0!,1)+A+!RIY!=/+,%(#003($+,!@+$+!,+0%!%#!3!$30B+!#&!,%39+)#'*+$,F!<)+!
$+,/'%,!(0*(13%+!%)3%!#&!%)+!Hh!=/+,%(#003($+,!$+%/$0+*!dRkZe!0#0+!1/$$+0%'4!>+'#0B,!
%#!30!311$+*(%3%(#0!,1)+A+!>/%!3''!+O1+D%!H!@#/'*!1#0,(*+$!Q#(0(0B!3!,1)+A+!$/0!>4!
%)+!.#/01('F!<)+!@#$9!(0!%)+!0+O%!D+$(#*!@(''!3,,+,,!%)+!?(3>('(%4!&#$!%)+!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!
3!'30*'#$*!311$+*(%3%(#0!,1)+A+!3'#0B!@(%)!%)+!$+,#/$1+!(AD'(13%(#0,F!
!!
<)+!(0%+$(A!K0?($#0A+0%3'!"$#%+1%(#0!<+3A!2303B+$!'+&%!%)+!.#/01('!#0!RR!m/0+!30*!
%)+!D+$A30+0%!A303B+$!$+1$/(%+*!+3$'(+$!(0!%)+!4+3$!(,!%#!,%3$%!@#$9!(0!m/'4F!!
2+30@)('+!%)$++!+OD+1%30%!#&&(1+$,!@(%)(0!%)+!K0?($#0A+0%3'!"$#%+1%(#0!<+3A!3$+!
,1)+*/'+*!%#!>+B(0!A3%+$0(%4!'+3?+F!!J#A+!1#?+$!(,!>+(0B!31)(+?+*!%)$#/B)!%)+!/,+!
#&!30!3B+014!#&&(1+$!30*!>4!$+3''#13%(0B!@#$9!+',+@)+$+!(0!%)+!,+1%(#0F!!<)+!
.#AA+$1(3'!<+3A!2303B+$!$+A3(0,!#0!A3%+$0(%4!'+3?+!30*!(%!(,!30%(1(D3%+*!,)+!@(''!
$+%/$0!3%!%)+!+0*!#&!J+D%+A>+$F!<)+!D#,%!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!>+!1#?+$+*!(0%+$03''4!>4!3!
%+3A!A+A>+$!?#'/0%3$('4!31%(0B!/D!(0%#!%)+!$#'+F!
!
!
!
!
!

8
14



^&&(1+$,!3$+!%#!D$#?(*+!3!&#/0*3%(#0!&##*!)4B(+0+!1#/$,+!(0!J30*)/$,%!J1)##'!#0!
HR!m/'4!3(A+*!3%!4#/0B!D+#D'+!@)#!3$+!'(9+'4!%#!>+!'##9(0B!&#$!D3$%!!%(A+!Q#>,!#$!%#!
,%3$%!@#$9!&#$!%)+!&($,%!%(A+F!80!3**(%(#0!,/DD#$%!(,!%#!>+!B(?+0!%#!%)+!m/0(#$!.(%(;+0n,!
*34!+?+0%!3%!5$3190+''!30*!\#9(0B)3A!.#''+B+C!\(19!7(''!.+0%$+!#0!RbaRh!m/'4F!!\+!
@(''!>+!D$#?(*(0B!RI!A(0/%+!(0%+$31%(?+!@#$9,)#D,!(0!$+'3%(#0!+0?($#0A+0%3'!)+3'%)F!8%!
(,!30%(1(D3%+*!%)3%!hII!1)('*$+0!@(''!D3$%(1(D3%+!(0!%)+!+?+0%,F!!!
!
1(2,#%(&"(-'6*B"#2,)"8*
!
<)+!,+$?(1+!(0%+0*,!%#!/0*+$%39+!f*##$,%+DD(0Bg!(0!3$+3,!@)+$+!$+141'(0B!
D+$&#$A301+!(,!D##$!30*!'30*&(''!>(0!@3,%+!(,!)(B)F!<)(,!*##$!%#!*##$!3@3$+0+,,!
$3(,(0B!13AD3(B0!@(''!>+!311#AD30(+*!>4!$#3*,)#@,!@(%)!@3,%+!%+3A!30*!$+b!,%3&&!
D$#A#%(0B!)#A+!1#AD#,%(0BC!$+3'!03DD(+,C!&##*!@3,%+!$+*/1%(#0!30*!+*/13%(0B!
$+,(*+0%,!3>#/%!%)+!1#$$+1%!A3%+$(3',!%)+4!,)#/'*!D'31+!(0!%)+($!$+141'(0B!>(0,F!!<)+!
@#$9!@(''!>+!&/0*+*!&$#A!3!B#?+$0A+0%!B$30%F!!L$+3,!%3$B+%+*!3$+!.$#@0!\##*C!D3$%,!
#&!E$+3%!7#''30*,!30*!,#A+!D3$%,!#&!\3$&(+'*!@)+$+!3!D$#D#$%(#03''4!)(B)+$!0/A>+$!
#&!L1#$0!b!d1#A&#$%3>'4!#&&e!)#/,+)#'*+$,!3$+!'#13%+*!30*!(%!(,!)#D+*!%)3%!%)(,!@#$9!
@(''!1#AA+01+!>+&#$+!%)+!3/%/A0F!!
!
^?+$!RII!0+@!'(%%+$!>(0,!A3*+!&$#A!$+141'+*!D'3,%(1!3$+!%#!>+!(0,%3''+*!%)$#/B)#/%!%)+!
>#$#/B)!*/$(0B!m/'4!30*!L/B/,%!%#!$+D'31+!%)#,+!%)3%!3$+!#'*!30*!$/,%4F!HI!*/3'!
f$+141'(0B!#0!%)+!B#g!>(0,!@(''!3',#!>+!(0,%3''+*!(0!%)+!<#@0!.+0%$+!30*!3%!
_+(B)>#/$)##*!,)#D,!%#!%$4!30*!13D%/$+!%)+!,(B0(&(130%!3A#/0%!#&!130,!30*!D'3,%(1!
>#%%'+,!0#$A3''4!%)$#@0!(0!'(%%+$!>(0,!(0!%)+,+!3$+3,F!!
!
L0!303'4,(,!#&!,%$++%!,@++D(0B,!)3,!(0*(13%+*!%)3%!#?+$!YIZ!#&!%)(,!(,!#$B30(1!
1#AD#,%3>'+!A3%+$(3'F!"$(#$!%#!,+0*(0B!(%!&#$!1#AD#,%(0B!(%!0++*,!%#!>+!%$+3%+*!>4!
$+A#?(0B!'(%%+$!30*!*$4(0B!#/%!%)+!,@++D(0B,F!\#9(0B)3A!5.!#/$!$+b!D3$%0+$!)3,!
,/11+,,&/''4!/0*+$%39+0!%)(,!D$#1+,,!&#$!,#A+!4+3$,!30*!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!30*!
P+3*(0B!5.!3$+!D'300(0B!%#!*#!%)+!,3A+!%)/,!*(?+$%(0B!+?+0!A#$+!@3,%+!&$#A!
'30*&(''F!!\#$9!(,!3',#!D'300+*!%#!,%3$%!%)+!$+&/$>(,)A+0%!#&!%)+!D/>'(1!1#0?+0(+01+,!(0!
%)+!%#@0!3%!%)+!5/,!J%3%(#0!30*!5$##9+!7#/,+F!
!
80?+,%(B3%(#0,!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!&(0*!3!,+0,(>'+!,#'/%(#0!%#!%$3&&(1!A303B+A+0%!
$+=/($+A+0%,!#0!3''!*+U$+,%$(1%+*!$#3*,!d[IAD)!30*!3>#?+e!@#$9(0B!@(%)!P(0B@34!%)+!
7(B)@34,!1#0%$31%#$F!\#$9+$,!0++*!%#!>+!D$#%+1%+*!(&!%)+4!3$+!@#$9(0B!'+,,!%)30!RFH!
A+%$+,!&$#A!)(B)!,D++*!$#3*,!30*!%)+$+!(,!3!0++*!%#!A(0(A(,+!D#%+0%(3'!*3A3B+!
1'3(A,!&#$!@(0*,1$++0,!%)3%!)3?+!>++0!)(%!>4!,%#0+,!#$!#%)+$!#>Q+1%,!%)$#@0!/D!>4!
A#@+$,F!!
!
L%!%)+!+0*!#&!%)+!=/3$%+$!&(03'!D$+D3$3%(#0,!@+$+!>+(0B!A3*+!&#$!5$(%3(0!(0!5'##A!
Q/*B(0B!#0!Rb!m/'4!3%%+0*(0B!%#!%)+!$#/%+!30*!*+3'(0B!@(%)!304!D$#>'+A,F!!X30*,13D+!
A303B+A+0%!@(''!>+!'##9(0B!3%!A#$+!D3$%0+$,)(D!@#$9(0B!@(%)!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!
7#A+,!(0!Q#(0%!3$+3,!#&!3A+0(%4!'30*!%#!31)(+?+!A/%/3''4!>+0+&(1(3'!+&&(1(+01(+,F*
*
`,.IH'F8*?88"-*+'('."&"(-*
*
G/$%)+$!)(B)@34!$+U,/$&31(0B!D$#B$3AA+,!1#0%(0/+!%#!>+!*+?+'#D+*!%#!+03>'+!@#$9,!
%#!1#AA+01+!#0!,(%+!'3%+$!%)(,!4+3$F!!<)+,+!D$#Q+1%,!@(''!>+!%3$B+%+*!3%!%)+!$+A3(0(0B!
,%$++%,!%)3%!@+$+!D3$%(1/'3$'4!>3*'4!3&&+1%+*!>4!%)+!'3,%!@(0%+$!,+3,#0F!!5$(*B+!30*!
)(B)@34!,%$/1%/$3'!,%$+0B%)+0(0B!30*!D$#%+1%(#0!D$#Q+1%,!@(''!>+!*+,(B0+*!30*!,(%+!
@#$9,!D$#B$3AA+,!*+?+'#D+*!(0!1#U#D+$3%(#0!@(%)!#/$!0+@!1#0,/'%30%,!30*!+O(,%(0B!
1#0%$31%#$,F!
!
\#$9!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!1#''+1%!30*!(AD$#?+!#/$!3,,+%!(0?+0%#$4C!'##9(0B!%)(,!%(A+!%#!
(AD$#?+!#/$!/0*+$,%30*(0B!#&!%)+!1#0*(%(#0!#&!%)+!,+?+$3'!+'+A+0%,!#&!%)+!0+%@#$9F!!

9
15



L,!D$+?(#/,'4!$+D#$%+*!%)(,!(0&#$A3%(#0!(,!+,,+0%(3'!%#!(0&#$A!#/$!&/$%)+$!?3'/3%(#0,!#&!
%)+!3,,+%!3,!%)+!$/'+,!$+B3$*(0B!?3'/3%(#0!1)30B+!(0!'(0+!@(%)!72!<$+3,/$4!B/(*301+!
#0!\)#'+!#&!E#?+$0A+0%!L11#/0%,F!!80!,/DD#$%!#&!%)(,!D$#1+,,!3!D$#B$3AA+!#&!
,%$/1%/$3'!%+,%(0B!#&!,%$++%!'(B)%(0B!1#'/A0,!@(''!%39+!D'31+!%#!3,,(,%!/,!/0*+$,%30*!%)+!
B+0+$3'!1#0*(%(#0!#&!%)+!'(B)%(0B!,%#19!30*!%#!%3$B+%!$+D'31+A+0%!D$#B$3AA+,!A#$+!
+&&+1%(?+'4F!
!
<)+!B$#/D!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!@#$9!@(%)!#/$!1/$$+0%!1#0%$31%#$,!%#!+0,/$+!3!,A##%)!
%$30,(%(#0!&$#A!%)+($!1/$$+0%!#D+$3%(#03'!*+D#%!(0!53B,)#%!%#!,(%+,!@(%)(0!%)+!5#$#/B)F!!
<)+!53B,)#%!*+D#%C!#@0+*!>4!J/$$+4!.#/0%4!.#/01('C!@(''!0#!'#0B+$!>+!3?3('3>'+!%#!
#/$!1#0%$31%#$,!3&%+$!LD$('!HIRRC!$+=/($(0B!3!A#?+!%#!3'%+$03%(?+!#D+$3%(#0!,(%+,!@(%)(0!
5$3190+''F!!!
!
C0"#'-,%('6*B500%#-**
*
\+!)#D+!%#!/0*+$%39+!3!$+?(+@!#&!#/$!@+>!D3B+,!30*!>4!,#!*#(0B!+0,/$+!%)3%!%)+!
(0&#$A3%(#0!D$#?(*+*!%#!%)+!D/>'(1!30*!%)+!311+,,!%)+4!)3?+!%#!#/$!,+$?(1+,!(,!1/$$+0%!
30*!%)+!@+>!(,!3?3('3>'+!3,!30!+&&+1%(?+!%##'F!!\#$9!@(''!1#0%(0/+!@(%)!%)+!0+@!.3$!
"3$9!1#0%$31%#$,!%#!D$#?(*+!3!,+3A'+,,!)30*#?+$!#&!A#$+!#&!%)+!>319!#&&(1+!,4,%+A,!
30*!%)+$+>4!$+'+3,+!,3?(0B,!%#!%)+!.#/01('F!!!
!
G#'K,(.*B-'(K'#K8*7*B"#2,)"8**
*
^?+$!%)+!0+O%!=/3$%+$!#&&(1+$,!@(''!>+!1#0*/1%(0B!3!,+$(+,!#&!%+,%!D/$1)3,+!#D+$3%(#0,!
%#!1)+19!'#13'!1#AD'(301+!@(%)!%)+!,3'+!#&!$+,%$(1%+*!3B+!D$#*/1%,!,/1)!3,!3'1#)#'!
30*!1(B3$+%%+,F!!8%!(,!)#D+*!%)3%!%)+!B##*!D$#B$+,,!+OD+$(+01+*!'3,%!4+3$!@(%)!%)+!
$+*/1%(#0!(0!,3'+,!@(''!1#0%(0/+F!!L**(%(#03''4!@+!)3?+!(0%+''(B+01+!%)3%!/0*+$!RYn,!A34!
>+!D/$1)3,(0B!D+%$#'!%#!$/0!A(0(!>(9+,!30*!A#%#$!>(9+,!/,+*!&#$!#&&!$#3*!D/$D#,+,C!
30*!@+!@(''!%)+$+&#$+!>+!,D+39(0B!%#!$+%3('+$,!%#!$+(0&#$1+!%)+!f*#!0#%!,+''!A+,,3B+g!
30*!?+$(&4(0B!1#AD'(301+!%)$#/B)!3!,+$(+,!#&!%+,%!D/$1)3,+,F!
!
_+@!'+B(,'3%(#0!$+=/($(0B!30!3B+!RY!'(A(%!#0!,/0!>+*!/,+!@(''!1#A+!(0%#!&#$1+!(0!HIRRF!!
^&&(1+$,!@(''!>+!3*?(,(0B!,/DD'(+$,!#0!1)+19(0B!$+B(A+,!%)3%!,)#/'*!>+!(0!D'31+!%#!
D$+?+0%!/,+!>4!/0*+$!RYM,F!!!
!
^&&(1+$,!@(''!3',#!>+!@#$9(0B!@(%)!#&&(1+$,!&$#A!P+?+0/+!30*!./,%#A,!%#!'##9!3%!%)+!
D$#>'+A,!#&!1#/0%+$&+(%!3'1#)#'!D$#*/1%,!%)3%!3$+!3DD+3$(0B!@(%)!$+B/'3$(%4!#0!%)+!VW!
A3$9+%F!!<)+,+!D$#*/1%,!3$+!#&%+0!?+$4!D##$'4!A30/&31%/$+*!30*!130!'+3*!%#!,+$(#/,!
)+3'%)!(,,/+,!(&!1#0,/A+*F!
!
O,)"(8,(.*
*
<)+!'#0B!,/AA+$!+?+0(0B,!%+0*!%#!>+!3!D+$(#*!@)+0!%)+!.#/01('!$+1+(?+,!%)+!
B$+3%+,%!0/A>+$!#&!1#AD'3(0%,!&$#A!$+,(*+0%,!$+B3$*(0B!*(,%/$>301+!&$#A!'(1+0,+*!
D$+A(,+,F!!"3$%(3''4!%)(,!(,!*/+!%#!#D+0!@(0*#@,!(0!$+,(*+0%(3'!D$#D+$%(+,!30*!#D+0!
*##$,!30*!@(0*#@,!(0!%)+!'(1+0,+*!D$#D+$%4!30*!D3$%'4!*/+!%#!D+#D'+!>+(0B!#/%,(*+!
30*!+0Q#4(0B!%)+($!'+(,/$+!%(A+F!!2#,%!'(1+0,+*!D$+A(,+,!)3?+!1#0*(%(#0,!3%%31)+*!%#!
%)+($!'(1+01+!$+=/($(0B!%)+A!%#!1#0%$#'!0#(,+!30*!#&&(1+$,!@(''!>+!1)+19(0B!%)3%!@)+$+!
1#AD'3(0%,!)3?+!>++0!$+1+(?+*C!%)+4!3$+!#D+$3%(0B!@(%)(0!1#0*(%(#0,!30*!31%(0B!
$+,D#0,(>'4!%#@3$*,!0+(B)>#/$,F!
!
^&&(1+$,!@(''!3',#!>+!1#0%(0/(0B!Q#(0%!@#$9!@(%)!<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+!(0!%)+!3$+3,!#&!
%3O(,!30*!'(1+0,+*!D$+A(,+,!
!!!!!!
!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

10
16



4'#*!'#M8*
!
G$#A!R!m/'4!3!0+@!1#0%$31%#$!@3,!3DD#(0%+*F!!_+@!+=/(DA+0%!@(''!>+!(0,%3''+*!@(%)(0!
%)+!13$!D3$9,!%#!A#0(%#$!30*!1#0%$#'!D34A+0%F!!L**(%(#03''4!D$#?(,(#0,!&#$!%)+!
+0&#$1+A+0%!#&!#0!$#3*!D3$9(0B!)3?+!3',#!D3,,+*!%#!%)+!0+@!1#0%$31%#$F!!
!
\#$9!@(''!1#AA+01+!#?+$!%)+!1#A(0B!A#0%),!#0!13D(%3'!@#$9,!(*+0%(&(+*!%#!A3(0%3(0!
%)+!7(B)!J%$++%!30*!.)3$'+,!J=/3$+!13$!D3$9,F!!L**(%(#03''4!@#$9!(,!>+(0B!13$$(+*!#/%!
%#!(*+0%(&4!A3(0%+0301+!@#$9!0+1+,,3$4!%#!#%)+$!13$!D3$9!3$+3,!@(%)(0!%)+!5#$#/B)F!!
!
4"&"-"#F*7*4#"&'-%#,5&**
!
<)+!0+O%!=/3$%+$!@(''!,++!%)+!@#$9,!1#AA+01+!#0!%)+!#'*!1)3D+'!$+3*4!&#$!%)+!0+@!
1$+A3%#$,F!!<)(,!D)3,+!#&!@#$9,!(,!%#!>+!1#AD'+%+*!3'#0B!@(%)!#&&(1+!&31('(%(+,!(0!%(A+!
&#$!%)+!(0,%3''3%(#0!#&!%)+!0+@!1$+A3%#$,!@)(1)!>+B(0,!(0!%)+!&#/$%)!=/3$%+$F!!!
!
<)+!$+D'31+A+0%!#&!>/,)!$#,+,!@(''!1#AA+01+!(0!%)+!,+1#0*!=/3$%+$F!!5/,)!$#,+,!
3$+!#&%+0!*+,%$#4+*!>4!@('*'(&+!30*!3$+!%#!>+!$+D'31+*!@(%)!,%30*3$*!$#,+,F!!
./,%#A+$,!@)#!#$(B(03''4!#D%+*!&#$!>/,)!$#,+,!@+$+!130?3,,+*!30*!kYZ!#D%+*!&#$!
%)+!J%30*3$*!$#,+!3,!3!$+D'31+A+0%F!!_+@!$#,+!>+*,!@(''!>+!1$+3%+*!3,!%)+$+!(,!0#!
$##A!@(%)(0!+O(,%(0B!>+*,F!!_+@!D'3=/+,!,)#@(0B!%)+!0+@!'#13%(#0!#&!%)+!$#,+!30*!
%)+!03A+!#&!%)+!*+1+3,+*!%#!@)#A!%)+!$#,+!(,!*+*(13%+*!@(''!>+!1$+3%+*!#0!%)+!0+@!
D'3=/+!+0B$3?(0B!A31)(0+]!%)(,!@(''!$+D$+,+0%!3!,3?(0B!%#!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!3,!%)+,+!
@+$+!D$+?(#/,'4!#/%,#/$1+*F!!
!
#"a*!'#-("#8I,0**
*
<)+!#?+$3''!$+141'(0B!$3%+!D+$&#$A301+!#&!%)+!$+b!D$#Q+1%!(,!D$#?(0B!1)3''+0B(0B!
3B3(0,%!%)+!hIZ!%3$B+%!&#$!%)(,!4+3$F!<)+!&3''!(0!$3%+,!,++0!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!@3,%+!
1#''+1%(#0!3$$30B+A+0%,!)3,!3!90#19!#0!+&&+1%!@)+0!(%!1#A+,!%#!*(,D#,3'F!!!<#!%$4!%#!
$+1#?+$!%)(,!\PE!3$+!*#(0B!A#$+!@#$9!%#!%$4!%#!+O%$31%!A#$+!%)$#/B)!%)+!,#$%(0B!
D$#1+,,!3%!JA3''A+3*C!(0!3**(%(#0!%#!1#0%(0/(0B!%#!*+?+'#D!%)+!'+3$0(0B!&$#A!%)+!#0!
,(%+!$+141'(0B!%$(3',F!!!
!
<)+!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!%)+!)+(B)%!>3$$(+$!3%!JA3''A+3*!)3,!>++0!3!%$+A+0*#/,!,/11+,,!
@)+0!(%!1#A+,!%#!$+*/1(0B!%)+!3A#/0%!#&!%$3*+!@3,%+!B#(0B!?(3!%)+!)#/,+)#'*!
&31('(%(+,F!<)+!D$#1+,,!>+(0B!+AD'#4+*!%#!A303B+!%)(,!(,!)#@+?+$!?+$4!$+,#/$1+!
*+A30*(0BF!!^D%(#0,!3$+!%#!>+!+OD'#$+*!%)3%!1#/'*!$+,/'%!(0!,#A+!1)30B+,!%#!%)+!
3$$30B+A+0%,!&#$!3''#@(0B!?30,!%#!+0%+$!>#%)!JA3''A+3*!30*!X#0B,)#%F!!<)+$+!A34!
3',#!0++*!%#!>+!,#A+!A(0#$!1)30B+,!%#!%)+!+0%$301+,F!!!
!
8%!(,!)#D+*!%)3%!3!'#0B!,%30*(0B!(,,/+!)3,!3',#!>++0!$+,#'?+*!%)3%!3''#@,!\+,%!
5+$9,)($+!$+,(*+0%,!%#!/,+!JA3''A+3*F!!80!1#A(0B!%#!%)(,!3B$++A+0%!\+,%!5+$9,)($+!
.#/01('!@(''!D34!%)+!3,,#1(3%+*!1#,%,!#&!%)+($!$+,(*+0%,!/,(0B!%)+!,(%+F!!8%!(,!0#@!0#%!
/01#AA#0!&#$!0#0!$+,(*+0%,!%#!>+!>3$$+*!&$#A!,/1)!,(%+,!/0'+,,!,D+1(&(1!
3$$30B+A+0%,!)3?+!>++0!A3*+F!!K31)!4+3$!@+!,/$?+4!>#%)!,(%+,!%#!A#0(%#$!&#$!0#0!
$+,(*+0%,n!/,+F!!!

\PE!3$+!1#0%$31%+*!%#!D$#*/1+!30!300/3'!$+D#$%F!!<)(,!)3,!>++0!D/>'(,)+*!30*!
1#D(+,!@(''!>+!A3*+!3?3('3>'+!%#!3''!2+A>+$,F!!
*
*
*
*
*
*

11
17



`C_BWYb*
*
`%58,(.*8-#'-".F*
*
<)+!.#/01('!@(''!'3/01)!%)+!0+@!+=/(%4!,)3$+!,1)+A+!d5G.!24)#A+!1)#(1+e!(0!+3$'4!
J+D%+A>+$F!<)(,!,1)+A+!@(''!+03>'+!&($,%!%(A+!>/4+$,!%#!>/4!3!)#A+!#&!%)+($!1)#(1+!
>4!>/4(0B!3!,)3$+!#&!%)+!+=/(%4!&$#A!%)+!.#/01('!30*!$+0%(0B!@)3%!%)+4!1300#%!3&&#$*F!!
!
<)+!,+1#0*!A++%(0B!#&!%)+!D$#B$3AA+!>#3$*!%)3%!(,!,%++$(0B!%)+!#'*+$!D+$,#0!
311#AA#*3%(#0!30*!,/DD#$%!,+$?(1+,!,%$3%+B4!@(''!A++%!(0!m/'4F!<)+!A++%(0B!@(''!
3B$++!%)+!1#0,/'%3%(#0!=/+,%(#0,!30*!A+%)#*,!30*!%)+0!%)+!1#0,/'%3%(#0!@(''!%39+!
D'31+!@(%)!#'*+$!D+#D'+C!D$#?(*+$,!30*!A3$9+%!A39+$,!#?+$!%)+!D$#1++*(0B!A#0%),F!
!
`%&"6"88("88*
!
L!1#/0%!#&!$#/B)!,'++D+$,!3%!)#%!,D#%!3$+3,!@(''!%39+!D'31+!(0!L/B/,%F!<)+!1#/0%!@(''!
>+!/0*+$%39+0!>4!?#'/0%++$,!(01'/*(0B!%)+!?#'/0%3$4!,+1%#$!>3,+*!#0!(0%+''(B+01+!
&$#A!%)+!"#'(1+!30*!#%)+$!3B+01(+,!@)+$+!%)+!)#%!,D#%,!&#$!$#/B)!,'++D(0B!%39+,!
D'31+F!<)+!1#/0%!@(''!>+!/0*+$%39+0!&#''#@(0B!B/(*+'(0+,!&$#A!%)+!.#AA/0(%(+,!30*!
X#13'!E#?+$0A+0%!*+D3$%A+0%F!
!
B500%#-,(.*0"%06"*
!!
_+B#%(3%(#0!@(%)!,+$?(1+!D$#?(*+$,!)3,!>++0!1#01'/*+*!(0!%)+!A3Q#$(%4!#&!13,+,!%#!
+,%3>'(,)!1#0%$31%!D$(1+,!&#$!%)+!0+O%!%)$++!4+3$,!&#$!,/DD#$%(0B!D+#D'+!,+$?(1+!
D$#?(*+$,F!L%!%)+!%(A+!#&!@$(%(0B!%)+!1#0%$31%,!)3?+!0#%!>++0!+0%+$+*!(0%#!*/+!%#!
1#01+$0,!#?+$!3?3('3>('(%4!#&!&/0*(0B!3'%)#/B)!(%!(,!+OD+1%+*!%)3%!%)+!1#0%$31%,!@(''!>+!
(0!D'31+!>4!J+D%+A>+$F!J+$?(1+,!)3?+!>++0!D$#?(*+*!>4!+O%+0*(0B!%)+!D$+?(#/,!
1#0%$31%,F!
!
<)+!,/DD#$%(0B!D+#D'+!3*A(0(,%$3%(#0!B$30%!@3,!@(%)*$3@0!>4!E#?+$0A+0%!3,!D3$%!#&!
%)+!*+1(,(#0!%#!$+*/1+!B$30%!&/0*(0B!%#!'#13'!3/%)#$(%(+,!(0!234F!<)+!D$#B$3AA+!)3,!
%#!>+!3*A(0(,%+$+*!%#!,%30*3$*,!30*!$+=/($+A+0%,!,+%!*#@0!>4!%)+!.#AA/0(%(+,!30*!
'#13'!B#?+$0A+0%!*+D3$%A+0%!30*!,#!(%!)3,!>++0!*+1(*+*!%#!+,%3>'(,)!3!0+@!D#,%!%#!
3*A(0(,%+$!%)+!D$#B$3AA+!3%!3!$+*/1+*!'+?+'!1#AD3$+*!%#!%)+!@#$9!#&!%)+!D$+?(#/,!
%@#!D#,%,F!<)+!D#,%!@(''!>+!&/0*+*!&$#A!+&&(1(+014!,3?(0B,!B+0+$3%+*!&$#A!%)+!
1#0%$31%!0+B#%(3%(#0!D$#1+,,F!
!
`%&"*%H("#8I,0*
!
<)+!0/A>+$!#&!)#/,+)#'*,!@)#!3$+!%39(0B!/D!%)+!#D%(#0!#&!3!13,)!(01+0%(?+!B$30%!(,!
D(19(0B!/D!30*!1/$$+0%!D$#Q+1%(#0,!3$+!%)3%!Y!)#/,+)#'*,!@(''!>+!)+'D+*!%#!>/4!3!
)#A+!@(%)!%)(,!3,,(,%301+!(0!HIRIaRRF!
*
4I%,)"*\'8"K*6"--,(.*L*J94*+F*)I%,)"*
!
<)+!(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!#&!%)+!5G.!Q#>!,+3$1)!D#$%3'!)3,!>++0!*+'34+*!%#!m/'4F!<)(,!(,!
>+13/,+!%)+!,4,%+A!)3,!>++0!>+,D#9+!@$(%%+0!%#!(01'/*+!,D+1(&(1!,+$?(1+,!(0!
5$3190+''!$3%)+$!%)30!%)+!(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!#&!%)+!B+0+$(1!D$#*/1%F!\)+0!(0!D'31+!%)+!
,4,%+A!@(''!3''#@!3DD'(130%,!%#!311+,,!+AD'#4A+0%!30*!%$3(0(0B!#DD#$%/0(%(+,F!
!
J"("$,-8*
!
<)+!$+,/'%!#&!%)+!(0,D+1%(#0!#&!%)+!>+0+&(%!,+$?(1+!>4!%)+!L/*(%!.#AA(,,(#0!@(''!>+!
D/>'(,)+*!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$F!<)(,!@(''!&#''#@!3!$#/0*!%3>'+!A++%(0B!@(%)!%)+!3/*(%!

12
18



1#AA(,,(#0!30*!%)+!.#/01('!@)+$+!%)+!$+1#AA+0*3%(#0,!30*!#?+$3''!,1#$+!@(''!>+!
*(,1/,,+*!30*!1)3''+0B+*F!
!
L'#0B!@(%)!%)+!,/$B+$(+,!%#!(AD$#?+!>+0+&(%!%39+!/D!%)+$+!@(''!>+!%@#!,D+1(&(1!+?+0%,!
(0!L/B/,%F!<)+!300/3'!>+0+&(%!&#$!4#/!+?+0%!@(''!%39+!D'31+!#0!%)+!Rk%)!L/B/,%!(0!
"$(01+,,!,=/3$+!30*!%)+!>+0+&(%!,+$?(1+!@(''!3',#!3%%+0*!30!+?+0%!#&!$!#?+$![I,F!
!
<)+!,4,%+A!$+D'31+A+0%!&#$!%)+!>+0+&(%!,+$?(1+!(,!D$#B$+,,(0B!%#!D'30F!<)+!,+1#0*!
*3%3!1/%!)3,!%39+0!D'31+!%#!+,%3>'(,)!%)+!A3%1)!#&!*3%3!>+%@++0!#'*!30*!0+@!
,4,%+A,F!<)+!*#1/A+0%!A303B+A+0%!,4,%+A!)3,!>++0!/DB$3*+*F!
!
<)+$+!@(''!>+!3!>+0+&(%!/,+$!&#1/,!B$#/D!(0!%)+!>+B(00(0B!#&!L/B/,%F!
*
9%#"8-*)'#"*
!
<)+!0+@!13'',!)30*'(0B!,4,%+A!,+D3$3%+!&$#A!%)+!'(&+'(0+!A#0(%#$(0B!,4,%+A!@(''!B#!
'(?+!(0!m/'4F!!<)(,!@(''!+03>'+!A#$+!311/$3%+!'#BB(0B!30*!A303B+A+0%!#&!13'',!,/1)!3,!
#/%!#&!)#/$,!13'',!30*!D$#?(*+!3!>+%%+$!,+$?(1+!%#!1#$D#$3%+!1/,%#A+$,F!
!
L!0+@!1#0%$31%!@(%)!%)+!0+@!13$!D3$9!A303B+A+0%!1#AD304!@(''!>+!0+B#%(3%+*!
*/$(0B!%)+!=/3$%+$!%#!D$#?(*+!3!A#>('+!$+,D#0,+!#/%!#&!)#/$M,!,+$?(1+F!!
!
_+B#%(3%(#0!@(%)!%)+!P3*(30!7#/,(0B!B$#/D!(,!%39(0B!D'31+!%#!+O%+0*!%)+!13'',!
)30*'(0B!,+$?(1+!%)3%!@+!1/$$+0%'4!D$#?(*+!&#$!\(0*,#$!)#/,(0BF!
*
*
O1WB_/1*?YN*4_OG_/1!
!
!'#M8*'(K*4%5(-#F8,K"*
*
G#""*8"#2,)"8*
*
_+@!A+3,/$+,!3$+!>+(0B!D/%!(0%#!D'31+!%#!*+'(?+$!%)+!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!.#/01('!<$++!
"#'(14!30*!,/DD#$%!A303B+$,!%#!)+'D!%)+A!(AD$#?+!A303B+A+0%!#&!%)+!.#/01('M,!
%$++!,%#19F!<)(,!(01'/*+,-U!
!
!! <$++!,3&+%4!,/$?+4!#&!bR!J1)##',!
!! <$++!,3&+%4!,/$?+4!#&!D$(A3$4!30*!,+1#0*3$4!7(B)@34!$#/%+,!
!! <+$A,!#&!P+&+$+01+!dJ+$?(1+!3B$++A+0%e!@(%)!7(B)@34,!L,,+%!2303B+A+0%!

E$#/D!
!! <+$A,!#&!P+&+$+01+!dJ+$?(1+!3B$++A+0%e!@(%)!6+?+'#DA+0%!2303B+A+0%!
!! <+$A,!#&!P+&+$+01+!dJ+$?(1+!3B$++A+0%e!@(%)!X+(,/$+!,(%+,F!
!
J,%K,2"#8,-F*
*
<)+!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!5(#*(?+$,(%4!G#$/A!@(''!>+!/0*+$%39(0B!%@#!,(%+!?(,(%,!'(09+*!%#!
*+'(?+$(0B!%)+!5(#*(?+$,(%4!L1%(#0!"'30F!!<)+!?(,(%,!3$+!%#!3!@('*&'#@+$!&3$A!d)3>(%3%!
1$+3%(#0e!30*!%#!\('*A##$!7+3%)!d<)3A+,!53,(0!7+3%),!JD+1(3'!"$#%+1%(#0!L$+3!>($*!
,D+1(+,eF!
!
J/$?+4!@#$9!@(''!>+!/0*+$%39+0!&#$!%)+!$3$+!$#/0*U'+3?+*!,/0*+@!30*!B'#@U@#$AC!
%@#!5$3190+''!5(#*(?+$,(%4!L1%(#0!"'30!,D+1(+,!D3$%(1/'3$!%#!%)+!>#$#/B)F!!
!
!
!
!

13
19



+'#M"-,(.*'(K*,(-"#0#"-'-,%(!
!
_+@'4!*+,(B0+*!(0%+$D$+%3%(#0!30*!0#%(1+!>#3$*,!&#$!J)+D)+$*!2+3*#@,a!J30*)/$,%!
2+A#$(3'!"3$9!@(''!>+!+$+1%+*!#0!,(%+F!!<)+!*+,(B0,!)3?+!/0*+$B#0+!(0%+$03'!30*!
+O%+$03'!1#0,/'%3%(#0!@(%)!%)+!X#13'!L11+,,!G#$/A!30*!5+7+3$*!U!%)+!A+A>+$U'+*!
B$#/D!#&!*(,3>'+*!3*/'%,!>3,+*!(0!5$3190+''F!
!
L!*+%3('+*!$+?(+@!#&!3''!"3$9,!30*!.#/0%$4,(*+!'+3&'+%,!(,!>+(0B!*#0+!%#!3,,+,,!%)#,+!
%)3%!0++*!$+*+,(B0(0B!30*!D$(0%(0B!30*!%)#,+!%)3%!#0'4!0++*!%#!>+!3?3('3>'+!%#!
*#@0'#3*!&$#A!%)+!@+>,(%+F!
!
!6'((,(.*'(K*8-#'-".,)*)%(856-'-,%(!
!
m+00+%%,!7(''!"3$9!
!
<)+!1#/0%$4,(*+!D3$9!(,!1/$$+0%'4!>+(0B!+,%3>'(,)+*!>4!%)+!.#0,#$%(/AM,!'30*,13D+!
1#0,/'%30%,F!!<)+!,+$?(1+!(,!'(3(,(0B!1'#,+'4!%#!+0,/$+!%)3%!#D+0!,D31+C!D'34!30*!
B3A+,!&31('(%(+,!#&!3!)(B)!,%30*3$*!30*!'3,%(0B!?3'/+!%#!%)+!1#AA/0(%4!@(''!>+!
*+?+'#D+*F!
!
<)+!,+$?(1+!@(''!>+!D$+,+0%!3%!30!#D+0!3($!1#AA/0(%4!+?+0%!#0!Y%)!L/B/,%!#$B30(,+*!
>4!%)+!m+00+%%,!"3$9!P+,(*+0%,!L,,#1(3%(#0C!@(%)!(0&#$A3%(#0!3>#/%!D3$9,C!
1#/0%$4,(*+C!$(B)%,!30*!@34!30*!>(#*(?+$,(%4!30*!#&&+$(0B!$30B+$!B/(*+*!@3'9,!#&!%)+!
0+@!1#/0%$4,(*+!D3$9F!
!
\49+$4!.#D,+!
!
<)+!,+$?(1+!)3,!>++0!1#0,/'%+*!#0!%)+!D$#D#,3',!&#$!%)+!0+@!'30*,13D(0B!#&!%)+!
*+?+'#DA+0%C!D$#%+1%(#0!30*!+0)301+A+0%!#&!%)+!JJJ8!@##*'30*F!
!
!6'F\5,6K"#!
!
o+3$U%@#!,(%+,!&#$!"'34>/('*+$!D$#Q+1%,!)3?+!>++0!(*+0%(&(+*!&#''#@(0B!*(,1/,,(#0,!@(%)!
%)+!"'34!"3$%0+$,)(D!d"3$(,)C!<#@0!30*!5#$#/B)!.#/01(',eF!!"'34!(AD$#?+A+0%,!3$+!
D$#D#,+*!&#$!J3?+$039+!"3$9!d.$#@0!\##*C!\(09&(+'*e!30*!%)+!E$++0@34!d.#''+B+!
<#@0C!J30*)/$,%e!
!
L!,D+1(3'!+?+0%!@(''!>+!%39(0B!D'31+!#0!h!L/B/,%!%#!(01$+3,+!%)+!3@3$+0+,,!#&!'#13'!
1)('*$+0!3>#/%!%)+!(AD$#?+*!D'34!D$#?(,(#0!(0!%)+!\3$&(+'*!3$+3!3,!*+'(?+$+*!*/$(0B!
4+3$U#0+!
!
?))"88*W&0#%2"&"(-8*
*
L11+,,!(AD$#?+A+0%,!3$+!D'300+*!&#$!+3$'4!L/B/,%!3%!c/++0!L00+M,!E/''+4F!<)(,!(,!
/,(0B!'#13''4!1#0,%$/1%+*!%(A>+$!&$#A!%)+!.$#@0!K,%3%+F!!G/0*(0B!#&!YIZ!#&!%)+!%#%3'!
1#,%!)3,!>++0!,+1/$+*!&$#A!_3%/$3'!K0B'30*!
!
L$%(,%!*+,(B0+*!,+3%(0B!3%!m/>('++!E3$*+0,!@(''!>+!$+&/$>(,)+*!#?+$!%)+!,/AA+$!%#!
(AD$#?+!%)(,!D#D/'3$!%#@0!1+0%$+!D3$9!
!
_+@!,+3%(0B!(,!3',#!>+(0B!D'31+*!3%!5(''!7(''C!A3*+!/,(0B!@(0*!>'#@0!%(A>+$!&$#A!#0!
,(%+!
!
!
!
!

14
20



4%&&5(,-F*12"(-8*
*
L!S"3@,!(0!%)+!"3$9M!D/>'(1!+?+0%!(,!%#!>+!)+'*!3%!X('4!7(''!"3$9!#0!bR!m/'4!%#!D$#A#%+!
$+,D#0,(>'+!*#B!#@0+$,)(DF!!^0U)30*!+OD+$%!3*?(1+C!&/0!31%(?(%(+,C!1#AD+%(%(#0,!30*!
*+A#0,%$3%(#0,!>4!'#13'!>/,(0+,,+,!30*!1)3$(%(+,!@(''!3''!>+!%39(0B!D'31+F*
*
L!"3$%0+$,!30*!o#/%)!J1)+A+!&#$!RHUR[!4+3$!#'*,!(0!5($1)!7(''!30*!730@#$%)!)3,!
>++0!#$B30(,+*!&#$!m/'4C!L/B/,%!30*!J+D%+A>+$F!!J+%!/D!>4!%)+!_+(B)>#/$)##*!
L1%(#0!E$#/DC!(0!D3$%0+$,)(D!@(%)!%)+!'#13'!"#'(1+!30*!"3$9,!30*!.#/0%$4,(*+!,+$?(1+C!
%)+!(0(%(3%(?+!(0?#'?+,!?#'/0%++$!31%(?(%(+,!3%!J#/%)!7(''!"3$9!'+3*(0B!%#!%)+!$+@3$*!#&!3!
&$++!31%(?(%4!*34!3%!^39@##*!o#/%)!.)3''+0B+*
*
O,\#'#,"83*?#-8*'(K*`"#,-'."!
!
L,!D3$%!#&!%)+!J#1(3'!_+%@#$9(0B!D$#Q+1%C!5G.!X(>$3$(+,!@(''!'3/01)!3!G31+>##9!
311#/0%!(0!m/'4F!!G#''#@(0B!A3Q#$!$+&/$>(,)A+0%C!\)(%+B$#?+!X(>$3$4!@(''!$+U#D+0!#0!
Rk%)!m/'4F!!<)+!3/%)#$!83(0!"3%%(,#0!@(''!3%%+0*!5$3190+''!X(>$3$4!\$(%+$,n!E$#/D!(0!%)+!
3/%/A0F!
!
_#$%)+$0!"3$(,)+,!L$%,!\++9!(0!^1%#>+$F!!7+$(%3B+!^D+0!634,!(0!J+D%+A>+$F!
!
*
!1/9C/+?Y41*?YN*/1BC_/41B*
*
?K&,(,8-#'-,%(*
!
<)+!6#1/A+0%!2303B+A+0%!<+3A!@(''!,)#$%'4!1#AD'+%+!D)3,+!H!#&!%)+!D'300(0B!
>319U,1300(0B!D$#Q+1%!30*!3(A!%#!1#AD'+%+!%)+!>319U,1300(0B!#&!*$3(03B+!D'30,!
>+&#$+!=/3$%+$U+0*F!<)+!h%)!&'##$!L*A(0!<+3A!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!D$#?(*+!,/DD#$%!%#!%)+!
$30B+$!,+$?(1+!/0%('!3!0+@!3*A(0(,%$3%#$!130!>+!$+1$/(%+*!3%!<)+!X##9!^/%F!!\+!@(''!
$+A#?+!%@#!'3$B+!#'*!'+9%$(+?+$!&('(0B!/0(%,!&$#A!<(A+!J=/3$+!J#/%)!&#''#@(0B!3!1'+3$U
#/%!#&!D3D+$!&('+,F!
!
J58,("88*BF8-"&8*
*
\+!@(''!/DB$3*+!2bC!%)+!8<!,4,%+A!/,+*!>4!+0?($#0A+0%3'!)+3'%)!`!%$3*(0B!
,%30*3$*,F!<#!%(+!(0!@(%)!%)+!/DB$3*+!#&!%)+!.#$D#$3%+!E8J!/DB$3*+C!@+!@(''!/DB$3*+!
V0(&#$AC!%)+!,4,%+A!/,+*!>4!*+?+'#DA+0%!A303B+A+0%!30*!>/('*(0B!1#0%$#'!30*!
(AD'+A+0%!%)+!0+@!?+$,(#0!#&!V0(&#$A!"/>'(1!L11+,,F!<)(,!@(''!(AD$#?+!%)+!1/,%#A+$!
+OD+$(+01+!@)+0!?(+@(0B!30*!1#AA+0%(0B!#0!D'300(0B!3DD'(13%(#0,F!8%!@(''!3',#!
+03>'+!%)+!D/>'(1!%#!,+%/D!3'+$%,!(0!%)+!3$+3!@)+$+!%)+4!'(?+F!
!
L&%+$!*+'34,!(0!m/0+!*/+!%#!%+1)0(13'!(,,/+,C!@+!@(''!B#!'(?+!@(%)!^*4,,+4C!3!0+@!13''!
'#BB(0B!,4,%+A!&#$!G#$+,%!13$+!30*!5G.pA4!Q#>!,+3$1)C!3!)#,%+*!@+>,(%+!%)3%!@(''!
)+'D!D+#D'+!#0!%)+!)#/,(0B!$+B(,%+$!%#!'##9!&#$!Q#>,C!B+%!)+'D!@(%)!%$3(0(0B!30*!3*?(1+!
#0!>+0+&(%,F!
!
\+!3$+!D3$%!#&!%)+!1#$D#$3%+!@+>!$+*+?+'#DA+0%!D$#Q+1%!%+3AF!<)(,!(,!%)+!,%3$%!#&!3!
A3Q#$!D(+1+!#&!@#$9!%)3%!@(''!%39+!A304!A#0%),!%#!1#AD'+%+F!!\+!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!
1$+3%+!#0'(0+!&#$A,!@(%)!0+@!1#$D#$3%+!&#$A,!,4,%+A!30*!&(0(,)!/D*3%(0B!@+>!D3B+,!
@(%)!'(09,!%#!%)+!E#?+$0A+0%M,!K'+1%$#0(1!X(1+0,(0B!2303B+A+0%!J4,%+AF!<)(,!
+03>'+,!%)+!K/$#D+30!.#AA/0(%4!%#!3DD'4!&#$!'(1+0,+,!#0'(0+F!!\(%)!%)+!'(>$3$4!
,+$?(1+!@+!)#D+!%#!1#AD'+%+!@#$9!#0!%)+!0+@!#0'(0+!13%3'#B/+!,4,%+AF!
!

15
21



\+!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!@#$9!#0!%)+!/DB$3*+!#&!%)+!.#/01('n,!E8J!,4,%+A,!30*!)#D+!>4!
%)+!+0*!#&!%)+!=/3$%+$!%#!)3?+!/DB$3*+*!%)+!%+,%!,4,%+AF!!\+!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!D$#?(*+!
A3D,!30*!A3DD(0B!,+$?(1+,!%#!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!30*!%)+!.#/01('!3,!3!@)#'+F!
!
"c*B&'#-)'#K*!#%.#'&&"*
!
\+!@(''!(0%$#*/1+!%)+!0+@!1)+3D+$!6KJG($+!13$*!#0!RH%)!#&!m/'4F!!
!
\+!D'30!%#!*+?+'#D!3!/,+!&#$!%)+!J_L"8!3DD'(13%(#0!*/$(0B!%)(,!D+$(#*F!!<)(,!(,!30!
3DD'(13%(#0!%)3%!/,+,!%)+!,A3$%13$*!%#!(*+0%(&4!%#!%)+!1#AD/%+$!%)3%!%)+!/,+$!)3,!
,D+1(3'!0++*,!30*!A#*(&(+,!1#AD/%+$!,+%%(0B!311#$*(0B'4F!
!
\+!@(''!A++%!KOD+$(30!%#!+OD'#$+!%)+!1#,%!30*!A+%)#*!#&!3/%)+0%(13%(0B!3**$+,,!30*!
86!*3%3!&#$!%)#,+!+0$#''(0B!&#$!30!+l!13$*F!
!
\+!@(''!D/>'(,)!%)+!0+@!6(,1#/0%!6($+1%#$4!1#0%3(0(0B!Rkb!#&&+$,!(0!+3$'4!J+D%+A>+$F!!!
<)(,!(,!30!(01$+3,+!#0!'3,%!4+3$F!!
!
\+!3$+!@#$9(0B!%#!/,+!!%)+!+l!,A3$%13$*!@(%)!%)+!0+@!D3$9(0B!"34!#0!G##%!A31)(0+,!
@)+0!%)+4!3$+!(0,%3''+*!(0!%)+!%#@0!1+0%$+!A/'%(U,%#$+4!13$!D3$9,!%#!B(?+!*(,1#/0%,!%#!
'#13'!$+,(*+0%,F!
!
9,('()"*
!
80!3**(%(#0!%#!%)+!1#$+!&/01%(#0,!#&!311#/0%(0BC!>/*B+%!A#0(%#$(0BC!&(0301(3'!3*?(1+!
30*!*+>%!1#0%$#'!%)+!A3(0!%3,9!(0!=/3$%+$!(,!%#!D$#?(*+!,/DD#$%!30*!3*?(1+!(0!
D$+D3$(0B!>/*B+%!#D%(#0,!&#$!HIRRaRH!#0@3$*,F!
!
`5&'(*/"8%5#)"8*
!
7P!@(''!+0,/$+!%)+!0+@!.P5!&#$A!(,!1#$$+1%'4!(0%$#*/1+*!@(%)!A(0(A3'!*(,$/D%(#0F!
!
<)+4!@(''!D3$%(1(D3%+!(0!30!3/%)#$(%4U@(*+!$+1$/(%A+0%!3/*(%F!
!
<)+!%+3A!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!A#0(%#$!%)+!A+0%#$(0B!,1)+A+F!
!
\+!@(''!)#'*!3!0+%@#$9!+?+0%!&#$!&($,%!'(0+!A303B+$,F!
!
\+!+OD+1%!%#!13$$4!#/%!3!'#%!#&!@#$9!#0!%)+!Q#>!+?3'/3%(#0!D$#Q+1%!@)+0!%)+!&($,%!'(,%!#&!
Q#>!+?3'/3%(#0!,1#$+,!1#A+,!#/%!(0!m/'4F!
!
\+!@(''!$/0!,3&+B/3$*(0B!,+,,(#0,!$/0!&#$!X+(,/$+!,%3&&!30*!1#''3%+!*3%3!(0!D$+D3$3%(#0!
&#$!0+@!,3&+B/3$*(0B!D$#1+*/$+,F!
!
<)+$+!3$+!3!&+@!*(&&(1/'%!13,+,!@)(1)!3$+!'(9+'4!%#!'+3*!%#!)+3$(0B,!%)(,!=/3$%+$F!
*
4%(-#')-8*
!
K0B(0++$(0B!.#0,/'%3014!.#0%$31%,!dm31#>,!53>%(+!P+D'31+A+0%e!
!
\+!@(''!1#AD'+%+!%)+!A(0(U1#AD+%(%( #0!&#$!%)+!5$(*B+,!30*! J%$/1%/$+,!2303B+A+0%!`!
23(0%+0301+!.#0%$31%!>4!1#0&($A(0B!%)+!3@3$*!30*!D'31(0B!%)+!1#0%$31%F!
!
!
!
!

16
22



.3$!"3$9!2303B+A+0%!.#0%$31%!
!
80!=/3$%+$! H!%)+!0+@! 13$!D3$9!+=/(DA+0%!@(''!>+!#$*+$+ *!30*!*+'(?+$+*C!%)#/B)!
*+'(?+$4!A34!>+!+3$' 4!( 0!=/3$%+$!bF!730*!# ?+$!#&!>319!#&&(1+!3*A(0(,%$3%(#0!@(''!>+ !
D$#B$+,,+*!30*!0+3$! 1#AD'+%(#0F!P+?(+@!#&!13$!D3$9! D$(1(0B!#D% (#0,C!@)(1) !(, !
*+D+0*+0%!#0!%)+!&/01%(#03'(%4!D$#?(*+*!>4!%)+!0+@!+=/(DA+0%C!@(''!>+!/0*+$%39+0F!
!
2+$1/$4!L>3%+A+0%aP+D'31+A+0%!.$+A3%#$,!.#0%$31%
!
80!=/3$%+$! H!@+!@(''! ,(B0!%)+ !1#0%$31%!&#$ !,/DD'4C!(0 ,%3''3%(#0!3 0*!&(?+!4+3$,!
A3(0%+0301+F!
!
J#/%)!7(''!"3$9!.#0%$31%!
!
80!=/3$%+$!H!@+!@(''!,(B0!3!1#0%$31%!@(%)!%)+!D$+&+$$+*!>(**+$!30*!@#$9!@(''!,%3$%C!
,/>Q+1%!%#!<)3A+,!\3%+$!3DD$#?3'!&#$!%)+!,1)+A+!3,!%+0*+$+*F!
!
P+&/,+!.#''+1%(#0!.#0%$31%!
!
80!=/3$%+$!H !%)+!%+0*+$! *#1/A+0%,!3$+!@(%)!%)+ !(0?(%+*!>(* *+$,F!\+!@(''!$+,D#0* !%# !
=/+,%(#0,!30*!1'3$(&(13%(#0,F!<+0*+$,!3$+!*/+!&#$!$+%/$0!(0!+3$'4!J+D%+A>+$C!@)+0!@+!
@(''!,%3$%!%)+ !+?3'/3%(#0!D$#1+,,C!@(% )!D$+&+$$+*!>(**+$!(*+0%( &(+*!(0!+3$'4!_#?+ A>+$F!
<)(,!%(A+,13'+!,/DD#$%,!3@3$*!#&!1#0%$31%!(0!m30/3$4!HIRRF!
*
1]5'6,-,"8*
!
73?(0B!B3(0+*!%)+!31)(+?(0B!'+?+'!#&!%)+!+=/3'(%4!&$3A+@#$9!#0!H0*!m/'4!@+!@(''!,%3$%!
&#1/,,(0B!#0!%)+!31%(#0!D'30!3$(,(0B!&$#A!%)+!(0,D+1%(#0!%#!A39+!/,!>+%%+$!,%(''.

G#''#@(0B!3!1#$D#$3%+!D$+,+0%3%(#0!#0!8,'3A!(0!m/0+!,#A+!2/,'(A!+AD'#4++,!)3?+!
3DD$#31)+*!/,!%#!@#$9!@(%)!/,!%#!+O%+0*!/0*+$,%30*(0B!#&!%)+!0++*,!#&!%)+!2/,'(A!
1#AA/0(%(+,!(0!@#$9!30*!#/$!1#AA/0(%4F!!\+!@(''!/,+!%)(,!+01#/$3B(0B!3DD$#31)!%#!
(AD$#?+!90#@'+*B+!%)$#/B)#/%!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%F!
!
\+!+OD+1%!%#!1#AD'+%+!K=/3'(%(+,!8AD31%!L,,+,,A+0%,!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$F!!^0+C!3!D#'(14!
#0!%)+!/0$+3,#03>'+!%$+3%A+0%!#&!D+$,(,%+0%!1#AD'3(030%,!(,!'(9+'4!%#!'+3*!%#!3!&/''!
D/>'(,)+*!3,,+,,A+0%F!!<)+!#%)+$C!#0!%)+!D$#1/$+A+0%!D$#1+,,!&#$!P+&/,+!
.#''+1%(#0C!(,!/0'(9+'4!%#!D$#B$+,,!>+4#0*!(0(%(3'!3,,+,,A+0%F!
!
!"#$%#&'()"*+'('."&"(-*
!
\+!@(''!,/DD#$%!%)+!+O%+0,(#0!#&!%)+!0+@!D+$&#$A301+!A303B+A+0%!,4,%+AF!!
!
458-%&"#*4'#"*
!
\+!@(''!>+B(0!#/$!,+1#0*!A4,%+$4!,)#DD(0B!+O+$1(,+!(0!J+D%+A>+$F!
!
/,8M*+'('."&"(-*
*
\+!@(''!$#''!#/%!%)+!.#/01('M,!$+?(,+*!$(,9!A303B+A+0%!,4,%+A!%#!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%F!
!
!
!
!
!
!

17
23



!O?YYWYb*?YN*G/?YB!C/G*
!
J5,6K,(.*4%(-#%6*
!
<)+!5/('*(0B!.#0%$#'!%+3A!@(''!>+!/0*+$%39(0B!*+%3('+*!#&!%(A+!$+1#$*(0B!%#!+,%3>'(,)!
%)+!%$/+!1#,%!#&!(AD'+A+0%(0B!%)+!5/('*(0B!P+B/'3%(#0,F!!L!0+@!%(A+!$+1#$*(0B!,4,%+A!
)3,!>++0!*+?+'#D+*!30*!%)(,!@(''!>+!/,+*!%)$#/B)#/%!%)+!1#A(0B!4+3$!%#!+,%3>'(,)!%)+!
%$/+!1#,%!#&!A++%(0B!%)+!$+=/($+A+0%,!#&!%)+!5/('*(0B!P+B/'3%(#0,!,+$?(1+F!
!
J+?+$3'!5/('*(0B!P+B/'3%(#0,!3$+!>+(0B!3A+0*+*!(0!^1%#>+$C!D3$%,!GC!m!30*!X!%#!
(AD$#?+!%)+!3($!%(B)%0+,,C!+0+$B4!D+$&#$A301+!30*!?+0%('3%(#0!$+=/($+A+0%,!#&!
>/('*(0B,!30*!)#D+&/''4!%)+!%+3A!@(''!>+!3%%+0*(0B!%$3(0(0B!1#/$,+,!%)$#/B)#/%!
J+D%+A>+$!%#!D$+D3$+!&#$!%)+!1)30B+,F!
!
O'(K*4I'#."8*
!
8%!(,!)#D+*!%)3%!%)+!(01$+3,+!(0!^&&(1(3'!J+3$1)+,!@(''!1#0%(0/+!(0!%)+!1#A(0B!A#0%),!
&#''#@(0B!%)+!*+A(,+!#&!78"JF!
!
N"2"6%0&"(-*+'('."&"(-**
!
<)+!9+4!&#1/,!&#$!%)+!62!J+$?(1+!$+A3(0,!%)+!0++*!%#!>3'301+!%)+!>/*B+%3$4!
D$+,,/$+,!&31(0B!%)+!.#/01('!3B3(0,%!%)+!+OD+1%3%(#0,!#&!A3(0%3(0(0B!3!)(B)!
D+$&#$A(0B!,+$?(1+!@)(1)!1#0%$(>/%+,!D$#31%(?+'4!%#!*+'(?+$(0B!%)+!.#/01('M,!
#>Q+1%(?+,F!!P+'3%+*!%#!%)(,!%)+!A303B(0B!+O1+''+0%!D'300(0B!,+$?(1+,!d2K"Je!$+?(+@!
#&!%)+!"'300(0B!J+$?(1+!@(''!>+!3!9+4!31%(?(%4!(0!%)+!&#$%)1#A(0B!=/3$%+$C!@(%)!%)+!+0*!
#&!J+D%+A>+$!>+(0B!%)+!%3$B+%!*3%+!&#$!%)+!1#AD'+%(#0!#&!%)+!$+?(+@F!!80!%)+!1#A(0B!
=/3$%+$!%)+!$+?(+@!@(''!'##9!3%!%)+!&#''#@(0B-!
!

"! *+1(,(#0!A39(0B!D$#1+*/$+,!30*!3$$30B+A+0%,!
"! D/>'(1!1#0,/'%3%(#0!30*!+0B3B+A+0%!3$$30B+A+0%,!
"! 1/$$+0%!3$$30B+A+0%,!&#$!+0&#$1+A+0%!30*!1#AD'(301+F!
"! 311+,,(>('(%4!#&!%)+!,+$?(1+!%#!/,+$,!(01'/*(0B!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!3!"'300(0B!L'+$%!

,4,%+A!&#$!%)+!D/>'(1!30*!#?+$)3/'!#&!%)+!D'300(0B!@+>!D3B+,!
"! D$(#$(%(+,!&#$!%)+!,+$?(1+!
"! #DD#$%/0(%(+,!&#$!*(&&+$+0%!A+%)#*,!&#$!*+'(?+$4!
!

<)(,!D$#1+,,!@(''!(0?#'?+!+O3A(0(0B!D$#1+,,+,!#D+$3%+*!(0!%)+!,+$?(1+!30*!+OD'#$(0B!
%)+!@34!(0!@)(1)!%)+!,+$?(1+!+0B3B+,!@(%)!#%)+$!.#/01('!6+D3$%A+0%,C!"3$%0+$,C!
.#/01(''#$,C!3DD'(130%,!30*!%)+!1#AA/0(%4F!
!
8%!(,!30%(1(D3%+*!%)3%!%)+!+0&#$1+A+0%!&/01%(#0!#&!%)+!,+$?(1+!@(''!$+A3(0!)(B)!D$#&('+!(0!
%)+!1#A(0B!A#0%),!30*!%)3%!3DD'(13%(#0!0/A>+$,!3$+!'(9+'4!%#!$(,+!,'(B)%'4!#0!'3,%!
4+3$,!'#@!D#(0%F!!<)(,!(,!(0*(13%+*!>4!%)+!$(,+!(0!%)+!0/A>+$,!#&!D$+U3DD'(13%(#0!
+0=/($(+,!(0!%)+!,D$(0B!30*!%)+!30%(1(D3%+*!3DD'(13%(#0,!&#$!%)+!+O%+0,(#0!#&!%(A+!&#$!
%)+!%#@0!1+0%$+!#/%'(0+!D'300(0B!D+$A(,,(#0C!5$3190+''!7+3*,D31+C!$+,(*+0%(3'!
*+?+'#DA+0%!(0!.3(0!P#3*!30*!534!6$(?+!3,!@+''!3,!&/$%)+$!D)3,+,!3%!m+00+%%,!"3$9F!!
!
V0%('!%)+!*+%3(',!#&!%)+!D$+1(,+!D$#B$3AA+!#&!1)30B+,!3$+!300#/01+*!>4!%)+!
E#?+$0A+0%!(0!%)+!3/%/A0C!(%!(,!/01'+3$!3,!%#!%)+!(AD31%,!%)+!'#13'(,A!3B+0*3!@(''!
)3?+F!!"$+?(#/,!+OD+$(+01+!(,!%)3%!/01+$%3(0%4!>$(0B,!@(%)!(%!(01$+3,+*!,+$?(1+!
D$+,,/$+,!(01'/*(0B!A#$+!,D+1/'3%(?+!3DD'(13%(#0,!30*!$+,/'%30%!3DD+3',F!!
!
!
!
!

18
24



^%)+$!%3,9,!1/$$+0%'4!/0*+$@34!(01'/*+-!!
!

!! K,%3>'(,)(0B!3!,+$?(1+!/,+$!D30+'!30*!#%)+$!(0(%(3%(?+,!%#!+0,/$+!B$+3%+$!
1/,%#A+$!&#1/,!@(%)(0!%)+!,+$?(1+!(0*+O(0B!#&!%)+!$+1+0%'4!1#AD'+%+*!
+'+1%$#0(1!13D%/$+!#&!D'300(0B!A(1$#U&(1)+,F!

!! 80%$#*/1(0B!0+@!3$$30B+A+0%,!&#$!,D+1(3'(,%!'(,%+*!>/('*(0B!30*!1#0,+$?3%(#0!
3*?(1+!!

!! 239(0B!3?3('3>'+!&#$!(0%+$03'!/,+!%)+!D'300(0B!$+1#$*,!>319!%#!RkhY!@)(1)!
)3?+!>++0!13D%/$+*!+'+1%$#0(13''4!

!! .#0%(0/+*!(0?#'?+A+0%!(0!%)+!"^J!6+?+'#DA+0%!2303B+A+0%!"$#Q+1%F!
!! \#$9!1'#,+'4!@(%)!%)+!"'300(0B!"#'(14!J+1%(#0!(0!%)+!&#$A/'3%(#0!#&!D'300(0B!

D#'(14!*#1/A+0%,F!
!
`,.IH'F*Y"-H%#M*+'('."&"(-*
!
.#U#$*(03%(#0!7+3*'(0+,!
!

!! _3%(#03'!E$(*!E3,!1#0%(0/+,!@(%)!%)+($![Ui!4+3$!A3(0,!$+D'31+A+0%!D$#B$3A!
@(%)!5/''>$##9!>+(0B!%)+!0+O%!3$+3!%#!>+!%319'+*!3&%+$!1#AD'+%(#0!#&!%)+!
"$(+,%@##*!,1)+A+,F!!_EE!3190#@'+*B+!%)+($!D##$!D+$&#$A301+!(0!
"$(+,%@##*!30*!D'30!%#!1#AD'+%+!@#$9,!(0!3!,'#@+$!A#$+!,+=/+0%(3'!A300+$F!

!! m+00+%%,!"3$9!a!LbHk!$#/0*3>#/%!@#$9,!)3?+!1#AA+01+*!#&&'(0+!@(%)!%)+!
#0'(0+!@#$9,!*/+!%#!,%3$%!RN%)!L/B/,%!HIRIF!

!! m/01%(#0!13D31(%4!(AD$#?+A+0%,!)3?+!1#AA+01+*!3%!%)+!LbHH!53B,)#%!
P#3*C!JD#$%,!.+0%$+!$#/0*3>#/%!@)(1)!3$+!*/+!&#$!1#AD'+%(#0!J+D%+A>+$!
HIRIF!

!! <)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+!(0!D3$%0+$,)(D!@(%)!5G.!D'31(0B!L/%#A3%(1!_/A>+$!
"'3%+!P+1#B0(%(#0!dL_"Pe!13A+$3,!3%!0/A+$#/,!'#13%(#0,!31$#,,!%)+!
>#$#/B)!&#$!1$(A+!D$+?+0%(#0!D/$D#,+,F!!J/>Q+1%!%#!D'300(0B!D+$A(,,(#0!
@)+$+!0+1+,,3$4!30*!%#!>+!(0,%3''+*!>4!23$1)!HIRRF!

!! <$(3'!)#'+,!>+(0B!*/B!%#!D$#?+!3!$#/%+!&#$!J1#%%(,)!30*!J#/%)+$0!K0+$B4!
>+%@++0!5$3190+''!30*!.3A>+$'+4F!!.#AA+01+A+0%!*3%+,!3$+!0#%!4+%!
1#0&($A+*!>/%!3$+!'(9+'4!%#!>+!(0!HIRRF!

!! J1#%%(,)!30*!J#/%)+$0!K0+$B4!D'300+*!)(B)!?#'%3B+!13>'+!$#/%+!>+%@++0!
5$3190+''!30*!L,1#%!%$(3'!)#'+,!1#AD'+%+*!3@3(%(0B!D$#B$3A!#&!@#$9,!@)(1)!
3$+!'(9+'4!%#!1#AA+01+!m30/3$4!HIRRF!

!! _+O%!B+0+$3%(#0!#&!>$#3*>30*!(,!1#AA+01(0B!(0!.$#@%)#$0+!30*!o3%+'+4!5<!
+O1)30B+!3$+3,!&$#A!LD$('!HIRIF!

!! ^'4AD(1!P#/%+!_+%@#$9!HIRH!T!30!3'%+$03%(?+!$#/%+!$/0,!%)$#/B)!%)+!>#$#/B)!
(0!%)+!&#$A!#&!LbHHaLbbH!30*!LbHHaLbHk!%#!K%#0!6#$0+4F!!8%!(,!+OD+1%+*!%)3%!
bICIII!,D+1%3%#$,!D'/,!%)+!^'4AD(1!&3A('4!@(''!>+!311+,,(0B!%)(,!?+0/+!+31)!
*34F!!<)+!0/A>+$!#&!?+)(1'+,!%39(0B!%)+!3'%+$03%(?+!$#/%+,!(,!1/$$+0%'4!
/090#@0F!!

!
<)+!%+3A!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!&#1/,!#0!,3&+%4!(0,D+1%(#0,!30*!(0,D+1%(#0,!#&!
$+(0,%3%+A+0%,!@(%)(0!N!A#0%),!#&!1#AD'+%(#0!(0!#$*+$!%#!%319'+!*+&+1%,!3%!%)+!+3$'(+,%!
D#,,(>'+!,%3B+F!
!
B0'-,'6*!%6,)F*
!
G/$%)+$!@#$9!@(''!>+!13$$(+*!#/%!%#!303'4,+!%)+!$+,D#0,+,!%#!%)+!#D%(#0,!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
#0!%)+!J(%+!L''#13%(#0!6+?+'#DA+0%!"'30!6#1/A+0%F!!L!$+?(,+*!D$#B$3AA+!@(''!>+!
D$+D3$+*!&#$!%39(0B!&#$@3$*!%)+!@#$9!#&!%)+!,+1%(#0!(0!'(B)%!#&!/01+$%3(0%(+,!3>#/%!
03%(#03'!D#'(14!30*!%)+!&#$%)1#A(0B!3>#'(%(#0!#&!P+B(#03'!J%$3%+B(+,F!!8%!(,!)#D+*!%)3%!
@#$9!130!1#0%(0/+!#0!%)+!J/DD'+A+0%3$4!"'300(0B!6#1/A+0%!&#$!%)+!.#$+!J%$3%+B4!

19
25



,(%+!3%!\3$&(+'*F!!G/$%)+$!+?(*+01+!>3,+!A3%+$(3'!(,!>+(0B!,+1/$+*!(01'/*(0B!
1#0,(*+$3%(#0!#&!3!&($,%!*$3&%!#&!%)+!J%$3%+B(1!7#/,(0B!23$9+%!L,,+,,A+0%C!$+D#$%,!*/+!
%#!>+!$+1+(?+*!#0!+1#'#B4!&#$!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!*+?+'#DA+0%!,(%+,!30*!3!&(03'!G'##*!P(,9!
L,,+,,A+0%F!!!
!
G/$%)+$!@#$9!@(''!>+!13$$(+*!#/%!%#!303'4,+!$+,D#0,+,!&#''#@(0B!1#AD'+%(#0!#&!%)+!
1#0,/'%3%(#0!#0!%)+!*$3&%!J%$++%,1+0+!J"6!30*!%#!D$#*/1+!3!&(03'!?+$,(#0!&#$!
3*#D%(#0F!
!
.#0,/'%3%(#0!#0!%)+!<)3A+,!53,(0!7+3%),!J"6!)3,!>++0!1#AD'+%+*!>/%!&/$%)+$!@#$9!
)3,!>++0!*+'34+*!@)('+!1$(%(13'!'+B3'!(,,/+,!3$+!$+,#'?+*!$+'3%(0B!(0!D3$%(1/'3$!%#!%)+!
A+1)30(,A!&#$!,+1/$(0B!&/0*(0B!&#$!311+,,!A303B+A+0%!30*!A#0(%#$(0B!@(%)(0!%)+!
J"LF!!<)(,!D#'(14!3$+3!(,!3',#!'(9+'4!%#!>+!3&&+1%+*!>4!$+1+0%!03%(#03'!30*!$+B(#03'!
1)30B+,!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!@#$9!@3,!>+(0B!1#U#$*(03%+*!>4!%)+!P+B(#03'!"'300(0B!5#3$*!
30*!%)+!$+B(#03'!)#/,(0B!&(B/$+,!&#$A+*!%)+!>3,(,!&#$!%)+!&/0*(0B!D$#Q+1%(#0,F!
!
<)+!,+1%(#0!@(''!1#0%(0/+!%#!$+?(+@!%)+!1)30B+,!>+(0B!>$#/B)%!%#!%)+!D'300(0B!
,4,%+AC!(01'/*(0B!%)+!(AD31%,!#&!%)+!$+?#13%(#0!#&!%)+!J#/%)!K3,%!"'30C!30*!3*?(,+!
A+A>+$,!311#$*(0B'4F!
!
46,&'-"*4I'(."*'(K*4'#\%(*+'('."&"(-*
!
<)+!$+?(,+*!.'(A3%+!.)30B+!L1%(#0!"'30!dLD$('!HIRIe!(,!,1)+*/'+*!&#$!%)+!KO+1/%(?+!
A++%(0B!#0!Rb%)!m/'4!HIRIF!
!

6K..!)3,!D#,%D#0+*!%)+!300/3'!$+D#$%(0B!*+3*'(0+!&#$!_8RY[-!13$>#0!*(#O(*+!
+A(,,(#0,!&$#A!XL!#D+$3%(#0,!&$#A!bR,%!m/'4!HIRI!/0%('!&/$%)+$!0#%(1+F!X#13'!
3/%)#$(%(+,!@(''!>+!B(?+0!,/&&(1(+0%!%(A+!%#!1#AD'+%+!%)+($!$+%/$0,F!
!
"$+D3$3%(#0!(,!/0*+$@34!%#!,/>A(%!$+B(,%$3%(#0!&#$!%)+!A30*3%#$4!.3$>#0!$+*/1%(#0!
.#AA(%A+0%!K0+$B4!K&&(1(+014!,1)+A+!>4!bI%)!J+D%+A>+$!HIRIF!
!
^&&(1+$,!3$+!@#$9(0B!@(%)!J1#%%(,)!30*!J#/%)+$0!K0+$B4!%#!D$+D3$+!3!>(*!%#!%)+!X#@!
.3$>#0!_+%@#$9!G/0*!>4!%)+!+0*!#&!L/B/,%!HIRIF!L0%(1(D3%+*!,%3$%!*3%+!(,!K0*!#&!
_#?+A>+$!HIRIF!
!

G#'(80%#-*+'('."&"(-*B")-,%(*

J#')M("66*9%#"8-*+56-,@+%K'6*G#'(80%#-*+%K"6*UJ9++G+V!
!
<)(,!A#*+'!(,!0#@!1# AD'+%+!30*!$+3*4!&#$! /,+F!!<)+!6($+1%#$!)3,!+,%3>'(,)+ *!3!
1)3$B+!%#!3''#@!*+?+'#D +$,!311+,,! %#!%)+!A#*+ '!d3%!%)+($!*(,1$+%(#0e!&#$ !@)+0!%)+ 4!
,/>A(%!'3$B+!D'300(0B!3DD'(13%(#0,!@(%)(0!%)+!>#$#/B)F!!<)+!1)3$B+,!,+%!3$+-U!
!
jR[CIII!&#$!,(O!A#0%),!@(%)!jbCIII!&#$!+?+$4!3**(%(#03'!A#0%)F!
jbICIII!&#$!%@+'?+!A#0%),!
*
G#'$$,)*'(K*B'$"-F*b#%50*

4'85'6-F*/"K5)-,%(*L*O%)'6*B'$"-F*B)I"&"8D*
!
6+,(B0!@#$9!@(''!>+!1#AD'+%+*!30*!@#$9,!#$*+$,!(AA(0+0%!&#$!%)+!&#''#@(0B!,1)+A+,-!

!! LbIk[!G#$+,%+$,!\34!a!23B*+'+0+!P#3*!P#/0*3>#/%!
!! P/00(0B!7#$,+!P#/0*3>#/%!
!

20
26



C-I"#*G#'$$,)*+'('."&"(-*B)I"&"8D*
!
"$+'(A(03$4!*+,(B0!@#$9!@(''!>+!/0*+$@34!&#$!%)+!&#''#@(0B!,1)+A+,-!

!! \(09&(+'*!P#@!JD++*!2B%!J1)+A+!
!! E3%+@34!J(B0(0B!U!")3,+!b!

!
\#$9,!@(''!>+!,/>,%30%(3''4!1#AD'+%+!&#$!%)+!&#''#@(0B-!

!! \+,%+$0!P#3*!a!6#@0,)($+!\34!>/,!B3%+!dD)3,+!H!T!%$3&&(1!,(B03'(,3%(#0e!
!! "+*+,%$(30!$3*3$!$+?(+@!3%!,(B03'(,+*!1$#,,(0B,!dD)3,+!RaHe!

!
"$+'(A(03$4!*+,(B0!@#$9!@(''!>+!1#AD'+%+!#0!%)+!&#''#@(0B!,1)+A+,-!

!! 6#013,%'+!P#3*!a!LbHk!5+$9,)($+!\34!P#/0*3>#/%!U!.3D31(%4!8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! .#$3'!P++&!m/01%(#0!U!.3D31(%4!8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! LbHk!X#0*#0!P#3*!dL,1#%e!Qa@!"$(# $4!P#3*!30*!G+$0>309!P#3*!U!.3D31(%4!

8AD$#?+A+0%!
!
6+%3('+*!*+,(B0!@#$9!@(''!>+!0+3$(0B!1#AD'+%(#0!#0!%)+!&#''#@(0B!,1)+A+,-!

!! 7#$,+!`!E$##A!P#/0*3>#/%!U!.3D31(%4!8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! HI!AD)!,D++*!'(A(%,!

!
L,,+,,A+0%!@#$9!@(''!>+!1#AD'+%+!&#$!%)+!&#''#@(0B-!

!! JD++*!3,,+,,A+0%!#&!X#13''4!8AD#$%30%!P#3*,!dD)3,+!Re!
!
_+B#%(3%(#0,!@(''!>+!#0UB#(0B!@(%)!'30*#@0+$,!3%!23(*+0,!E$++0!.$#,,$#3*,!!
$+B3$*(0B!%)+!&/%/$+!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!%$3&&(1!,(B03',F!
!
G#'$$,)*/".56'-,%(*C#K"#8*UG/CVD*
!
<)+!0+O%!#0U,%$++%!D3$9(0B!$+,%$(1%(#0!<P^!@(''!)3?+!>++0!(AD'+A+0%+*C!(01'/*(0B!%)+!
3,,#1(3%+*!)(B)@34!@#$9,F!!
!
<)+!<P^!&#$!$+?(,+*!@3(%(0B!$+,%$(1%(#0,!(0!5/''!X30+!@(''!)3?+!>++0!(AD'+A+0%+*F!
!
/%'K*B'$"-F*1K5)'-,%(3*G#',(,(.*7*!5\6,),-FD*
!
<)+!&#''#@(0B!K*/13%(#0C!<$3(0(0B!30*!"/>'(1(%4!31%(?(%(+,!@(''!%39+!D'31+-!
!

!! m/0(#$!.(%(;+0!T!A/'%(U3B+014!+?+0%
!! P#3*!J3&+%4!K*/13%(#03'!"$+,+0%3%(#0,!&#$!9+4!'#13'!>/,(0+,,+,!
!! SJ%3$%J3&+M!"$+U*$(?+$!+*/13%(#0!+?+0%!
!! J/AA+$!S5(9+U3>('(%4M!.41'+!<$3(0(0B!1#/$,+,

!
G#'(80%#-*W&06"&"(-'-,%(*b#%50*

G#'(80%#-*+%K"6D!
!

!! \#$9!1#0%(0/+,!#0!%@#!1#$$(*#$!,%/*(+,C!%)+!LbHH!30*!%)+!LbHkC!%+,%(0B!
D#,,(>'+!(AD$#?+A+0%,!30*!D$#?(*(0B!%)+!>3,(,!&#$!+0B(0++$(0B!,#'/%(#0,!%#!>+!
*+?+'#D+*F!^01+!1#AD'+%+C!%)+,+!A#*+',!@(''!>+!/,+*!%#!3,,+,,!%)+!
+&&+1%(?+0+,,!#&!3!$30B+!#&!(AD$#?+A+0%!,1)+A+,F!

!
!! <)+!,%$3%+B(1!A#*+'!@(''!>+!30!+,,+0%(3'!%##'!(0!(*+0%(&4(0B!%)+!%$30,D#$%!(AD31%!

#&!%)+!5#$#/B)n,!)#/,(0B!3''#13%(#0,C!3,!@+''!3,!304!D)3,+*!*+?+'#DA+0%!#&!
%)+!%#@0!1+0%$+F!.)30B+,!%#!%)+,+!,1)+A+!D$#B$3AA+,!#$!%#!%)+!'+?+',!#&!
*+?+'#DA+0%!@(''!3''!$+=/($+!$+UA#*+''(0BF!!

21
27



!
!! .3''U#&&!1#0,/'%30%,!3$+!%#!>+!3DD#(0%+*!(0!m/'4!HIRI!%#!/0*+$%39+!304!

A#*+''(0B!%)3%!1300#%!>+!311#AA#*3%+*!(0U)#/,+!#?+$!%)+!0+O%!%)$++!4+3$,F!
!
OG!a*
!

!! ^&&(1+$,!3$+!0#@!@#$9(0 B!#0!,%$3%+B(+,!%#!>+!(01'/*+*!@(%)(0!%)+!"'30F!< )+,+!
@(''!>+!*+?+'#D+*!(0!%)+ !0+O%!=/3$%+ $!&#$!1#0,/'% 3%(#0!#0!%)+!X<"M,!*+*(13%+*!
@+>,(%+!@@@F>$3190+''U&#$+,%FB#?F/9aX<"bF!!

!
!! \#$9!@(''!1#0%(0/+!#0!%)+!(0&$3,%$/1%/$+!$+=/($+A+0%,!%#!,/DD#$%!%)+!1#$+!

,%$3%+B4!30*!&/$%)+$!A#*+''(0B!@#$9!@(''!>+!13$$(+*!#/%!%#!,/DD#$%!%)(,!@#$9!
@)(1)!@(''!%)+0!)+'D!&#$A!%)+!8AD'+A+0%3%(#0!D'30!

!
!'88"(."#*G#'(80%#-*
!

!! L!$30B+!#&!J%$3%+B4!6#1/A+0%,!3$+!>+(0B!D$+D3$+*!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!X<"!
"$#1+,,C!(01'/*(0B!5/,!J%$3%+B4C!5/,!80&#$A3%(#0!J%$3%+B4C!P+3'!<(A+!
"3,,+0B+$!80&#$A3%(#0!J%$3%+B4C!JA3$%!`!80%+B$3%+*!<(19+%(0B!J%$3%+B4F!

!
!! L0!3/*(%!#&!3''!>/,!,%#D!(0&$3,%$/1%/$+,!(0!%)+!5#$#/B)!(,!(0!)30*!3,!D3$%!#&!%)(,!

+O+$1(,+F!
!

!! _#@!%)3%!,+$?(1+!1)30B+,!)3?+!,+%%'+*C!(%!(,!)#D+*!%#!*$3@!/D!3!c/3'(%4!5/,!
"3$%0+$,)(D!@(%)!G($,%!(0!$+,D+1%!#&!,+$?(1+!RkI!d5$3190+''!T!P+3*(0Be!+(%)+$!
/0('3%+$3''4!#$!@(%)!%)+!(0?#'?+A+0%!#&!%)+!#%)+$!%@#!1#/01(',!#0!%)+!'(0+!#&!
$#/%+F!

!
G#'2"6*4I%,)"*

!! "$+D3$3%(#0,!3$+!>+B(00(0B!%#!$+?(+@!%)+!.#/01('M,!#@0!<$3?+'!"'30!
!! <)+!300/3'!.3$!G$++!.)3''+0B+!@(''!>+!1#AD+%+*!&#$!#0!Hh!J+D%+A>+$!
!! <)+!0+O%!+*(%(#0!#&!%)+!+U_+@,'+%%+$!&#$!>/,(0+,,+,!@(''!>+!D/>'(,)+*!

1(.,(""#,(.*!#%d")-8*'(K*?K%0-,%(8*b#%50*

80!%)+!7(B)@34!.3D31(%4!30*!P#3*,D31+!L''#13%(#0!"$#B$3AA+-U!
!

!! \#$9,!3$+!*/+!%#!>+!1#AD'+%+*!#0!%)+!JD#$%,!.+0%$+!P#/0*3>#/%!13D31(%4!
(AD$#?+A+0%!,1)+A+!

!
W(*-I"*!5\6,)*G#'(80%#-*!#%.#'&&"D*
!

!! .#0,%$/1%(#0!(,!*/+!%#!,%3$%!(0!J+D%+A>+$!#0!%)+!0+@!>/,!,%#D!'(09(0B!&##%@34!
3'#0B!.)/$1)!P#3*C!\(09&(+'*F!

!
W(*-I"*!"K"8-#,'(*'(K*4F)6,(.*W&0#%2"&"(-8*!#%.#'&&"!-!
!

!! 6+,(B0!@#$9!(,!*/+!%#!1#0%(0/+!#0!3!0/A>+$!#&!&##%@34a141'+%$319!'(09,!!
!
W(*-I"*!'#M,(.*0#%.#'&&"-!
!

22
28



!! G/$%)+$!"'300(0B!3DD'(13%(#0,!3$+!%#!>+!,/>A(%%+*!#0!%)+!b
$*
!D)3,+!#&!D3$9(0B!

,1)+A+,!(0!73'+@##*C!7(B)&(+'*C!_/%'+4C!"+A>$#9+C!6++D&(+'*!P#3*C!X('4!7(''!
P#3*!30*!^39+0B3%+,F!

!
B")-,%(*;ef*`,.IH'F*R%#M8-!
!

!! \#$9,!3$+!*/+!%#!>+!1#AD'+%+*!(0!G+>!HIRR!#0!%)+!0+@!LbHk!P#/0*3>#/%!
30*!JD/$!P#3*!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!m+00+%%M,!"3$9!6+?+'#DA+0%!#&&U,(%+!)(B)@34!
(AD$#?+A+0%!@#$9,

!

23
29



Annex A: Staffing information 

Staffing Levels 

Staff in 
Post

Staffing
Full Time 

Staffing
Part Time 

Total
Posts
FTE

Vacant
Posts

Vacancy 
Rate 

Directorate 11 10 1 10.68 0 0% 
Environment & Public 
Protection

106 88 18 99.41 5 4.50% 

Housing 67 55 12 61.27 4 5.63% 
Leisure & Culture 371 165 206 257.55 42 10.17% 
Performance & 
Resources

38 29 9 34.49 0 0%

Planning & 
Transportation

85 65 20 78.65 7 7.61% 

Department Totals 678 412 266 542.04 58 7.88% 

Overall the vacancies have decreased by 32 this quarter, as many posts were given 
up as savings made for the 2010/11 budgets, with effect from 01 April 10.  Although 
Leisure & Culture still looks high, they have reduced their vacancies by 25% 

There has been little recruitment this quarter, but we have been successful in 
recruiting a number of Future Jobs Fund employees, and a number of administration 
and leisure employees. 

Staff Turnover 

For the quarter ending 30 June 2010 3.55%
For the year ending 30 June 2010 10.84%

Comparator Data

Total turnover for Bracknell Forest Council, 2009/10: 13.31%  
Median turnover all employers 1 January to 31 December 2009: 13.5% 
Median turnover public services 1 January to 31 December 2009: 15.2%  
(Source: Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development survey 2009) 

There were 24 leavers this quarter, which is an increase of 9 compared to last 
quarter and an increase of 8 to the same quarter in the previous year.  Of those 
leavers, 7 were made redundant, 2 were transferred to VINCI park under the TUPE 
regulations, 3 retired, 1 came to the end of a fixed term contract and the remaining 
11 resigned. 

Turnover this quarter is high as a result of the budgets, which is reflected in the 
quarterly Staff Turnover increasing to 3.55% this quarter compared to 2.20% last 
quarter, and compared to 2.36% the same quarter last year.  Annual turnover is up to 
10.84% this quarter compared to 9.88% last quarter, but is a decrease on the 13.4% 
in the same quarter last year. 

24
30



<)(,!(,!3%%$(>/%+*!%#!%)+!i!$+*/0*301(+,!30*!H!<V"K!%$30,&+$,!A3*+!(0!%)(,!=/3$%+$F!!
J)#/'*!%)+,+!&(B/$+,!0#%!)3?+!>++0!(01'/*+*C!%)+0!%)+!=/3$%+$,!%/$0#?+$!$3%+!@#/'*!
)3?+!>++0!HFHHZ!30*!300/3'!%/$0#?+$!$3%+!@#/'*!)3?+!>++0!kF[hZ!!!
*
</$0#?+$!$+A3(0,!'#@!1#AD3$+*!%#!03%(#03'!&(B/$+,!&#$!3''!+AD'#4+$,!#$!3''!D/>'(1!
,+1%#$!#$B30(,3%(#0,F!
*
B,)M("88*?\8"()"*
!
J%3&&!J(190+,,!dR!LD$('!!U!bI!m/0+!HIRIe!
G(B/$+!RF!!<#%3'!J(190+,,!>4!"+#D'+!(0!"#,%!
*
B")-,%(* G%-'6*

8-'$$*
W(*!%8-*

:5'#-"#*=*
Y5&\"#*%$*
K'F8*

8,)M("88**
*

:5'#-"#*=*
'2"#'."*0"#*
"&06%F""*
U!"%06"*,(*
0%8-V*

;<=<>==*
'2"#'."*0"#*
"&06%F""*
U!"%06"*,(*
!%8-V*

6($+1%#$3%+! RR! RH!RFIk! hFbN!
K0?($#0A+0%!`!"/>'(1!
"$#%+1%(#0!

RIN! [kF[! IF[N!HFH[!
7#/,(0B! Ni! RRkF[!RFiY! iFRb!
X+(,/$+!`!./'%/$+! biR! bNk!IFkk! bFkY!
"+$&#$A301+!`!P+,#/$1+,! bY! hH!RFRR! hFhH!
"'300(0B!`!<$30,D#$%3%(#0! Y[! RiHF[!HFIb! YFRH!

N"0'#-&"(-*G%-'68*U:=V* Xef* eePZQ*=Z=P* *

N"0'#-&"(-*G%-'68*U=<>==V* * eePZQ* *PZQX*

*
4%&0'#'-%#*K'-'* ?66*"&06%F""83*'2"#'."*K'F8*

8,)M("88*'\8"()"*0"#*"&06%F""*
K0?($#0A+0%!./'%/$+!30*!.#AA/0(%(+,!IkaRI! NFbN!*34,!

5$3190+''!G#$+,%!.#/01('!IkaRI! NFHk!*34,!

L''!'#13'!B#?+$0A+0%!+AD'#4+$,!HIIk!
dJ#/$1+-!.)3$%+$+*!80,%(%/%+!#&!"+$,#00+'!30*!6+?+'#DA+0%!,/$?+4!HIIke

RIFi!*34,!

L''!,+1%#$,!+AD'#4+$,!(0!%)+!,#/%)!+3,%!HIIk!
dJ#/$1+-!.)3$%+$+*!80,%(%/%+!#&!"+$,#00+'!30*!6+?+'#DA+0%!,/$?+4!HIIke!

NFI!*34,!

*
G#''#@(0B!3!*(D!(0!#/$!,(190+,,!D+$&#$A301+!'3,%!4+3$C!13/,+*!>4!3!)(B)!0/A>+$!#&!
'#0B!%+$A!,(190+,,!13,+,C!%)(,!=/3$%+$!%)+!3>,+01+!$3%+,!(0!K..!)3?+!$+%/$0+*!%#!
%)+($!/,/3'!'#@!'+?+'!1#AD3$+*!%#!.#/01('!3,!3!@)#'+C!%)+!3?+$3B+!#&!3''!+AD'#4+$,!(0!
%)+!,#/%)!30*!%)+!3?+$3B+!#&!'#13'!B#?+$0A+0%!+AD'#4+$,F!!<)(,!(,!?+$4!D#,(%(?+!30*!
$+&'+1%,!%)+!1#0%(0/+*!+&&#$%!@+!D/%!(0%#!3>,+01+!A303B+A+0%!+,D+1(3''4!3!$+1+0%!
*+1$+3,+!(0!'#0B!%+$A!,(190+,,!13,+,F!!!
!
<)+!3>#?+!&(B/$+!#&!iihF[!*34,!(01'/*+,!i!+AD'#4++,!@(%)!'#0B!%+$A!,(190+,,C!@)(1)!
%#%3',!H[k!*34,!&#$!%)+!=/3$%+$F!!<)+,+!311#/0%!&#$!bbFhZ!#&!3''!3>,+01+!@)(1)!(,!3!
*+1$+3,+!#0!'3,%!=/3$%+$!db[FYZeF!!<)(,!(01'/*+*-!
!
h!+AD'#4++,!(0!X+(,/$+!30*!./'%/$+!T!RbR!*34,!!

25
31



R!+AD'#4++!(0!7#/,(0B!T!hH!*34,!
H!+AD'#4++,!(0!"'300(0B!`!<$30,D#$%3%(#0!U!YN!
!
h!#&!%)+,+!3$+!0#@!>319!%#!@#$9F!!<)+!b!$+A3(0(0B!13,+,!3$+!>+(0B!A303B+*!%)$#/B)!
^11/D3%(#03'!7+3'%)!30*!D+$&#$A301+!(AD$#?+A+0%!D$#1+*/$+,F!
<)+!%#%3'!0/A>+$!#&!,(190+,,!*34,!%)(,!=/3$%+$!)3,!*+1$+3,+*!>4!bNR!*34,!1#AD3$+*!
%#!'3,%!=/3$%+$C!30*!>4!hkY!*34,!%#!%)+!,3A+!=/3$%+$!'3,%!4+3$F!!
!
<)+!A#,%!0#%3>'+!1)30B+,!%)(,!=/3$%+$!3$+!K0?($#0A+0%!`!"/>'(1!"$#%+1%(#0!@)(1)!
)3,!*+1$+3,+*!>4!RRIF[!*34,!d0+3$'4!%@#U%)($*,eC!7#/,(0B!@)(1)!)3,!*+1$+3,+*!>4!
YN!*34,!dQ/,%!#?+$!%@#U&(&%),eC!X+(,/$+!`!./'%/$+!@)(1)!)3,!*+1$+3,+*!>4!Hhh!*34,!
dQ/,%!#?+$!%@#U&(&%),e!30*!(0!"'300(0B!`!<$30,D#$%3%(#0!@)(1)!)3,!(01$+3,+*!>4!YYF[!
*34,!dQ/,%!#?+$!)3'&eF!
!
<)+!*+1$+3,+,!3$+!*/+!%#!3!'3$B+!$+*/1%(#0!(0!,)#$%!%+$A!,(19!(0!K0?($#0A+0%!30*!
"/>'(1!"$#%+1%(#0C!H!+AD'#4++,!$+%/$0(0B!&$#A!'#0B!%+$A!,(19!(0!7#/,(0BC!30*!3!
A(O%/$+!#&!3!$+*/1%(#0!#&!,)#$%!%+$A!,(19!30*!%)+!$+%/$0!#&!b!+AD'#4++,!@)#!@+$+!#0!
'#0BU%+$A!,(19!(0!X(>$3$(+,F!!<)+!(01$+3,+!(0!"'300(0B!30*!<$30,D#$%!(,!A3(0'4!$+'3%+*!
%#!H!(0*(?(*/3',!@)#!@+$+!#0!'#0B!%+$A!,(19C!#0+!#&!@)#A!)3,!$+%/$0+*!%)(,!=/3$%+$F!!!!
!
X#0BU%+$A!,(19!%+0*,!%#!>+!*+1$+3,(0BF!!^0+!1#0%$(>/%(0B!&31%#$!(,!%)3%!'#0BU%+$A!
,(190+,,!(,!>+(0B!)30*'+*!A#$+!D$#31%(?+'4!>4!A303B+$,]!@(%)!A#$+!+AD'#4++,!
>+(0B!$+&+$$+*!%#!^11/D3%(#03'!7+3'%)!3%!30!+3$'4!,%3B+C!30*!30!(01$+3,+!(0!*+3'(0B!
@(%)!13,+,!%)$#/B)!%)+!.3D3>('(%4!30*!J(190+,,!"$#1+*/$+,F!
!
<)+$+!*#+,0M%!,++A!%#!>+!304!#%)+$!,D+1(&(1!%$+0*,!#$!D3%%+$0,!31$#,,!%)+!
6+D3$%A+0%!(0!%+$A,!#&!+(%)+$!%)+!3A#/0%!#&!'#0BU%+$A!30*!,)#$%U%+$A!,(19C!#$!%)+!
=/3$%+$!(0!@)(1)!(%!#11/$,F!!
!
80!B+0+$3'C!7P!&++',!A303B+$,!3$+!>+(0B!A#$+!D$#31%(?+!@)+0!*+3'(0B!@(%)!3>,+01+!
30*!%)+!B+0+$3'!&++*>319!(,!%)3%!(0&#$A3'!$+?(+@,!#&!,(190+,,!3$+!%39(0B!D'31+!A#$+!
$+B/'3$'4F!!2303B+$,!3$+!0#@!3DD$#31)(0B!7P!@(%)!$+B3$*,!%#!+AD'#4++,!%)+4!&++'!
)3?+!,(190+,,!(,,/+,C!$3%)+$!%)30!7P!$3(,(0B!%)+!(,,/+!@(%)!%)+!A303B+$F!

26
32



! ! !

Y"- ^,#"&"(-8 45##"(- N"0'#-&"(-8 ^'#,'()" Variance

C#,.,('6
J5K."-

7*J5K."-
4>$HK8

?00#%2"K
J5K."-

!#%d")-"K
C5--5#(

C2"#>U_(K"#V
B0"(K

This

Period

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

N,#")-%#*%$*1(2,#%(&"(-3*456-5#"*7*4%&&5(,-,"8
6($+1%#$!30*!J/DD#$% ;eX < ;eX ;eX <
<$3(0(0BC!23$9+%(0BC!P+,+3$1)!`!6+?+'#DA+0% =Q < =Q =Q <

;S= < ;S= ;S= < <
4I,"$*C$$,)"#*O",85#"*7*456-5#"
L$1)(?+, =;X @; ( =;P =;P <
J#/%)!7(''!"3$9 Q;a < Q;a Q;a <
.#AA/0(%4!L$%,!`!./'%/$3'!J+$?(1+, ef a ( f= f= <
"3$9,C!^D+0!JD31+,!`!.#/0%$4,(*+! =3=== aP̀ ? =3=PQ =3=PQ <
JD#$%,!6+?+'#DA+0%!`!.#AA/0(%4!P+1$+3%(#0 =<= @=e ( fP fP <
<)+!X##9!^/% =ea @a ( =e< =e< <
K*B>3$$#@!a!J30*)/$,%!JD#$%,!.+0%$+, =aQ @a ( =a; =a; <
5$3190+''!X+(,/$+!.+0%$+!a!.#$3'!P++& fPe ;S? feX feX <
73$A30,@3%+$!J@(AA(0B!"##' =a < =a =a <
K3,%)3AD,%+3*!"3$9!.#0&+$+01+!.+0%$+ QQ @=S ( aX aX <
7#$,+,)#+'39+!\3%+$!JD#$%, ;X < ;X ;X <
6#@0,)($+!E#'&!.#AD'+O @=Q< < @=Q< @=Q< <
X(>$3$(+, =3fX; @X? =3fQX =3fQX <

P3S<< =X P3S=X P3S=X < <
4I,"$*C$$,)"#*1(2,#%(&"(-*7*!5\6,)*!#%-")-,%(
\3,%+!2303B+A+0% e3PS< a ( e3PSa e3Qfe SP SP
J%$++%!.'+30(0B =3;=e ; ( =3;=S =3;=S <
.'#,+*!.($1/(%!<+'+?(,(#0 Pf < Pf Pf <
7(B)@34!23(0%+0301+!d801'/*(0B!J%$++%!X(B)%(0Be P3;af ; ( P3;P< P3;P< <
^0a^&&!J%$++%!"3$9(0B @Xea @a ? @XeX @XeX <
K3,%)3AD,%+3*!"3$9!.+A+%$4!30*!.$+A3%#$(/A @X;a @P ( @X;e @X;e <
K0?($#0A+0%3'!7+3'%)!d801'/*(0B!"+,%!30*!6#B!.#0%$#'e eaX @X? ea< ea< <
<$3*(0B!J%30*3$*,!d801'/*(0B!X(1+0,(0Be a=< X<? ae< ae< <
KA+$B+014!"'300(0B! =<< @; ( Sf Sf <
X30*,13D+!7#'*(0B!L11#/0% @=e; Xe ? @=<Q @=<Q <
"3$9,C!^D+0!JD31+,!`!.#/0%$4,(*+! S<= @Xf? faa faa <
^%)+$ =QQ < =QQ =QQ <

=a3e;e Q= =a3eef =a3fe; SP SP
4I,"$*C$$,)"#*!6'((,(.*7*G#'(80%#-*
<$30,D#$%!"#'(14C!"'300(0B!30*!J%$3%+B4 X<a @=P ( QfS QfS <
<$3&&(1!2303B+A+0%!30*!P#3*!J3&+%4 eQ; @e ( ePQ ePQ <
"/>'(1!<$30,D#$%!J/>,(*4!(01'/*(0B!.#01+,,(#03$4!G3$+, =3;QX a=X̀ ? =3Qe; =3Qe; <
L*/'%!J#1(3'!.3$+!E$30%!G/0*+*!J+$?(1+, < < < < <
5/('*(0B!.#0%$#' @;S @Q ( @aP @aP <
6+?+'#DA+0%!.#0%$#' ==< S ( ==S ==S <
"'300(0B!"#'(14!d801'/*(0B!X#13'!<$30,D#$%!"'30e =3<<a @;X ( See See <
X#13'!X30*!.)3$B+, @fa < @fa @fa <
K0?($#0A+0%3'!80(%(3%(?+, =XQ X? =e= =e= <
^%)+$ ==f @= ( ==e ==e <

a3fSQ ;ef P3=ea P3=ea < <
4I,"$*C$$,)"#*`%58,(.
7#/,(0B!^D%(#0, =e; == ( =fa =fa <
J%$3%+B4!`!K03>'(0B ;fS ==̀ ? a<< a<< <
7#/,(0B!2303B+A+0%!J+$?(1+, @X< =P̀ ? @PX @PX <
G#$+,%13$+ Q< @=̀ PS PS <
J/DD#$%(0B!"+#D'+ =3fS; f ( =3S<< =3S<< <
7#/,(0B!5+0+&(%,! aeP @;< ( aQP aQP <
E+03$3'!E$30%,C!5+=/+,%,!`!6#03%(#0, e @Q ( ; ; <
^%)+$ ;a < ;a ;a <

;3ePe =f ;3eXQ ;3eXQ < <
4I,"$*C$$,)"#*!"#$%#&'()"*7*/"8%5#)"8
6+D3$%A+0%3'!2303B+A+0% QQe Pe ( X<P X<P <
6+D3$%A+0%3'!J/DD#$%!J+$?(1+, =3<aX Pe` =3<fa =3<fa <
6+D3$%A+0%3'!"+$,#00+'!P/00(0B!KOD+0,+, S= < S= S= <
6+D3$%A+0%3'!^&&(1+!J+$?(1+,!P/00(0B!KOD+0,+, =S< < =S< =S< <
6+D3$%A+0%3'!8<!P/00(0B!KOD+0,+, ;XQ < ;XQ ;XQ <
JA3$%13$* =Xe @; ( =XQ =XQ <

;3a<X S; ;3aSf ;3aSf < <

80!o+3$!J3?(0B, < < < <

G%-'6*4'8I*J5K."-8 ;e3fXX PQQ ;f3a;= ;f3P=Q SP SP

Y%(*4'8I*J5K."-8
GPJRi =Pf < =Pf =Pf
.#$D#$3%+!a!6+D3$%A+0%3'!P+1)3$B+, P3PXX < P3PXX P3PXX
.3D(%3'!.)3$B+, a3fff < a3fff a3fff

f3Q<; < f3Q<; f3Q<; < <

GCG?O*1Y^W/CY+1YG*7*O1WB_/1*B1/^W41B aX3aXf PQQ aX3f;a aX3S=e SP SP

+"&%#'(K5&*,-"&*D@
6+?#'?+*!J%3&&(0B!5/*B+% =f3S=Q =f3S=Q

?(("E*JD*9,('(),'6*,($%#&'-,%(*@*G'\6"8*
<3>'+!RF!
*

27
33



!
!

!

G
%
-'
6

4
'8
I

4
'8
I

1
E0
"(
K
,-
5
#"

G
%
-'
6

?
&
%
5
(
-

1
8-
,&
'-
"K
*G
%
-'
6

4
'8
I

U_
(
K
"#
V>
C
2"
#*

U_
(
K
"#
V>
C
2"
#*

J
5
K
.
"-

J
5
K
.
"-

J
5
K
.
"-

-%
*K
'-
"

4
%
&
&
,-
&
"(
-8

6"
$-
*-
%

9
5
(
K
,(
.

J
5
K
.
"-

B
0
"(
K
*

B
0
"(
K
*

;<
=<
>=
=

;<
=<
>=
=

*/
"2
,8
"K
*

;<
=<
>=
=*

*9
%
#*
;<
=<
>=
=*

80
"(
K

*/
"]
5
,#
"K
*$
%
#*
-I
"*

g
"'
#*

;<
==
>=
;

*B
")
-,
%
(
*=
<X
*

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

hi
<<
<8

K
_
:
8P
^
_
2
K
_
<
!`
!"
V
5
X8
.
!"
P
^
<
K
.
<
8^
_

hC
YY
RF
R

!!!
!!!
!!!

hC
YY
RF
R

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

hC
YH
bF
H

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

Rh
IF
R

kY
Fk

hC
[Y
hF
H

hC
YH
bF
H

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

U[
iF
k

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

7
^
V
J
8_
E

bC
YY
IF
N

!!!
!!!
!!!

bC
YY
IF
N

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

bC
YY
IF
N

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

i[
FH

HI
Fk

bC
iY
hF
[

bC
YY
IF
N

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

IF
I

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

"
XL
_
_
8_
E
!`
!<
P
L
_
J
"
^
P
<

HC
HN
iF
h

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

HC
HN
iF
h

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

HC
HN
iF
h

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

UH
FN
I

hR
IF
N

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

RC
Y[
kF
h

!!!
!!!

HC
HN
iF
h

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

XK
8J
V
P
K
!`
!.
V
X<
V
P
K

bC
Ii
kF
b

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

bC
Ii
kF
b

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

bC
Ii
kF
b

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

YI
FY

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

Y[
Fh

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

HC
kR
bF
R

!!!
!!!

bC
Ii
kF
b

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

J
V
"
"
^
P
<
!J
K
P
:
8.
K
J

H[
HF
I

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

H[
HF
I

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

H[
HF
I

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

HY
Fb

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

Ri
FI

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

HI
NF
i

!!!
!!!
!!!

H[
HF
I

!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

U
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!!!
!

G
C
G
?
O
*1
Y
^
W/
C
Y
+
1
Y
G
*7
*O
1
WB
_
/
1
*4
?
!
WG
?
O
*!
/
C
b
/
?
+
+
1

=P
3a
X<
ZP

=P
3a
X<
ZP

=P
3a
<;
ZQ

a;
=Z
f

Xa
;Z
f

=a
3a
Pe
ZS

=P
3a
<;
ZQ

<Z
<

@Q
eZ
S

<Z
<

***
***
***
***
***
***
***
***
***
***
***
***
**!
"#
)"
(
-'
.
"8

;Z
;j

PZ
Pj

S;
ZS
j

<Z
<j

L
"
"
K
_
6
8q
!5
!T
!<
3>
'+
!H
F!

!

2
8

34



!
!

!

?
(
(
"E
*4
D*
*!
"#
$%
#&
'(
)"
*'
.
',
(
8-
*B
"#
2,
)"
*!
6'
(
*?
)-
,%
(
8*

* * "
'+
3,
+!
,+
+!
0+
O%
!D
3B
+

2
9

35



+GC=*@*G%*\5,6K*'*2,\#'(-*J#')M("66*-%H(*)"(-#"*-I'-*#"8,K"(-8*
'#"*0#%5K*%$*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

=ZX*,&0#%2,(.*0"#)"0-,%(8*'(K*2,\#'()F*%$*
J#')M("66*-%H(*)"(-#"*,(*-I"*#5(@50*-%*-I"*
#"K"2"6%0&"(-*
RFNFRH!6+?+'#D!30!
(AD$#?+A+0%!D'30!&#$!
%)+!A3(0!'(>$3$4!
>/('*(0B!@(%)!%)+!
5/('*(0B!J/$?+4#$,F!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..! !

5/('*(0B!J/$?+4#$,!)3?+!
>++0!>$(+&+*!%#!D$#*/1+!
1#,%+*!D'30,!&#$!3!0+@!
'(>$3$4!'34#/%F!

+GC;*@*G%*M""0*%5#*0'#M83*%0"(*80')"8*'(K*6",85#"*$'),6,-,"8*
'))"88,\6"*'(K*'--#')-,2"*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

;Z=*/"8-%#,(.*B%5-I*`,66*!'#M*.#%5(K8*

HFRFR!X+%!1#0%$31%!%#!
13$$4!#/%!@#$9!#0!
J#/%)!7(''!"3$9!
B$#/0*,F!

bIaINaHIRI!K..!
!

!

X+3*!1#0%$31%#$!(*+0%(&(+*!
30*!3DD$#?+*!>4!%)+!
KO+1/%(?+F!6$3&%!1#0%$31%!
)3,!>++0!*$3@0!/DF!
J/>Q+1%!%#!%)+!1#0%$31%!
>+(0B!1#AD'+%+!>4!+3$'4!
L/B/,%C!,+%!/D!#0!,(%+!(,!
D$#D#,+*!&#$!J+D%+A>+$F!

HFRFH!J%3$%!@#$9!#0!
,(%+!3%!J#/%)!7(''!
"3$9!

bRaRIaHIRI!K..!
!

!

.#0%$31%#$!0#@!*/+!#0!
,(%+!&$#A!J+D%+A>+$!HIRIF!
\#$9,!*/+!%#!>+!
1#AD'+%+*!>4!6+1+A>+$!
HIRRF!

;ZQ*W()#"'8"*-I"*'&%5(-*%$*)%5(-#F8,K"*'(K*%0"(*
80')"*'2',6'\6"*$%#*#"8,K"(-8*

HF[FR!8AD$#?+!%)+!
3%%$31%(?+0+,,!#&!30*!
311+,,(>('(%4!%#!
$+1$+3%(#03'!B$++0!
,D31+!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

<3$B+%+*!D$#Q+1%,!
/0*+$@34!3%!9+4!,(%+,!
A303B+*!>4!5$3190+''!
G#$+,%!.#/01('!30*!"3$(,)!
a!<#@0!.#/01(',F!\#$9,!
(01'/*+!D'34!D$#?(,(#0C!
0+@!D3%),C!(0%+$D$+%3%(#0!
30*!,(B03B+C!,1$/>!
A303B+A+0%C!30*!
)+$(%3B+!1#0,+$?3%(#0F!!

;ZX*W&06"&"(-*-I"*)56-5#'6*8-#'-".F3*-%*&',(-',(*'(K*
,&0#%2"*-I"*]5'6,-F*%$*6,$"*,(*-I"*J%#%5.I*

HFNFR!"$#B$+,,!
./'%/$3'!J%$3%+B4!
L1%(#0!"'30!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

<)+!31%(#0!D'30!$/0,!/0%('!
HIRH!30*!)3,!#?+$!RII!
(0*(?(*/3'!31%(#0,F!
"$#B$+,,!(,!A#0(%#$+*!>4!
%)+!./'%/$3'!"3$%0+$,)(D!
@)(1)!A++%,!%@(1+!D+$!
4+3$F!L''!A+A>+$,!#&!%)+!
D3$%0+$,)(D!1#0%$(>/%+!%#!
%)+!31%(#0!D'30F!8%!(,!
$+1#B0(,+*!%)3%!,#A+!#&!

30
36



%)+!31%(#0,!@(''!>4!%)+($!
03%/$+!>+!1'3,,+*!3,!
r#0B#(0Br!30*!#?+$!%(A+!
,#A+!A34!>+!$+A#?+*!#$!
3A+0*+*F!J#A+!@(''!>+!
*+,1$(>+*!3,!1#AD'+%+F!!

;Ze*/"2,"H*'(K*50K'-"*-I"*!'#M8*'(K*C0"(*B0')"*
B-#'-".F*

HFiFR!"/>'(,)!%)+!
"3$9,!30*!^D+0!
JD31+,!,%$3%+B4!

bRaRIaHIRI!K..!
!

!

80(%(3'!*$3&%!(,!>+(0B!
/D*3%+*!&#''#@(0B!
1#0,/'%3%(#0!@(%)!9+4!
,%39+)#'*+$,F!

+GCa*@*G%*0#%&%-"*858-',('\6"*I%58,(.*'(K*,($#'8-#5)-5#"*
K"2"6%0&"(-*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

aZ=*!#%K5),(.*'*O%)'6*N"2"6%0&"(-*9#'&"H%#M*
-I'-*0#%-")-8*-I"*)I'#')-"#*%$*-I"*\%#%5.I*'(K*
\'6'()"8*-I"*K"&'(K*$%#*("H*I%58,(.*H,-I*-I"*
(""K*-%*0#%-")-*-I"*H,K"#*"(2,#%(&"(-*

bFRFR!J/>A(%!%)+!J(%+!
L''#13%(#0,!
6+?+'#DA+0%!"'30!
*#1/A+0%!%#!%)+!
J+1$+%3$4!#&!J%3%+!

HYaIHaHIRR!K..!
!

!

"$+&+$$+*!^D%(#0!
1#0,/'%3%(#0!&#$!JL6"6!
,1)+*/'+*!&#$!_#?+A>+$!
HIRIF!<3$B+%!&#$!
,/>A(,,(#0!1#/'*!,%(''!>+!
A+%!>/%!2+A>+$,!@(''!
1#0,(*+$!@)+%)+$!&/$%)+$!
*+'34!A34!>+!D$/*+0%!
B(?+0!1)30B+,!%#!03%(#03'!
D'300(0B!,4,%+AF!!

bFRFH!"/>'(,)!%)+!
80&$3,%$/1%/$+!"'30! bRaRIaHIRI!K..!

!
!

6$3&%!(0&$3,%$/1%/$+!D'30!
D$+D3$+*!%#!311#AD304!
J(%+!L''#13%(#0,!6"6!
^D%(#0,!1#0,/'%3%(#0F!6$3&%!
>+(0B!$+&(0+*!#0!%)+!>3,(,!
#&!%)+!,(%+,!>+(0B!
D$#B$+,,+*!%#!D$+&+$$+*!
#D%(#0!,%3B+F!

bFRFb!"/>'(,)!%)+!
\3$&(+'*!
J/DD'+A+0%3$4!
"'300(0B!6#1/A+0%!

bRaIRaHIRR!K..!
!

!

.#0,/'%3%(#0!*$3&%!J"6!%#!
B#!%#!_#?+A>+$!
KO+1/%(?+F!P+,#/$1+!
(,,/+,!%#!>+!$+,#'?+*!
&#''#@(0B!*+D3$%/$+!#&!
m#)0!\3%+$%#0F!

bFRFh!"/>'(,)!%)+!
J%$++%,1+0+!
J/DD'+A+0%3$4!
"'300(0B!6#1/A+0%!

bRaRHaHIRI!K..!
!

!

.#0,/'%3%(#0!1#AD'+%+*!#0!
[%)!m/'4!&#$!*$3&%!J"6F!
L*#D%(#0!?+$,(#0!
,1)+*/'+*!&#$!KO+1/%(?+!
6+1+A>+$!HIRI!

aZa*W&06"&"(-,(.*'*8-#'-".F*-%*&,-,.'-"*-I"*,&0')-*
%$*K"2"6%0&"(-*%(*-I"*GI'&"8*J'8,(*`"'-I*B0"),'6*
!#%-")-,%(*?#"'*
bFbFR!"/>'(,)!%)+!
<)3A+,!53,(0!
7+3%),!JD+1(3'!

bIaIhaHIRI!K..!
!

!
.#0,/'%3%(#0!*$3&%!%#!B#!%#!
KO+1/%(?+!^1%#>+$!HIRI!
,/>Q+1%!%#!Q#(0%!D$#B$+,,!

31
37



"$#%+1%(#0!L$+3!
L?#(*301+!30*!
2(%(B3%(#0!J%$3%+B4!

@(%)!#%)+$!3&&+1%+*!'#13'!
3/%)#$(%(+,!#0!$+,#'/%(#0!#&!
,%$3%+B(1!311+,,!
A303B+A+0%!30*!
A#0(%#$(0B!3$$30B+A+0%,F

aZP*_0K'-,(.*'(K*,&06"&"(-,(.*-I"*O%)'6*G#'(80%#-*
!6'(*
bFhFR!.#0,/'%!#0!%)+!
*$3&%!X#13'!<$30,D#$%!
"'30!b!

bIaRRaHIRI!K..!
!

!
1#0,/'%3%(#0!3$$30B+A+0%,!
>+(B0!A3*+!&#$!
^1%#>+$a_#?+A>+$!HIRIF!

bFhFH!8AD'+A+0%!
31%(#0!D'30!#&!X#13'!
<$30,D#$%!"'30!HF!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

.#0%(0/+!%#!*+'(?+$!%)+!
,%$3%+B(+,!30*!13D($%3'!
D$#B$3AA+!3,!*+&(0+*!>4!
%)+!X<"F!!

bFhFb!"$#*/1+!
<$30,D#$%!L,,+%!
2303B+A+0%!"'30!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

\#$9!1#0%(0/+,!%#!13D%/$+!
*3%3!%#!(0&#$A!%)+!
D$#*/1%(#0!#&!%)+!&(03'!
D'30F!<)(,!@#$9!)3,!
+03>'+*!30!(0(%(3'!3,,+%!
?3'/3%(#0!%#!(0&#$A!%)+!
$+%/$0!%#!B#?+$0A+0%!(0!
$+,D+1%!#&!1#/01('!3,,+%,F!
<)+!0++*!(,!%#!1#AD('(+!3''!
#&!%)+!*3%3!30*!D$#*/1+!3!
D'30F!<)+!(0%+0%(#0!(,!%#!
'##9!%#!%)+!73AD,)($+!..!
&$3A+@#$9!3B$++A+0%!&#$!
1#0,/'%3014!$+,#/$1+F!!

aZX*!#%2,K,(.*&%#"*)I%,)"*$%#*8%),'6*I%58,(.*
'006,)'(-8*-I#%5.I*-I"*,(-#%K5)-,%(*%$*4I%,)"*
J'8"K*O"--,(.8*
bFNFR!8AD'+A+0%!
7#/,(0B!
KAD'#4A+0%!
.#00+1%(#0!J+$?(1+!
3,!D3$%!#&!5$3190+''!
G#$+,%!.#/01('!24!
.)#(1+!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!
<)+!5G.!Q#>!,+3$1)!@+>!
D#$%3'!(,!,1)+*/'+*!%#!B#!
'(?+!3%!%)+!+0*!#&!m/'4!

aZf*W&06"&"(-*-I"*`%58,(.*B-#'-".F*-%*0#%2,K"*-I"*
#,.I-*I%&"8*$%#*-I"*K,2"#8"*I%58,(.*(""K8*%$*-I"*
)%&&5(,-F*,(*J#')M("66*9%#"8-*

bFYFR!8AD'+A+0%!30*!
$+?(+@!%)+!7#/,(0B!
J%$3%+B4!L1%(#0!"'30

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

<)+!,D+0*(0B!
D$#B$3AA+,!#&!%)+!
.#/01('n,!)#/,(0B!,%$3%+B4!
@+$+!$+?(+@+*!3%!%)+!
KO+1/%(?+!A++%(0B!#0!%)+!
Rb%)!m/'4!30*!*+1(,(#0,!
@+$!%39+0!%#!,+%!/D!0+@!
,1)+A+,!30*!$+U3''#13%+!
&/0*(0BF!

+GCP*@*G%*M""0*J#')M("66*9%#"8-*)6"'(*'(K*.#""(*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

PZ=*+',(-',(,(.*8-'(K'#K8*%$*6'(K8)'0"*
&',(-"('()"**

32
38



hFRFR!V,+!%)+!A#0+4!
(0!%)+!300/3'!
+0?($#0A+0%3'!
+0)301+A+0%!>/*B+%!
%#!%3$B+%!'30*,13D+!
A3(0%+0301+!
D$#>'+A!3$+3,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

X(09+*!%#!hFbFR!G/0*(0B!
)+'*!>319!%#!+03>'+!%)+!
3**(%(#03'!1/%a@#$9,!3'#0B!
)(B)!,D++*!$#3*,!(0!%)+!
,D$(0B!G/0*(0B!3'#,!/,+*!
%#!3**$+,,!3!0/A>+$!#&!
'30*,13D+!3$+3,!0#%!
,/>Q+1%+*!%#!$#/%(0+!
A3(0%+0301+!(*+0%(&(+*!3,!
D3$%!#&!%)+!5$(%3(0!(0!5'##A!
@#$9F!

PZa*k""0,(.*8'-,8$')-,%(*,(*-I"*8-#""-8)"("*'\%2"*
eQj*
hFbFR!V,+!%)+!A#0+4!
(0!%)+!300/3'!
+0?($#0A+0%3'!
+0)301+A+0%!>/*B+%!
%#!%3$B+%!,%$++%,1+0+!
D$#>'+A!3$+3,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

X(09+*!%#!hFRFR!G/0*(0B!
)+'*!>319!%#!+03>'+!%)+!
3**(%(#03'!1/%a@#$9,!3'#0B!
)(B)!,D++*!$#3*,!(0!%)+!
,D$(0B!!

PZP*W()#"'8,(.*#")F)6,(.*#'-"8*-%*Q<j*-I#%5.I*-I"*
/1a*,(,-,'-,2"*
hFhFR!.#AD'+%+!%)+!
HIRIaRR!31%(#0,!&$#A!
%)+!PKb!,%$3%+B4!30*!
D$#B$+,,!%)+!31%(#0,!
&#$!&/%/$+!4+3$,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!
P+?(+@!)+'*!(0!^1%#>+$!
HIIk!30*!31%(#0,!)3?+!
>++0!1#AD'+%+*F!

PZe*W&0#%2,(.*"("#.F*&'('."&"(-*,(*4%5(),6*'(K*
8)I%%6*$'),6,-,"8*'(K*"()%5#'.,(.*\"--"#*"("#.F*
&'('."&"(-*-I#%5.I%5-*-I"*\%#%5.I*

hFiFR!8AD$#?+!
+0+$B4!A303B+A+0%!
(0!.#/01('!30*!
,1)##'!&31('(%(+,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

.3$>#0!P+*/1%(#0!

.#AA(%A+0%!d.P.e!
$+B(,%$3%(#0!1#AD'+%+*F!
L/%#A3%(1!A+%+$!$+3*+$,!
dL2P,e!30*!.3$>#0!<$/,%!
J%30*3$*!311$+*(%3%(#0!(0!
D$#B$+,,F!!

hFiFH!8AD'+A+0%!3!
D('#%!,1)+A+!%#!
,@(%1)!#&&!,+'+1%+*!
,%$++%!'(B)%(0B!3%!
,D+1(&(+*!%(A+,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..! !

G+3,3>('(%4!)3,!>++0!
3,,+,,+*F!"('#%!)3,!>++0!
,1)+*/'+*!%#!1#AA+01+!
(0!%)+!,/AA+$!HIRRF!

hFiFb!<+,%!%)+!
&+3,(>('(%4!#&!
*+1+0%$3'(,+*!+0+$B4!
,4,%+A,!(01'/*(0B!
@(0*!&3$A,!#$!+0+$B4!
1+0%$+!

bRaI[aHIRI!K..!
!

!

G+3,(>('(%4!J%/*4!&#$!
*(,%$(>/%+*!+0+$B4!,1)+A+!
3%!5$3190+''!X+(,/$+!
.+0%$+!1#AD'+%+*F!
G(0301(3'!A#*+''(0B!/0*+$!
$+?(+@F!G+3,(>('(%4!,%/*4!
&#$!@(0*!%/$>(0+,!#0!
1#/01('!#@0+*!'30*!
(*+0%(&(+*!%@#!D#%+0%(3'!
,(%+,F!^D%(#0!%#!'+3,+!#0+!
,(%+!$+=/+,%+*!&#$!3!@(0*!
A#0(%#$(0B!A3,%F!J+1#0*!
,(%+!)+'*!#?+$!D+0*(0B!
*+?+'#DA+0%!D'300(0B!
*+1(,(#0F!

PZf*W&06"&"(-*-I"*6%)'6*)6,&'-"*)I'(."*')-,%(*06'(3*

33
39



,(*6,("*H,-I*-I"*Y%--,(.I'&*N")6'#'-,%(*

hFYFR!8AD'+A+0%!%)+!
'#13'!1'(A3%+!1)30B+!
,%$3%+B4!(0!'(0+!@(%)!
%)+!_#%%(0B)3A!
6+1'3$3%(#0!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

"$#B$+,,!#0!.'(A3%+!
.)30B+!L1%(#0!"'30!d^1%!
HIIY!U!HIIke!$+D#$%+*!%#!
.#/01('!(0!m30/3$4!HIRIF!
VD*3%+*!.'(A3%+!.)30B+!
L1%(#0!"'30!dLD$('!HIRIe!
3DD$#?+*!>4!.#/01('!m/'4!
HIRI!

hFYFH!8AD'+A+0%!%)+!
.3$>#0!P+*/1%(#0!
2303B+A+0%!"'30!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

! .'(A3%+!.)30B+!L1%(#0!
"'30!>+(0B!(AD'+A+0%+*F!

hFYFb!P+D#$%!#0!%)+!
.#/01('M,!#>'(B3%(#0,!
(0!$+,D#0,+!%#!%)+!
"(%%!$+?(+@!d&'##*!
$(,9C!*$3(03B+C!
3*3D%3%(#0e!

bIaRRaHIRI!K..! !

L@3(%(0B!'+B(,'3%(?+!*+%3('!
(0!#$*+$!%#!>+!3>'+!%#!
1#0&($A!%)+!&/''!
(AD'(13%(#0,!%#!%)+!
.#/01('F!80!%)+!(0%+$(A!
D+$(#*!@#$9(0B!@(%)!%)+!
K0?($#0A+0%!LB+014!30*!
13D%/$(0B!3''!$+'+?30%!*3%3!
%#!3,,(,%!/,!(0!$+'3%(#0!%#!
@)3%!A34!>+1#A+!3!
A30*3%#$4!#>'(B3%(#0F!!

hFYFh!8AD$#?(0B!
(0&$3,%$/1%/$+!&#$C!
30*!D$#A#%(0B!
@3'9(0B!30*!141'(0B!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

L!D$#B$3AA+!#&!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!%#!%)+!
@3'9(0B!30*!141'(0B!
0+%@#$9!(,!>+(0B!
(AD'+A+0%+*C!30*!3!
D$#B$3AA+!#&!D$#A#%(#0,!
(,!>+(0B!13$$(+*!#/%!

hFYF[!8AD$#?(0B!
&31('(%(+,!&#$!30*!
D$#A#%(0B!/,+!#&!
D/>'(1!>/,+,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

L!D$#B$3AA+!#&!
(0&$3,%$/1%/$+!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!(,!>+(0B!
(AD'+A+0%+*!30*!D$#A%(#0!
@#$9!13$$(+*!#/%!@(%)(0!%)+!
'(A(%+*!$+,#/$1+,!
3?3('3>'+F!

hFYFN!"$#A#%(0B!
<$3?+'!"'30,!30*!
,/,%3(03>'+!%$3?+'!
1)#(1+!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

_+@!%$3?+'!D'30,!3$+!>+(0B!
D$#A#%+*!30*!+O(,(%0B!
%$3?+'!D'30,!*+?+'#D+*!
@(%)!%)+!$+'+?30%!
#$B30(,3%(#0,C!30*!3!
D$#B$3AA+!#&!D$#A#%(#0!
#&!%$3?+'!1)#(1+!(,!>+(0B!
$/0!

+GCQ*@*G%*,&0#%2"*I"'6-I*'(K*H"66\",(.*H,-I,(*-I"*\%#%5.I*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

QZa*9%)58,(.*%(*0#"2"(-,%(3*$%#*"E'&06"*\F*
,()#"'8,(.*-I"*(5&\"#*%$*'K56-8*0'#-,),0'-,(.*,(*'-*
6"'8-*a<*&,(5-"8*%$*&%K"#'-"*"E"#),8"*0"#*H""M*
[FbFR!23(0%3(0!30*!
D$#A#%+!,+$?(1+,!
%)3%!@(''!1#0%$(>/%+!%#!
(01$+3,(0B!%)+!
D+$1+0%3B+!#&!3*/'%,!
D3$%(1(D3%(0B!(0!bI!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!
^0B#(0B!3,!D3$%!#&!X+(,/$+!
30*!./'%/$+!6(?(,(#0n,!1#$+!
>/,(0+,,!!

34
40



A(0/%+,!#&!A#*+$3%+!
(0%+0,(%4!,D#$%!#$!
D)4,(13'!31%(?(%4!#0!
3%!'+3,%!b!*34,!(0!304!
@++9!

[FbFH!8AD'+A+0%!%)+!
31%(#0!D'30,!(0!
$+'3%(#0!%#!&##*!
,3&+%4!30*!)+3'%)!
30*!,3&+%4!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

G##*!J3&+%4!X3@!
K0&#$1+A+0%!"'30!3*#D%+*!
>4!KO+1/%(?+!2+A>+$!#0!
%)+!HN!m/'4!30*!B#+,!%#!
G/''!.#/01('!#0!HH!J+D%!
HIRI!7+3'%)!30*!J3&+%4!
X3@!K0&#$1+A+0%!"'30!
@3,!3*#D%+*!>4!%)+!
X(1+01(0B!30*!J3&+%4!
.#AA(%%++!#0!R!m/'4!

[FbFb!.3$$4!#/%!$#3*!
,3&+%4!+*/13%(#0!
%$3(0(0B!30*!D/>'(1(%4!
31%(?(%(+,!#&!$#3*!
13,/3'%4!,(%+!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

K*/13%(#0!%$3(0(0B!
D$#B$3AA+,!3$+!>+(0B!
(A'+A+0%+*!30*!$#3*!
13,/3'%4!,(%+!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!3$+!>+(0B!
*+,(B0+*!&#$!
(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!%)(,!4+3$F!

[FbFh!"$#A#%(0B!30*!
&31('(%3%(0B!@3'9(0B!
30*!141'(0B!(01'/*(0B!
%)3%!#&!,1)##',!

! K..!
!

!

L!D$#B$3AA+!#&!
J/,%3(03>'+!2#*+,!#&!
<$3?+'!%#!J1)##'!,1)+A+,!
3$+!>+(0B!*+?+'#D+*!30*!
(AD'+A+0%+*C!30*!
D$#B$3AA+,!#&!141'+!
%$3(0(0B!30*!D$#A#%(#0!#&!
@3'9(0B!30*!141'(0B!(,!
13$$(+*!#/%!(0!,1)##',!

QZe*1('\6,(.*&%#"*0"%06"*-%*#"&',(*,(*-I",#*%H(*
I%&"8*-I#%5.I*-I"*58"*%$*G"6")'#"*

[FiFH!8AD'+A+0%!0+@!
'(&+'(0+!A#0(%#$(0B!
,4,%+A!30*!D$#A#%+!
%#!/,+$,!30*!
D3$%0+$,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

"_.!N!/DB$3*+!1#AD'+%+*!
(0!234F!\#$9!#0UB#(0B!%#!
13$$4!#/%!6(,3,%+$!
P+1#?+$4!(0U)#/,+!30*!%#!
+0,/$+!@+!>+0+&(%!&$#A!
0+@!&/01%(#03'(%4!>4!
@#$9(0B!@(%)!D3$%0+$,!%#!
*+'(?+$!0+@!,+$?(1+,!+FBF!
%+'+)+3'%)!

+GCe*@*G%*8""M*-%*"(85#"*-I'-*"2"#F*#"8,K"(-*$""68*,()65K"K*'(K*
'\6"*-%*'))"88*-I"*8"#2,)"8*-I"F*(""K*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

eZ=<*W&06"&"(-,(.*-I"*J#')M("66*9%#"8-*!'#-("#8I,0*
4%&&5(,-F*1(.'."&"(-*B-#'-".F*-%*"(.'."*H,-I*
#"8,K"(-8*-%*8I'0"*8"#2,)"*0#%2,8,%(*'(K*K"2"6%0*
)%&&5(,-,"8*
iFRIFk!8AD'+A+0%!%)+!
31%(#0,!(0!%)+!
5$3190+''!G#$+,%!
"3$%0+$,)(D!
.#AA/0(%4!
K0B3B+A+0%!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

.)#(1+!53,+*!X+%%(0B,!
,+$?(1+!3''#@(0B!
1/,%#A+$,!%#!311+,,!
)#/,(0B!%)$#/B)!%)+!
@+>,(%+!1#AD'+%+*!(%,!&($,%!
&/''!=/3$%+$!(0!=/3$%+$!RF!

35
41



J%$3%+B4!*/+!&#$!
1#AD'+%(#0!(0!
HIRIaRR!30*!+0,/$+!
31%(#0,!&#$!&/%/$+!
4+3$,!3$+!
D$#B$+,,+*!
dK0?($#0A+0%C!
./'%/$+!30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,e!

5+0+&(%,!+O%+0*+*!%)+($!
+=/3'(%(+,!A#0(%#$(0BF!

eZQ*W&06"&"(-,(.*'*N,8'\,6,-F*1]5'6,-F*B)I"&"3*
b"(K"#*1]5'6,-F*B)I"&"*'(K*/')"*1]5'6,-F*
B)I"&"*
iF[F[!8AD'+A+0%!%)+!
6(,3>('(%4C!P31+!30*!
E+0*+$!K=/3'(%4!
J1)+A+,!31%(#0,!
*/+!&#$!1#AD'+%(#0!(0!
HIRIaRR!30*!
D$#B$+,,!%)#,+!
31%(#0,!*/+!&#$!
1#AD'+%(#0!(0!'3%+$!
4+3$,!dK0?($#0A+0%!
./'%/$+!30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,e!

bRaIbaHIRI!K..!
!

!

<)+!$+A3(0(0B!31%(#0,!3$+!
#0B#(0B!%3,9,F!\+!
1#0%(0/+!%#!A39+!D$#B$+,,!
#0!(AD$#?(0B!311+,,!%#!3''!
#/$!,+$?(1+,F!

eZX*W()#"'8,(.*'))"88*-%*8"#2,)"8*\F*"6")-#%(,)*
&"'(8*

iFNFH!8AD$#?+!D/>'(1!
311+,,!%#!D'300(0B! bRaIbaHIRR!K..!

!
!

L0!/D*3%+*!?+$,(#0!#&!
"/>'(1!L1+,,!(,!D'300+*!
&#$!'3(01)!(0!cb!30*!(,!
1/$$+0%'4!(0!%+,%F!<)(,!
+0)301+*!%##'!@(''!3**!%#!
%)+!1/$$+0%!&31('%4!@)(1)!
3''#@,!D'300(0B!
3DD'(13%(#0,!%#!>+!?(+@*!
#0'(0+!>4!D$#?(*(0B!
#DD#$%/0(%4!&#$!D+$,#0,!%#!
$+B(,%+$!&#$!3/%#A3%(1!
0#%(&(13%(#0!#&!D'300(0B!
3DD'(13%(#0+*!>4!+!A3('F!

iFNFb!8AD$#?+!D/>'(1!
(0&#$A3%(#0!#0!
)(B)@34!0+%@#$9!
A303B+A+0%!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

LDD'(13%(#0!&#$A,!3$+!
>+(0B!$+?(,+*!(0!'(0+!@(%)!
%)+!$#''!#/%!#&!%)+!
K'+1%$#0(1!X(1+01+!
2303B+A+0%!J4,%+A!
dKX2JeF!<)+!nP#3*@#$9,!
G(0*+$n!dKXE8_e!@+>,(%+!(,!
(0%+B$3%+*!@(%)!%)+!5G.!
D/>'(1!@+>,(%+!3,!@+''!3,!
5#$(,!B(?(0B!(0&#$A3%(#0!#0!
,%$++%!30*!$#3*!@#$9,!(0!
30*!3$#/0*!%)+!>#$#/B)F!
P+B/'3$!D$+,,!$+'+3,+,!
3$+!>+(0B!(,,/+*!(0!
3*?301+!#&!D'300+*!30*!
$+31%(?+!A3Q#$!$#3*!30*!
,%$++%!@#$9,F!!

iFNFh!80%$#*/1+!
>+0+&(%,!#0!'(0+! bRaIbaHIRR!K..!

!
! <)(,!@(''!>+!(AD'+A+0%+*!

3,!D)3,+!H!#&!%)+!1/$$+0%!

36
42



1'3(A,! ,4,%+A!$+D'31+A+0%F!<)+!
1/$$+0%!,4,%+A!
$+D'31+A+0%!D$#Q+1%!(,!
$/00(0B!%#!D'30F!

iFNF[!P+?(+@!30*!
+O%+0*!5$3190+''!
G#$+,%!.#/01('!
24.)#(1+!,+$?(1+,!

HYaIHaHIRR!K..!
!

!

<)+!7#A+!1#00+1%(#0,!
30*!+AD'4A+0%!,+$?(1+!
7K.JC!@)(1)!@(''!>+!
90#@0!3,!5G.!A4!Q#>!
,+3$1)!)3,!>++0!
*+?+'#D+*!30*!@(''!>+!
B#(0B!'(?+!(AA(0+0%'4!

eZe*W&06"&"(-,(.*-I"*4%&&5(,-F*4%I"8,%(*
B-#'-".F*-%*.,2"*0"%06"*'*8"(8"*%$*\"6%(.,(.*'(K*
,K"(-,-F*'8*&"&\"#8*%$*-I",#*)%&&5(,-F*
iFiFH!.#0%$31%!
,#1(3''4!0+1+,,3$4!
>/,!,+$?(1+,!%#!
,/DD#$%!311+,,!%#!
+,,+0%(3'!,+$?(1+,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

! L!0/A>+$!#&!1#0%$31%,!3$+!
(0!D'31+!

iFiFk!8AD'+A+0%!
31%(#0,!(0!nL''!#&!/,n!
.#AA/0(%4!1#)+,(#0!
J%$3%+B4!
dK0?($#0A+0%!
./'%/$+!30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,e!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

<)+!$+A3(0(0B!31%(#0,!3$+!
#0B#(0B!%3,9,F!\+!
1#0%(0/+!%#!A39+!D$#B$+,,!
#0!(AD$#?(0B!311+,,!%#!3''!
#/$!,+$?(1+,F!

eZf*R%#M,(.*H,-I,(*-I"*J#')M("66*9%#"8-*!'#-("#8I,0*
-%*8I%H*)%(-,(5%58*,&0#%2"&"(-*,(*"]5'6,-,"8*'(K*
K,2"#8,-F*,(*-I"*4%5(),6*'(K*,-8*8"#2,)"83*'(K*H%#M*
-%H'#K8*'--',(,(.*-I"*l?)I,"2,(.[*6"2"6*%$*-I"*
1]5'6,-F*9#'&"H%#M*
iFYFRI!.#0*/1%!
K=/3'(%4!8AD31%!
L,,+,,A+0%,!dK8L,e!
&#$!0+@!,+$?(1+,C!
,%$3%+B(+,!30*!
D#'(1(+,!30*!$+?(+@!
+O(,%(0B!K8L,!3,!D3$%!
#&!3!$#''(0B!%)$++!4+3$!
D$#B$3AA+C!
+0,/$(0B!3''!31%(#0,!
$+,/'%(0B!&$#A!%)+,+!
3$+!>/('%!(0%#!
%+3Aa>/,(0+,,!
@#$9D'30,!
dK0?($#0A+0%C!
./'%/$+!30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,e!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

K=/3'(%(+,!(AD31%!
3,,+,,A+0%!&#$!
*+?+'#DA+0%!A303B+A+0%!
D/>'(,)+*!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$F!
\#$9!>+B/0!#0!K8L,!&#$!
%)+!$+&/,+!1#''+1%(#0!
D$#1/$+A+0%!D$#1+,,!30*!
,D+1(&(13%(#0!30*!%)+!
D#'(14!&#$!%)+!%$+3%A+0%!#&!
D+$,(,%30%!1#AD'3(030%,F!

iFYFRh!K0,/$+!3''!K8L!
31%(#0,!&#$!HIRIaRR!
3$+!(AD'+A+0%+*!30*!
31%(#0,!&#$!&/%/$+!
4+3$,!D$#B$+,,+*!
dK0?($#0A+0%C!
./'%/$+!30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,e!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

KAD'#4++,!31$#,,!%)+!
*+D3$%A+0%!D$#?(*+*!13,+!
,%/*4!A3%(+$3'C!$+?(+@+*!
+3$'4!*#1/A+0%,!30*!@+$+!
,+'+1%+*!&#$!(0%+$?(+@,!>4!
%)+!(0,D+1%#$,!3%!%)+!
>+B(00(0B!#&!m/'4F!

37
43



iFYFRY!8AD$#?+!
+=/3'(%4!A#0(%#$(0B!
%#!D$#?(*+!>+%%+$!
(0&#$A3%(#0!#0!
311+,,!%#!30*!%39+!
/D!#&!,+$?(1+,!>4!
*(&&+$+0%!D3$%,!#&!%)+!
1#AA/0(%4!
dK0?($#0A+0%C!
./'%/$+!30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,e!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!
<)+!>+0+&(%,!,+1%(#0!
(0%$#*/1+*!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
,+O/3'!#$(+0%3%(#0!(0!LD$('F

+GCf*@*G%*#"K5)"*)#,&"*'(K*,()#"'8"*0"%06"i8*8"(8"*%$*8'$"-F*,(*
-I"*\%#%5.I*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

fZ=<*R%#M*H,-I*'(K*8500%#-*'66*0'#-("#8*-%*#"8%62"*
-I"*,885"8*%$*.#"'-"8-*)%()"#(*-%*#"8,K"(-83*$#%&*
-I"*;<<S*(",.I\%5#I%%K*85#2"F*

YFRIFR!"$#?(*+!
%$3(0(0B!30*!
+*/13%(#0!#0!,D++*!
$+*/1%(#0!(0!
1##D+$3%(#0!@(%)!%)+!
"#'(1+!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

P#3*,(*+!$#3*!,3&+%4!
+*/13%(#0!D$#?(*+*!3%!Q#(0%!
+?+0%,!@(%)!D#'(1+C!30*!
*$(?+$!+*/13%(#0!,1)+A+,!
3$+!*+'(?+$+*!%)$#/B)!#/$!
A+A>+$,)(D!#&!%)+!
<)3A+,!:3''+4!P#3*!
J3&+%4!"3$%0+$,)(D!

YFRIFH!\#$9!@(%)!%)+!
"#'(1+!%#!+0&#$1+!
,D++*!'(A(%,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

6+'(?+$+*!A3(0'4!%)$#/B)!
#/$!D3$%0+$,(D!@#$9(0B!
@(%)!%)+!<)3A+,!:3''+4!
J3&+$!P#3*,!"3$%0+$,)(D!

YFRIFb!8AD'+A+0%!
3DD$#D$(3%+!,D++*!
A303B+A+0%!
,1)+A+,!%#!$+*/1+!
311(*+0%,!30*!
(AD$#?+!,3&+%4!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

JD++*!A303B+A+0%!
,1)+A+,!3$+!(01'/*+*!(0!
%)(,!4+3$,!D$#B$3AA+!&#$!
(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!

YFRIFh!.3$$4!#/%!
)(B)@34!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!%)3%!
130!$+*/1+!
311(*+0%,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

L!D$#B$3AA+!#&!13,/3'%4!
$+*/1%(#0!,1)+A+,!3$+!
(01'/*+*!(0!%)(,!4+3$,!
13D(%3'!D$#B$3AA+!

fZ;*/"K5),(.*-I"*(5&\"#*%$*0"%06"*HI%*$"'#*)#,&"*
\F*=<j*\F*;<==*
YFHFb!.##$*(03%+!%)+!
.#/01('M,!30*!
D3$%0+$,M!$+,D#0,+!%#!
A303B(0B!
+0?($#0A+0%3'!1$(A+!
%)$#/B)!%)+!.'+30+$!
5#$#/B)!E$#/D!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

<)+!E$#/D!1#0%(0/+,!%#!
A++%!%#!B##*!+&&+1%F!^&!
D3$%(1/'3$!0#%+!(,!%)+!
(AD31%!#0!%)+!'+?+'!#&!&'4!
%(DD(0B!@)(1)!)3,!*$#DD+*!
1#0,(*+$3>'4!3,!3!$+,/'%!#&!
>+%%+$!1##$*(03%+*!31%(#0,

+GCS*@*G%*0#%&%-"*,(K"0"(K"()"*'(K*)I%,)"*$%#*256("#'\6"*
'K56-8*'(K*%6K"#*0"%06"*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

SZX*/"K5),(.*$5"6*0%2"#-F*\F*,()#"'8,(.*-I"*"("#.F*

38
44



"$$,),"()F*%$*I%&"8*
kFNFR!<3$B+%!
)#/,+)#'*!
#11/D(+$,C!
D3$%(1/'3$'4!%)#,+!
$+1+(?(0B!>+0+&(%,C!%#!
(01$+3,+!%)+!/D%39+!
#&!(0,/'3%(#0!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

! 80,/'3%(#0!3*?(1+!0#@!
B(?+0!>4!>+0+&(%!%+3A,!!

kFNFH!K03>'+!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!(0!%)+!
+0+$B4!+&&(1(+014!#&!
A#>('+!)#A+,!(0!%)+!
>#$#/B)!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

1/$$+0%'4!/0*+$%39(0B!
$+,+3$1)!@(%)!0+@!
D$#*/1%,!30*!D('#%(0B!0+@!
A+3,/$+F!!

+GC=<*@*G%*\"*'))%5(-'\6"*'(K*0#%2,K"*"E)"66"(-*2'65"*$%#*
&%("F*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

=<ZQ*W&06"&"(-,(.*-I"*0#,%#,-F*'#"'8*%$*-I"*B"#2,)"*
1$$,),"()F*B-#'-".F*-%*K"6,2"#*8'2,(.8*'(K*,&0#%2"*
8"#2,)"*%0"#'-,%(*
RIF[Fb!8AD'+A+0%!%)+!
G#$+,%.3$+!5/,(0+,,!
"'30!31%(#0,!&#$!
HIRIaRR!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!
>/,(0+,,!D'30!
(AD'+A+0%+*!30*!#0!
%3$B+%!%#!31)(+?+!

RIF[Fh!P+?(+@!%)+!
D'300(0B!,+$?(1+!
d=/3'(%4!(AD$#?+A+0%!
(0!D'300(0B!D$#Q+1%e!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

2K"J!D$#Q+1%!@+''!
/0*+$@34F!6+%3('+*!%(A+!
9++D(0B!1#AD'+%+!30*!
>/,(0+,,!D$#1+,,!A3DD(0B!
/0*+$@34!%#!>+!1#AD'+%+!
(0!J+D%+A>+$F!"$#Q+1%!#0!
,1)+*/'+!&#$!*$3&%!
$+1#AA+0*3%(#0,!>4!
_#?+A>+$!HIRIF!

=<Ze*1(85#,(.*'66*)%5(),6*8"#2,)"8*0#%2,K"*2'65"*$%#*
&%("F*'(K*&'M"*"$$")-,2"*58"*%$*#"8%5#)"8*

RIFiFRH!K0,/$+!
?3'/+!&#$!A#0+4!
%)$#/B)!%)+!$+U
D$#1/$+A+0%!#&!
B##*,!30*!,+$?(1+,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

.#0%$31%,!'+%!&#$!13$!D3$9!
A303B+A+0%C!+=/(DA+0%!
30*!A3(0%+0301+!
.#0%$31%,!,##0!%#!>+!
1#AD'+%+*!&#$!%)+!
$+D'31+A+0%!#&!1$+A3%(#0!
+=/(DA+0%!30*!%)+!
D$#1/$+A+0%!#&!>$(*B+!
1#0,/'%3014!3*?(,+!
80?(%3%(#0,!%#!%+0*+$!$+&/,+!
1#''+1%(#0!1#0%$31%,!,+0%F!!

=<Zf*1(85#"*8-'$$*'#"*,(*06')"*H,-I*-I"*#,.I-*8M,668*
'(K*)'0'),-F*-%*K"6,2"#*8"#2,)"*%5-)%&"8*'(K*
&'E,&,8"*8"#2,)"*"$$,),"()F*
RIFYF[!6+?+'#D!
$+D'31+A+0%!
,%$3%+B(+,!@)+$+!
B$#/D,!#&!,+0(#$!
+AD'#4++,!30*!
A303B+$,!*/+!%#!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

730*#?+$!D'30!*+?+'#D+*!
30*!D/%!(0%#!D'31+!&#$!%)+!
$+%($+A+0%!#&!#0+!#&!<+3A!
2303B+$,!(0!JD3%(3'!"#'(14!
(0!m/'4F!G(0301+!,+1%(#0!
@#$9(0B!#0!3!D$#B$3AA+!

39
45



$+%($+!(0!%)+!0+O%!&+@!
4+3$,F!

#&!*+?+'#DA+0%!31%(?(%(+,!
&#$!%)+!"$(01(D3'!
L11#/0%30%!(0!D$+D3$3%(#0!
&#$!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!$+%($+A+0%!
#&!%)+!7+3*!#&!G(0301+!
30*!L,,(,%30%!7+3*!#&!
G(0301+!(0!3!&+@!4+3$,n!
%(A+F!

RIFYFN!6$3@!/D!
1#0%(0B+014!
3$$30B+A+0%,!@)+$+!
?+$4!,A3''!*(,1$+%+!
%+3A,!$/0!#/$!
,+$?(1+,F!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

6$3&%!1#0%(0B+014!
3$$30B+A+0%,!>+(0B!
*+?+'#D+*!&#$!*(,1/,,(#0!
(0!3/%/A0!@(%)!?(+@!%#!
*$3&%!3$$0B+A+0%!%#!>+!
$+1#AA+0*+*!>4!
6+1+A>+$!HIRIF!

RIFYFi!KO3A(0+!
@34,!#&!*+?+'#D(0B!3!
,9('',!D(D+'(0+!(0!
D$#&+,,(#0,!@)+$+!
03%(#03'!#$!$+B(#03'!
,)#$%3B+,!#&!,/(%3>'4!
=/3'(&(+*!30*!
+OD+$(+01+*!
D$#&+,,(#03'!,%3&&!
+FBF!>/('*(0B!1#0%$#'!
#&&(1+$,C!>+0+&(%,!
#&&(1+$,!30*!
'(>$3$(30,!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

_++*!&#$!,/1)!3!$+?(+@!#0!
)#'*!D+0*(0B!#/%1#A+!#&!
>/*B+%!1/%!300#/1+A+0%,F!
J9(''!,)#$%3B+,!(0!A304!#&!
%)+,+!D#,%,!>+1#A(0B!'+,,!
#&!30!(,,/+!3,!3!$+,/'%!(0!
,%$/1%/$+!$+?(+@,!
03%(#03''4F!

RIFYFY!P+?(+@!
,%3&&(0B!,%$/1%/$+!30*!
&/%/$+!,%3&&(0B!
,%$/1%/$+,!%#!$+&'+1%!
1)30B(0B!A3$9+%,!
30*!+0,/$+!,+$?(1+!
+&&(1(+014!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

80!4+3$!,3?(0B,!)3?+!>++0!
(AD'+A+0%+*!(0!D'300(0B!
$+'3%+*!31%(?(%4!@(%)!hF[!
G<K!?3130%!D#,%,!>+(0B!
*+'+%+*F!

RIFYFk!P+B(,%+$!3''!
+AD'#4++,!@#$9(0B!
@(%)!?/'0+$3>'+!
1)('*$+0!3,!$+=/($+*!
>4!%)+!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!
%)+!80*+D+0*+0%!
J3&+B/3$*(0B!
L/%)#$(%4!30*!*$3&%!
D'30,!%#!A3(0%3(0!
'+?+',!#&!90#@'+*B+!
#&!,3&+B/3$*(0B!
3?3('3>'+!3%!+0*!#&!
1/$$+0%!%$3(0(0B!
D$#B$3AA+!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

L,!3!$+,/'%!#&!%)+!$+1+0%!
1)30B+,!(0!E#?+$0A+0%C!
%)+!8JL!$+B(,%$3%(#0!
,1)+A+!)3,!>++0!D/%!#0!
)#'*!/0%('!3!A#$+!n1#AA#0!
,+0,+n!3DD$#31)!)3,!>++0!
D/%!&#$@3$*F!7#@+?+$C!%)+!
8JL!(,!,%(''!$/00(0BC!30*!
,3&+B/3$*(0B!$+B/'3%(#0,!
(0%$#*/1+*!(0!^1%#>+$!
HIIk!1#0%(0/+!%#!3DD'4F!
L04!@#$9!1#AD'+%+*!@(%)!
$+B3$*,!%#!%)+!1/$$+0%!
$+B/'3%(#0,!)3,!>++0!D/%!
#0!)#'*C!>/%!@(''!
1#AA+01+!#01+!%)+!0+@!
,1)+A+!)3,!>++0!
300#/01+*F!80!%+$A,!#&!
%$3(0(0BC!0#!80%$#*/1%(#0!%#!
J3&+B/3$*(0B!@#$9,)#D,!
@+$+!$/0!%)(,!=/3$%+$!,#!
0#U#0+!)3,!)3*!304!
%$3(0(0BC!)#@+?+$C!304!
#/%,%30*(0B!+AD'#4++,!

40
46



@(''!>+!3%%+0*(0B!%)+!RI!
@#$9,)#D,!>##9+*!
>+%@++0!J+D%+A>+$!30*!
6+1+A>+$!HIRIF!<)+!
80%$#*/1%(#0!%#!
J3&+B/3$*(0B!\#$9,)#D,!
@(''!%)+0!>+!$/0!=/3$%+$'4!
&#$!304!0+@!,%3&&!%#!3%%+0*F!

+GC=a*@*G%*6,&,-*-I"*,&0')-*%$*-I"*#")"88,%(*

N"-',6"K*?)-,%(* N5"*N'-"* CH("#B-'-58* O'8-*
_0K'-"K4%&&"(-8*

=aZa*!#%&%-"*-I"*-'M"@50*%$*\"("$,-83*'66%H'()"8*
'(K*)%()"88,%(8*0#%2,K"K*\F*-I"*4%5(),6*

RbFbFR!8AD'+A+0%!
>+0+&(%!%39+!/D!
,%$3%+B4!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

80!%)+!&($,%!=/3$%+$!#&!
HIRIaRR!%)+!?3$(#/,!
31%(#0,!#&!%)+!>+0+&(%!%39+!
/D!,%$3%+B4!)3?+!
B+0+$3%+*!30!3**(%(#03'!j!
RiC[kI!#&!>+0+&(%,!&#$!
1'3(A30%,!(0!5$3190+''!
G#$+,%F!

RbFbFH!"$#A#%+!%39+!
/D!#&!X+(,/$+!J3?+$!
J1)+A+!

bRaIbaHIRR!K..!
!

!

.#01+,,(#0,!1#0%(0/+!%#!
>+!D$#A#%+*!3%!'+(,/$+!
&31('(%(+,F!<)+!X+(,/$+!
J3?+$!J1)+A+!,%3$%+*!(0!
6+1+A>+$!HIIhC!(%!(,!
3?3('3>'+!&#$!D+$,#0,!(0!
$+1+(D%!#&!1+$%3(0!>+0+&(%,!d!
7#/,(0BC!.#/01('!<3OC!
801#A+!,/DD#$%!30*!m#>!
,++9+$,!3''#@301+F!
6+D+0*30%,!#&!%)+!
3DD'(130%,!3$+!3',#!+'(B(>'+!
&#$!%)+!,1)+A+!(&!%)+4!'(?+!
3%!%)+!,3A+!3**$+,,F!<)+!
,1)+A+!(,!D$#A#%+*!
%)$#/0B)!3!$30B+!#&!
1)300+',C!%)+$+!3$+!
1/$$+0%'4![II!D+$,#0,!#0!
%)+!,1)+A+F!<)+!
@+''>+(0B!%+3A!$/0,!
31%(?(%(+,!&#$!D+$,#0,!@(%)!
*(,3>('(%(+,F!<)+!%+3A!
#D+$3%+,!3%!5X.C!.#$3'!
P++&!30*!6#@0,)($+!E#'&!
.#AD'+OF!6(,3>'+*!311+,,!
D$(1+,!3$+!3?3('3>'+!3%!3''!
X+(,/$+!,(%+,F!<)+!$+*!
*(3A#0*,!*(,3>'+*!
31%(?(%(+,!,+,,(#0,!%39+!
D'31+!3%!5X.!#0!J/0*34!
+?+0(0B,F!!

41
47



!
!

!

!?
(
(
"E
*N
D*
*!
"#
$%
#&
'(
)"
*'
.
',
(
8-
*Y
'-
,%
(
'6
*W(
K
,)
'-
%
#8
*

* * "
'+
3,
+!
,+
+!
0+
O%
!D
3B
+*

4
2

48



! In
d

ic
a
to

r
R

e
f 

M
e
a
su

re
C

u
rr

e
n

t
A

ct
u

a
l 

C
u

rr
e
n

t
T
a
rg

e
t 

P
re

v
io

u
s

A
ct

u
a
l 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 &

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
io

n
M

T
O

N
I1

55
!

N
um

be
r 

of
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
ho

m
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

(g
ro

ss
)

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

5
15

3
!

O
n 

ta
rg

et
!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

N
I0

47
!

Pe
op

le
 k

ill
ed

 o
r 

se
rio

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d 

in
 r

oa
d 

tr
af

fic
 

ac
ci

de
nt

s
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

25
23

!

N
I 

47
 is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 

in
di

ca
to

r,
 s

o 
th

is
 

fig
ur

e 
is

 t
he

 la
te

st
 

re
po

rt
 a

va
ia

lb
le

 f
or

 
20

10
. 
D

at
a 

fo
r 

20
10

 is
 o

nl
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

 t
o 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 A

pr
il,

 s
o 

th
is

 
fig

ur
e 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 

th
e 

ro
lli

ng
 1

2 
m

on
th

 f
ig

ur
e 

up
 t

o 
th

is
 p

oi
nt

.!

M
TO

 0
8 

- 
To

 
re

du
ce

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 

pe
op

le
’s

 s
en

se
 

of
 s

af
et

y 
in

 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
!

N
I0

48
!

C
hi

ld
re

n 
ki

lle
d 

or
 

se
rio

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d 

in
 r

oa
d 

tr
af

fic
 

ac
ci

de
nt

s
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

3
!

N
I 

48
 is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 

in
di

ca
to

r,
 s

o 
th

is
 

fig
ur

e 
is

 t
he

 la
te

st
 

re
po

rt
 a

va
ia

lb
le

 f
or

 
20

10
. 
D

at
a 

fo
r 

20
10

 is
 o

nl
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

 t
o 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 A

pr
il,

 s
o 

th
is

 M
TO

 0
8 

- 
To

 
re

du
ce

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 

pe
op

le
’s

 s
en

se
 

of
 s

af
et

y 
in

 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
!

!
!

!
4
3

49



fig
ur

e 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 
th

e 
ro

lli
ng

 1
2 

m
on

th
 f

ig
ur

e 
up

 t
o 

th
is

 p
oi

nt
.!

N
I1

41
!

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

pe
op

le
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

in
de

pe
nd

en
t

liv
in

g 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

!
!

M
TO

 0
9 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
an

d 
ch

oi
ce

 f
or

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 !

N
I1

42
!

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 a

re
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
to

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n

in
de

pe
nd

en
t

liv
in

g 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

!
!

M
TO

 0
9 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
an

d 
ch

oi
ce

 f
or

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 !

N
I1

54
!

N
et

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

ho
m

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

12
4

32
2

!
!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

N
I1

56
!

N
um

be
r 

of
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 

liv
in

g 
in

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

20
20

!
O

n 
ta

rg
et
!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

N
I1

57
.1
!

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 o

f 
pl

an
ni

ng
87

.5
0%

!
0.

00
%
!

M
TO

 1
0 

- 
To

 
be

!
!

!
4
4

50



ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 

M
aj

or
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
!

N
I1

57
.2
!

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 o

f 
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 
M

in
or

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

94
.4

4%
!

85
.0

0%
!

M
TO

 1
0 

- 
To

 
be ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey
!

N
I1

57
.3
!

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 o

f 
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 
O

th
er

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

91
.6

7%
!

92
.9

9%
!

M
TO

 1
0 

- 
To

 
be ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey
!

N
I1

59
!

Su
pp

ly
 o

f 
re

ad
y 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 

ho
us

in
g 

si
te

s 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

70
.4

%
!

!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

N
I1

77
!

Lo
ca

l b
us

 a
nd

 
lig

ht
 r

ai
l 

pa
ss

en
ge

r
jo

ur
ne

ys
 

or
ig

in
at

in
g 

in
 t

he
 

au
th

or
ity

 a
re

a 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

!
!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

!
!

!
4
5

51



N
I1

78
.1
!

Bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
ru

nn
in

g 
on

 t
im

e 
- 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
no

n-
fr

eq
ue

nt
sc

he
du

le
d

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

tim
e 

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

!
!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

N
I1

78
.2
!

Bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
ru

nn
in

g 
on

 t
im

e 
- 

Ex
ce

ss
 w

ai
tin

g 
tim

e 
fo

r 
fr

eq
ue

nt
se

rv
ic

es
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

!
!

M
TO

 0
3 

- 
To

 
pr

om
ot

e
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
!

N
I1

82
 1

82
!

Sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 w

ith
 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
re

gu
la

to
ry

se
rv

ic
es

 -
 N

I-
18

2 
(B

as
ic

 
in

di
ca

to
r)

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

77
.2

%
72

.1
%

!
!

M
TO

 1
1 

- 
To

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
ec

on
om

ic
 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

l !

N
I1

84
!

Fo
od

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

ts
 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

br
oa

dl
y

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 w

ith
 

fo
od

 h
yg

ie
ne

 
la

w
 (

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

94
91

!
!

M
TO

 0
5 

- 
To

 
im

pr
ov

e
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

bo
ro

ug
h
!

N
I1

88
!

Pl
an

ni
ng

 t
o 

ad
ap

t 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
!

!
M

TO
 0

4 
- 

To
 

ke
ep

 B
ra

ck
ne

ll 
Fo

re
st

 c
le

an
 

!
!

!
4
6

52



(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

an
d 

gr
ee

n 
!

N
I1

91
!

R
es

id
ua

l 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

pe
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

64
6

!
!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

N
I1

92
!

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

se
nt

 f
or

 r
eu

se
, 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

37
.8

%
!

!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

N
I1

93
!

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 

la
nd

 f
ill

ed
 

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

44
.4

8%
!

!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

N
I1

95
.1
!

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s

(l
ev

el
s 

of
 li

tt
er

, 
de

tr
itu

s,
 g

ra
ff

iti
 

an
d 

fly
 p

os
tin

g)
 

- 
Li

tt
er

 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

1%
4%

!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

N
I1

95
.2
!

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s

(l
ev

el
s 

of
 li

tt
er

, 
de

tr
itu

s,
 g

ra
ff

iti
 

an
d 

fly
 p

os
tin

g)
 

- 
D

et
rit

us
 

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

1%
7%

!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

!
!

!
4
7

53



N
I1

95
.3
!

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s

(l
ev

el
s 

of
 li

tt
er

, 
de

tr
itu

s,
 g

ra
ff

iti
 

an
d 

fly
 p

os
tin

g)
 

- 
G

ra
ff

iti
 

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

1%
2%

!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

N
I1

95
.4
!

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s

(l
ev

el
s 

of
 li

tt
er

, 
de

tr
itu

s,
 g

ra
ff

iti
 

an
d 

fly
-p

os
tin

g)
 

- 
Fl

y-
po

st
in

g 
(Q

ua
rt

er
ly

)!

0%
3%

!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

N
I1

96
!

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t 

an
d

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
--

 f
ly

 
tip

pi
ng

(Q
ua

rt
er

ly
)!

2
2

2

M
ay

 &
 J

un
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 
in

ci
de

nt
s!

M
TO

 0
4 

- 
To

 
ke

ep
 B

ra
ck

ne
ll 

Fo
re

st
 c

le
an

 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 
!

! !
!

!
4
8

54



!
!

!

?
(
(
"E
*1
D*
4
%
#0
%
#'
-"
*8
-#
'-
".
,)
*#
,8
M8
*%
H
(
"K
*\
F*
N
,#
")
-%
#*
%
$*
1
(
2,
#%
(
&
"(
-3
*4
5
6-
5
#"
*7
*4
%
&
&
5
(
,-
,"
8*

! !

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

1
 

B
2
 

B
2

D
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 
a
n
d
 s

o
ci

o
 

e
co

n
o
m

ic
 

ch
a
n
g
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

6
, 

7
 ,

 9
, 

1
1
, 

1
2
 a

n
d
 

1
3
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
ci

l 
p
la

n
s 

in
 

a
d
va

n
ce

 f
o
r 

p
o
ss

ib
le

 
d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 
ch

a
n
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 

e
st

im
a
te

s 
o
f 

th
is

 
h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 
th

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

 A
 h

ig
h
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
a
re

 
d
e
m

a
n
d
-l

e
d
, 

h
o
w

e
ve

r,
 a

n
d
 i
t 

ca
n
 

b
e
 d

if
fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
th

is
 a

cc
u
ra

te
ly

. 
 

It
 i
s 

re
co

g
n
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
e
ld

e
rl

y 
a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
a
n
d
 e

th
n
ic

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

is
 r

a
p
id

ly
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 

in
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s 

a
ls

o
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

ca
n
 b

e
 d

if
fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 

m
a
p
, 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
 h

a
ve

 a
 

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
a
ct

. 

U
n
p
la

n
n
e
d
 

d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 o
r 

so
ci

o
-e

co
n
o
m

ic
 

ch
a
n
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 

in
cr

e
a
si

n
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
w

a
rd

 m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

h
a
ve

 
si

g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

er
y 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

!!
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 d

o
e
s 

n
o
t 

re
ce

iv
e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

th
e
y 

re
q
u
ir

e
 

!!
S
u
d
d
e
n
 s

u
rg

e
s 

in
 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 

p
o
lic

e
 i
ss

u
e
s 

!!
Im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 

re
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

!!
A
d
ve

rs
e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y 

!!
R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

D
ir
e
ct

o
r 

 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
ci

a
l 
C
a
re

 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
/ 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 /

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

4
9

55



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

2
 

B
2
 

B
2

D
e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
d
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

5
, 

6
, 

7
 a

n
d
 

9
. 

  

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

to
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
-l

e
d
 

ca
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
it
h
in

 
B
ra

ck
n
e
ll 

Fo
re

st
. 

T
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
s 

se
t 

to
 

d
ra

m
a
ti
ca

lly
 

in
cr

e
a
se

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 
a
re

 m
o
re

, 
yo

u
n
g
e
r,

 
p
e
o
p
le

 c
o
m

in
g
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 s

ys
te

m
 w

it
h
 

in
te

n
si

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
n
e
e
d
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 i
s 

a
 

ch
a
n
g
in

g
 i
n
ci

d
e
n
ce

 
o
f 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

T
h
e
se

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

re
p
re

se
n
t 

m
a
jo

r 
co

m
p
o
n
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
ci

ls
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

R
e
d
u
ct

io
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

cu
rr

e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

o
n
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

Fi
n
a
n
ce

s 
a
n
d
/o

r 
re

so
u
rc

e
s 

re
q
u
ir

e
d
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 

a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
. 

E
co

n
o
m

ic
 

d
o
w

n
tu

rn
 m

a
y 

le
a
d
 t

o
 i
n
cr

ea
se

d
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

so
m

e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

e
.g

. 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

h
o
m

e
le

ss
. 

E
ff

e
ct

 o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fr
e
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
ca

re
 

u
n
k
n
o
w

n
.

!!
M

o
re

 a
n
d
 m

o
re

 
re

so
u
rc

e
 i
s 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

u
n
 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

!!
S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
ve

rs
p
e
n
d
s 

!!
M

o
n
e
y 

d
ra

w
n
 

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

!!
C
o
st

 s
p
ir

a
l 

!!
R
e
d
u
ct

io
n
s 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
el

 t
h
e
 

co
u
n
ci

l 
ca

n
 o

ff
e
r 

!!
D

a
m

a
g
e
 t

o
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 i
f 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

re
d
u
ce

d
  

!!
R
e
ve

n
u
e

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

n
o
t 

re
so

lv
e
d
 b

y 
ca

p
it
a
l 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 
!!

A
d
ve

rs
e
 e

ff
e
ct

 o
n
 

st
a
ff

 m
o
ra

le
 

a
ff
e
ct

e
d

!!
A
d
ve

rs
e
 e

ff
e
ct

 o
n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 
!!

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
ke

 u
n
p
o
p
u
la

r 
d
e
ci

si
o
n
s.

 
!!

C
o
u
n
ci

ls
 f
in

a
n
ce

s 
co

m
p
ro

m
is

e
d

!!
C
o
st

 i
n
cr

e
a
se

s 
!!

T
im

e
sc

a
le

s 
ch

a
n
g
e

D
ir
e
ct

o
r 

 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
ci

a
l 
C
a
re

 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
/ 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 /

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

5
0

56



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

3
 

B
2
 

B
2

S
o
u
th

 E
a
st

 
P
la

n
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

3
. 

T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
st

 P
la

n
 

(S
E
P
) 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 

a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 h

a
s 

n
o
w

 
b
e
e
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 a

s 
1
3
0
0
0
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s 

to
 

b
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d
 2

0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
2
6
. 

T
h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

le
v
e
l 

o
f 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

E
P
 w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir

e
 a

n
 

a
cc

o
m

p
a
n
yi

n
g
 l
e
ve

l 
o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 
(t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

, 
sc

h
o
o
ls

, 
h
o
sp

it
a
ls

).
  

T
h
e
 S

E
P
 a

ls
o
 

in
cl

u
d
e
s 

a
 "

jo
b
s 

a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 "

 o
f 

7
9
3
0
0
 

jo
b
s 

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d
 2

0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
 

to
 b

e
 d

is
a
g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 

W
e
st

e
rn

 C
o
rr

id
o
r 

a
n
d
 B

la
ck

w
a
te

r 
V
a
lle

y 
Lo

ca
l 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s.

  
It

 i
s 

H
o
u
se

s 
b
u
ilt

 
w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
cc

o
m

p
a
n
yi

n
g
 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 o
r 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

m
in

im
is

in
g
 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

. 

!!
D

e
m

a
n
d
s 

o
n
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

in
cr

e
a
se

 
!!

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 i
s 

p
u
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

p
re

ss
u
re

!!
T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 s
y
st

e
m

 
u
n
d
e
r 

p
re

ss
u
re

 
!!

A
re

a
 b

e
co

m
e
s 

le
ss

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 
!!

R
is

k 
o
f 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

!!
A
re

a
 b

e
co

m
e
s 

le
ss

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e
 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 l
iv

e
. 

!!
R
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 
co

m
p
la

in
 

!!
Im

a
g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

!!
E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 e
.g

. 
fl
o
o
d
in

g
 i
f 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 i
s 

b
u
ilt

 
o
n
 f

lo
o
d
 p

la
in

  

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

T
h
e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s 

n
o
w

 
re

vo
ke

d
 t

h
e
 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
st

 P
la

n
.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s 

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 

a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
, 

G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s 

m
a
d
e
 i
t 

cl
e
a
r 

th
a
t 

w
e
 p

ro
ce

e
d
 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

o
u
r 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 

C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y.

W
e
 w

ill
 i
n
 t

im
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 
th

is
 a

n
d
 b

e
g
in

 t
o
 

cr
e
a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 
Lo

ca
l 
P
la

n
 –

 
m

o
re

 g
u
id

a
n
ce

 
o
n
 t

h
is

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d
 

la
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
is

 
n
o
w

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
0
 l
e
ss

 h
o
m

e
s 

th
a
n
 w

a
s 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

S
E
P
 b

u
t 

is
 s

ti
ll 

a
t 

ri
sk

 t
o
 u

n
w

a
n
te

d
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

5
1

57



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

e
st

im
a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

2
0
0
0
 

o
f 

th
e
se

 j
o
b
s 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 a

 r
e
a
so

n
a
b
le

 
a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

B
ra

ck
n
e
ll 

Fo
re

st
 

b
a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

3
0
0
0
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 

a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
. 

a
n
d
 l
a
ck

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 

4
 

B
2
 

B
2
 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
  

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

1
, 

1
1
 a

n
d
 

1
3
. 

T
h
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

p
ro

je
ct

 i
s 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
n
d
it
io

n
s.

 K
e
y
 

fa
ct

o
rs

 a
re

:
1
) 

d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
in

 
se

cu
ri

n
g
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
co

n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

; 
a
n
d

2
) 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

se
cu

re
 t

h
e
 

co
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

 
a
n
ch

o
r 

st
o
re

s 
to

 
e
n
su

re
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
s 

a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
n
 

su
b
se

q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
 

re
ta

il 
ce

n
tr

e
 t

h
a
t 

ca
n
 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 c
o
m

p
e
te

 
w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
ca

l 
to

w
n
s.

B
R
P
 i
s 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 

se
cu

re
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
co

n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 

B
R
P
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

se
cu

re
 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

n
ch

o
r 

st
o
re

s 

!!
O

ve
ra

ll 
S
ch

em
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 
u
n
vi

a
b
le

 
!!

D
e
la

y
s 

!!
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

!!
S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
a
n
d
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

d
e
cl

in
e
 

!!
D

e
la

ys
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
iv

ic
 H

u
b
 

p
ro

je
ct

 

C
h
ie

f 
E
xe

cu
ti
ve

 /
 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
 

B
R
P
 a

re
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
in

g
 n

e
w

 
m

o
re

 f
le

xi
b
le

 
a
p
p
ro

a
ch

e
s 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

T
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 
P
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

to
 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 t

h
e
 

fl
e
xi

b
ili

ty
 a

re
 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

2
n
d
 a

n
d
 3

rd

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
is

 
ye

a
r.

5
2

58



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

5
 

D
2
 

D
2
 

In
co

m
e
 

p
ro

je
ct

io
n
s 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

1
0

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
h
a
s 

m
a
d
e
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n
s 

a
n
d
 f

o
re

ca
st

s 
a
ro

u
n
d
 

in
co

m
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

  
e
.g

. 
le

is
u
re

 f
e
e
s 

a
n
d
 

ch
a
rg

e
s,

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s,
 

co
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

re
st

 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

in
co

m
e
 t

h
a
n
 

p
ro

je
ct

e
d
 o

r 
in

co
m

e
 a

d
ve

rs
e
ly

 
a
ff

e
ct

e
d
 b

y 
cr

e
d
it
 

cr
u
n
ch

 a
n
d
 s

e
ve

re
 

a
d
ve

rs
e
 w

e
a
th

e
r.

 

!!
S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

m
o
n
e
y 

n
e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 

fo
u
n
d

!!
B
u
d
g
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

u
t 

to
 b

a
la

n
ce

 
th

e
 b

o
o
ks

 
!!

S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

h
a
ve

 t
o
 

b
e

p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

d
/r

e
d
u
ce

d
!!

S
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
s 

in
cr

e
a
se

 
!!

S
ta

ff
 f

e
e
l 
th

e
y 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 f

o
r 

cu
ts

 
!!

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 

fr
u
st

ra
te

d
 a

t 
si

tu
a
ti
o
n
 

!!
S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

su
ff
e
r 

fr
o
m

 l
a
ck

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s

!!
P
u
b
lic

 
d
is

sa
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 

w
it
h
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

!!
D

e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
!!

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

R
is

k 
in

cr
e
a
se

d
 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

a
s 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
ff
e
ct

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 

re
ce

ss
io

n
. 

5
3

59



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

1
0
 

C
2
 

C
2
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

ca
p
a
ci

ty
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

1
, 

6
 a

n
d
 

1
0

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
ct

s 
e
ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

 c
o
u
ld

 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 

se
ve

re
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l,
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

se
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

s.
  

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

a
jo

r 
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

!!
P
ro

je
ct

 
o
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

n
o
t 

a
ch

ie
ve

d
 

!!
C
o
st

 o
ve

rr
u
n
s 

!!
D

e
la

y
s 

!!
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

!!
S
a
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
a
n
d
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

d
e
cl

in
e
 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E
xe

cu
ti
v
e
/ 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
S
e
rv

ic
e
s/

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a
re

 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
/D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d

Le
a
rn

in
g
/D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

1
1
 

B
2
 

B
2
 

Li
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

1
0

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
m

a
y 

b
e
 

su
b
je

ct
 t

o
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 s
ta

ff
, 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

, 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
rs

.

S
u
cc

e
ss

fu
l 
a
ct

io
n
 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

a
g
a
in

st
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
re

su
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
co

st
s.

 

!!
Fi

n
a
n
ci

a
l 
im

p
a
ct

 
!!

Fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
n
o
t 

a
ch

ie
ve

d
 

!!
N

e
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
sa

vi
n
g
s 

to
 c

o
ve

r 
u
n
a
n
ti
ci

p
a
te

d
 

co
st

s
!!

D
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

!!
C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

!!
A
d
v
e
rs

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E
xe

cu
ti
v
e
/ 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
S
e
rv

ic
e
s/

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a
re

 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
/D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d

Le
a
rn

in
g
/D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

1
2
 

D
2
 

D
2
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fa
ilu

re
 o

f 
ke

y 
M

e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

A
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f 
k
e
y 

co
n
tr

a
ct

o
r 

to
 

!!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 f

a
ils

 /
 

a
d
ve

rs
e
ly

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E
xe

cu
ti
v
e
/ 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

5
4

60



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

co
n
tr

a
ct

o
r(

s)
 

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

1
0
. 

a
re

 p
ro

vi
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

co
n
tr

a
ct

s 
w

it
h
 

e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
p
ro

vi
d
e
rs

. 
E
co

n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 

in
cr

e
a
se

s 
ri

sk
 o

f 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
r 

fa
ilu

re
. 

P
o
o
r 

co
n
tr

a
ct

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
cr

e
a
se

s 
ri

sk
 t

h
a
t 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

a
re

 n
o
t 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

. 

d
e
liv

e
r.

  
a
ff
e
ct

e
d

!!
P
u
b
lic

 
e
xp

e
ct

a
ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 m

e
t 

!!
A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 

!!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

b
a
ck

 i
n
 h

o
u
se

 
!!

In
cr

e
a
se

d
 c

o
st

s 
!!

E
ff

e
ct

 o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
T
a
x/

re
se

rv
e
s 

!!
C
o
n
tr

a
ct

e
xa

m
in

e
d
 

!!
Le

g
a
l 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

!!
C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
/i

n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

!!
A
d
ve

rs
e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
S
e
rv

ic
e
s/

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a
re

/D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

  
a
n
d
 

Le
a
rn

in
g
/D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
 

1
4
 

A
3
 

A
3
 

In
sp

e
ct

io
n
s 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

7
 a

n
d
 1

0
 

T
im

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
0
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

n
e
w

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
sy

st
e
m

.

P
ro

je
ct

 r
e
so

u
rc

e
s 

d
iv

e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

p
re

p
a
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

!!
D

e
la

y
e
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

so
ft

w
a
re

 
!!

In
sp

e
ct

io
n
 d

o
e
s 

n
o
t 

re
fl
e
ct

 t
ru

e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 

C
h
ie

f 
E
xe

cu
ti
ve

/ 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t,

 
C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

R
e
d
u
ce

d
 r

is
k 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n
 w

e
n
t 

a
h
e
a
d
 w

it
h
 n

o
 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
ys

te
m

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

1
6
 

B
2
 

N
/A

 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 
o
f 

a
ss

e
ts

 
M

e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 

1
0

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
h
a
s 

a
 

la
rg

e
 a

ss
e
t 

b
a
se

 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

. 
 G

iv
e
n
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

re
ss

u
re

s,
 

th
e
re

 i
s 

a
 b

a
ck

lo
g
 i
n
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 
h
ig

h
w

a
ys

/b
u
ild

in
g
s 

to
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 
st

a
n
d
a
rd

 r
e
su

lt
in

g
 

in
 i
n
ju

ry
, 

lo
ss

 o
r 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 t

o
 

!!
S
ta

tu
to

ry
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s 

n
o
t 

m
e
t

!!
In

cr
e
a
se

d
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 c
la

im
s 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
S
e
rv

ic
e
s,

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t,

 
C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 

5
5

61



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 A
B

O
V

E
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 L

E
V

E
L
 

N
o
S
c
o
re

 
S

co
re

 
L
a
st

Q
tr

 

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il

it
y

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 O

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
ce

d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fo
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 

h
ig

h
w

a
ys

. 
  

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y.
 

o
r 

lit
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

!!
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

sa
fe

ty
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 
n
o
t 

m
e
t 

!!
N

e
g
a
ti
ve

 i
m

p
a
ct

 
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
  

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

A
B
3

B
3

Li
m

it
e
d
 

st
a
ff

in
g
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
,2

,3
,4

,5
,

6
, 

a
n
d
 9

. 

T
h
e 

co
u
n
ci

l 
is

 a
 

le
a
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 w
id

e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 

lit
tl
e
 e

xc
e
ss

 
ca

p
a
ci

ty
 o

r 
re

so
u
rc

e
s.

  
 T

h
e
re

 
is

 a
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
cy

 o
n
 k

e
y 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 (
u
su

a
l 

B
FB

C
 d

o
e
s 

n
o
t 

h
a
ve

 e
n
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 

p
e
o
p
le

 
in

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

jo
b
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 

ti
m

e
 

!!
K
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 &

 
e
xp

e
rt

is
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 a

 f
e
w

 
ke

y 
p
e
o
p
le

 
!!

S
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
v
o
lv

ed
 i
n
 t

o
o
 m

u
ch

 
d
a
y 

to
 d

a
y 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

ta
ct

ic
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

!!
S
tr

e
tc

h
e
s 

th
e
 

ca
p
a
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ew
 

ke
y 

p
e
o
p
le

 

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r. 5
6

62



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

su
sp

e
ct

s)
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 

p
o
si

ti
o
n
s.

 S
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
ve

 t
o
 

b
a
la

n
ce

 t
h
e
ir
 

st
ra

te
g
ic

 v
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
ro

le
s.

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 

co
n
ce

rn
s 

a
ro

u
n
d
 

h
a
vi

n
g
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

cr
it
ic

a
l 
sk

ill
s 

e
.g

. 
p
ro

je
ct

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
.

!!
Lo

n
g
 h

o
u
rs

 c
u
lt
u
re

 
co

n
ti
n
u
e
s 

!!
K
e
y 

st
a
ff
 b

u
rn

 o
u
t 

!!
Le

ve
ls

 o
f 

st
re

ss
 a

n
d
 

st
a
ff
 a

b
se

n
te

e
is

m
 

!!
T
h
e 

co
u
n
ci

l 
is

 n
o
t 

‘g
ro

w
in

g
 i
ts

 o
w

n
’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 

!!
S
o
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

st
a
ff
 s

ki
ll 

se
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
 t

h
o
se

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 j
o
b
 

th
e
y 

a
re

 i
n
 

!!
T
a
le

n
te

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
e
e
l 

u
n
d
er

 u
ti
lis

ed
, 

o
r 

fr
u
st

ra
te

d
, 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 

cu
rr

e
n
t 

ro
le

 a
n
d
 

le
a
v
e
 

!!
In

e
rt

ia
 a

n
d
 

re
si

st
a
n
ce

 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

B
C
3

C
3

R
e
a
lis

in
g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 t

o
w

n
 

ce
n
tr

e
re

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
, 

1
1
, 

1
2
 

a
n
d
 1

3
. 

B
R
P
’s

 p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

m
ix

e
d
-u

se
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

re
 i
n
 

a
cc

o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 m

a
st

e
r 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 t

o
w

n
 c

en
tr

e
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 

co
u
n
ci

l 
a
ft

er
 

M
a
xi

m
u
m

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ch
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 

in
v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

re
a
lis

e
d
 o

r 
d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

d

!!
C
h
a
n
g
e
s 

d
o
 n

o
t 

h
a
ve

 d
e
si

re
d
 i
m

p
a
ct

 
!!

V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
ch

a
n
g
e
s 

n
o
t 

se
e
n

!!
S
e
rv

ic
e

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
t 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

!!
V
FM

 q
u
e
st

io
n
e
d
 

S
R
M

G
/A

C
E
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
 

B
R
P
 a

re
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
in

g
 n

e
w

 
m

o
re

 f
le

xi
b
le

 
a
p
p
ro

a
ch

e
s 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

T
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 
P
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

to
 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 t

h
e
 

5
7

63



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

e
xt

e
n
si

ve
co

n
su

lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
0
2
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

ch
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 

e
co

n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 
B
R
P
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

re
-a

ss
e
ss

in
g
 h

o
w

 i
t 

ca
n
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 i
ts

 
p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

!!
P
ro

m
is

e
s 

n
o
t 

m
e
t,

 o
r 

n
o
t 

se
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t 

!!
S
ta

ff
 f

ru
st

ra
ti
o
n
 

!!
Im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 m

o
ra

le
 

!!
A
d
v
e
rs

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 

!!
Im

a
g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
su

ff
e
rs

fl
e
xi

b
ili

ty
 a

re
 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

2
n
d
 a

n
d
 3

rd

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
is

 
ye

a
r.

D
E
4

E
4

In
cr

e
a
si

n
g

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
s

th
ro

u
g
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t

s

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
3
,5

,6
,9

,1
1
,1

2
 

a
n
d
 1

3
. 

T
h
e 

co
u
n
ci

l 
is

 
in

v
o
lv

ed
 i
n
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ke

y 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s 
to

 
d
e
liv

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

g
o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
is

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 e

ve
n
 

m
o
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
h
o
w

 L
o
ca

l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s 

d
e
liv

er
 

b
e
tt

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 a

re
a
. 

A
 k

e
y 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
a
ils

 
to

 d
el

iv
er

. 
U

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s 

w
it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.

!!
Im

p
a
ct

s 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
!!

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

co
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d
.

!!
T
e
n
si

o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

!!
R
e
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

w
it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

b
o
d
ie

s 
d
e
te

ri
o
ra

te
!!

U
n
fo

re
se

e
n

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s 

fa
ll 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

co
u
n
ci

l 
!!

Fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

if
 

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

5
8

64



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s 
p
re

vi
o
u
sl

y 
m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

b
y 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
a
re

 
tr

a
n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

!!
C
la

w
-b

a
ck

 o
f 

g
ra

n
ts

 
!!

D
o
n
’t
 g

e
t 

jo
in

e
d
 u

p
 

a
p
p
ro

a
ch

 t
o
 

a
ch

ie
vi

n
g
 t

h
e
 v

is
io

n
 

fo
r 

th
e 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

!!
Im

p
a
ct

s 
th

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 o

n
 a

 l
o
n
g
-

te
rm

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

!!
Im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 i
f 

fa
il 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

!!
Jo

in
t 

b
ra

n
d
in

g
 

d
ilu

te
s 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

!!
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

 
co

m
p
ro

m
is

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 

m
e
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
rs

 
to

 c
re

a
te

 p
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

E
E
2

E
2

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s,

 a
ct

iv
it
ie

s 
T
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

!!
B
a
d
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
sa

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

5
9

65



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

 
q
u
a
lit

y
 

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
0
.

a
n
d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 

a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 a

re
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y 
a
n
 

e
xt

e
n
si

ve
 e

vi
d
e
n
ce

 
b
a
se

 d
ra

w
in

g
 o

n
 

d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

ct
e
d
 

a
cr

o
ss

 C
o
u
n
ci

l 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

fr
o
m

 p
a
rt

n
er

s.
 T

h
e
 

ro
b
u
st

n
e
ss

 o
f 

th
is

 
d
a
ta

 i
s 

cr
u
ci

a
l 
to

 
e
n
su

ri
n
g
 g

o
o
d
 

d
e
ci

si
o
n
-m

a
ki

n
g
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
ct

o
rs

 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 

je
o
p
a
rd

is
e
 g

o
o
d
-

q
u
a
lit

y 
d
a
ta

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
 t

h
e 

co
m

p
le

xi
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

u
se

d
 t

o
 

o
b
ta

in
 d

a
ta

; 
th

e
 

a
g
e
, 

st
a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
fi
tn

e
ss

-f
o
r-

p
u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e
 

sy
st

e
m

s 
u
se

d
 t

o
 

o
b
ta

in
 d

a
ta

; 
th

e
 

e
xp

e
rt

is
e
 o

f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

in
te

rn
a
lly

 v
ia

 
P
M

R
s 

a
n
d
 

e
xt

e
rn

a
lly

 t
o
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n
 b

o
d
ie

s 
is

 b
a
se

d
 o

n
 p

o
o
r-

q
u
a
lit

y 
d
a
ta

. 

re
so

u
rc

e
 a

llo
ca

ti
o
n
, 

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 

d
et

er
io

ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

se
rv

ic
e
s,

 p
o
o
r 

st
a
ff
 

m
o
ra

le
 a

n
d
 w

a
st

e
d
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s

!!
In

cr
e
a
si

n
g
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

ex
te

rn
a
lly

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
o
u
tt

u
rn

s 
q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t

o
 

ce
n
su

re
, 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 

!!
D

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

la
ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

w
it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

la
ck

 o
f 

a
 s

in
g
le

, 
re

lia
b
le

 e
v
id

e
n
ce

 
b
a
se

 o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
a
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 

!!
In

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
to

 t
a
ke

 f
u
ll 

a
d
va

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
m

e
rg

in
g

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

6
0

66



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

re
le

va
n
t 

st
a
ff

; 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 r

o
b
u
st

n
e
ss

 o
f 

th
ir
d
-p

a
rt

y 
d
a
ta

 
va

lid
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s.

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
e
e
r 

re
vi

e
w

, 
o
r 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
, 

a
re

a
-b

a
se

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
cr

e
a
si

n
g
 

e
m

p
h
a
si

s 
o
n
 l
o
ca

l 
in

n
o
va

ti
o
n
 

F
E
3

E
3

T
h
a
m

e
s 

B
a
si

n
 

H
ea

th
’s

 S
P
A
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

2
,3

 a
n
d
 

4 .

T
h
e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s 

d
e
si

g
n
at

e
d
 t

h
e 

T
h
a
m

e
s 

B
a
si

n
 

H
ea

th
s 

S
p
ec

ia
l 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 A

re
a
 

(S
P
A
) 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

E
C
 B

ir
d
s 

D
ir
e
ct

iv
e
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
co

g
n
is

e
s 

th
e
 

in
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
ce

 o
f 

h
e
a
th

la
n
d
 a

s 
a
 

h
a
b
it
a
t 

fo
r 

e
n
d
a
n
g
e
re

d
 b

ir
d
 

sp
e
ci

e
s.

  
N

a
tu

ra
l 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
s 

a
d
vi

se
d
 t

h
a
t 

n
ew

 

N
e
w

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 

st
ra

te
g
y 

m
a
y 

n
o
t 

sa
ti
sf

y 
re

g
io

n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s.

!!
U

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 n

e
e
d
s 

o
f 
th

e
 

g
ro

w
in

g
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

!!
E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

so
ci

a
l 
n
e
e
d
s 

n
o
t 

m
e
t 

!!
T
a
rg

e
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

n
o
t 

a
ch

ie
ve

d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

!!
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
n
o
t 

a
ch

ie
ve

d
 

!!
P
u
b
lic

 d
is

sa
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
 

!!
D

e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 

S
R
M

G
/ 

E
C
C
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
 

T
h
e
 r

e
vo

ca
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
st

 
P
la

n
 h

a
s 

re
m

o
ve

d
 

a
 l
o
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
ce

 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

h
e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
 c

la
ri
ty

 
w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s 
to

 
a
g
re

e
in

g
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 

T
B
H

S
P
A
. 

 B
FC

 i
s 

st
ill

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

it
s 

a
g
re

e
d
 

st
ra

te
g
y 

a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

T
B
H

 

6
1

67



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

h
o
u
si

n
g
 w

it
h
in

 5
 

ki
lo

m
et

re
s 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
P
A
 m

a
y 

h
ar

m
 t

h
e
 

ra
re

 b
ir
d
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
s.

  
A
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

is
 i
n
 p

la
ce

 b
u
t 

th
is

 
n
e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e 
m

o
d
if
ie

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s.

 

o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

!!
C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

o
n
 

jo
in

t
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
cc

e
ss

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 

m
in

im
is

e
 r

is
k 

o
f 

a
n
y 

le
g
a
l 
a
ct

io
n
.

G
E
2

E
2

M
a
jo

r 
fr

a
u
d
 

o
r 

co
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
0

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

C
o
d
es

 o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
ct

, 
C
o
n
st

it
u
ti
o
n
, 

Fr
a
u
d
 

a
n
d
 C

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 

P
o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 

H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 

g
u
id

a
n
ce

 t
o
 b

o
th

 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

s 
o
f 

b
e
h
a
vi

o
u
r.

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ir
re

g
u
la

ri
ti
e
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 a

ri
se

 
e
a
ch

 y
e
a
r.

 

M
a
jo

r 
fr

a
u
d
 a

n
d
 

co
rr

u
p
ti
o
n

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

ro
m

 
W

h
is

tl
e
 b

lo
w

in
g
, 

d
is

ci
p
lin

a
ry

 o
r 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

 
p
ro

ce
ss

.

!!
C
o
st

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

if
 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 r

ec
o
ve

r 
fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
lo

ss
es

 
a
ri
si

n
g
 f

ro
m

 f
ra

u
d
 o

r 
co

rr
u
p
ti
o
n

!!
S
ta

ff
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

in
 

in
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
n
g
 f

ra
u
d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 c

a
se

s 
!!

R
is

k 
o
f 

ch
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
f 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 

p
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

!!
P
u
b
lic

 d
is

sa
ti
sf

a
ct

io
n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
 

!!
D

e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

!!
C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
 

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

6
2

68



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

a
n
d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

H
E
2

E
2

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

M
a
n
sl

a
u
g
h
te

r 
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
0

N
e
w

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 

e
ff
e
ct

iv
e
 f

ro
m

 1
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 m

e
a
n
s 

th
a
t 

th
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
m

a
y 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

cu
lp

a
b
le

 a
s 

a
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l(

s)
 

a
ri
si

n
g
 f

ro
m

 f
a
ilu

re
 

a
t 

se
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

le
ve

l.
 

S
u
cc

e
ss

fu
l

p
ro

se
cu

ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

ct
 

re
su

lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 
p
u
b
lic

it
y 

o
rd

e
r,

 
u
n
lim

it
ed

 f
in

e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
o
rd

e
r.

!!
Fi

n
a
n
ci

a
l 
im

p
a
ct

 
!!

Fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 n
o
t 

a
ch

ie
ve

d
!!

N
e
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
sa

vi
n
g
s 

to
 c

o
ve

r 
u
n
an

ti
ci

p
a
te

d
 c

o
st

s 
!!

D
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

!!
C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

!!
A
d
v
e
rs

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

K
D

3
D

3
T
re

e
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

/
re

m
e
d
ia

l 
a
ct

io
n

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
0
.

B
ra

ck
n
e
ll 

h
a
s 

a
 

h
ig

h
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

e
e
s.

 S
o
il 

co
m

p
o
si

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

so
m

e
 a

re
a
s 

m
a
ke

s 
th

e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

su
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t

re
e
s 

su
sc

e
p
ti
b
le

 t
o
 

su
b
si

d
e
n
ce

.
C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 m

y 
h
a
ve

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 

su
b
si

d
e
n
ce

. 
In

 

T
re

e
a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 n
o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
ke

n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 t

re
e
s 

n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

R
e
m

e
d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 
n
o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
ke

n
 

to
 a

d
d
re

ss
 t

re
e
s 

re
q
u
ir
in

g
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

/r
e

m
o
va

l.

!!
B
u
d
g
e
t 

is
su

e
s 

w
h
e
re

 
a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

su
b
se

q
u
en

t 
re

m
e
d
ia

l 
a
ct

io
n
 h

a
s 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

 
!!

In
ju

ry
 t

o
 p

u
b
lic

 o
r 

st
a
ff
 f

ro
m

 f
a
lli

n
g
 

tr
e
e
s 

re
su

lt
in

g
 i
n
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 c
la

im
 

!!
D

a
m

a
g
e
 t

o
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
re

su
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 c
la

im
 

!!
Im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 

S
R
M

G
/ 

E
C
C
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

6
3

69



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s 

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

rh
o
d
o
d
e
n
d
ro

n
s 

w
h
ic

h
 s

p
re

a
d
 

S
u
d
d
e
n
 O

a
k 

D
is

e
a
se

.

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 d

ie
 t

o
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 c

a
u
se

d
 b

y 
tr

e
e
s 

to
 p

u
b
lic

, 
st

a
ff

 
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y 

L
E
2

E
2

R
e
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
6
,7

,8
 a

n
d
 

9
..

In
co

n
si

st
e
n
t

re
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
a
p
p
lie

d
 

in
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 b

y
 

co
n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

.

P
re

- 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

ch
e
ck

s 
a
n
d
 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 n
o
t 

a
p
p
lie

d
.

!!
S
ta

ff
/c

o
n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

 
e
m

p
lo

ye
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a
ve

 t
h
e
 n

ec
e
ss

a
ry

 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s 

o
r 

e
xp

e
ri
e
n
ce

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y 
o
u
t 

th
e
ir
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 

ro
le

!!
C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
t 

a
t 

ri
sk

 
if
 p

re
-e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

ch
e
ck

s 
d
o
 n

o
t 

el
im

in
a
te

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 o
f 

q
u
e
st

io
n
a
b
le

ch
a
ra

ct
e
r 

o
r 

b
e
h
a
vi

o
u
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

re
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

.
!!

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
a
ss

e
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 p

u
t 

a
t 

ri
sk

 i
f 

p
re

-
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

ch
e
ck

s 

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

6
4

70



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

d
o
 n

o
t 

e
lim

in
a
te

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 o
f 

q
u
e
st

io
n
a
b
le

ch
a
ra

ct
e
r 

o
r 

b
e
h
a
vi

o
u
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

re
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

.

M
D

3
D

3
K
e
y 

p
e
o
p
le

 
le

a
v
e
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
,2

,3
,4

,5
,

6
, 

a
n
d
 9

. 

T
h
e 

co
u
n
ci

l 
is

 a
 

le
a
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 w
id

e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 

lit
tl
e
 e

xc
e
ss

 
ca

p
a
ci

ty
 o

r 
re

so
u
rc

e
s.

  
A
 l
a
rg

e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

kn
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

e
xp

e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

co
u
n
ci

l 
re

st
s 

w
it
h
 a

 
fe

w
 k

e
y 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

ke
y 

p
o
si

ti
o
n
s.

 

T
h
e 

co
u
n
ci

l 
is

 i
n
 

co
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

st
a
ff
 w

it
h
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
si

m
ila

r 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ke
y 

p
e
rs

o
n
(s

) 
le

a
ve

s 
o
r 

is
 u

n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
fo

r 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 

!!
Lo

ss
 o

f 
sk

ill
s,

 
kn

o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

e
xp

e
ri
e
n
ce

!!
N

o
-o

n
e
 e

ls
e
 i
n
 

co
u
n
ci

l 
h
a
s 

sk
ill

s 
o
r 

ca
p
a
ci

ty
 t

o
 c

o
ve

r 
th

e
 

p
o
st

!!
Im

p
a
ct

 f
e
lt
 a

cr
o
ss

 
w

h
o
le

 c
o
u
n
ci

l 
!!

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

ta
ff
 

u
n
d
e
r 

p
re

ss
u
re

 
!!

A
d
ve

rs
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
f 

st
a
ff
 m

o
ra

le
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 

to
 s

tr
e
ss

, 
in

cr
e
a
se

d
 

a
b
se

n
te

e
is

m
 o

r 
h
ig

h
 

tu
rn

o
ve

r
!!

S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

ff
e
ct

e
d
 

!!
Lo

ss
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 

S
R
M

G
/C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

R
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

T
e
a
m

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

in
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

P
o
lic

y
 l
e
d
 t

o
 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 r

is
k 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y 
a
 

ca
re

fu
lly

m
a
n
a
g
e
d

h
a
n
d
o
ve

r
p
e
ri
o
d
. 6
5

71



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s 

in
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

O
E
3

E
3

FO
I 

re
q
u
e
st

s 
M

e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
0
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

Fr
e
e
d
o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
q
u
e
st

s 
is

 r
is

in
g
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

xi
ty

 
o
f 

re
q
u
e
st

s 
is

 
in

cr
e
a
si

n
g
 p

u
tt

in
g
 

p
re

ss
u
re

 o
n
 s

ta
ff
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
is

 
u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 

re
sp

o
n
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
FO

I 
re

q
u
e
st

s 
o
r 

re
sp

o
n
se

s 
ar

e
 

n
o
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

le
g
a
l 
ti
m

e
 f

ra
m

e
. 

!!
S
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
s 

in
cr

e
a
se

!!
S
ta

ff
 f

e
e
l 
th

e
y 

a
re

 
b
e
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 S

ta
ff
 

a
re

 f
ru

st
ra

te
d
 a

t 
si

tu
a
ti
o
n

!!
S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

su
ff
e
r 

a
s 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
re

 
d
iv

e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
sp

o
n
d
 

to
 F

O
I 

re
q
u
e
st

s 
!!

D
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
ct

 
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 i
f 

re
sp

o
n
se

s 
a
re

 n
o
t 

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
 o

r 
a
re

 
in

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 o
r 

la
te

 
!!

C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
a
u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
  

!!
C
e
n
su

re
 b

y 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
r

S
R
M

G
/ 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

M
R
s 

 

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

Q
E
2

E
2

D
e
ci

si
o
n

m
a
ki

n
g

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
1
0

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
n
an

ci
a
l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a
n
ce

s 
m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
is

  
u
n
w

ill
in

g
 /

 
u
n
a
b
le

  
to

 t
a
ke

 
d
if
fi
cu

lt
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
s 

!!
U

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
ke

 k
e
y 

d
e
ci

si
o
n

!!
S
a
vi

n
g
s 

ca
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

m
a
d
e

S
R
M

G
/ 

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
cu

ti
ve

 
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

–
 c

u
ts

 
in

 P
D

G
 a

n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

6
6

72



!
!

!

R
IS

K
S

 B
E
L
O

W
 T

O
L
E
R

A
N

C
E
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

 

N
o

S
co

re
 

S
co

re
 

L
a
st

 
Q

tr

S
h

o
rt

 n
a
m

e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

M
T
O

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

V
u

ln
e
ra

b
il
it

y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

T
ri

g
g

e
r 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

C
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
0

/
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
m

u
st

 t
a
ke

 
a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
o
m

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 d
if
fi
cu

lt
 

d
e
ci

si
o
n
s,

 a
s 

o
u
tl
in

ed
 p

re
vi

o
u
sl

y 
to

 i
n
sp

e
ct

o
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 t

ig
h
t 

fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
re

g
im

e
. 

 

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
se

 
d
e
ci

si
o
n
s 

w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
n
 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 m
a
y 

b
e
 

a
 r

e
lu

ct
a
n
ce

 t
o
 d

o
 

th
is

. 

!!
S
a
vi

n
g
s 

m
a
d
e
 f

ro
m

 
o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s 

o
r 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e 

b
o
a
rd

 
!!

S
a
la

m
i 
sl

ic
in

g
 o

f 
a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
se

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
s

!!
Im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 f

ro
n
tl
in

e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s

!!
Fu

rt
h
e
r 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

!!
S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a
ff
e
ct

e
d

!!
A
d
ve

rs
e
 e

ff
e
ct

 o
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

!!
C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
ro

m
 

st
a
ke

h
o
ld

e
rs

!!
A
d
v
e
rs

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 

!!
Im

a
g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
ci

l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
d

P
e
o
p
le

 a
d
m

in
 

a
n
d
 r

o
a
d
 s

af
e
ty

 
g
ra

n
ts

 w
e
re

 
h
a
n
d
le

d
 s

w
if
tl
y 

a
n
d
 d

e
ci

si
ve

ly
.

6
7

73



!
!

!

A B C

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

:
A

  
V

e
ry

 H
ig

h
 

B
  

H
ig

h
 

C
  
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
D

  
L
o

w
 

E
  
V

e
ry

 L
o

w
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
D E F

Im
p

a
ct

:
I 

  
C

a
ta

st
ro

p
h

ic
 

2
  
C

ri
ti

ca
l 

3
 M

a
rg

in
a
l 

4
 

3
 

2
 

1
 

IM
P

A
C

T

6
8

74



! ! !

?(("E*9D*C0"#'-,%('6*/,8M*9')-%#8*
*
<)+!&#''#@(0B!%3>'+!,)#@,!3''!%)+!#D+$3%(#03'!$(,9!&31%#$,!'(,%+*!#0!%)+!HIIkaRI!
J+$?(1+!"'30!&#$!K0?($#0A+0%C!./'%/$+!`!.#AA/0(%(+,F!"$#B$+,,!#0!A(%(B3%(#0!#&!
%)+,+!&31%#$,!)3,!D$+?(#/,'4!>++0!$+D#$%+*!@(%)!J+$?(1+!"'30!31%(#0,!30*!(0*(13%#$,!
3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!=/3$%+$'4!*3%3!,+%!@)(1)!(,!3%%31)+*!%#!"2P,F!"3$(,C!%)+!.#/01('n,!0+@!
D+$&#$A301+!A303B+A+0%!,#&%@3$+C!(,!0#%!4+%!1#0&(B/$+*!%#!@#$9!@(%)!$(,9,C!,#!3,!30!
(0%+$(A!A+3,/$+!#D+$3%(#03'!$(,9!&31%#$,!3$+!$+D#$%+*!)+$+C!(0!3!,+D3$3%+!300+OC!(0!
c/3$%+$!hF!
!
/"$* /,8M* +,-,.'-,%(* :=*50K'-"*%(**

0#%.#"88*
:=*
#"2,8"K*
#,8M*

!/WC/WGg*CY1D*?*GCRY*41YG/1*9WG*9C/*G`1*;=BG*41YG_/g*
+GC*=D*J5,6K*'*2,\#'(-*J#')M("66*-%H(*)"(-#"*-I'-*#"8,K"(-8*'#"*0#%5K*%$Z*
RFY!.#AA+$1(3'a!

&(0301(3'!
A3$9+%!
*+%+$(#$3%+,F!

G(0301(3'!A#0(%#$(0B!@(%)!
5P"!3%!A#0%)'4!,%++$(0B!
B$#/DF!

5P"!30*!5G.!@#$9(0B!
#0!3!Q#(0%!&$3A+@#$9!&#$!
*+'(?+$(0B!<#@0!.+0%$+!
@)(1)!$+&'+1%,!1/$$+0%!
A3$9+%!*+A30*!T!
*+?+'#D(0B!<.!$(,9!
$+B(,%+$!%#!(*+0%(&4!
%)$+3%,!%#!,%$3%+B4!3,!
@+!D$#1++*!%#!
(AD'+A+0%3%(#0F!

_#0+F!

RFk!X#,,! #$!
3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!9+4!,%3&&!'#,%!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RFRI!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RFRR!X319! #&!
3?3('3>'+!
&/0*(0B!&$#A!
%)+!7#A+,!
30*!
.#AA/0(%(+,!
LB+014F!

2++%(0B!@(%)!(0?+,%A+0%!
*($+1%#$!#&!7.L!@(%)!3!?(+@!%#!
3B$++(0B!30!(0?+,%A+0%!
D$#%#1#'!(0!%)+!5#$#/B)F!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RFRH!.#0,%$/1%(# 0!
1#,%,!)(B)+$!
%)30!>/*B+%F!

L11/$3%+!,D+1(&(13%(#0C!
D3$%0+$,)(D!@#$9F!

_#!3**(%(#03'!$(,9!%)(,!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

!/WC/WGg*GRCD*!/CG14GWYb*?YN*1Y`?Y4WYb*C_/*1Y^W/CY+1YG*
+GC*;D*k""0*%5#*0'#M83*%0"(*80')"8*'(K*6",85#"*$'),6,-,"8*'))"88,\6"*'(K*'--#')-,2"Z*
HFR!X#,,! #$!

3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

HFH! "#'(%(13'!@(''! E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$! _#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0! _#0+F!

69
75



! ! !

#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

%)+!=/3$%+$F!

+GC*aD*!#%&%-"*858-',('\6"*I%58,(.*'(K*,($#'8-#5)-5#"*K"2"6%0&"(-Z*
bFR!.#AA+$1(3'a!

&(0301(3'!
A3$9+%!
*+%+$(#$3%+,F!

G(0301(3'!A#0(%#$(0B!@(%)!
5P"!3%!A#0%)'4!,%++$(0B!
B$#/DF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

bFH!X#,,! #$!
3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!?31301(+,!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

bFb!X319! #&!
#&&(1+$!
$+,#/$1+!%#!
/0*+$%39+!%)+!
?#'/A+!#&!
'3$B+!)#/,(0B!
D$#Q+1%,!(0!
%)+!4+3$F!

_+@!+03>'(0B!#&&(1+$!
$+1$/(%+*F!P+,#/$1(0B!#&!
(AD$#?+A+0%!D'30!$+?(+@+*!
3B3(0,%!+O(,%(0B!?3130%!D#,%,F

_#!1/$$+0%!?31301(+,F! _#0+F!

bFh!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

bF[!X319! #&!
3?3('3>'+!
&/0*(0B!&#$!
%)+!3&&#$*3>'+!
)#/,(0B!
*+?+'#DA+0%F!

2++%(0B!@(%)!(0?+,%A+0%!
*($+1%#$!#&!7.L!@(%)!3!?(+@!%#!
3B$++(0B!30!(0?+,%A+0%!
D$#%#1#'!(0!%)+!5#$#/B)F!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

bFN!803>('(%4! #&!
8.<!,/DD'(+$,!
%#!A++%!
.#/01('!
%(A+,13'+!&#$!
,4,%+A!
$+D'31+A+0%,
F!

V,(0B!&$3A+@#$9!1#0%$31%F! _#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

bFi!PJX! 30*!
*+?+'#DA+0%!
(0*/,%$4!0#%!
3>'+!%#!
$+,D#0*!%#!
3?3('3>('(%4!#&!
%$30,&+$!
$+1+(D%F!

.#0,/'%3%(#0!@(%)!D3$%0+$,!?(3!
%)+!7#/,(0B!J%$3%+B4F!

<@#!D#%+0%(3'!
#DD#$%/0(%(+,!(*+0%(&(+*F!

_#0+F!

bFY!X319! #&!
D$(?3%+!$+0%+*!
,+1%#$!
D$#D+$%4!#$!
(0%+$+,%!(0!
$+0%(0BF!

K,%3>'(,)!B##*!'(09,!@(%)!
'+%%(0B!3B+0%,!30*!
*+?+'#D+$,F!23(0%3(0!B##*!
$+'3%(#0,!@(%)!*+?+'#D+$,F!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

70
76



! ! !

+GC*PD*k""0*J#')M("66*9%#"8-*)6"'(*'(K*.#""(Z*
hF[!X#,,! #$!

3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!9+4!,%3&&!'#,%!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

hFN!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

!/WC/WGg*G`/11D*!/C+CGWYb*`1?OG`*?YN*?4`W1^1+1YG*
+GC*QD*W&0#%2"*I"'6-I*'(K*H"66*\",(.*H,-I,(*-I"*J%#%5.IZ*
[FH!X#,,! #$!

3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!'#,,!#&!9+4!,%3&&!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

[Fb!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

+GC*eD*B""M*-%*"(85#"*-I'-*"2"#F*#"8,K"(-8*$""68*,()65K"K*'(K*'\6"*-%*'))"88*-I"*
8"#2,)"8*-I"F*(""KZ*
iFRR!"#'(%(13'! @(''!

#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

!/WC/WGg*9C_/D*4/1?G1*?*JC/C_b`*R`1/1*!1C!O1*?/13*?YN*911O3*B?91*
+GC*fD*/"K5)"*)#,&"*'(K*,()#"'8"*0"%06"[8*8"(8"*%$*8'$"-F*,(*-I"*J%#%5.IZ*
YFRR!"#'(%(13'! @(''!

#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

!/WC/WGg*9W^1D*^?O_1*9C/*+CY1g*
+GC*=<D*J"*'))%5(-'\6"*'(K*0#%2,K"*"E)"66"(-*2'65"*$%#*&%("FZ*
RIFRY!X319! #&!

3*+=/3%+!
>+01)A3$9!
*3%3!&#$!
)#/,(0B!
>+0+&(%,F!

m#(0+*!.8"GL!>+01)A3$9!
1'/>F!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RIFRk!X#,,! #$!
3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!9+4!,%3&&!'#,%!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RIFHI!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

!/WC/WGg*BWmD*B_BG?WY*14CYC+W4*!/CB!1/WGg*

71
77



! ! !

+GC*==D*!#%&%-"*-I"*J%#%5.Ii8*")%(%&,)*')-,2,-F*'(K*0%-"(-,'6*
RRFN!X319! #&!

,/(%3>'+!
'#13%(#0,F!

X#13%(#0,!3B$++*!@(%)!%#@0!
1+0%$+!A303B+A+0%F!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RRFi!X#,,! #$!
3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!9+4!,%3&&!'#,%!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RRFY!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

+GC*=aD*O,&,-*-I"*,&0')-*%$*-I"*#")"88,%(*
RbFh!X#,,! #$!

3>,+01+!#&!
9+4!,%3&&!
0++*+*!%#!
*+'(?+$!%)+!
#/%1#A+,F!

\#$9&#$1+!"'30!(0!D'31+!
@)(1)!D$+D3$+,!&#$!90#@0!
'#,,+,F!2#0%)'4!A#0(%#$(0B!#&!
?31301(+,!3%!62<F!c/3$%+$'4!
$+?(+@!#&!,(190+,,!3%!62<F!

_#!9+4!,%3&&!'#,%!(0!%)+!
=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

RbF[!"#'(%(13'! @(''!
#$!
1#AA(%A+0%F!

E##*!D$+D3$3%(#0C!2+A>+$!
>$(+&(0B,!30*!3DD$#D$(3%+!
'#>>4(0BF!E##*!1#0,/'%3%(#0!
30*!&#$@3$*!D'300(0BF!

_#!1)30B+!%#!$(,9!(0!
%)+!=/3$%+$F!

_#0+F!

72
78



! ! !

?(("E*bD*?KK,-,%('6*N"0'#-&"(-'6*!#%.#"88*W($%#&'-,%(*
!
!
1Y^W/CY+1YG*7*!_JOW4*!/CG14GWCY*
!
1&"#."()F*!6'((,(.*7*J58,("88*4%(-,(5,-F*
*
<)+!KA+$B+014!"'300(0B!G$3A+@#$9!@3,!/D*3%+*!30*!$+(,,/+*!(0!m/0+F!!\#$9!
1#0%(0/+,!#0!3!0+@!.#$D#$3%+!J+?+$+!\+3%)+$!"'30F!!!!
!
<)+!G'##*!30*!\3%+$!2303B+A+0%!L1%!$+1+(?+*!P#43'!L,,+0%!*/$(0B!LD$('!HIRI!30*!
#&&(1+$,!)3?+!>++0!A#0(%#$(0B!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!(AD'(13%(#0,F!!2+30@)('+!@#$9(0B!@(%)!%)+!
K0?($#0A+0%!LB+014!*3%3!(,!>+(0B!A3DD+*!3B3(0,%!'#@!'4(0B!3$+3,!#&!%)+!>#$#/B)F!!!!
*
1(2,#%(&"(-'6*`"'6-I*
*
<)+!&#1/,!#&!%)(,!4+3$M,!&##*!,3&+%4!@++9!(0!m/0+!@3,!%#!$3(,+!3@3$+0+,,!3>#/%!
>31%+$(3!13''+*!13AD4'#>31%+$!@)(1)!13/,+,!&##*!>#$0+!(''0+,,F!!<)+$+!3$+!1($13!
[[CIII!$+D#$%+*!13,+,!#&!13AD4'#>31%+$!(0!%)+!VW!(0!HIIY!>/%!A304!A#$+!B#!
/0$+D#$%+*F!<)+!$+3'(,%(1!0/A>+$!(,!1'#,+$!%#!bIICIIIF!!<#!D/%!%)+!(,,/+!(0%#!'#13'!
1#0%+O%!HIY!13,+,!#&!&##*!D#(,#0(0B!@+$+!(0?+,%(B3%+*!'3,%!4+3$!#&!@)(1)!NI!@+$+!
13/,+*!>4!13AD4'#>31%+$F!<)(,!>31%+$(3!(,!&#/0*!(0!$3@!D#/'%$4!30*!$3@!A+3%!30*!
130!3',#!>+!D3,,+*!#0!>4!(0&+1%+*!D+%,!30*!#%)+$!30(A3',F!54!,%#$(0BC!)30*'(0B!30*!
D$+D3$(0B!&##*!1#$$+1%'4!30*!&#''#@(0B!B##*!D+$,#03'!)4B(+0+!$/'+,!,/1)!$(,9,!130!>+!
A(0(A(,+*F!
!
<)+!234#$!D$3(,+*!1)('*$+0!&$#A!31$#,,!%)+!5#$#/B)!&#$!%)+($!(0D/%!*/$(0B!_#(,+!
L1%(#0!@++9!@)+0!)+!D$+,+0%+*!%)+!D$(;+,!&#$!1#AD+%(%(#0!+0%$(+,!#0!bI!LD$('F!<)+!
%)+A+!#&!%)+!@++9!@3,!3>#/%!9++D(0B!*#B,!=/(+%F!!L!0/A>+$!#&!,1)##',!B#%!(0?#'?+*!
(0!3!$30B+!#&!31%(?(%(+,F!!<)+!.#/01('!(0?+,%(B3%+*!YH!0#(,+!1#AD'3(0%,!(0!HIIkURI!#&!
@)(1)!HIZ!@+$+!3>#/%!>3$9(0B!*#B,F!!
!
L!>/,(0+,,A30!@)#!*/AD+*!$/>>(,)!>+)(0*!3!)3($!,3'#0!(0!%)+!.$#,,@34C!5$3190+''!
(0!_#?+A>+$!HIIk!@3,!&(0+*!ji[!30*!#$*+$+*!%#!D34!%)+!.#/01('n,!1#,%,!#&!jR[I!30*!
3!?(1%(A!,/$1)3$B+!#&!jR[!3&%+$!D'+3*(0B!B/('%4!%#!%)+!#&&+01+F!!HR[!$+D#$%,!@+$+!
(0?+,%(B3%+*!(0!HIIkURI!30*!%)(,!$+,/'%+*!(0!%)+!(,,/(0B!#&!HI!&(O+*!D+03'%4!0#%(1+,C![!
,(AD'+!13/%(#0,!&#$!&'4%(DD(0B!30*!H!D$#,+1/%(#0,F!G'4%(DD(0B!30*!*/AD+*!$/>>(,)!
(01(*+0%,!)3?+!*+1'(0+*!>4!bIZ!,(01+!LD$('!HIIkF!!!
!
80!%)+!'3,%!@++9!#&!m/0+!#&&(1+$,!@#$9+*!@(%)!%)+!"#'(1+!30*!1)+19+*!3!0/A>+$!#&!
%$3*+!?+)(1'+,!D3,,(0B!%)$#/B)!%)+!5#$#/B)!%#!+0,/$+!%)3%!%)+4!)3*!3!\3,%+!.3$$(+$,!
X(1+01+!@)+0!$+=/($+*F!!<)+!$+,/'%,!@+$+!?+$4!+01#/$3B(0BC!3''!%)#,+!@)#!0++*!,/1)!
3!'(1+01+!)3*!%)+AF!!<)+!(0(%(3%(?+!@3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!@#$9!%#!1'3AD!*#@0!#0!&'4!%(DD+$,F!!
<)+4!3',#!3%%+0*+*!%)+!f73?+!4#/$!,34!3%!)#A+!+?+0(0B,g!(0!3$+3,!@)(1)!$+1#$*+*!
%)+!)(B)+,%!0/A>+$!#&!$+D#$%,!#&!30%(,#1(3'!>+)3?(#/$F!<)+!(*+3!(,!&#$!,%3&&!%#!>+!
3?3('3>'+!%#!)+'D!@(%)!D$#>'+A,!30*!B(?+!#/%!(0&#$A3%(#0!%#!%)+!D/>'(1F!J%3&&!$+D#$%+*!
$+1+(?(0B!3!'#@!'+?+'!#&!$+'+?301+!%#!%)+!+0?($#0A+0%3'!)+3'%)!&/01%(#0F!!!
!
"$#B$+,,!)3,!$+B/'3$'4!>++0!$+D#$%+*!?(3!%)+!"2P!#0!%)+!3($!=/3'(%4!@#$9!>+(0B!*#0+F!!
<)+!'#13'!3($!=/3'(%4!A303B+A+0%!D$#1+,,!(,!A/'%(U,%3B+*!30*!,(01+!HIIb!5G.!)3,!
1#01'/*+*!3%!+31)!,%3B+!%)3%!3($!=/3'(%4!#>Q+1%(?+,!@#/'*!>+!A+%!&#$!13$>#0!
A#0#O(*+C!>+0;+0+C!>/%3*(+0+C!'+3*C!,/'D)/$!*(#O(*+!30*!D3$%(1/'3%+!A3%%+$F!<)+!
.#/01('n,!,1$++0(0B!3,,+,,A+0%!#&!HIIk!$+D#$%+*!+O1++*+01+,!#&!%)+!,%30*3$*,!&#$!
0(%$#B+0!*(#O(*+!d_^He!30*!%)+!.#/01('!@3,!$+=/($+*!>4!6+&$3!%#!/0*+$%39+!3!

73
79



! ! !

*+%3('+*!3,,+,,A+0%!#&!53B,)#%!P#3*a6#@0,)($+!\34!30*!5$3190+''!P#3*C!
.$#@%)#$0+F!!<)+!$+?(+@!)3,!1#01'/*+*!%)3%!3($!=/3'(%4!,%30*3$*,!3$+!&3''(0B!3'#0B!
D3$%,!#&!%)+!53B,)#%!P#3*a6#@0,)($+!\34!30*!&/$%)+$!A#0(%#$(0B!,)#/'*!>+!
/0*+$%39+0!3%!5$3190+''!P#3*C!.$#@%)#$0+F!!<)+!(AD'(13%(#0,!#&!%)(,!3$+!,%(''!>+(0B!
1#0,(*+$+*!30*!(%!(,!D#,,(>'+!%)3%!%)+$+!@(''!>+!3!$+=/($+A+0%!%#!*+1'3$+!30!L($!c/3'(%4!
2303B+A+0%!L$+3!3%!,#A+!%(A+!(0!%)+!&/%/$+F!!\+!3$+!3@3(%(0B!&/$%)+$!*($+1%(#0!&$#A!
6+&$3F!!6/$(0B!%)(,!,3A+!D+$(#*!30*!&#''#@(0B!3!%+0*+$(0B!D$#1+,,!3!b!4+3$!1#0%$31%!
+0*(0B!(0!LD$('!HIRb!@3,!3@3$*+*!%#!%)+!<$30,D#$%!P+,+3$1)!X3>#$3%#$4!&#$!%)+!
A3(0%+0301+!30*!$3%(&(13%(#0!#&!*3%3!&$#A!%)+!.#/01('n,!%@#!1#0%(0/#/,!3($!=/3'(%4!
,%3%(#0,F!
!
L',#!D3$%!#&!%)+!$+B/'3$!/D*3%+!%)$#/B)!%)+!"2P!@#$9!1#0%(0/+,!(0!$+,D+1%!#&!
1#0%3A(03%+*!'30*F!!<)$++!&#$A+$!'30*&(''!,(%+,!(0!\3$&(+'*!@+$+!(*+0%(&(+*!3,!)(B)!
D$(#$(%4!>+13/,+!#&!D3,%!/,+C!)(B)!*+0,(%4!$+,(*+0%(3'!D$#D+$%(+,!30*!3!0+3$>4!0/$,+$4F!!
P+,+3$1)!)3,!,(01+!1#0&($A+*!%)3%!,/&&(1(+0%!B3,!D$#%+1%(#0!A+3,/$+,!@+$+!D/%!(0!
D'31+!3,!D3$%!#&!3!J+1%(#0!RIN!3B$++A+0%!@)+0!%)+!,(%+!@3,!&(''+*F!!80!3**(%(#0C!@(%)!
%)+!D3,,3B+!#&!%(A+!%)+!$(,9!#&!304!,(B0(&(130%!'+?+'!#&!+A(,,(#0,!)3?+!&3''+0!%#!3!'+?+'!
@)+$+!%)+$+!(,!0#!13/,+!&#$!1#01+$0F!!<)+!,(%+,!)3?+!%)+$+&#$+!>++0!*++A+*!3,!0#%!
D$+,+0%(0B!304!&/$%)+$!$(,9!'(9+'4!%#!B(?+!$(,+!%#!30!3*?+$,+!(AD31%!%#!304!'#13'!
$+,(*+0%F!!
!
1(2,#%(&"(-'6*B"#2,)"8*
*
K0)301+A+0%,!%#!$+141'(0B!,(%+,!)3?+!>++0!1#0%(0/(0B!@(%)!$+,/$&31(0B!3%!c/+'A!
"3$9!dX3$9,!7(''e!,(%+!30*!^39A+*+!"'31+C!5(0&(+'*F!!L!D'30%+$!)3,!>++0!(0,%3''+*!3%!
5($1)!7(''!$+141'(0B!,(%+!%#!$+*/1+!,D31+!@)+$+!&'4!%(DD(0B!)3,!>++0!#11/$$(0B!30*!%)(,!
)3,!>++0!D'30%+*!/D!30*!@(''!>+!A3(0%3(0+*!>4!%)+!f5+3?+$,g!@)#!)3?+!%)+($!A++%(0B!
D'31+!>+)(0*!%)+!,(%+F!
!
L!0/A>+$!#&!D$#A#%(#03'!+?+0%,!)3?+!>++0!)+'*!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$!@)(1)!(01'/*+,!3!P+3'!
_3DD4!.3AD3(B0!$#3*!,)#@!30*!3!@++9+0*!f5+!E$++0r!+?+0%!3%!%)+!X##9!^/%F!!L!
,A3''!3A#/0%!#&!%)+!@3,%+!D+$&#$A301+!+&&(1(+014!B$30%!)3,!>++0!3''#13%+*!&#$!
+=/(DA+0%!&#$!%)+!$+141'(0B!3,D+1%!#&!%)+!fX##9!^/%!#0!%)+!P#3*g!D$#Q+1%!@)(1)!B#+,!
#/%!%#!,1)##',!%#!%+31)!@3,%+!A(0(A(,3%(#0!&#$!9+4!,%3B+!R!D/D(',F!<)+!$+141'(0B!%+3A!
3%%+0*+*!%@#!#%)+$!+?+0%,!(0!%)+!<#@0!.+0%$+!(0!m/0+!@(%)!$+b!%#!D$#A#%+!)#A+!
1#AD#,%(0BC!B3$*+0!@3,%+!1#''+1%(#0!30*!%)+!$+b!fL$+!4#/!*#(0B!(%!$(B)%g!3@3$+0+,,!
13AD3(B0!%#!+0,/$+!$+,(*+0%,!90#@!+O31%'4!@)3%!%)+4!130!$+141'+F!
!
L!B$+3%!*+3'!#&!@#$9!)3,!>++0!B#(0B!#0!%#!D$+D3$+!%)+!1#0%$31%!,D+1(&(13%(#0!&#$!%)+!
@3,%+!1#''+1%(#0!$+U%+0*+$(0B!30*![!!1#AD30(+,!)3?+!>++0!3*?(,+*!%)3%!%)+4!@(''!>+!
(0?(%+*!%#!%+0*+$!&#''#@(0B!%)+!D$+!=/3'(&(13%(#0!=/+,%(#003($+!3,,+,,A+0%F!
!
<)+$+!@3,!30!(,,/+!@(%)!%)+!D$(0%(0B!#&!%)+!$+141'(0B!13'+0*3$,!&#$!K3,%+$!30*!
,/AA+$!>309!)#'(*34,!@(%)!3!,'#@!%/$0U3$#/0*!&$#A!%)+!D$(0%+$,!@)(1)!A+30%!,#A+!
13'+0*3$,!@+$+!*+'(?+$+*!'3%+!30*!,#A+!$+,(*+0%,!&3('+*!%#!D$+,+0%!%)+($!>(0,!#0!%)+!
1#$$+1%!*34F!J8<L!@+$+!?+$4!)+'D&/'!30*!$+%/$0+*!%#!+AD%4!304!$+D#$%+*!A(,,+*!>(0,F!
L'%)#/B)!%)(,!@3,!%)+!&($,%!%(A+!%)+$+!)3*!>++0!3!D$#>'+A!30*!D'+0%4!#&!0#%(1+!(,!
3'@34,!B(?+0!%#!%)+!"$(0%!P##AC!(%!)3,!>++0!*+1(*+*!%)3%!%)+!*$3&%!#&!%)+!13'+0*3$!@(''!
>+!D3,,+*!%#!%)+A!+?+0!+3$'(+$!(0!&/%/$+!%#!+0,/$+!%)+$+!(,!0#!$(,9!#&!*+'34,!30*!
$+,(*+0%,!3$+!&/''4!3@3$+!#&!304!1)30B+,!*/+!%#!>309!)#'(*34,F!
!
L0#%)+$!@3,%+!303'4,(,!/0*+$%39+0!(0!234!)3,!(0*(13%+*!%)3%!&##*!@3,%+!A39+,!/D!
b[Z!#&!%)+!@+(B)%!#&!$+,(*/3'!@3,%+!(0!%)+!B$++0!'30*&(''!>(0,F!!7#@+?+$C!h[Z!#&!%)3%!
@3,%+!1#/'*!>+!1#AD#,%+*!/,(0B!3!)#A+!1#AD#,%+$F!!<)(,!303'4,(,!3',#!1#0&($A+*!
%)3%!bhZ!#&!)#/,+)#'*,!3$+!D3$%(1(D3%(0B!(0!B3$*+0!@3,%+!1#''+1%(#0,!U!30!(01$+3,+!#&!

74
80



! ! !

RkZ!&$#A!%)+!D$+?(#/,!303'4,(,!@)(1)!@3,!(0!_#?+A>+$!IkF!<)(,!303'4,(,!1#0&($A+*!
%)3%!#0+!13%+B#$4!#&!)#/,+)#'*!1'3,,(&(+*!3,!L1#$0!E$#/D!b!30*!*+,1$(>+*!3,!
S1#A&#$%3>'4!#&&M!A34!$+=/($+!)+'D!%#!/0*+$,%30*!@)3%!130!30*!1300#%!>+!$+141'+*F!!
<)+4!3DD+3$!%#!>+!%)+!D##$+,%!D+$&#$A+$,!@)+0!(%!1#A+,!%#!A303B+A+0%!#&!%)+($!
@3,%+!%#!A3O(A(,+!$+141'(0B!30*!A(0(A(,+!'30*&(''F!!<)+!,/$?+4!(0&#$A3%(#0!@(''!)+'D!
%)+!$+141'(0B!%+3A!%#!%3$B+%!3$+3,!&#$!(AD$#?+A+0%!30*!D$#A#%+!)#A+!1#AD#,%(0BF!
!
o+3$!+0*!$+,/'%,!&#$!@3,%+!30*!$+141'(0B!3$+!,%(''!%#!>+!?+$(&(+*!>4!6KGPLF!!^?+$3''!
@3,%+!)3,!$+*/1+*!>/%!@(%)!(%!%)+!3A#/0%!$+141'+*!)3,!3',#!$+*/1+*!%#!biZ!U!%)+,+!
$+*/1%(#0,!&#''#@!3!03%(#03'!%$+0*F!6/+!%#!*+'34!@(%)!%)+!&/''!#D+0(0B!#&!%)+!K0+$B4!
&$#A!\3,%+!"'30%!%)+!D+$1+0%3B+!'30*&(''+*!@3,!0#%!#0!%3$B+%!>/%!30!+O1+''+0%!$+,/'%!
@3,!31)(+?+*!@(%)!Q/,%!#?+$!h[Z!#&!@3,%+!0#@!>+(0B!'30*&(''+*!)3?(0B!$+*/1+*!&$#A!
NIZ!%@#!4+3$,!3B#F!
!
5#%)!_3D(+$!P#3*!30*!5($1)!7(''!"/>'(1!.#0?+0(+01+,!)3?+!)3*!(0%+$03'!
$+&/$>(,)A+0%!(01'/*(0B!0+@!03DD4!1)30B(0B!/0(%,!@(%)!,#A+!13$%##0!@3''!%('+,F!!_+@!
+O%+$03'!*##$,!3$+!,)#$%'4!%#!>+!(0,%3''+*!%#!&(0(,)!#&&!%)+!$+&/$>(,)A+0%!3%!%)+,+!%@#!
,(%+,F!
!
J%$++%!.'+30,(0B!,%3&&!30*!A303B+A+0%!&$#A!P(0B@34!)3?+!>++0!/0*+$%39(0B!@#$9!
(0!%)+($!#@0!%(A+!%#!D$#?(*+!3!1#AD'+%+!fA39+#?+$g!#&!%)+!B3$*+0,!3%!\34A+3*!634!
.+0%$+!30*!)3?+!,D#0,#$+*!%)+!D$#?(,(#0!#&!$3(,+*!>+*,!30*!0+@!D3%),!%#!3''#@!
@)++'1)3($!311+,,!%#!%)+AF!7#A+>3,+!)3?+!D$#?(*+*!D'30%,!30*!%)+!D$#Q+1%!(,!3!
&+3%/$+!(0!%)+!5$3190+''!(0!5'##A!+0%$4!30*!Q/*B+,!%#/$!%)(,!4+3$F!
*
"$+D3$3%(#0,!&#$!5$3190+''!(0!5'##A!*(?+$%+*!,%3&&!&$#A!#%)+$!,1)+*/'+*!@#$9!>/%!%)+4!
1#D+*!B+0+$3''4!@+''!#?+$3''!D3$%(1/'3$'4!@(%)!%)+!*$4!,D+''!#&!@+3%)+$F!<)$++!fG/%/$+!
m#>,g!,1)+A+!+AD'#4++,!)3?+!3',#!>++0!%39+0!#0!3,!'30*,13D+!B3$*+0+$,!&#$!,(O!
A#0%),!%#!)+'D!%)+A!%#!B3(0!@#$9!+OD+$(+01+!30*!%$3(0(0B!30*!%)+4!(0!%/$0!3$+!
)+'D(0B!%#!3,,(,%!@(%)!%)+!(01$+3,+*!,+3,#03'!@#$9'#3*F!!
!
`,.IH'F8*?88"-*+'('."&"(-*
*
<)+!D$#D#,+*!)(B)@34!A3(0%+0301+!13D(%3'!@#$9,!D$#B$3AA+!@3,!1#AD'+%+'4!
$+?(,+*!%#!%39+!311#/0%!#&!%)+!*3A3B+!13/,+*!%#!%)+!0+%@#$9!*/$(0B!%)+!'3,%!@(0%+$!
,+3,#0F!!J(%+!@#$9,!D$#B$3AA(0B!)3,!D$#?+*!D3$%(1/'3$'4!1#AD'+O!%)(,!4+3$!+0,/$(0B!
#/$!@#$9,!*#!0#%!1#0&'(1%!@(%)!#$!1#0%$(>/%+!%#!*+'34,!13/,+*!>4!#%)+$!31%(?(%(+,!#0!%)+!
0+%@#$9F!!"$#B$+,,!%#!*3%+!)3,!>++0!D$#A(,(0B!30*!,+?+$3'!,%$++%,!)3?+!>++0!$+U
,/$&31+*!3'$+3*4C!(01'/*(0B!%@#!,%$3%+B(13''4!(AD#$%30%!,(%+,!#0!%)+!LbHk!d<@(0!
5$(*B+,!$#/0*3>#/%!30*!6#013,%'+!P#3*!$#/0*3>#/%C!>#%)!$+U,/$&31+*!3%!0(B)%!%#!
$+*/1+!%$3&&(1!*+'34,eF!
!
<)+!$+1+0%!$+%($+A+0%!#&!%)+!B$#/DM,!J+0(#$!7(B)@34!80,D+1%#$!)3,!0+1+,,(%3%+*!
,+1#0*A+0%!#&!30!L,,(,%30%!K0B(0++$!&$#A!@(%)(0!%)+!B$#/D!%#!&(''!%)+!B3D!&#$!%)+!%(A+!
>+(0BF!<)(,!+0,/$+,!%)+!1#0%(0/(0B!&/'&('A+0%!#&!%)+!$#/%(0+!)(B)@34!,3&+%4!
(0,D+1%(#0,!+,,+0%(3'!%#!D$#%+1%!%)+!.#/01('M,!D/>'(1!'(3>('(%4!30*!A++%!#/$!,%3%/%#$4!
#>'(B3%(#0,!%#!A3(0%3(0!%)+!0+%@#$9!(0!3!,3&+!1#0*(%(#0F!!!
!
<+0*+$,!)3?+!>++0!$+1+(?+*!&#$!%)+!0+@!)(B)@34!>$(*B+,!30*!,%$/1%/$+,!
1#0,/'%3014F!!<)+,+!)3?+!>++0!303'4,+*!30*!3!$+1#AA+0*3%(#0!A3*+!%#!%)+!
KO+1/%(?+!2+A>+$!$+B3$*(0B!3DD#(0%A+0%!#&!%)+!0+@!1#AD304F!!L''!)(B)@34!
1#0,/'%3014!@#$9!)3,!0#@!>++0!,/>Q+1%+*!%#!3!&/''!KV!D$#1/$+A+0%!D$#1+,,!30*!3,!3!
$+,/'%!@+!0#@!)3?+![!0+@!1#0%$31%,F!
!

75
81



! ! !

"$+?(#/,!D$#Q+1%,!%#!(AD$#?+!#/$!)(B)@34,!3,,+%!(0?+0%#$4!3$+!D$#?(0B!+O%$+A+'4!
>+0+&(1(3'!(0!#/$!13'1/'3%(#0,!#&!%)+!)(B)@34!0+%@#$9!3,,+%!?3'/3%(#0!%#!1#0%$(>/%+!%#!
%)+!\)#'+!#&!E#?+$0A+0%!L11#/0%,!0#@!$+=/($+*!>4!72!<$+3,/$4F!!80(%(3'!@#$9!D/%,!
%)+!?3'/+!#&!%)+!)(B)@34!0+%@#$9!3%!1($13!jNR[AF!
!
C0"#'-,%('6*B500%#-**
*
<)+!0+@!1#0%$31%!3$$30B+A+0%!&#$!,%$34!*#B,!(,!@#$9(0B!@+''!3'%)#/B)!%)+!0/A>+$!#&!
*#B,!'#,%!30*!&#/0*!)3,!(01$+3,+*!,(B0(&(130%'4!#?+$!%)+!,3A+!D+$(#*!'3,%!4+3$F!!<)(,!
)3,!1$+3%+*!3!D$+,,/$+!#0!,%3&&!30*!>/*B+%,F!!\+!3$+!'##9(0B!%#!$+?(+@!%)+!1#0%$31%!
@(%)!3!?(+@!%#!A39(0B!,3?(0B,!(&!@+!130F!!6/$(0B!%)+!&($,%!=/3$%+$!A/1)!@#$9!)3,!>++0!
*#0+!%#!D$+D3$+!&#$!%)+!)30*#?+$!#&!%)+!3*A(0(,%$3%(?+!3$$30B+A+0%,!@(%)!$+B3$*!%#!
%)+!0+@!1#0%$31%!(0!$+,D+1%!#&!13$!D3$9!A303B+A+0%F!!\(%)!%)+!(AD+0*(0B!$+A#?3'!#&!
#0+!X+9%$(+?+$!A/1)!31)(+?(0B!30*!1/''(0B!#&!D3D+$!&('+,!)3,!3',#!>++0!/0*+$%39+0F!
<)(,!@(''!>+1#A+!3!1#0%(0/(0B!D$#1+,,!%#!+0,/$+!#D%(A/A!/,+!#&!3?3('3>'+!,D31+!3,!
@+''!3,!)+'D(0B!&/$%)+$!$+*/1+!$/00(0B!1#,%,F!!!
!
G#'K,(.*B-'(K'#K8*
*
<)+!<$3*(0B!J%30*3$*,!%+3A!)3,!>++0!>/,4!#?+$!%)+!'3,%!b!A#0%),F!!<)+!A#$+!
,(B0(&(130%!A3%%+$,!%#!A+0%(#0!(01'/*+-!
!
m#(0%!@#$9!@(%)!<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(14!%#!%3$B+%!$#B/+!%$3*+$,!@)#!13''!3%!%)+!*##$,%+D!
30*!%3$B+%!%)+!+'*+$'4!30*!?/'0+$3>'+!(0!#/$!1#AA/0(%4F!!^&&(1+$,!311#AD30(+*!
<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+!#&&(1+$,!(0!3!*34!#&!31%(#0!'##9(0B!3%!%$3*+$,!@#$9(0B!3%!)#A+,F!!
<)+!#DD#$%/0(%4!@3,!%39+0!%#!/D*3%+!,A3''!>/,(0+,,+,!#0!$+1+0%!1)30B+,!%#!
1#0,/A+$!30*!@3,%+!*(,D#,3'!'+B(,'3%(#0!30*!$+3,,/$+!$+,(*+0%,!#0!%)+!=/3'(%4!#&!%)+!
@#$9!%)+4!@+$+!)3?(0B!/0*+$%39+0F!!5#%)!$+,(*+0%,!30*!'#13'!>/,(0+,,+,!@+$+!
3*?(,+*!#0!%)+!A+$(%,!#&!%)+!.#/01('!%$3*+$!3DD$#?3'!,1)+A+!n5/4!@(%)!.#0&(*+01+n!
30*!@+!)3?+!,++0!30!/D%/$0!(0!3DD'(13%(#0,!&#$!$+B(,%$3%(#0F!!_#!,(B0(&(130%!>$+31)+,!
#&!%)+!'3@!@+$+!/01#?+$+*F!!!
!
8%!@3,!*(,3DD#(0%(0B!%#!&(0*!3!$+%3('+$!@(%)!(0!+O1+,,!#&!RII!&##*!(%+A,!#0!,3'+!@)(1)!
@+$+!#/%,(*+!%)+($!f/,+!>4g!*3%+!>4!#?+$!H!@++9,F!!<)+!,3'+!#&!&##*!>+4#0*!V,+!54!
*3%+,!(,!3!,+$(#/,!A3%%+$!>+13/,+!#&!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!'(09!%#!&##*!D#(,#0(0BF!!V,+!>4!
*3%+,!3$+!D/%!#0!)(B)!$(,9!&##*,F!!<)+!A3%%+$!(,!D$+,+0%'4!>+(0B!(0?+,%(B3%+*F!
!
G#''#@(0B!30!(0?+,%(B3%(#0!3!'#13'!1#AD304!@3,!&#/0*!%#!>+!#&&+$(0B!1$+*(%!'#30,!%)+!
%+$A,!#&!@)(1)!@+$+!(0!1#0%$3?+0%(#0!#&!%)+!.#0,/A+$!.$+*(%!L1%!30*!%)+!.#0,/A+$!
"$#%+1%(#0!&$#A!V0&3($!<$3*(0B!P+B/'3%(#0,F!!8%!@3,!3B$++*!>4!%)+!1#AD304!%)3%!%)+4!
@#/'*!1)30B+!%)+($!%$3*(0B!A+%)#*,!30*!%)+4!)3?+!,(B0+*!30!/0*+$%39(0B!%#!%)3%!
+&&+1%!/0*+$!%)+!K0%+$D$(,+!L1%!HIIHF!!L04!>$+31)!#&!%)3%!/0*+$%39(0B!@(''!$+,/'%!(0!
'+B3'!D$#1++*(0B,F!!!
!
L!,13A!@3,!+OD#,+*!(0?#'?(0B!'#13'!$+,(*+0%,!@)+$+!3!'#13'!D3D+$!3*?+$%!(0?(%+*!
D+#D'+!%#!3DD'4!%#!*#!A4,%+$4!,)#DD(0B!30*!$+1+(?+!D34A+0%F!!80!&31%!%)+!$+,(*+0%,!
@+$+!>+(0B!1#00+*!(0%#!D3$%(0B!@(%)!'3$B+!,/A,!#&!%)+($!#@0!A#0+4!%#!3!&$3/*,%+$!
#/%,(*+!#&!%)+!VWF!!^&&(1+$,!3$+!1#0%(0/(0B!%#!(0?+,%(B3%+!%)+!A3%%+$!30*!3DD+3$+*!(0!
3!<:!&('A(0B!&#$!55.M,!f<)+!^0+!J)#@g!%#!D/>'(1(,+!%)+!&$3/*F!!<)+!,)#@!(,!*/+!%#!>+!
$+'+3,+*!#0!HH0*!m/'4F!!!
!
.#AD'3(0%,!&$#A!$+,(*+0%,!@)(1)!)3?+!,)#@0!3!bIZ!(01$+3,+!#?+$!%)+!,3A+!D+$(#*!
'3,%!4+3$F!!L**(%(#03''4!#&&(1+$,!)3?+!(0%+$?+0+*!%#!3,,(,%!$+,(*+0%,!(0!$+,#'?(0B!%)+($!
1#AD'3(0%,!30*!)3?+!3',#!)+'D+*!%)+A!%#!$+1#?+$!#?+$!jkCIII!,#!&3$F!!<)(,!(01'/*+,!

76
82



! ! !

A3%%+$,!,/1)!3,!3!*+>%!&#$!jhCIII!@$(%%+0!#&&C!1#AD+0,3%(#0!&#$!*3A3B+!%#!D$#D+$%4!
30*!$+D'31+A+0%!#$!$+&/0*,!#0!?3$(#/,!B##*,!30*!,+$?(1+,F!
!
^&&(1+$,!)3?+!3',#!@#$9+*!@(%)!<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+!'##9(0B!3%!%)+!,3&+%4!30*!@+(B)%!
#&!B##*,!?+)(1'+,!/,(0B!$#3*,!(0!5$3190+''!G#$+,%F!!<@#!#D+$3%(#0,!@+$+!13$$(+*!#/%!
30*!R[!?+)(1'+,!,%#DD+*F!!^&!%)+,+C!Y!@+$+!(,,/+*!@(%)!&(O+*!D+03'%4!%(19+%,!30*!H!
@+$+!D$#)(>(%+*!&#$!+O1++*(0B!%)+!A3O(A/A!@+(B)%!'(A(%!&#$!%)+!?+)(1'+F!!<)+!@+(B)%!
'(A(%,!@+$+!+O1++*+*!>4!>+%@++0!NZ!30*!R[ZF!!\+(B)%!'(A(%,!3$+!3DD'(+*!%#!?+)(1'+,!
30*!$+'3%+!%#!%)+!,D+1(&(13%(#0!#&!%)+!>$39(0BC!,/,D+0,(#0!30*!,%++$(0B!#&!%)+!?+)(1'+F!!
8&!3!?+)(1'+!+O1++*,!%)#,+!'(A(%,!%)+0!%)+!,%++$(0BC!>$39(0B!30*!,/,D+0,(#0!@(''!>+!
3*?+$,+'4!3&&+1%+*!30*!%)(,!130!$+,/'%!(0!'#,,!#&!1#0%$#'!#&!%)+!?+)(1'+!30*!%)$+3%+0!%)+!
'(?+,!#&!#%)+$!$#3*!/,+$,!30*!D+*+,%$(30,F!
!
O,)"(8,(.*
*
<)+!&($,%!=/3$%+$!#&!%)+!4+3$!(01'/*+,!P#43'!L,1#%!@)(1)!(,!3'@34,!3!>/,4!%(A+!&#$!
#&&(1+$,!3,!%)+4!3,,(,%!1#''+3B/+,!(0!%)+!P#43'!5#$#/B)!#&!\(0*,#$!30*!23(*+0)+3*!
%#!A#0(%#$!30*!1#0%$#'!%)+!)/B+!0/A>+$,!#&!?(,(%,!%#!30*!&$#A!%)+!?+0/+C!>4!?+)(1'+,!
/,+*!&#$!)($+!30*!$+@3$*!D/$D#,+,F!!8%!(,!D'+3,(0B!%#!$+D#$%!%)3%!*/+!%#!%)+!+&&#$%,!#&!
'(1+0,(0B!#&&(1+$,!31$#,,!5+$9,)($+!30*!%)+!<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+C!%)+!A#?+A+0%!#&!
D+#D'+!30*!?+)(1'+,!(0%#!30*!#/%!#&!%)+!+?+0%!@3,!A/1)!(AD$#?+*!#?+$!D$+?(#/,!
4+3$,F!!^0+!/0'(1+0,+*!?+)(1'+!30*!*$(?+$!&$#A!5$3190+''!@3,!&#/0*!30*!%)+!A3%%+$!(,!
>+(0B!(0?+,%(B3%+*F!
!
<)+!X(1+0,(0B!"#'(14!/0*+$!%)+!X(1+0,(0B!L1%!HIIb!0++*,!%#!>+!$+?(+@+*!30*!
$+D/>'(,)+*!>4!m30/3$4!HIRRF!!<)+!D$#1+,,!#&!1#0,/'%3%(#0!)3,!,%3$%+*!30*!@(''!
1#0%(0/+!(0%#!%)+!0+O%!=/3$%+$F!
!
<)+!,/AA+$!D+$(#*!,3@!(01$+3,+*!0/A>+$,!#&!1#AD'3(0%,!(0!$+'3%(#0!%#!%)+!0#(,+!#&!
%)+!1)(A+,!#0!(1+U1$+3A!?+)(1'+,F!!^&&(1+$,!)3?+!$+A(0*+*!#/$!'(1+0,+*!(1+U1$+3A!
?+0*#$,!#&!%)+($!#>'(B3%(#0,!30*!%)3%!,)#/'*!&/$%)+$!Q/,%(&(+*!1#AD'3(0%,!>+!$+1+(?+*C!
31%(#0!A34!>+!%39+0!%#!$+?(+@!%)+!,%$++%!%$3*(0B!1#0,+0%,F!
!
<)+!'(1+0,(0B!%+3A!3',#!13$$(+*!#/%!Q#(0%!@#$9!@(%)!%)+!"#'(1+!30*!#%)+$!'#13'!
L/%)#$(%(+,!3%!7+3%)$#@!L($D#$%F!!<)+!3($D#$%!(,!3!>/,4!1#''+1%(#0!30*!*$#D!D#(0%!&#$!
D$(?3%+!)($+!?+)(1'+,!30*!%3O(,!30*!?+)(1'+,!&$#A!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!&$+=/+0%'4!?(,(%!%)+!
,(%+F!!^&&(1+$,!(0,D+1%+*!3!0/A>+$!#&!?+)(1'+,!#$(B(03%(0B!&$#A!%)+!5$3190+''!3$+3!30*!
(%!(,!D'+3,(0B!%#!$+D#$%!%)3%!0#!A3Q#$!1#0%$3?+0%(#0,!@+$+!&#/0*F!!7#@+?+$!3!0/A>+$!
#&!/0'(1+0,+*!*$(?+$,C!?+)(1'+,!30*!#D+$3%#$,!&$#A!#%)+$!3$+3,!@+$+!&#/0*!30*!%)+4!
@(''!>+!$+D#$%+*!>4!%)+!2+%$#D#'(%30!"#'(1+!&#$!D#,,(>'+!D$#,+1/%(#0F!
!
<3O(,!)3?+!3',#!>++0!D/''+*!(0!>4!'(1+0,(0B!#&&(1+$,!@#$9(0B!@(%)!<)3A+,!:3''+4!
P#3*,!"#'(1(0B!'#13''4F!!<)+!#>Q+1%(?+!@3,!%#!'##9!3%!1#AD'(301+!@(%)!'(1+01+!
1#0*(%(#0,!30*!%)+!$#3*@#$%)(0+,,!#&!%)+!?+)(1'+,F!!6/$(0B!%)+!D+$(#*!Hi!?+)(1'+,!
@+$+!(0,D+1%+*!#?+$!%@#!*34,F!!^&!%)+,+!b!?+)(1'+,!@+$+!&#/0*!%#!)3?+!*+&+1%(?+!
%4$+,!30*!R!?+)(1'+!*+&+1%(?+!'(B)%,F!!G(O+*!"+03'%4!0#%(1+,!30*!D$#)(>(%(#0,!@+$+!
(,,/+*!>4!<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+F!!"#(0%,!@+$+!3',#!3@3$*+*!%#!%)+!*$(?+$!/0*+$!%)+!
.#/01('M,!+0&#$1+A+0%!D+03'%4!D#(0%,!,1)+A+F!
!
L!$+?(+@!#&!%)+!'(1+01+!)+'*!>4!6+;($+,!_(B)%1'/>!@3,!>$#/B)%!%#!%)+!X(1+0,(0B!"30+'!
>4!<)3A+,!:3''+4!"#'(1+!*/+!%#!1#01+$0,!3>#/%!1$(A+!30*!*(,#$*+$F!!<)+!"30+'!
3B$++*!3!HR!*34!1'#,/$+!#&!%)+!D$+A(,+,!30*!$+=/($+*!3**(%(#03'!1#0*(%(#0,!%#!>+!
3DD'(+*!%#!%)+!'(1+01+!%#!(AD$#?+!%)+!A303B+A+0%!1#0%$#'!3%!%)+!D$+A(,+,F!
!!
!

77
83



! ! !

4'#*!'#M8*
!
<)+!&($,%!=/3$%+$!(,!%$3*(%(#03''4!%)+!=/3$%+$!@)+0!300/3'!,+3,#0!%(19+%,!&#$!%)+!
7(B)!J%$++%!13$!D3$9!3$+!(,,/+*F!!<)+!0/A>+$!(,,/+*!,)#@+*!3!&/$%)+$!*+1'(0+!&$#A!
'3,%!4+3$!30*!D$#>3>'4!$+&'+1%,!%)+!+1#0#A(1!$+3'(%4!*/$(0B!%)+!$+1+,,(#0F!!L!*$#D!(0!
(01#A+!&$#A!%)+!13$!D3$9,!(,!3'$+3*4!D$+*(1%+*!%#!>+!,(B0(&(130%F!!L!0+@!.3$!D3$9!
A303B+A+0%!1#0%$31%!13A+!(0%#!&#$1+!3,!#&!%)+!+0*!#&!%)+!=/3$%+$F!!2#$+!*+%3(',!@(''!
>+!$+D#$%+*!(0!%)+!0+O%!=/3$%+$F!!<)+!0+@!1#0%$31%!@(''!$+,/'%!(0!,/>,%30%(3'!,3?(0B,!
30*!(AD$#?+*!'+?+',!#&!,+$?(1+F!
!
4"&"-"#F*7*4#"&'-%#,5&**
!
6/$(0B!%)+!=/3$%+$C!,%3&&!(0%$#*/1+*!3!0+@!D'3=/+!,4,%+A!&#$!%)+!A+A#$(3'!$#,+,F!!
<)+!0+@!D'3=/+!+0B$3?+$!A31)(0+!@(''!3''#@!1/,%#A+$,!%#!,+'+1%!%)+($!#@0!,%4'+!#&!
D'3=/+C!B(?(0B!%)+A!0#%!#0'4!A#$+!1)#(1+!>/%!#?+$!%(A+!@(''!$+D$+,+0%!3!,3?(0B!%#!%)+!
,+$?(1+F!!
!
\#$9!1#AA+01+*!#0!%)+!*+?+'#DA+0%!#&!%)+!1+A+%+$4!+O%+0,(#0F!<)(,!(01'/*+,!%)+!
*+?+'#DA+0%!#&!3!0+@!*+*(13%+*!1)('*$+0M,!>/$(3'!3$+3!@)(1)!K3,%)3AD,%+3*!"3$9!
.+A+%+$4!*(*!0#%!D$+?(#/,'4!)3?+!30*!%)+!D$#?(,(#0!&#$!&/$%)+$!3*/'%!>/$(3'!3,!%)+!
+O(,%(0B!3$+3!@(''!$/0!#/%!@(%)(0!RHURY!A#0%),F!!"$+'(A(03$4!D'300(0B!)3,!>+B/0!%#!
%/$0!%)+!+O(,%(0B!,+1#0*!1)3D+'!d@)(1)!)3,!0+?+$!>++0!/,+*!*/+!%#!*+,(B0!D$#>'+A,e!
(0%#!3!1##'!$##A!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!,1)+A+!%#!$+D'31+!%)+!1$+A3%#$,!30*!(0%$#*/1+!0+@!
A+$1/$4!3>3%+A+0%!+=/(DA+0%F!!!!!
!
<)+!0+@!D3%)@34!&$#A!%)+!1)3D+'!%#!%)+!>/$(3'!3$+3!)3,!>++0!1#AD'+%+*!30*!@(''!>+!
A/1)!,3&+$!&#$!%)#,+!13$$4(0B!1#&&(0,F!!<)+!D$+?(#/,!D3%)@34!@3,!A3*+!&$#A!&3,1(3!
>$(19!30*!@3,!,'(DD+$4!*/$(0B!(01'+A+0%!@+3%)+$!#&&+$(0B!3!$(,9!#&!%$(D,C!,'(D,!#$!&3'',!
@)+0!13$$4(0B!3!1#&&(0F!!<)+!0+@!D3%)@34!$+*/1+,!%)+,+!$(,9,!1#0,(*+$3>'4F!
!
#"a*!'#-("#8I,0*
*
\#$9!%#!(AD$#?+!%)+!&($+!D$+13/%(#0,!3%!JA3''A+3*!1#0%(0/+,!30*!(%!@(''!0#%!>+!
1#01'/*+*!/0%('!%)+!3/%/A0!3'#0B!@(%)!#%)+$!,03BB(0B!@#$9,!30*!A#*(&(13%(#0,!%#!%)+!
D'30%!%#!A39+!(%!#D+$3%(#03''4!A#$+!+&&(1(+0%F!!"#,%!1#AD'+%(#0!(%!)3,!>++0!+?(*+0%!%)3%!
,#A+!1)30B+,!130!>+!A3*+!%#!%)+!,%$/1%/$+!30*!A303B+A+0%!#&!%)+!,(%+!(0!#$*+$!%#!
A303B+!&($+!,3&+%4!$(,9!+?+0!>+%%+$!%)30!@3,!D'300+*F!!<)+!$+b!%+3A!)3?+!1#0%(0/+*!
@(%)!%)+($!D$#A#%(#03'!@#$9!30*!)3?+!@#$9+*!@(%)!#&&(1+$,!(0!30*!3$#/0*!%)+!5#$#/B)F!!
<)+!D$(#$(%4!(,!0#@!3$#/0*!@3,%+!A(0(A(,3%(#0!30*!%)+!0++*!&#$!>+%%+$!=/3'(%4!
$+141'(0B!3,!@+!3''!)3?+!%#!(AD$#?+F!<)+!.#0%3A(03%(#0!$3%+!3%!%)+!,#$%(0B!D'30%!(,!
1/$$+0%'4!RiZF!8&!$+,(*+0%,!,%#DD+*!/,(0B!D'3,%(1!>3B,!&#$!%)+($!A3%+$(3',!%)(,!@#/'*!
&3''!%#!RHZF!L''!#&!%)(,!(,!#&!1#/$,+!3?#(*3>'+!(&!$+,(*+0%,!#0'4!&#''#@!%)+!3*?(1+!B(?+0!
3,!%#!@)3%!130!>+!1#''+1%+*F!!!X##9(0B!>319!3%!%)+!&(B/$+,!&#$!'3,%!4+3$!(%!(,!D'+3,(0B!%#!
0#%+!%)3%!%)+!?#'/A+!#&!@3,%+!0#@!B#(0B!%#!'30*&(''!)3,!&3''+0!&$#A![iFibZ!%#!bbFHRZ!
(0!Q/,%!3!4+3$F!!<)(,!(,!*/+!%#!%)+!1#AA(,,(#0(0B!#&!X39+,(*+F!!\+!@(''!0#%!,++!,/1)!3!
A3$9+*!(AD$#?+A+0%!0+O%!4+3$F!!<#!A++%!%3$B+%,!30*!A(0(A(,+!1#,%,!@+!3''!)3?+!%#!
(AD$#?+!#/$!$+141'(0B!$3%+,F!
!
L!%$(3'!)3,!>++0!/0*+$%39+0!3%!X#0B,)#%!X30+!%#!,++!)#@!A/1)!$+141'(0B!A3%+$(3'!
130!>+!+O%$31%+*!&$#A!%)+!@3,%+!,%$+3AF!!L!A31)(0+!@3,!/,+*!%#!D(19!#/%!13$>#3$*C!
A+%3'C!@##*!30*!,#A+!hI!%#00+,!@+$+!+O%$31%+*!(0!Q/,%!#0+!A#0%)!%)3%!@#/'*!
#%)+$@(,+!)3?+!B#0+!%#!'30*&(''F!!L%%+AD%,!3$+!>+(0B!A3*+!%#!&(0*!,/,%3(03>'+!#/%'+%,!
&#$!13$D+%,!@)(1)!@#/'*!$+,/'%!(0!&/$%)+$!,(B0(&(130%!,3?(0B,F!<)+!,/11+,,!,++0!3%!
X#0B,)#%!(0!%)+!$+A#?3'!#&!(%+A,!&#$!$+/,+!)3,!3',#!>++0!%$(3''+*!3%!JA3''A+3*F!!L!

78
84



! ! !

%#%3'!#&!bI!%#00+,!@+$+!$+A#?+*!(0!234F!!80!1#AD3$(,#0!@(%)!X#0B,)#%C!%)(,!(,!3!'#@!
&(B/$+!>/%!%)+!03%/$+!#&!%)+!,(%+,!(,!?+$4!*(&&+$+0%F!
!
!
`C_BWYb*
*
`%58,(.*/".,8-"#*>*'66%)'-,%(8*
*
L,!#&!%)+!+0*!#&!m/0+!%)+$+!@+$+!HYih!31%(?+!)#/,(0B!3DD'(13%(#0,!#0!5G.!24!
1)#(1+C!RHH!@)+$+!+0=/($(+,!3$+!1#AD'+%+!30*!%)+!3DD'(13%(#0!@3,!$+3*4!%#!>+!A3*+!
'(?+!30*!30!3**(%(#03'!RCbHb!(0!?3$(#/,!,%3B+,!D+0*(0B!>+(0B!A3*+!'(?+F!^&!%)+!'(?+!
3DD'(130%,!ihZ!@+$+!&($,%!%(A+!3DD'(130%,C!RZ!@+$+!)#A+'+,,!30*!HhZ!@+$+!%$30,&+$!
3DD'(130%,F!
!
J(01+!5G.!24!1)#(1+!@+0%!'(?+!hHZ!#&!3''!3DD'(130%,!)3?+!A3*+!3!>(*!&#$!3!D$#D+$%4F!
\+!@(''!>+!@#$9(0B!@(%)!3DD'(130%,!@)#!)3?+!0#%!>(*!+,D+1(3''4!%)#,+!(0!%)+!)(B)+$!
>30*,!#$!)#A+'+,,0+,,!%#!*(,1#?+$!@)4!%)+4!3$+!4+%!%#!>(*F!
!
<)+$+!@+$+!HY!D$#D+$%(+,!'+%!(0!m/0+F!!<)+!>30*,!#&!3DD'(130%,!@)#!@+$+!)#/,+*!(,!
3,!&#''#@,C!
!
X+%,!>4!
>30*!

R!>+*! H!>+*! b!>+*! ,%/*(#! L''!

530*!L! I! I!I!R! R!
530*!5! H! b!h!R! RI!
530*!.! i! h!I!b! Rh!
530*!6! R! I!I!I! R!
530*!K! I! I!I!H! H!
L''! RI! i!h!i! HY!
!
!
B500%#-,(.*0"%06"*
!
_+B#%(3%(#0,!@(%)!D$#?(*+$,!@+$+!1#01'/*+*!#?+$!%)+!=/3$%+$F!J/>,%30%(3'!+&&(1(+01(+,!
)3?+!>++0!31)(+?+*!3B3(0,%!%)+!#$(B(03'!1#0%$31%!,/A,F!.#0%$31%,!@(''!>+!+0%+$+*!(0%#!
&#$!%)+!0+O%!%)$++!4+3$,F!
!
!
`%&"6"88("88*
!
<)+$+!@+$+!RH!)#A+'+,,!3DD'(13%(#0,!@)(1)!@3,!3!iRZ!(01$+3,+!#0!%)+!D$+?(#/,!
=/3$%+$F!<)+$+!@+$+!i!)#A+'+,,!311+D%301+,!@)(1)!@3,!3!hIZ!(01$+3,+!#0!%)+!
D$+?(#/,!=/3$%+$F!
!
80!%+$A,!#&!)#A+'+,,!D$+?+0%(#0!%)+$+!@+$+!bb!)#/,+)#'*,!%)$+3%+0+*!@(%)!
)#A+'+,,0+,,!@)#!@+$+!D$+?+0%+*!&$#A!>+1#A(0B!)#A+'+,,!*/+!%#!%)+!31%(#0!#&!%)+!
.#/01('F!!<)+$+!@+$+!HH!'#30,!&$#A!%)+!.#/01('!%#!D34!&#$!$+0%!(0!3*?301+!@(%)!3!
*+D#,(%!,#!)#/,+)#'*,!1#/'*!,+1/$+!3!)#A+!(0!%)+!D$(?3%+!$+0%+*!,+1%#$F!
*
9%#"8-)'#"**
!
G#$+,%!13$+!)3,!,+%!/D!3!*(,3,%+$!$+1#?+$4!1+0%$+!3%!K3,%)3AD,%+3*!"3$9!(0!3*?301+!
#&!+0%+$(0B!(0%#!%)+!>/**4(0B!3$$30B+A+0%,!@(%)!30#%)+$!'#13'!3/%)#$(%4F!!
!

79
85



! ! !

!
L!G/%/$+!m#>!G/0*!%$3(0++!)3,!Q#(0+*!%)+!,+$?(1+!&#$!N!A#0%),!30*!(,!D$#?(0B!?+$4!
)+'D&/'C!%(*4(0B!/D!%)+!*3%3>3,+C!3,,(,%(0B!@(%)!X#0+!\#$9+$!%$3(0(0BC!30*!,+0*(0B!#/%!
A3$9+%(0B!(0&#$A3%(#0F!
!
L**(%(#03'!,%3&&!$+,#/$1+!)3,!>++0!,+1/$+*!&#$!G$(*34!+?+0(0B,!30*!J3%/$*34,!
A#$0(0B,!@)(1)!3$+!%)+!>/,4!%(A+!&#$!13'',!)30*'(0BF!
!
\+!)3?+!,%3$%+*!3,9(0B!RIZ!#&!#/$!0+@!X(&+'(0+!1/,%#A+$,!+31)!A#0%)!)#@!%)+4!
&#/0*!%)+!(0,%3''3%(#0!D$#1+,,!30*!,#!&3$!)3?+!)3*!RIIZ!D#,(%(?+!&++*>319F!
!
VDB$3*+!#&!#/$!L'3$A!.3'',!730*'(0B!J4,%+A!&$#A!"_.h!%#!"_.N!,/11+,,&/''4!
1#AD'+%+*!(0!234!T!3''!%)+!%+3A!3$+!0#@!%$3(0+*!30*!&3A('(3$!@(%)!%)+!0+@!,4,%+A!T!(%!
)3,!%)$#@0!/D!1#0,(*+$3>'+!3A#/0%,!#&!@#$9!%#!+0,/$+!%)3%!@+!130!/,+!(%!+&&+1%(?+'4F!
!
<#!,3?+!A#0+4!@+!)3?+!,%#DD+*!%)+!A3(0%+0301+!1#0%$31%!@(%)!</0,%3''!%#!A3(0%3(0!
&3/'%4!+=/(DA+0%F!!80,%+3*!@+!@(''!>+!$+D'31(0B!&3/'%4!X(&+'(0+,!@(%)!0+@!+=/(DA+0%!3,!
%)(,!(,!1)+3D+$!d@)+0!D/$1)3,+*!%)$#/B)!_#$%)+$0!7#/,(0B!.#0,#$%(/Ae!%)30!B+%%(0B!
#'*!/0(%,!$+D3($+*F!
!
\+!0#@!A#0(%#$!NbkI!1#00+1%(#0,!30*!%)(,!=/3$%+$!@+!%##9!RIiCYbh!3'3$A!13'',!d%)(,!
(,!@(%)#/%!(01'/*(0B!#/%!#&!)#/$,!13'',e-!
!
.3$$(+*!#/%!RiR!6+A#0,%$3%(#0a80,%3'',C!D'/,!&(%%+*!RH!9+4,3&+,!30*!R!)+3'%)U)/>!
\+!A3*+![[!?(,(%,!%#!$+,D#0*!%#!&3/'%4!X(&+'(0+,!
.3$$(+*!#/%![hh!63%3!1)+19,!!!
P+,D#0*(0B!%#!,)+'%+$+*!)#/,(0B!bYi!%(A+,!
!
J"("$,-8*
!
L%!%)+!+0*!#&!m/0+HIRIC!%)+$+!@3,!3!>+0+&(%!13,+'#3*!#&!NYRRC!@)(1)!@3,!3!HZ!
(01$+3,+!&$#A!%)+!13,+'#3*!3%!%)+!+0*!#&!23$1)!HIRI!^?+$3''C!%)(,!(,!3!kZ!(01$+3,+!(0!
%)+!13,+'#3*!1#AD3$+*!%#!%)+!D#,(%(#0!3%!m/0+!HIIkF!!
!
<)+!&#''#@(0B!%3>'+!D$#?(*+,!@#$9'#3*!&(B/$+,!&#$!%)+!'3,%!=/3$%+$F!!
!
?#"'*%$*')-,2,-F* !#"2,%58*]5'#-"#* ?0#,6>A5("* !"#)"(-'."*

)I'(."*
<+'+D)#0+!13'',! ibRb! NHb[! URhZ!
:(,(%#$,!%#!%)+!
#&&(1+!

hRNR!HHhY! ./,%#A+$!J+$?(1+!
,%3%,!0#%!3?3('3>'+!
&#$!R,%!m/0+!HIRI!%#!
Hi%)!m/0+!*/+!%#!
$+&/$>(,)A+0%F!!

J1300+*!(%+A,!#&!
D#,%!

RYk[N!RNYkY! URIZ!

_+@!1'3(A,!
$+1+(?+*!

Y[H!i[[! URRZ!

<#%3'!1)30B+!
+?+0%,!30*!0+@!
1'3(A,!3,,+,,+*!

bikh![bkh! hHZ!

!
<)+$+!@3,!3!>+0+&(%!/,+$!&#1/,!B$#/D!(0!234!Q/,%!>+&#$+!%)+!L/*(%!.#AA(,,(#0!
(0,D+1%(#0F!

80
86



! ! !

!
<)+!L/*(%!.#AA(,,(#0!(0,D+1%(#0!%##9!D'31+!*/$(0B!%)+!@++9!#&!Hh%)!234F!L''!>+0+&(%!
,%3&&!@+$+!(0?#'?+*!(0!%)+!(0,D+1%(#0!%)$#/B)!(0%+$?(+@,!30*!&#1/,!B$#/D,!3,!@+$+!
1/,%#A+$!,+$?(1+,!,%3&&F!.#/01(''#$!!5($1)!3,!KO+1/%(?+!A+A>+$!C!.''$!\3$*!3,!
KO+1/%(?+!A+A>+$!&#$!/,+!#&!$+,#/$1+,!30*!.''$!G(00(+!30*!G(01)!3,!#?+$?(+@!30*!
,1$/%(04!A+A>+$,!@+$+!(0%+$?(+@+*!>4!%)+!L/*(%!.#AA(,,(#0!*/$(0B!%)+!@++9F!!
*
*
O1WB_/1*?YN*4_OG_/1!
!
!'#M8*'(K*4%5(-#F8,K"*
*
G#""*8"#2,)"8*
*
<)+!,%$/1%/$3'!'30*,13 D(0B!#&!5$3190+''!P3('@34!J%3%(# 0!(01'/*+* !&#/$!63 @0!
P+*@##*,!(0!&$#0%!#&!% )+!,%3%(#0C!&#/$!,('?+$!>($1)!(0!%)+!13$UD3$9!30*!3!&+3%/$+!
\+''(0B%#0(3!d1#0%$31%#$!@(''!$+D'31+!&3('+*!,D+1(A+0!(0!%)+!3/%/A0eF!!
!
G+3%/$+!%$++!D'30%(0B!d%@#!J('?+$!5($1)e!(0!%)+!5$#3*@34!7#/,+!13$UD3$9!(0!J30*)/$,%!
)3,!>++0!1#AD'+%+*F!
!
^?+$!RCIII! ,3D'(0B,!#&! 03%(?+!,D+1(+,!)3?+!>++0!D'30%+*! 3'#0B!%)+!+ 0%($+!7(B)@34!
?+$B+!3'#0B!5/''!X30+F!
!
L!*+%3('+*!(0,D+1%(#0!3 0*!A3(0%+0301+!#&!Nk !%$++,!3'#0 B!$#3*!$#/%+,!%)3%!@+$+ !
,D+1(&(13''4!(*+0%(&(+*!&#$ !'#0BU%+$A! A#0(%#$(0B!)3?+!>++0! 13$$(+*!#/%!%#!+0,/$+!%) +!
,3&+%4!#&!%)+!7(B)@34F!
!
h[I!%$++!+0=/($(+,!)3?+!>++0!*+3'% !@(%)!30*!,#A+!Rb[!1#0,/'%3%(#0!$ +=/+,%,!&$#A!
6+?+'#DA+0%!2303B+A+0%!(0!$+,D+1%!#&!D'30 0(0B!3DD'(13%(#0,!)3?+!>++0!D$#1+,,+*!
30*!1#$$+,D#0*+*!%#F!
!!
J,%K,2"#8,-F!
!
\#$9(0B!(0!D3$%0+$,)(D! @(%)!\3(%$#,+!(0!LD$('!%#! ,/DD#$%!%)+!D#,(%(?+!A3 03B+A+0%!#&!
\('*$(*(0B,!.#D,+!X#13'!\('*'(&+!J(% +C!3!D$+,+0%3%(#0!@3,!B(?+0!%#!%)+($! ,%3&&!#0!%)+!
@('*'(&+!(0!5$3190+''!G#$+ ,%!30*!%)+!,%+D,!%)3%!130!>+!%39+0!%#!D$#%+1%!30*!+0)301+!
%)(,!$+,#/$1+F!!
!
<@#!D#0*!,/$?+4,!@+$+ !/0*+$%39+0!3,!D/>'( 1!+?+0%,!(0!LD$('C!&($,% !3%!J#/%)!7(''!"3$9!
,#/%)+$0!'39+!@)+$+!,%(19'+>319,C!,A##%)!0+@%,!30*!#%)+$!,D+1(+,!(0*(13%+!3!)+3'%)4!
@+%'30*!)3>(%3%F!!<)+!,+1#0*!@3,!%)+!300/3'!,/$?+4!#&!B$+3 %!1$+,%+*!0+@%,!3%!r<) +!
_+@%!P+,+$?+r!(0!\3$&(+'*!@)+$+!'#0B!%+$A!%$+0*,!(0*(13%+!%)+,+!$3$+!3AD)(>(30,!3$+!
*#(0B!@+''F!!
!
G(?+!,@(&%!>#O+,!@+$+!(0,%3''+*!#0!5$3190+''!30*!\#9(0B)3A!.#''+B+!@(%)!%)+!)+'D!#&!
%)+($!&31('(%(+,!A303B+$F!
!
_8Rki!U!$+D #$%(0B!#0!%)+!D+$&#$A30 1+!(0*(13%#$!(0!m/0+!,)#@,!%)3%!5$3190+''!G#$+ ,%!
.#/01('!(,!+ O1++*(0B!%)+!%3$B+%!&#$ !B3(0(0B!D# ,(%(?+!A303B+A+0%!#&!X#13'!\('* '(&+!
J(%+,!(0!%)+!>#$#/B)F!!
!
6/$(0B!\3'9!%#!\#$9!@++9!(0!LD$('C !3!'/01)%(A +!@3'9!1#?+$(0B!%)+!$#3 *,(*+!03%/$+!
$+,+$?+,!@3,!3%%+0*+*!>4!,%3&&!30*!)(B)'(B)%+*!%)+!?3'/+!#&!@('*!3$+3,!(0!%)+!%#@0F!
!

81
87



! ! !

80!234!3!'/01)%(A+!,+A(03$!@3,!)+'*!@(%)!%)+!5+$9,)($+!_3%/$+!.#0,+$?3%(#0!G#$/A !
%#!*(,1/,,!% )+!(AD31%!#&!1'(A3%+!1) 30B+!#0!>(# *(?+$,(%4!(0!D'300(0BF!< )(,!+O%+0*+* !
3@3$+0+,,!#&!D'300+$,!%#!B$++0!(0&$3,%$/1%/$+!30*!5(#*(?+$,(%4!^DD#$%/0(%4!L$+3,F!
!
^0B#(0B!+1#'#B(13'!3*?(1+!)3,!>++0!B(?+0!%#!A3Q#$!*+?+'#DA+0%!,(%+,!% #!>+!(01'/*+*!
(0!%)+!J(%+ !L''#13%(#0,!6"6!(01'/*(0B!,/ $?+4!@#$9!3%!LA+0!.#$0+$!30*!5$#3*A## $!
7#,D(%3'F!
!
S5(#*(?+$,(%4!(0!5$3190+''M!(,!%)+!%)+A +!&#$!%)(,!4+3$M,!300/3'! D3$9,!D)#%#!1#AD+%(%(#0!
%#!1+'+>$3%+ !HIRI!>+(0 B!(0%+$03%(# 03'!4+3$!#&!5(#*(?+$,(% 4F!!<)+!1#AD+%(%(#0!@3,!
'3/01)+*!# 0!R ,%!m/0+! 30*!@(''!1'#,+!#0!R ,%! ^1%#>+$F!\(00(0B!D)#% #B$3D),!30 *!
$/00+$,U/D!@(''!>+!+O)(> (%+*!(0!%)+ !.#AA/0(%4!E3''+$4!3%!J#/%)!7(''!"3$9!(0!G+>$/3$4!
0+O%!4+3$F!
!
B5,-'\6"*?6-"#('-,2"*Y'-5#'6*b#""(*B0')"8*UB?YbBV*
!
\#$9!1#0%(0 /+,!%#!(AD$#?+!$+1$+3%(#0!#DD#$%/0(%(+,!31$#,,!%)+!>#$#/B)!%#!$+*/1+ !
D$+,,/$+!# 0!%)+!<)3 A+,!53,(0!7+3%),! JD+1(3'!"$ #%+1%(#0!L$ +3F!!P+1+ 0%!
(AD$#?+A+0%!@#$9,!(01'/*+!0+@! D3%),!3%!X#0B)(''!"3$9C!(AD$#?(0 B!1#00+1%(# 0!
%)$#/B)!%#!X('4!7(''!"3$9!
!
O,6F*`,66*!'#M*
*
L!0+@!D(10(1!%3>'+!)3,! >++0!(0,%3''+*!(0!X('4!7(''!"3$9F!!<)+!%3>'+!30*!,+ 3%(0B!@3,!3''!
1$+3%+*!#0!,(%+!/,(0B!3!X #@M,!&($!%$++!@)(1)!13A+!*#@0!(0!%)+!D3$9!*/$(0B !)(B)!@(0*,!
3!&+@!4+3$,! 3B#F!!<)+!D(10(1!%3>'+!A+3,/$+,!RYFh!A+%$+,!#$! NI&%!'#0B]!A#$+!%)30!YI!
D+#D'+!@(''! 0#@!>+!3>'+!%#!,(%!3%!% )+!0+@!%3>'+C!%#!>+!/,+*!3,!3!B3% )+$(0B!,D#%! &#$!
&3A('(+,C!1#AA/0(%4!B$#/D,C!1#0,+$?3%(#0!?#'/0%++$,!30*!,1)##'1)('*$+0F!
!
B%5-I*`,66*!'#M!
!
5(B!634!^/%!
<)+!G$(+0*,!#&!J7"!@#$9+*!)3$*!(0!B3%)+$(0B!,/ $?+4!(0&#$A3%(#0!&$#A!?(,(%#$,!*/$(0B!
%)+!S5(B!634!^/%M!+ ?+0%!)+'*!#0!J3%/$*34!RI %)!m/'4C!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!,+'&!3,,+,,A+ 0%!
D$#1+,,!$+=/($+*!>4!%)+!7XGF!
!
2#$+!A+ A>+$,!Q#(0+* !%)+!B$#/DC!&/$%)+$!+O% +0*(0B!'#13 '!$+,(*+0%M,!(0D/%!%#!%)+!
$+,%#$3%(#0!@#$9F!

!
J(%+!*+?+'#DA+0%!
73?(0B!,/11+,,&/''4!,+1/$+*!D'300 (0B!30*!'(,% +*!>/('*(0B! 1#0,+0%!30 *!(*+0%(&(+*!3 !
D$+&+$$+*!1#0%$31%#$C!$+,%#$3%(#0!D$#D#,3',!130!0#@!>+!D$#B$+,,+*F!!!

!
L$%,!
<)+!3/*(+01+!*+?+'#DA+0%!D'30!&#$!%)+!,(%+!(,!>+(0B!*+'(?+$+*!(0!%30*+A!@(%)!%)+!3$%,!
1+0%$+!30*!31%(?(%(+,!,/1)!3,!#/%*##$!D+$&#$A301+,F!! :#'/0%++$,!&$#A!%)+!'# 13'!
1#AA/0(%4!)3?+!>++0!)3$*!3%!@#$9!#0!,(%+!(0!,/DD#$%!#&!%)+!@(*+$!D$#Q+1%F!

+'#M"-,(.*'(K*,(-"#0#"-'-,%(!
!
_+@!(0%+$D$+%3%(#0!30*! (0&#$A3%(#0!>#3$*,!)3?+!>++0!(0,% 3''+*!#0!,(% +!3%!.3+,3$, !
.3ADF!!<)+!>#3$*,!D$ #?(*+!9+4!(0&#$A3%(#0!#0!%)+!'34# /%!#&!%)+!& #$%C!)(,%#$4!3 0*!
@('*'(&+!3**(0B!%#!?(,(%#$!/0*+$,%30*(0B!30*!+0Q#4A+0%F!!!

82
88



! ! !

!6'F*'#"'8!
!
"'34>/('*+$!&/0*(0B!)3,!D$#?(*+*!0+@!&/$0(%/$+!3%!\+,%A#$'30*!"3$9C!G3$'+4!\## *!
.#AA/0(%4!.+0%$+!30*!K?+0'#3*!\34!&#$!YURb!4+3$U#'*,F!
!
6+,(B0!D$#D#,3',!)3?+! >++0!*$3@0!/D!&#$!.)3/1+$!\##*,!d%3$B+%(0B!1)('*$+0!/D!% #!
YU4+3$,!#'*eC!30*!3!D$+&+$$+*!1#0%$31%#$!(*+0%(&(+*F!
!
^&!%)+!D3$(,)!30*!%#@0!1#/01('! ,(%+,C!%)+!A#,%!$+1+0%'4!#&&(1(3''4!#D+0+*!,(%+!@3,!
L,1#%!m/>('++!P+1$+3%(#0!E$#/0*C! @)(1)!3*Q#(0,!\+0%@#$%)!\34!\## *'30*!$+1+0%'4!
(AD$#?+*!3,!D3$%!#&!%)+!/$>30!@##*'30*,!D$#Q+1%F!
!
7#BB(0!,/$& 31+*!D3%),!)3?+!>++0!1#AD'+%+*!3% !%)(,!,(% +!%#!(AD$#?+!'(09,!&$# A!
$+,(*+0%(3'!3$+3,!%#!%)+!0#$%)!#&!%)+!@##*,!%#!%)+!(AD$#?+*! D3$(,)!D'34!&31('(%(+,!%#!%)+!
,#/%)F!
!
b#""(*96'.!
!
<)$++!,(%+,!)3?+!>++0!+0%+$+*!&#$!E$++0!G'3B!L@3$ *,!%)(,!4+3$-!X('4!7(''!"3$9C!"#D+,!
2+3*#@!30*!J)+D)+$*!2+3*#@,aJ30*)/$,%!2+A#$(3'!"3$9F!!
!
P+,/'%,!@(''!>+!300#/01+*!#0!HY%)!m/'4!

O'(K8)'0"*N"8,.(!
!

<)+!K'A,!
!
J+1%(#0!RI N!&/0*+*!311+,,! (AD$#?+A+0%! @#$9,!30*!0 +@!D'30%(0B !)3?+!>++0 !
/0*+$%39+0!3%!<)+!K'A,!"3$9C!@#$9(0B!1'#,+'4!@(%)!5$3190+''!<#@0!.#/01('F!
!
L!0+@!D3%) !(0%#!%)+!,(% +!@(%)!,3&+$!1$#,,(0B!3 1$#,,!%)+!13$!D3$9!30*!'(09(0B!%#!% )+!
D3%),!(0,(*+!%)+!,(%+!)3,!>++0!1#AD'+%+*!>4!P(0B@34F!
!
"'30%(0B!@#$9,!)3?+!>+ +0!/0*+$%39+0!*($+1%'4 ! >4!5<.!%#!*+,(B0,!D$+ D3$+*!>4!#/$!
X30*,13D+!6+,(B0!^&&(1+$F!
!
.3$!"3$9(0B!D$#Q+1%,!
!
<)+!,+$?(1+!)3,!>++0!(0?#'?+*!@(%)!%)+!)(B)@34,!+0B(0++$!'+*!D3$9(0B!,D31+!D$#Q+1%,!
#0!5G.!30*!5G7!'30*!(0!%)+!D$+D 3$3%(#0!#&!D'30%(0B!,1)+ A+,!30*!,D +1(&(13%(#0,F!!
<)+$+!3$+!3!0/A>+$!#&! ,A3''!,1)+A+,!(0!%)+!D(D+'(0+!%#!> +!D'30%+*!/ D!%)(,!3/%/A0F!!
X30*,13D(0B!(,!>+(0B!13$$(+*!#/%!>4!X30*,13D+!J+$?(1+,F!
!
E$+3%!7#''30*,!_+(B)>#/$)##*!.+0%$+!
!
<)+!,+$?(1+!)3,!>++0!(0?#'?+*!(0!% )+!'30*,13D+!*+,(B0!&#$!D$#D#,+*!+0?($#0A+0%3 '!
(AD$#?+A+0%,!%#!%)+!,) #DD(0B!1+0% $+!(01'/*(0B !(0,%3''3% (#0!#&!D'30%+$,C! %)+!D'30%(0B!
30*!$+D'31(0B!#&!%$++,!30*!0+@!1#U#$*(03%+*!,% $++%!&/$0(%/$+!30*!,(B03B+F!!<)+!&($,% !
D)3,+!#&!%)+,+!(AD$#?+ A+0%,!@(''!> +!(AD'+A+0%+*!&#''#@(0B!1#0,%$/1%(#0!#&!%)+!0+ @!
o#/%)!.+0%$+!(0!E$+3%!7#''30*,!J=/3$+F!
!
!
!
!
!

83
89



! ! !

^%)+$!
!
L!D'30%(0B!,1)+A+!@3,!3',#!D$+D3$+*!&#$!%)+ !>(0!,%#$+!D$#D #,+*!&#$!K3,%)3AD,%+3*!
7#/,+C!30*!3!,A3''!,1)+A+!&#$!.$#@%)#$0+!.)( '*$+0,!.+0%$+!)3,!>++0!*$3@0!/D!%# !
,/DD#$%!%)+!D'300(0B!3DD'(13%(#0F
!
J#')M("66*,(*J6%%&*'(K*g%5#*b'#K"(8*4%&0"-,-,%(*
*
<)+!,+$?(1+!)3,!>++0!(0?#'?+*!(0!D$+D3$3%(#0,!&#$!5$3190+''!(0!5'##AF!
!
"3$9,!30*!.#/0%$4,(*+!)3?+!,/DD#$%+*!%)+!X30*,13D+!J+$?(1+,!#&&(1+$,M!@#$9F!
!
\(%)!%)+!0+@!"$#Q+1%,!^&&(1+$!(0!D#,%!,(01+!HR ,%!m/0+C!%)+!,+$?(1+!)3,!>++0!3>'+!%# !
,/DD#$%!X30*,13D+!J+$?(1+,!@(%)!%)+!'3%%+$!,%3B+,!#&!%)+!o#/$!E3$*+0,!.#AD+%(%(#0C!
?(,(%(0B!30*!,)#$%!'(,%(0B!+0%$(+,!&#$!Q/*B(0B!'3%+$!(0!%)+!4+3$F!
!
!6'((,(.*'(K*B-#'-".,)*4%(856-'-,%(*
*
m+00+%%M,!"3$9!
L,!m+00+%%M,!"3$9! 1#0%(0/+,!%# !* +?+'#D!#0! ,(%+C!30* !D'300(0B!3DD'(13%(#0,!3$+!
311+'+$3%(0B!&#$!%)+!$+A3(0(0B!$+,(* +0%(3'!D3$1+ ',C!%)+!,+$?(1+!(,!(0?#'?+*!(0!$+B/'3 $!
'(3(,#0!@(%) !<)+!.#0,#$%(/AM,!1# 0,/'%30%,!3 0*!%)+!*+,(B0!%+3A,!& #$!%)+!?3$(#/ ,!
D3$1+',F!!
!
L,!@+''!3,!1#AA+0%(0B!#0!>(#*(?+$,(%4C!'30*,13D+!30*!$(B)%,!#&!@34!(,,/+,C!%)+!#D+0!
,D31+,C!@# #*,!30*!D'34!3$+3,!%)3%!@(''!>+!3*#D%+*!30*!A303B+*! >4!"3$9,!3 0*!
.#/0%$4,(*+!0++*!%#!>+!A#0(%#$+*!%)$#/B)#/%!%)+!*+,(B0C! D'300(0B!3 0*!
(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!,%3B+,F!
!
<)+!1#/0%$4,(*+!D3$9! (,!0+3$(0B!1#AD'+%(#0!@(%)!3!D3%)!1# 0,%$/1%(#0!1#0%$31%!*/+! %#!
,%3$%!%)(,!,/ AA+$F!!L!> $(+&!&#$!%)+!D/>'(1!3$%!(0 !%)$++!'#13%(#0,!(0!#D+0!,D31+,!)3 ,!
>++0!3B$++*!@(%)!%)+!.#0,#$%(/AF!!!
!
"$(#$4!G(+'*!
L!1#0%$31%#$!@3,!3DD#(0%+*!&#''#@(0B!,/>A(,,(#0!#&!%)$++!=/#%3%(#0,F!
!
./'%(?3%(#0C!$+B$3*(0B!30*!,++*(0B !@#$9!)3,!%39+0!D'31+ !(0!311#$*3 01+!@(%)!%)+ !
80,%(%/%+!^&!E$#/0*,A30,)(D!,D+1(&(13%(#0F!!
!
<)+!D(%1)!(,!1/$$+0%'4! /0*+$B#(0B! 3!D+$(#*!#& !+,%3>'(,)A+0%!A3(0%+0301+!>4!%)+ !
1#0%$31%#$C!@(%)!%)+!%3$B+%!#&!>+(0B!D'343>'+!>4!J+D%+A>+$!HIRIF!
!
L,!@(%)!+3$'(+$!,%3B+,C!31)(+?(0B!%)(,!@(''!>+!@+3%)+$!*+D+0*+0%F!
!
O,\#'#,"83*?#-8*'(K*`"#,-'."*
*
<)+!X(>$3$4!30*!80&#$A3%(#0!J+$?(1+!1#0%(0/+*!% #!D$#A#%+!%)+!,+$?(1+!% #!%)+!D/>'(1!
%)$#/B)!3!,+$(+,!#&!+?+0%,!30*!31%(?(%(+,!31$#,,!%)+!5#$#/B)F!7(B)'(B) %,!3%!?3$(#/,!
'(>$3$(+,!(01'/*+*-!
*
J30*)/$,%!
X+A#04!J0(19+%%!&3A('4!*34!(0!234!
m#)0!.#00+''4!3/%)#$!+?+0%!U!iY!3%%+0*+*!
G##%>3''!G3A('4!c/(;!634!
!

84
90



! ! !

.$#@%)#$0+!
N[!1)('*$+0!3%%+0*+*!K3,%+$!1$3&%!+?+0%,!
^?+$!NI!D3$+0%,!30*!1)('*$+0!0#@!3%%+0*!%)+!@++9'4!5#/01+!30*!P)4A+!,+,,(#0,!
.)$(,%(03!m#0+,!3/%)#$!+?+0%!(0!LD$('!
!
5(0&(+'*!
L$#/0*!bI!1)('*$+0!3%%+0*!@++9'4!3&%+$U,1)##'!31%(?(%4!1'/>F!
!
E$+3%!7#''30*,!
G3A('4!7(,%#$4!3/%)#$!+?+0%!
!
5$3190+''!X(>$3$4!
\8G(!(,!0#@!3?3('3>'+!%#!%)+!D/>'(1!!
!
\)(%+B$#?+!X(>$3$4!
\#$9!>+B30!3%!\)(%+B$#?+!X(>$3$4!# 0!3!$+U&/$>(,)A+0%!D$#Q+1%F!L''!+O(,%(0B!'(B)%(0B!(,!
>+(0B!$+D'31+*!30*!%)+!1+('(0B! '#@+$+*F!L!0+@!1#/0%+$!)3,! >++0!(0,%3''+*!3'#0B!@(%)!
0+@!,)+'?(0B!30*!1#AD/%+$!3$+3F!\(G(!@(''!3',#!>+!A3*+!3?3('3>'+!(0!L/B/,%F!
!
L$%,!30*!7+$(%3B+!
!
.$#@%)#$0+!.3$0(?3'!T !+O%+0,(?+! D$+D3$3%(#0,!@(%)!Hi!+0%)/,(3,%(1!4#/0B!D+#D'+F! !
\#$9(0B!3'#0B,(*+!J%$++%!"$#1+,,(#0,!'+*!%#!%)+!B$#/D!@(00(0B!&($,%!D$(;+!(0!%)+!4#/%)!
13%+B#$4!3%! %)+!13$0(?3'!30*!Rh!#&!% )#,+!4#/0B!D+#D'+!3$+!*#(0B!LJ6L0!31%(?(%(+,!
3@3$*F!
!
2('+,%#0+,!T!>#%)!A('+,%#0+,!3$+!0 #@!$+,%#$+*!3%!X('4!7(''! "3$9!30*!#/ %,(*+!%)+!P+*!
X(#0!(0!5$3190+''F!
*
O",85#"!
!
<)+!*(&&(1/ '%!&(0301(3 '!1'(A3%+!1#0%(0/+,!%#!(A D31%!#0!'# 13'!$+,(*+0% ,!30*!/,+$,! #&!
'+(,/$+!&31('(%(+,F!!\ (%)#/%!*#/>%!%)+ !&31('(%(+,!3$ +!&++'(0B !%)+!(AD31%C!> /%!1#0%(0/+! %#!
$(,+!%#!%)+!1)3''+0B+!(0 !30!(01$+3,(0B'4!1#AD+ %(%(?+!A3$9+ %F!!^?+$3''! 3%%+0*301+,!
@+$+!,'(B)%'4!*#@0!#0!%)+!,3A+!D+$(#*!(0!%)+!D$+?(#/,!4+3$F!
!
5$3190+''!X +(,/$+!.+0% $+!@3,!A3$B(03''4!*#@0!#0!'3,% !4+3$C!>/%!3!A3$9+%(0B !
13AD3(B0!%#!3%%$31%!A#$+!B4A!/ ,+$,!D$#?+*!,/11+,,& /'F!!80!m/0+!%)+!6.2 J!
300#/01+*!%)+!1+,,3%(#0!#&!%)+!&$++!,@(AA(0B!D$#B$3AA+C!>/%!%)+!(AD31%!#&!%)(,!@(''!
0#%!>+!&+'%!/0%('!'3%+$!(0!%)+!4+3$F!
!
<)+!6#@0,)($+!E#'&!.#AD'+O!1#0%(0/+,!%# !@#$9!)3$*!%#!)#'*!(%,!#@0!(0!3 0!
(01$+3,(0B'4!1#AD+%(%(?+!A3$9+%C! @)(',%!.#$3'!P++&!)3,! +0Q#4+*!30!+O1+''+0%!& ($,%!
=/3$%+$C!(01$+3,(0B!/,3B+!>4!#?+$!RZF!
!
K3,%)3AD,%+3*!"3$9!.#0&+$+01+!.+0%$+!)3,!+0*/$+*!3!1)3''+0B(0B! %(A+!3,!'#13'!
1#AD30(+,!$3%(#03'(,+!% )+($!1#0&+$+ 01(0BF!!!<) +!X##9!^/%!1#0%(0/+,!% #!>+!D#D/'3$!
@(%)!3%%+0*301+,!%#!%)+!+O)(>(%(#0!#01+!3B3(0!,)#@(0B!30!(01$+3,+F!!^?+$3''!?(,(%,!%# !
%)+!,(%+!)3?+!&3''+0 !,'(B)%'4C!>/%!%)(,!@(''!0# %!)3?+!>++0!)+ 'D+*!>4!%)+!1#'*!30*!* 3AD!
@+3%)+$!+3$'4!(0!%)+!D+ $(#*F!!K*B> 3$$#@!JD#$%,!.+0%$+!@ 3,!D3$%(3 ''4! $+U#D+0+*!#0!
HN%)!LD$('!&#''#@(0B!%)+!&($+!Q/,%!>+&#$+!.)$(,%A3,!30*!@(''!&/''4!$+U#D+0!#0!Rk%)!m/'4F!
!
7#$,+,)#+!X39+!#D+0+*!&#$!%)+!,+3,#0!(0!LD$('!30*!)3,!3'$+3*4!,)#@0!3!B##*!'+?+' !
#&!>##9(0B,F !!73$A30,!\3%+$!X+(,/ $+!.+0%$+!)3,!,)#@0!,%+3*4!/,3B+!@(%)!B##*!
/D%39+!#0!%)+($!1#$+!>/,(0+,,!#&!B4A!/,+$,!30*!%)+!,1)##'!,@(AA(0B!D$#B$3AA+F!

85
91



! ! !

!
<)+!HIRI!c/(0%('+,a5$3190+''!73'& !23$3%)#0! @3,!#01+!3B3(0!?+$4!D #D/'3$!@(%)!3 !
$+1#$*!0/A>+$!#&!&(0(,)+,F!
!
<)+!o#/0B!"+#D'+!(0 !JD#$%!J1)+A+!+0Q#4+ *!,+?+$3'!?+$4!,/11+,,&/'!+?+0% ,C!
(01'/*(0B!3% )'+%(1,!30* !W@(9!1$(19+%F!!<)+!JD+1(3'!JD#$% ,!G/0!634!3%!5$3190+''!
X+(,/$+!.+0%$+!@3,!3!,D'+0*(*!+?+0%!@(%)!$+,#/$1+!1+0%$+ ,!&$#A!31$# ,,!5+$9,)($ +!
%39(0B!D3$%F!
*
*
!1/9C/+?Y41*?YN*/1BC_/41B*
*
?K&,(,8-#'-,%(*
!
\+!A+%!#/$!%3$B+%,!*/$(0B!%)+!=/3$%+$C!(01'/*(0B!%)+!$+?(+@!#&!YhI!<$++!"$+,+$?3%(#0!
^$*+$!&('+,F!!\+!D$#1+,,+*!hR!G$++*#A!#&!80&#$A3%(#0!$+=/+,%,!&#$!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!
30*!1#0%(0/+*!A#0%)'4!'+%%+$!,3AD'(0BF!!\+!D$+D3$+*!30*!(,,/+*!D$#1+*/$+!0#%+,!&#$!
@#$9,%3%(#0!$(,9!3,,+,,A+0%,F!!<)+!6#1/A+0%!2303B+A+0%!<+3A!,%3$%+*!,1300(0B!
7#/,(0B!^D%(#0,M!*3('4!D#,%F!<)+!6+D3$%A+0%M,!D#,%3'!&/01%(#0!(,!0#@!A303B+*!
1+0%$3''4!>4!.#$D#$3%+!J+$?(1+,F!!!
*
J58,("88*BF8-"&8*
*
\+!1#AD'+%+*!/DB$3*+,!#0!%)+!.#0&($A!8<!,4,%+A!/,+*!>4!)(B)@34,C!%$++,C!
'30*,13D+!30*!0+%@#$9!A303B+A+0%!30*!J"^..C!%)+!8<!,4,%+A!/,+*!>4!%)+!
,/DD#$%(0B!D+#D'+!,+$?(1+F!2b!/,+*!>4!+0?($#0A+0%3'!)+3'%)!30*!%$3*(0B!,%30*3$*,!`!
'(1+0,(0B!@3,!/DB$3*+*!%#!A++%!1)30B+,!(0!'+B(,'3%(#0!#0!R,%!LD$('F!<)+!&(0301(3'!
A#*/'+!#0!1)#(1+!>3,+*!'+%%(0B!8<!,4,%+A!@3,!(AD'+A+0%+*!3,!@+''!3,!%)+!3**$+,,!
'#3*+$C!GJJ!VW!30*!L2KJ!&#$!2bF!<)+!3**$+,,!'#3*+$!A303B+,!D$#D+$%4!3**$+,,!
#0!2bC!@)('+!%)+!(0%+$&31+,!+03>'+!&##*!,3AD'+,!%#!>+!*#@0'#3*+*!&$#A!%)+!G##*!
J%30*3$*,!LB+014!30*!30(A3'!@+'&3$+!(0&#$A3%(#0!%#!>+!+O1)30B+*!+'+1%$#0(13''4!
@(%)!6KGPLF
!
\+!,%3$%+*!@#$9!#0!3!A3Q#$!8<!D$#Q+1%!%#!/DB$3*+!%)+!.#$D#$3%+!E8J!,4,%+AF!<)(,!
(01'/*+,!3!0+@!80%$30+%!>3,+*!E8J!KOD'#$+$!&#$!3''!#&!%)+!.#/01('n,!,%3&&F!\+!
1#0%(0/+*!%#!,/DD#$%!%)+!1/$$+0%!.#$D#$3%+!E8J!,4,%+A!30*!D$#*/1+!0/A+$#/,!A3D,!
&#$!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%.

\+!,%3$%+*!1$+3%(0B!30*!A(B$3%(0B!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%M,!#0'(0+!&#$A,!%#!%)+!0+@!
1#$D#$3%+!#0'(0+!&#$A!,4,%+AF!\+!@+$+!(0?#'?+*!(0!1$+3%(0B!@+>!1#0%+0%!&#$!%)+!5G.p!
A4!Q#>!,+3$1)!@+>!,(%+!>+(0B!,+%!/D!>4!)#/,(0B!#D%(#0,F!<)(,!,(%+!@(''!)+'D!D+#D'+!#0!
%)+!)#/,(0B!$+B(,%+$!&(0*!+AD'#4A+0%F!\+!,%3$%+*!@#$9(0B!@(%)!%)+!'(>$3$4!,+$?(1+!#0!
%)+($!0+@!#0'(0+!13%3'#B/+!D$#*/1%F!!
*
"c*B&'#-)'#K*!#%.#'&&"*
!
J#&%@3$+!@3,!(AD'+A+0%+*!3%!.#$3'!P++&!%)3%!3''#@,!?(,(%,!'#3*+*!(0%#!%)+!+l!13$*!
A303B+A+0%!,4,%+A!>4!,#1(3'!,+$?(1+,!1'(+0%,!!%#!>+!,D+0%!>4!D3,,(0B!%)+($!,A3$%!
13$*!#?+$!3!13$*!$+3*+$F!
!
<)+!%+$A!S#'*+$!D+$,#0,M!$3%)+$!%)30!S#?+$!NIM,M!!)3,!>++0!3*#D%+*!&#$!,+$?(1+,!!
%3$B+%+*!3%!$+%($+*!D+#D'+!!%#!311#AA#*3%+!!!%)+!,'(*(0B!3B+!+'(B(>('(%4!$+1+0%'4!
(0%$#*/1+*!!&#$!%)+!!1#01+,,(#03$4!&3$+,!13$*F!L''!@+>!,(%+!$+&+$+01+,!+%1F!$+'3%+*!%#!
S#?+$!NIM,M!,+$?(1+,!)3?+!>++0!/D*3%+*F!
!

86
92



! ! !

J/$$+4!'(>$3$(30,!@+$+!B(?+0!3!*+A#0,%$3%(#0!#&!)#@!JA3$%.#00+1%!@#/'*!@#$9!(0!
'(>$3$(+,!%#!+0$#'!D+#D'+!&#$!3!J/$$+4!K_.<J!>/,!D3,,!(&!J/$$+4!#D%,!%#!>/4!3!
JA3$%.#00+1%!'(1+01+!&$#A!5$3190+''F!
!
6+A#0,%$3%(#0,!@+$+!3',#!)#,%+*!&#$!X(01#'0,)($+C!.)+,)($+!\+,%!30*!.)+,%+$!!
<)+!HIRI!UHIRR!6(,1#/0%!6($+1%#$4!$+&$+,)!@3,!'3/01)+*F!<)+!0/A>+$!#&!D3$%(1(D30%,!
(,!,+%!%#!$(,+!3B3(0!%)(,!4+3$F!
!
9,('()"*
!
80!3**(%(#0!%#!%)+!1#$+!&/01%(#0,!#&!311#/0%(0BC!>/*B+%!A#0(%#$(0BC!&(0301(3'!3*?(1+!
30*!*+>%!1#0%$#'!%)+!A3(0!%3,9!(0!%)(,!=/3$%+$!@3,!%#!1'#,+!%)+!311#/0%,!&#$!%)+!
&(0301(3'!4+3$HIIkaRIC!@)(1)!@3,!1#AD'+%+*!@(%)(0!%)+!3B$++*!*+3*'(0+,F
!
`5&'(*/"8%5#)"8*
!
7P!1#0%(0/+*!%#!D#,(%(?+'4!,/DD#$%!%)+!m#> !K?3'/3%(#0! ,1)+A+!3%!+?+$4!'+?+'!&$#A!
D$+,+01+!# 0!J%++$(0B! E$#/D!%#!,/DD#$%(0B!+ AD'#4++,!1#AD'+%+!m# >!80&#$A3%(#0 !
c/+,%(#003($+,F!
!
2+0%#$!%$3(0(0B!@3,!* +'(?+$+*!&#$!>#%)!A+0%#$,!30*!A+0%++,!30* !%)+!,1)+A +!
#&&(1(3''4!,%3$%+*!@(%)!3''!A+0%++,!3%%+0*(0B!3%!'+3,%!#0+!#&!%)+!,(O!A+0%#$(0B!,+,,(#0!
!
<)+!%+3A!31%(?+'4!,/DD#$%+*!%)+!G/%/$+!m#>,!G/0*!J1)+A+!>4!#$B30(,(0B!3!,+$(+,! #&!
@#$9,)#D,C!+0,/$(0B!%)+!4#/0B!D+#D'+!3$+!,/ DD#$%+*!(0!% )+($!*34!%#!*34!@#$9!3 0*!
,#$%(0B!304!(,,/+,F!2/1)!)3*!>++0!'+3$0+*!%)3%!1#/'*!>+!/,+*!(0!%)+!&/%/$+F !!
V0&#$%/03%+'4!%)+!E#?+$0A+0%!)3,!D/''+*!%)+!&/0*(0B!&#$!%)(,!,1)+A+F!
!
\#$9!)3,!> ++0!/0*+$%39+0!#0!(AD$#?(0B!,%$+,,!(0!%)+!*+ D3$%A+0%F!!L!0/A>+$!# &!
,%$+,,!$(,9!3,,+,,A+0%,!)3?+!>++0!,/11+,,&/''4!1#AD'+%+*F!
!
<)+!%+3A!@#$9+*!)3$*!%#!+0,/$+ !3!,A##%)!D$#1+,,!@3 ,!(0!D'31+ !& #$!A303B(0 B!
1)30B+!$+=/($+*!3,!3!$+,/'%!#&!B$30%!$+*/1%(#0,F!
!
7P!,/DD#$%+*!%@#!+AD'#4++,!(0!%)+!13$!D3$9(0B !%+3A!(0!%)+($!<V"K!%$3 0,&+$!%#!:(01(!
"3$9F!!
!
<)+!%+3A!/0*+$%##9!3! D$#Q+1%!#0! .P5!1)+19,!&#$!+AD'#4++,!@)#!)3*!D$+?(#/,' 4!
)+'*!3!.P5!&$#A!30#%)+$!#$B30(,3%(#0F!
!
\#$9!@)(1)!)3*!>++0!D'300+*!&#$!8 JL!$+B(,%$3%(#0!@3,!)3'%+*!3,!%)+!E#?+$0A+0%!( ,!
$+?(+@(0B!(%,!3DD$#31)!%#!J3&+B/3$*(0BF!
!
<)(,!=/3$%+$!%)+!$+1$/(%A+0%!31%(?(%4!)3,!A3(0'4!>++0!&#1/,,+*!#0!%)+!'+(,/$+!,(%+,C!
&#$!D#,%,!,/1)!3,!L,,(,%30%!E$++09++D+$!30*!E#'&!J)#D!L,,(,%30%!3%!6#@0,)($+C!
P+1+D%(#0(,%,!3%!.#$3'!P++&!30*!5$3190+''!X+(,/$+!.+0%$+C!X+(,/$+!L%%+0*30%,!3%!
K*B>3$$#@!30*!J30*)/$,%C!30*!3!.#0&+$+01+!"#$%+$!3%!K3,%)3AD,%+3*!"3$9!
.#0&+$+01+!.+0%$+F!!\+!)3?+!3',#!$+1$/(%+*!3!0+@!"$#Q+1%,!^&&(1+$!@(%)(0!"3$9,!30*!
.#/0%$4,(*+C!30*!3!<$30,D#$%!"'300(0B!^&&(1+$!@(%)(0!JD3%(3'!"#'(14F!
!
<)+!%+3A!)3,!1#0%(0/+*!%#!,/DD#$%!A303B+$,! #0!3!$30B+! #&!1#AD'+O!,%3&&(0B!(,,/+,!
30*!&#$A3'!)+3$(0B,F!!< )(,!=/3$%+$!%)+$+!)3?+!>++0!Y!&#$A3'!)+3$(0B,-![!*(,1(D'(03$4C!
H!D+$&#$A301+!(AD$#?+A+0%a13D3>('(%4!)+3$(0 B,FF!!\+!3' ,#!,/DD#$%+ *!A303B+$,C!
%)$#/B)!%)+!D$#?(,(#0!#&!3*?(1+!30*!B/(*301+C! &#$!3!0/A>+$! #&!(0&#$A3'!,(190+,,!30* !
D+$&#$A301+!(,,/+,F!

87
93



! ! !

*
4%(-#')-8*
!
K0B(0++$(0B!.#0,/'%3014!.#0%$31%,!dm31#>,!53>%(+!P+D'31+A+0%e!
!
80!=/3$%+$!R!3''!#/%,%30*(0B!1#0%$31%,!+O1+D%!&#$!5$(*B+,!@+$+!,(B0+*!30*!3$+!0#@!(0!
/,+F!!
!
L!A(0(U1#AD+%(%(#0!@3,!)+'*!&#$!%)+!5$(*B+,!`!J%$/1%/$+,!.#0%$31%!%)$#/B)!%)+!J#/%)!
K3,%!"30!E#?+$0A+0%!.#''3>#$3%(?+!7(B)@34,!"$#&+,,(#03'!J+$?(1+,!G$3A+@#$9F!!
<+0*+$,!@+$+!$+1+(?+*!&$#A!%)$++!#&!%)+!&#/$!,/DD'(+$,!%#!%)+!G$3A+@#$9!30*!
+?3'/3%(#0!)3,!>++0!1#AD'+%+*F!

.3$!"3$9!2303B+A+0%!.#0%$31%!
!
<)+!1#0%$31%!)3,!0#@!>++0!,(B0+*F!
!
<$30,&+$!#&!%)+!A/'%(U,%#$+4!13$!D3$9,!30*!+0&#$1+A+0%!%#!%)+!,/11+,,&/'!>(**+$C!:(01(!
"3$9C!)3DD+0+*!#0!%)+!R,%!m/'4F!!!

2+$1/$4!L>3%+A+0%aP+D'31+A+0%!.$+A3%#$,!.#0%$31%!
!
<)(,!=/3$%+$!@+!1#AD'+%+*!%)+!+?3'/3%(#0!#&!$+%/$0+*!%+0*+$,C!3@3$*!@3,!3DD$#?+*!
30*!1#0%$31%,!3$+!>+(0B!*$3@0!/DF!X(3(,#0!>+%@++0!%)+!.#/01('!30*!%)+!,/11+,,&/'!
,/DD'(+$C!G31/'%3%(+?+!<+1)0#'#B(+,C!)3,!,%3$%+*!&#$!%)+!D/$D#,+!#&!+0,/$(0B!%)3%!%)+!
D$+'(A(03$4!@#$9!%#!>+!*#0+!>4!%)+!.#/01('!*#?+%3(',!@(%)!%)3%!%#!>+!*#0+!+3$'4!(0!
HIRR!>4!G31/'%3%(+?+F!

J#/%)!7(''!"3$9!.#0%$31%!
!
80!=/3$%+$! RC!D'300(0B !3DD$#?3'!& #$!%)+!%+0* +$+*!,1)+A +!@3,!#>%3 (0+*!30*!% )+!
1#0%$31%!*#1/A+0%,!@+$+!1#AD'+%+*F!\+!3$+!/0 3>'+!%#!,(B0!1#0%$31%,!/0%('!3DD$#?3' !
#&!%)+!%+0*+$+*!,1)+A+!)3,!>++0!1#0&($A+*!>4!<)3A+,!\3%+$F!

P+&/,+!.#''+1%(#0!.#0%$31%!
!
80!=/3$%+$!R!@+!1#AD'+ %+*!%)+!D$+U=/3'(&(13% (#0!D$#1+,,F!J D+1(&(13%(#0!30*!1#0%$31% !
%+$A,!@+$+! 1#AD'+%+*C!@)(1)!$+=/($ +*!A#$+!@# $9!%)30!D'30 0+*F!<+0*+$!*#1/A+0%,!
@+$+!(,,/+*!%#!%)+![!#$B30(,3%(#0,!@)(1)!)3?+!>++0!(0?(%+*!%#!%+0*+$F!
!
1]5'6,-,"8*
!
\+!@#$9+*!@(%)!1#''+3B/+,!%)$#/B)#/%!%)+!.#/01('!%#!1#AD'+%+!%)+!@#$9!%)3%!3''#@+*!
/,!%#!,/11+,,&/''4!B3(0!%)+!31)(+?(0B!'+?+'!#&!%)+!+=/3'(%(+,!,%30*3$*!#0!H!m/'4F!!<)(,!
@#$9!(0?#'?+*!1#''+3B/+,!31$#,,!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!D$+D3$(0B!13,+!,%/*(+,!30*!
3%%+0*(0B!(0%+$?(+@,!@(%)!%)+!(0,D+1%#$,F!
!
\+!1#AD'+%+*!%)+!+=/3'(%(+,!%$3(0(0B!&#$!3''!A303B+$,!(0!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!@)#!*(*!0#%!
$+1+(?+!%)+!%$3(0(0B!(0!%)+!@(0%+$F!!!\+!D/>'(,)+*!%)+!K=/3'(%(+,!8AD31%!L,,+,,A+0%!
&#$!*+?+'#DA+0%!A303B+A+0%.!
!
J58,("88*4%(-,(5,-F*
!
\+!1#AD'+%+*!%)+!300/3'!/D*3%+!#&!%)+!&'/!D30*+A(1!D'30!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$F!

88
94



! ! !

!
*
!"#$%#&'()"*+'('."&"(-*
!
\+!,/DD#$%+*!(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!#&!%)+!0+@!D+$&#$A301+!A303B+A+0%!,4,%+A!(0!LD$('!
30*!D$#*/1+*!%)+!=/3$%+$!h!HIIkaRI!D+$&#$A301+!A303B+A+0%!,%3%(,%(1,!/,(0B!%)+!
,4,%+AF!!\+!1#0%(0/+*!%#!@#$9!@(%)!1#$D#$3%+!1#''+3B/+,!#0!*+?+'#D(0B!3!,%$3%+B4!%#!
+O%+0*!%)+!,4,%+AM,!/,+F!
!
\+!&(03'(,+*!%)+!HIRIaRR!,+$?(1+!D'30!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$F!
!
L''!+AD'#4++,!(0!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%!)3*!%)+($!300/3'!3DD$3(,3'!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$!+0,/$(0B!
J+$?(1+!"'30!#>Q+1%(?+,!D3,,!*#@0!%#!(0*(?(*/3'!#>Q+1%(?+,!31$#,,!%)+!*+D3$%A+0%F!!
!
458-%&"#*4'#"*
!
\+!D/>'(,)+*!%)+!#&&(1+$aA+A>+$!1)3$%+$!&#$!1/,%#A+$!13$+!(0(%(3%+*!(0!#/$!Q#(0%!
@#$9,)#D,!(0!%)+!3/%/A0F!!\+!'3/01)+*!,#A+!0+@!5^P8J!D3B+,!#0!1/,%#A+$!13$+!
%#!)+'D!#/$!,%3&&!(AD$#?+!%)+($!1/,%#A+$!13$+F!
!

!O?YYWYb*?YN*G/?YB!C/G*
!
J5,6K,(.*4%(-#%6*
!
<)+!D('#%!,1)+A+!5/('*(0B!.#0%$#'!@+$+!%39(0B!D3$%!(0!&#$!%)+!.XE!&#$!$(,9!3,,+,,(0B!
5/('*(0B!P+B/'3%(#0,!3DD'(13%(#0,!)3,!1#01'/*+*F!!<)+!%+3A!@+$+!=/+,%(#0+*!>4!.XE!
$+D$+,+0%3%(?+,!&#$!%)+($!#D(0(#0!#0!)#@!(%!@+0%!30*!%)+!$+,/'%,!#&!%)(,!@(''!>+!/,+*!%#!
,)3D+!%)+!*+?+'#DA+0%!#&!3!&#$%)1#A(0B!$(,9!3,,+,,A+0%!B/(*301+!*#1/A+0%!&$#A!
.XEF!!!
!
<)+$+!(,!%)+!D#,,(>('(%4!%)3%!%)(,!B/(*301+!@(''!>+!'(09+*!(0!@(%)!%)+!0+@!5/('*(0B!dX#13'!
L/%)#$(%4!.)3$B+,e!P+B/'3%(#0,!@)(1)!13A+!(0!%#!&#$1+!#0!R!LD$('!HIRIF!!\#$9!)3,!
>++0!/0*+$@34!(0!(0?+,%(B3%(0B!30*!D'300(0B!)#@!>+,%!%#!*+?+'#D!30*!(AD'+A+0%!3!
0+@!1)3$B(0B!,1)+A+!3%!5$3190+''!(0!#$*+$!%#!1#AD'4!@(%)!%)+!0+@!$+B/'3%(#0,C!
(01'/*(0B!*+?+'#D(0B!3!0+@!%(A+!$+1#$*(0B!,4,%+AF!!L''!X#13'!L/%)#$(%4!5/('*(0B!
.#0%$#'!,+1%(#0,!)3?+!%#!3*#D%!%)(,!>4!R!^1%#>+$!HIRI!30*!%)(,!(,!%)+!D'300+*!*3%+!
&#$!(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!3%!5$3190+''F!!8%!A+30,!%)+!1)3$B(0B!,%$/1%/$+!A/,%!>+!A#$+!
%$30,D3$+0%!30*!Q/,%(&(+*!/0*+$!3!S/,+$!D34,M!D$(01(D'+F!
!
\+!)3?+!>++0!&#$%/03%+!%#!,(B0!/D!%@#!A#$+!D3$%0+$,!/0*+$!%)+!XL5.!"3$%0+$,)(D!
,1)+A+!>$(0B(0B!(0!A#$+!@#$9!&$#A!#/%,(*+!#&!#/$!B+#B$3D)(13'!3$+3F!
!
L!A+A>+$!#&!%)+!%+3A!)3,!3%%+0*+*!3!1#/$,+!$/0!>4!%)+!5/('*(0B!P+,+3$1)!
K,%3>'(,)A+0%!30*!,3%!%)+!+O3A(03%(#0!%#!>+1#A+!30!311$+*(%+*!.#*+!&#$!
J/,%3(03>'+!7#A+,!L,,+,,#$F!!<)+!$+,/'%,!#&!%)(,!3$+!*/+!(0!m/'4F!!8%!(,!)#D+*!%)(,!@(''!
'+3*!%#!3!$#/%+!&#$!+3$'(+$!1#0,/'%3%(#0!@(%)!)#/,(0B!*+?+'#D+$,!%#!,+1/$+!3!5/('*(0B!
P+B/'3%(#0,!3DD'(13%(#0!$3%)+$!%)30!'#,+!(%!%#!%)+!D$(?3%+!,+1%#$C!30*!B+0+$3%+!3!
D#%+0%(3'!0+@!$+?+0/+!,%$+3A!>4!1)3$B(0B!&#$!.#*+!&#$!J/,%3(03>'+!)#A+,!3*?(1+!
30*!3,,+,,A+0%F!
!
FO'(K*4I'#."8*
!
\(%)!%)+!(01#A(0B!1#3'(%(#0!B#?+$0A+0%C!78"J!@3,!,1$3DD+*!30*!,#!%)+!0/A>+$!#&!
"+$,#03'!J+3$1)!$+=/+,%,!*$#DD+*!(AA+*(3%+'4F!!<)+$+!)3,!>++0!3!,A3''!,@(0B!%#!

89
95



! ! !

%)+!%39+!/D!#&!^&&(1(3'!J+3$1)+,!(0!D$+&+$+01+!3,!,+3$1)!D/$1)3,+,!,@(0B!&$#A!D#(0%!
#&!,3'+!%#!D#(0%!#&!D/$1)3,+F!
!
N"2"6%0&"(-*+'('."&"(-**
!
<)+!&($,%!=/3$%+$!)3,!,++0!3!,(B0(&(130%!$(,+!(0!D'300(0B!&++!(01#A+!30*!(&!%)+!1/$$+0%!
'+?+'!#&!31%(?(%4!$+A3(0,!%)+0!%)+!,+$?(1+!@(''!0#%!>+!+OD+$(+01(0B!%)+!>/*B+%!
D$+,,/$+,!(%!&31+*!'3,%!4+3$!!
!
L!$+?(+@!#&!%)+!+0%($+!D'300(0B!,+$?(1+!1#AA+01+*!(0!%)+!=/3$%+$!90#@0!3,!
2303B(0B!KO1+''+0%!"'300(0B!J+$?(1+!D$#Q+1%!d2K"JeC!@)(1)!(01'/*+,!$+?(+@(0B!%)+!
&#''#@(0B-!
!

"! *+1(,(#0!A39(0B!D$#1+*/$+,!30*!3$$30B+A+0%,!
"! D/>'(1!1#0,/'%3%(#0!30*!+0B3B+A+0%!3$$30B+A+0%,!
"! 1/$$+0%!3$$30B+A+0%,!&#$!+0&#$1+A+0%!30*!1#AD'(301+F!
"! 311+,,(>('(%4!#&!%)+!,+$?(1+!%#!/,+$,!(01'/*(0B!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!3!"'300(0B!L'+$%!

,4,%+A!&#$!%)+!D/>'(1!30*!#?+$)3/'!#&!%)+!D'300(0B!@+>!D3B+,!
"! D$(#$(%(+,!&#$!%)+!,+$?(1+!
"! #DD#$%/0(%(+,!&#$!*(&&+$+0%!A+%)#*,!&#$!*+'(?+$4!
!

<)+!$+?(+@!(,!'##9(0B!1'#,+'4!3%!)#@!%)+!,+$?(1+!/,+,!$+,#/$1+,!30*!(%,!D$#1+,,+,!
30*!D$#1+*/$+,C!@(%)!3''!,%3&&!@)#!!3$+!+AD'#4+*!(0!%)+!D'300(0B!,+$?(1+!#$!1#0%$(>/%+!
%#!(%!%)$#/B)!,D+1(3'(,%!3*?(1+!d+FBF!%$++,!30*!%$30,D#$%3%(#0e!)3?(0B!>++0!(0?#'?+*!(0!
3!%(A+!$+1#$*(0B!+O+$1(,+!*/$(0B!234F!!<)(,!$+?(+@!(,!'(09+*!@(%)!#%)+$!$+?(+@,!>+(0B!
/0*+$%39+0!>4!D'300(0B!,+$?(1+,!31$#,,!%)+!1#/0%$4!d1/$$+0%'4!,#A+!hI!3/%)#$(%(+,M!
3$+!(0?#'?+*!@(%)!%)(,!D$#Q+1%eF!!54!1#AD3$(0B!@(%)!#%)+$!D'300(0B!3/%)#$(%(+,!/,(0B!
1#0,(,%+0%!*3%3!1#''+1%(#0!A+%)#*,!%)+!.#/01('!@(''!B3(0!3!&3$!>+%%+$!/0*+$,%30*(0B!#&!
)#@!$+,#/$1+,!3$+!/,+*!30*!%)+!1)#(1+,!%)3%!%)+!.#/01('!0++*,!%#!A39+!(0!%+$A,!#&!
D$(#$(%(+,!(0!3!%(A+!#&!$+,%$3(0%F!
!
<)+!=/3$%+$!3',#!,3@!%)+!,+$?(1+!@#$9(0B!@(%)!.XE!#0!%)+!D+$&#$A301+!(0*(13%#$!
D('#%C!30!+O+$1(,+!@)(1)!3',#!@(''!1#0%$(>/%+!%#!%)+!*3%3!1#''+1%(#0!(0&#$A(0B!%)+!,+$?(1+!
$+?(+@!T!%)(,!D$#Q+1%!$+1+(?+*!3!,A3''!3A#/0%!#&!&/0*(0B!&$#A!.XEF!!L0#%)+$!
,/11+,,&/''4!1#AD'+%+*!%3,9!@3,!%)+!D$#?(,(#0!3!$+,#/$1+!>3,+!#0!%)+!(0%$30+%!
d5^P8Je!%#!3,,(,%!#%)+$!*+D3$%A+0%,!(0!%)+($!*+3'(0B,!@(%)!%)+!6+?+'#DA+0%!
2303B+A+0%!J+$?(1+F!
!
L!0/A>+$!#&!"'300(0B!^&&(1+$,!*/$(0B!%)+!=/3$%+$!3%%+0*+*!3!D$#B$3AA+!#&!/$>30!
*+,(B0!%$3(0(0B!'+*!>4!"$#&+,,#$!830!5+0%'+4!#&!^O&#$*!5$##9+,!V0(?+$,(%4]!3!
D$#B$3AA+!@3,!3',#!3%%+0*+*!>4!#&&(1+$,!&$#A!#%)+$!D'300(0B!,+$?(1+,!(0!5+$9,)($+!
30*!73AD,)($+F!
!
6/$(0B!%)+!=/3$%+$!%)+!+0&#$1+A+0%!&/01%(#0!#&!%)+!,+$?(1+!$+A3(0+*!)(B)!D$#&('+!30*!
&#''#@(0B!3!2(0(,%+$(3'!'+%%+$!$+B3$*(0B!/03/%)#$(,+*!>$+31)+,!#&!D'300(0B!$+B/'3%(#0,!
#11/$$(0B!#?+$!5309!7#'(*34,!3$$30B+A+0%!)3?+!>++0!D/%!(0!D'31+!%#!+0,/$+!
+0&#$1+A+0%!,%3&&!30*!'+B3'!>319!/D!3$+!#0!,%30*!>4!3%!%)+,+!D+$(#*,F!
!
L$(,(0B!&$#A!%)+!(01$+3,(0B!0/A>+$!#&!>$+31)+,!#&!D'300(0B!$+B/'3%(#0,!3!0/A>+$!#&!
'+B3'!31%(#0,!30*!+0&#$1+A+0%!31%(#0,!@(''!(0!%)+!1#A(0B!A#0%),!D'31+!*+A30*,!#0!
%)+!,+$?(1+,!$+,#/$1+,C!>#%)!,%3&&!%(A+!30*!&(0301(3''4!F!!!
!
^0!%)+!*+?+ '#DA+0%!&$#0%!%)+!5$3190+''!<#@0!.+0%$+!$+A3(0,!%)+!9+4!D $(#$(%4!&#$!%)+ !
,+$?(1+!@(%) !30!3DD'(13% (#0!30%(1(D3%+*!d&#''#@(0B!30!K8L!,1$++0(0B!P+=/+,%e!&#$!30!

90
96



! ! !

+O%+0,(#0!#&!%(A+!(0! @)(1)!5P"!1 30!(AD'+A+ 0%!%)+!#/%'(0+!D'300(0B!D+$A(,,(#0!
B$30%+*!(0!HIIiF!L1%(?(%4!1#0%(0/+,!%#!>+!1+ 0%$+*!#0!D$#D#,3',!&#$ !3!0/ A>+$! #&!
b$*!D3$%4!,(%+,C!(01'/*(0 B!1#0%(0/(0 B!D$+U3DD'(13%(#0!0+B# %(3%(#0!#0!%)+!5$3190+''!
7+3'%)!JD31+!!
!
B0'-,'6*!%6,)F*
!
\#$9!)3,!3B3(0!&#1/,+*!#0!%)+!D$+D3$3%(#0!#&!%)+!J(%+!L''#13%(#0,!6+?+'#DA+0%!"'30!
6#1/A+0%!dJL6"6eF!!<)(,!*#1/A+0%!@3,!(0%+0*+*!%#!(*+0%(&4!'30*!%#!311#AA#*3%+!
%)+!>3'301+!#&!%)+RHiYI!*@+''(0B,!3''#13%+*!%#!%)+!5#$#/B)!(0!%)+!J#/%)!K3,%!30*!>+!
311#AD30(+*!>4!30!80&$3,%$/1%/$+!"'30F!!!
!
\#$9!#0!%)+!D$#Q+1%!(0!%)(,!=/3$%+$!(01'/*+*!1#AD'+%(#0!#&!3!A3Q#$!#D%(#0,!
1#0,/'%3%(#0!@)(1)!$30!&$#A!G+>$/3$4ULD$('!HIRIF!!<)(,!&($,%!,%3B+!(01'/*+*!
D$+D3$3%(#0!#&!A3Q#$!D3$%(1(D3%(#0!*#1/A+0%C!/,+!#&!30!#0U'(0+!1#0,/'%3%(#0!,4,%+AC!3!
,+$(+,!#&!A300+*!+O)(>(%(#0,!3$#/0*!%)+!5#$#/B)!30*!3!@#$9,)#D!@(%)!%)+!X#13'!
J%$3%+B(1!"3$%0+$,)(DF!!L!,+1#0*!,%3B+!#&!1#0,/'%3%(#0!@3,!)+'*!*/$(0B!234!
1#0,(,%(0B!#&!&#/$!'#13'!,+,,(#0,!%#!'##9!3%!%)+!*+?+'#DA+0%!D#%+0%(3'!#&!%)+!+(B)%!
D#,,(>'+!,%$3%+B(1!'#13%(#0,!(0!A#$+!*+%3('F!!<)+,+!@+$+!&31('(%3%+*!>4!%)+!1#0,/'%30%,!
3DD#(0%+*!%#!13$$4!#/%!A3,%+$D'300(0B!@#$9!#0!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!,(%+,!30*!)3?+!(0&#$A+*!
%)+($!@#$9!(0!D$#*/1(0B!1#01+D%!30*!A3,%+$D'30,F!!\#$9!#0!%)+!80&$3,%$/1%/$+!
6+'(?+$4!"'30!)3,!1#0%(0/+*!30*!,1)+*/'+,!#&!(0&$3,%$/1%/$+!$+=/($+*!&#$!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!
,(%+,!)3?+!>++0!D$+D3$+*!#0!%)+!>3,(,!#&!%)+!)#/,(0B!0/A>+$,!(0!%)+!#D%(#0,!
1#0,/'%3%(#0F!
!
.#0,/'%3%(#0!1#AA+01+*!#0!%)+!J%$++%,1+0+!J/DD'+A+0%3$4!"'300(0B!6#1/A+0%F!!!
!
.)30B+,!(0!B#?+$0A+0%!D#'(14C!D3$%(1/'3$'4!%)+!300#/01+A+0%,!%)3%!%)+!J#/%)!K3,%!
"'30!(,!,##0!%#!>+!3>#'(,)+*!)3,!1$+3%+*!/01+$%3(0%4!3>#/%!%)+!A#,%!3DD$#D$(3%+!
D$#B$3AA+!30*!(,!'(9+'4C!3%!%)+!?+$4!'+3,%C!%#!13/,+!,#A+!*+'34!(0!D$#B$+,,!#0!%)+!
JL6"6!!%)+!!<)3A+,!53,(0!7+3%),!J"L!J"6!30*!%)+!$+D'31+A+0%!&#$!%)+!X(A(%(0B!
%)+!8AD31%!#&!6+?+'#DA+0%!J"6FF!!!
*
46,&'-"*4I'(."*'(K*4'#\%(*+'('."&"(-*
*
<)+!$+?(,+*!.'(A3%+!.)30B+!L1%(#0!"'30!&$#A!LD$('!HIRI!@3,!3DD$#?+*!>4!.2<!(0!
m/0+!HIRI!30*!(,!,1)+*/'+*!&#$!%)+!KO+1/%(?+!A++%(0B!#0!Rb%)!m/'4!HIRIF!
!
L!&#''#@U/D!A++%(0B!@3,!)+'*!>+%@++0!.L2.^!1#0,/'%30%,!30*!%)+!E$#/D!
L11#/0%30%!%#!1'3$(&4!%)+!&(0301(3'!A#*+''(0B!/,+*!(0!%)+!&+3,(>('(%4!,%/*4!&#$!3!*(,%$(1%!
)+3%(0B!,1)+A+!>+%@++0!5$3190+''!X+(,/$+!.+0%$+!30*!3*Q31+0%!,(%+,F!J/>Q+1%!%#!
3DD$#?3'!>4!%)+!.3$>#0!2303B+A+0%!5#3$*C!3!$+D#$%!@(''!>+!,1)+*/'+*!#0!%)+!
KO+1/%(?+!\#$9!"'30F!
!
L!,(%+!?(,(%!%#!%)+!D#%+0%(3'!@(0*!%/$>(0+!,(%+!#&&!X#0B,)#%!X30+!$+?+3'+*!%)3%!%)+$+!
@3,!3!>+%%+$!,(%+!311+,,!&$#A!.3(0!P#3*F!"3$%0+$,)(D,!&#$!P+0+@3>'+,!$+?(,+*!%)+($!
,(%+!D'30!311#$*(0B'4!30*!,/>A(%%+*!D$#D#,+*!%+$A,!&#$!30!#D%(#0!%#!'+3,+!%)+!,(%+!&#$!
3!*+%3('+*!&+3,(>('(%4!,%/*4F!!
*
"$#?(,(#03'!4+3$!+0*!+0+$B4!*3%3!HIIkaRI!,)#@,!30!+0+$B4!1#0,/AD%(#0!$+*/1%(#0!
#&!YZC!$+,/'%(0B!(0!3![Z!$+*/1%(#0!#&!.^H!&$#A!1#/01('!>/('*(0B,F!J1)##',!
1#0,/AD%(#0!$+*/1+*!>4!HZ!$+,/'%(0B!(0!3!RZ!$+*/1%(#0!#&!.^HF!!
!
<)+!A30* 3%#$4!.3$> #0!P+*/1%(#0!.#AA(% A+0%!K0+$B4!K&&(1(+014!J1)+A+!
1#AA+01+*!R ,%!LD$('!H IRIF!"$+D3$3%(#0!(,!/ 0*+$@34!%#!,/>A(%!$+B(,%$ 3%(#0!&#$!%) +!

91
97



! ! !

,1)+A+!>4!bI %)!J+D%+A>+$!HIRI!30*!%#!(AD'+A+0%!%)+!K3$'4!L1%(#0!2+% $(1!A+3,/$+,!
>4!23$1)! HIRRF!<)+,+!1#0,(,%! #&!?#'/0%3$4!L/%#A3%(1!2+%+$!P+ 3*+$,!dL2P,e!
(0,%3''+*!30 *!311$+*(%3% (#0!@(%)!%)+ !.3$>#0!<$/,%!J%30*3$ *F!!.2<!)3?+!3DD$#?+ *!
&/0*(0B!&#$!%)(,!(0,%3''3%(#0F!
!
.2<!3DD$# ?+*!D3$%(1(D3%(#0!(0!%)+!KV!&/0 *+*!X#.VJ!D$#Q+1%!dX#@!.3$># 0!
V0*+$,%30*(0B!&#$!JA3''!30*!2+*(/A!K0%+$D$(,+,eF!2++%(0B,!)3?+!>++0!,1)+*/'+*!%#!
(0%$#*/1+!%)+!D$#Q+1%!%#!%)+!5$3190+''!G#$+,%!"3$%0+$,)(D!30*!#%)+$!9+4!D3$%(1(D30%,F!
!
KO+1/%(?+!A+A>+$,!3DD$#?+*!D3$%(1(D3%(#0!(0 !3!X#@!.3$>#0 !_+%@#$9!G /0*!>(*!@(%) !
J1#%%(,)!30*!J#/%)+$0! K0+$B4F!^&&(1+$,!3$+!A++%(0B!@(%)!J JK!%#!)+'D! ,1#D+!#/%!%)+!
D$#Q+1%!&#$!3!>(*!*/+!3%!%)+!+0*!#&!L/B/,%F!

92
98



! ! !

!
G#'(80%#-*+'('."&"(-*B")-,%(*
!
G#'(80%#-*W&06"&"(-'-,%(*b#%50*

O%)'6*G#'(80%#-*!6'(*a*
!

!! \#$9!)3,!0#@!>++0!1#AD'+%+*!#0!(*+0%(&4(0B!1)3''+0B+,!30*!A+3,/$+,!%#!
A++%!#/$!0+@!#>Q+1%(?+,F!<)(,!@#$9!@3,!13$$(+*!#/%!(0%+$03''4!30*!@(%)!%)+,+!
(0!A(0*!@+!130!@#$9!%#@3$*,!3!A#$+!,/,%3(03>'+!%$30,D#$%!,4,%+A!%)3%!(,!
13D3>'+!#&!A++%(0B!%)+!0++*,!#&!#/$!1#AA/0(%4C!+1#0#A4!30*!+0?($#0A+0%F
<)+,+!$+,/'%,!@+$+!D/>'(,)+*!(0!,+1#0*!+U_+@,'+%%+$!@)(1)!130!>+!&#/0*!#0!
#/$!*+*(13%+*!X<"b!@+>,(%+!@@@F>$3190+''U&#$+,%FB#?F/9aX<"b!

!
!! ^&&(1+$,!3$+!0#@!@#$9(0B!#0!,%$3%+B(+,!@)(1)!@+!@(''!>+!1#0,/'%(0B!#0!'3%+$!

%)(,!4+3$F!<)+,+!(01'/*+!6+A30*!2303B+A+0%!30*!<$3?+'!.)#(1+C!@3'9(0B!
30*!141'(0BC!<$3?+'!%#!,1)##'C!<$3&&(1!2303B+A+0%C!"3$9(0BC!G$+(B)%C!P#3*!
J3&+%4C!L11+,,(>('(%4!30*!"3,,+0B+$!<$30,D#$%F!!

!
!! 80!+3$'4!m/0+!3!D$+,+0%3%(#0!@3,!A3*+!%#!%)+!X#13'!J%$3%+B(1!"3$%0+$,)(D!30*!

3!@#$9,)#D!@3,!)+'*!@)+$+!%3>'+,!@+$+!3,9+*!@)3%!%)+4!@#/'*!*#!%#!%$4!%#!
A++%!%)+!1)3''+0B+,!30*!31)(+?+!%)+!B#3',!,+%!#/%!30*!@)4C!>+3$(0B!(0!A(0*!
%)+!03%(#03'!B#3',F!<)(,!D$#?+*!3!?3'/3>'+!+O+$1(,+!@(%)!D3$%(1(D30%,!D$#?(*(0B!
,#A+!/,+&/'!1#AA+0%,!@)(1)!@(''!>+!%39+0!(0%#!1#0,(*+$3%(#0!@)+0!&#$A(0B!
%)+!,%$3%+B(+,!!

!
J#')M("66*/',6H'F*B-'-,%(*W&0#%2"&"(-*R%#MD*
!

!! \#$9,!3$+!0#@!1#AD'+%+*!#0!%)+!0+@!,%3%(#0!&#$+1#/$%!@(%)!(AD$#?+A+0%,!&#$!
3''!A#*+,!#&!(0%+$1)30B+!(01'/*(0BC!(AD#$%30%'4C!&#$!D+*+,%$(30,F!_+@!&+3%/$+,!
3',#!(01'/*+!3!'3$B+$!%3O(!$309C!1#$D#$3%+!>/,!>34!30*!,)+'% +$C!(AD$#?+*!141'+!
D3$9(0B!&31('(%(+,C!3**(%(#03'!,)#$%!%+$A!13$!D3$9(0BC!3!0+@!D+*+,%$(30!1$#,,(0BC!
(AD$#?+*!'(B)%(0B!30*!0+@!,+3%(0B!30*!'30*,13D(0B!

!
G#'(80%#-*+%K"6D* *
!! ! !

!! <)+!HIHN!%$30,D#$%!A#*+'!(,!>+(0B!/,+*!%#!%+,%!&/%/$+!)#/,(0B!#D%(#0,!3$#/0*!
%)+!>#$#/B)!%#!(*+0%(&4!%)+!'(9+'4!%$(D!B+0+$3%(#0!30*!*(,%$(>/%(#0!%)3%!@(''!$+,/'%!
&$#A!,/1)!*+?+'#DA+0%,F!8%!3',#!3,,+,,+,!3'%+$03%(?+!$#3*!1#0&(B/$3%(#0,!%)3%!
>+,%!311#AA#*3%+!%)+!%$3&&(1!B+0+$3%+*!#$!*(,D'31+*!>4!%)+!*+?+'#DA+0%F!
<)(,!+O+$1(,+!+03>'+,!%)+!1#/01('!%#!(*+0%(&4!9+4!'#13%(#0,!(0!%)+!%$30,D#$%!
0+%@#$9!%)3%!@(''!$+=/($+!*+?+'#D+$!1#0%$(>/%(#0,!%#@3$*,!(AD$#?+A+0%,F!

!
!! <)+!A#*+'!(,!3',#!>+(0B!/,+*!(0!%#!3,,+,,!,+?+$3'!3'%+$03%(?+!D$#D#,3',!%#!

$+*+?+'#D!%)+!5$#3*A##$!7#,D(%3'!,(%+C!30*!@(''!D$#?(*+!(0D/%!%#!3!<$30,D#$%!
L,,+,,A+0%!&#$!3!*+?+'#DA+0%!3%!LA+0!.#$0+$!30*!\3$&(+'*F!

!
!! <)+!>3,+!4+3$!L2!"+3 9!:8JJ82!A(1$#U,(A/'3%(#0!#&!%)+!LbHHaLbHk!1#$$(*#$!

(,!0+3$(0B!1#AD'+%(#0F!<)(,!A#*+'!@(''!3,,(,%!(0!3!D$#B$3AA+!#&!(AD$#?+A+0%,!
D$#D#,+*!3'#0B!%)3%!1#$$(*#$F!L!,(A('3$!A#*+'!(,!>+(0B!*+?+'#D+*!%#!$+D$+,+0% !
%)+!"2!"+39!)#/$!#0 1+!%)(,!(,!1#AD'+%+F!:+$9+)$!(0!J %3*%+0!J(A/'3%(#0!
%$30,'3%+*!(0%#!K0B'(,)! A+30,!r<$3&&(1!(0! 1(%(+,! ,(A/'3%(#0g! d:8JJ82e!A#*+',!
@(''!3',#!>+!*+?+'#D+*!%#!$+D$+,+0%!%)+!LbHk!X#0*#0!P#3*!1#$$(*#$Z*

*

93
99



! ! !

!! G#''#@(0B!%)+!:8JJ8 2!% +,%(0B!#&!(AD$#?+A+0%! #D%(#0,!&#$!%)+!JD#$%,!.+0%$+!
$#/0*3>#/%!#0!%)+!LbHHC!%)+!D$+&+$$+*!#D%(#0!(,! 0#@!>+(0B!(AD'+A+0%+*F!<)+!
3DD$#31)!&'3$+,!#0!3''! 3$A,!3$+!> +(0B!@(*+0+*!30*!,(B03 '!*/1%,!3$+! >+(0B!
3**+*!#0!%)+!53B,)#%!P#3*!0#$%)!30*!,#/%)!3$A,!&#$!&/%/$+!,(B03'(,3%(#0F!

!
G#'2"6*,(*J#')M("66*/"0%#-*
!

!! <)+!HIRI!<$3?+'!(0!5$3190+''!P+D#$%!(,!>+(0B!D$#*/1+*F!<)+!#>Q+1%(?+!#&!%)+!
$+D#$%!(,!%#!+,%3>'(,)!1)30B+,!(0!%)+!'+?+'!#&!%$3?+'!30*!%$3&&(1!&'#@!30*!%#!
1#AD3$+!%)+,+!%#!%)+!%3$B+%,!,+%!#/%!(0!%)+!HIIN!T!HIRR!X#13'!<$30,D#$%!"'30F!
<)+!$+D#$%!,)#@,!@+!3$+!@+''!#0!#/$!@34!%#!$+31)!%)#,+!%3$B+%,!,+%!@(%)!
(01$+3,+,!(0!.41'(0BC!P3('!30*!5/,!"3%$#03B+F!^01+!1#AD'+%+!%)+!$+D#$%!@(''!
>+!D/>'(,)+*!#0!%)+!5G.!@+>,(%+F!

!
!'88"(."#*G#'(80%#-*
!

!! L!0/A>+$!#&!SW(19!J%3$%M!,1)+A+,!@+$+!300#/01+*!>4!6&<C!0#%!(01'/*(0B!%)+!
,1)+A+!D$#D#,+*!>4!5G5.!&#$!+0)301+*!J/0*34!>/,+,!(0!%)+!5$3190+''!
/$>30!3$+3F!!\)('+!0#!&#$A3'!0#%(&(13%(#0!)3,!>++0!$+1+(?+*!%)3%!#/$!>(*!@3,!
0#%!,/11+,,&/'C!(%!,++A,!$+3,#03>'+!%#!3,,/A+!%)3%!%)+$+!@(''!>+!0#!&/$%)+$!
31%(#0F!

!
!! <)+!HIRI!T!RR!.#01+,,(#03$4!<$3?+'!J1)+A+!@3,!D/>'(,)+*!(0!311#$*301+!

@(%)!,%3%/%#$4!$+=/($+A+0%,C!30*!%)+!%(A+,13'+!&#$!304!#D+$3%#$!1)3''+0B+,!
)3,!0#@!D3,,+*F!!L!A(0#$!+0)301+A+0%!%#!%)+!J1)+A+!@3,!3B$++*!@(%)!G($,%!
%#!%39+!+&&+1%!(0!234!HIRI!(0!$+,D+1%!#&!%$3?+'!#0!E$++0!X(0+!1#31)+,!%#@3$*,!
X#0*#0!(0!%)+!A#$0(0BC!&#''#@(0B!3!%(A+%3>'+!1)30B+F!

!
!! <)+!%#%3'!0/A>+$!#&!>/,!D3,,+0B+$!Q#/$0+4,!,%3$%(0B!(0!%)+!5#$#/B)!d(0*(13%#$!

_8!Riie!(0!HIIkaRI!@3,!RCiN[CkNYF!<)(,!$+D$+,+0%,!3!hFN!Z!*+1$+3,+!#0!'3,%!
4+3$n,!$+D#$%+*!&(B/$+!dRCY[ICR[he!30*!(,!'#@+$!%)30!>#%)!%)+!X<"!30*!X"JL!
<3$B+%,!&#$!%)+!4+3$F!!<)+$+!@3,!3!03%(#03'!D(1%/$+!#&!&3''(0B!>/,!/,+!(0!%)+!
4+3$!dHFh!Z!(0!K0B'(,)!0#0UA+%$#D#'(%30!3$+3,Fe!!<)+!03%(#03'!+1#0#A(1!
D(1%/$+!(,!/0*#/>%+*'4!#0+!&31%#$!(0!%)(,C!%)+!#%)+$!(,!%)+!D3$%(1/'3$'4!,+?+$+!
@(0%+$C!@(%)!>/,!,+$?(1+,!(0!%)+!5#$#/B)!>+(0B!D3$%(1/'3$'4!>3*'4!3&&+1%+*!&#$!3!
@++9!(0!6+1+A>+$!HIIk!30*!%@#!@++9,!(0!m30/3$4!HIRIC!@(%)!0#!>/,+,!3%!3''!
3>'+!%#!$/0!#0!,#A+!*34,F!

!
!! 5/,!D/01%/3'(%4!d@)(1)!+O1'/*+*!*3%3!B3%)+$+*!*/$(0B!%)+!+O%$+A+!@+3%)+$e!

30*!>/,!D3,,+0B+$!,3%(,&31%(#0!3',#!>#%)!&+''!,'(B)%'4!(0!HIIkaRIF!
!

!! _+@!1#0%$31%,!@(%)!<)3A+,!<$3?+'!&#$!%)+!#D+$3%(#0!#&!3!0/A>+$!#&!,+$?(1+,!
(0!%)+!5#$#/B)!dA3(0'4!%)+!0#$%)!5$3190+''!0+%@#$9e!@+$+!(AD'+A+0%+*!&$#A!
Hk!234!HIRIC!@(%)!3!&'++%!#&!0+@C!&/''4!@)++'1)3($!311+,,(>'+C!A(*(>/,+,!
+0%+$(0B!,+$?(1+!#0!#$!,##0!3&%+$!%)+!,%3$%!#&!%)+!1#0%$31%F!!^%)+$!%)30!3!&+@!
A(0#$!(0(%(3'!(,,/+,C!%)+!1)30B+,!,++A!%#!)3?+!>++0!@+'1#A+*!>4!%)+!D/>'(1C!
@(%)!?+$4!'(%%'+!&++*>319!>+(0B!$+1+(?+*F!

!
!! L!0/A>+$!#&!1)30B+,!%#!1#AA+$1(3'!,+$?(1+,!@+$+!A3*+!3%!%)+!,3A+!%(A+C!

@(%)!.#/$%0+4!.#31)+,!(0%$#*/1(0B!%@#!J/0*34!,)#DD(0B!)#/$,!,+$?(1+,!(0!
5$3190+''C!30*!G($,%!3'%+$(0B!,#A+!,+$?(1+,F!

94
100



! ! !

!
G#'2"6*4I%,)"*
*

!! \3'9!%#!\#$9!\++9!@3,!D$#A#%+*!%#!>#%)!1#/01('!,%3&&!30*!'#13'!+AD'#4+$,!
*/$(0B!%)+!'3,%!@++9!#&!LD$('!

!
!! L!0+@!+U_+@,'+%%+$!SJA3$%!2#?+,M!@3,!'3/01)+*!(0!LD$('!30*!1($1/'3%+*!%#!

'#13'!>/,(0+,,+,!)(B)'(B)%(0B!,/,%3(03>'+!%$3?+'!(0(%(3%(?+,!30*!0+@,F!L!1#D4!(,!
3',#!3?3('3>'+!#0!%)+!D/>'(1!@+>!,(%+F!!

!
!! \3'9!%#!,1)##'!@++9!@3,!@+''!,/DD#$%+*!>4!'#13'!D$(A3$4!,1)##',!(0!A(*!234F!

"/D(',!@+$+!(,,/+*!@(%)!*(3$(+,!@)(1)!(01'/*+*!*(&&+$+0%!31%(?(%(+,!&#$!+31)!*34!
#&!%)+!@++9C!30*!$+,#/$1+,!30*!*#@0'#3*,!&#$!D3$+0%,!30*!%+31)+$,!@+$+!
3?3('3>'+!#0!%)+!D/>'(1!@+>!,(%+F!!

!
!! L''!A#*+,!#&!,/,%3(03>'+!%$3?+'C!>/%!+,D+1(3''4!0+@,!3>#/%!%)+!0+@!<)3A+,!

<$3?+'!>/,!,+$?(1+,C!@+$+!D$#A#%+*!%#!$+,(*+0%,!30*!,)#DD+$,!(0!5$3190+''!
G#$+,%!#0!J3%/$*34!Y%)!234!3,!D3$%!#&!3!G$(+0*M,!#&!%)+!K3$%)!SK1#!634S!+?+0%!
(0!%)+!%#@0!1+0%$+!

!
!! .41'(0B!@3,!)+3?('4!D$#A#%+*!(0!%)+!$/0!/D!%#!30*!*/$(0B!5(9+!\++9!dRk!T!Hi!

m/0+eF!K?+0%,!(01'/*+*!3!?+$4!,/11+,,&/'!*34!3%!W+00+'!X30+!JD+1(3'!,1)##'!
@)+$+!D3$+0%,!30*!D/D(',!@+$+!B(?+0!%)+!1)301+!%#!%$4!#/%!3!$30B+!#&!
,D+1(3''4!3*3D%+*!>(9+,C!3!B+0+$3'!141'(0B!D$#A#%(#0!(0!%)+!130%++0!3%!
"303,#0(1C!3!D/>'(1!>(9+!%$4U#/%!$#3*,)#@!(0!%)+!%#@0!1+0%$+C!%)+!'3/01)!#&!
%)+!P+*!P#/%+!141'+!1#$$(*#$!d(01'/*(0B!$3*(#!1#?+$3B+!#0!5+$9,)($+!G2eC!30*!
3!5(9+!%#!\#$9!1#AD+%(%(#0!&#$!1#/01('!,%3&&!30*!'#13'!$+,(*+0%,!30*!
+AD'#4++,!

!
!! \#$9!#0!<$3?+'!"'30,!,+1/$+*!?(3!%)+!D'300(0B!D$#1+,,!(01'/*(0B!3!$+?(+@!

A++%(0B!@(%)!b2!%#!*(,1/,,!%)+($!<$3?+'!"'30C!30*!A++%(0B,!30*!*(,1/,,(#0,!
%#!1#0,(*+$!3DD'(13%(#0,!&$#A!<)+!"++'!.+0%$+!30*!m+00+%,!"3$9!J1)##'!

!
1(.,(""#,(.*!#%d")-8*'(K*?K%0-,%(8*b#%50*
!
80!%)+!J/,%3(03>'+!2#*+,!#&!<$3?+'!%#!J1)##'!"$#B$3AA+-U!

!! "'30,!@+$+!*$3&%+*!&#$!(AD$#?+A+0%,!3%!D$(#$(%(,+*!,1)##',!,/1)!3,!J%!
23$B3$+%!.'(%)+$#@!P.!J1)##'C!\##*+0!7(''!"$(A3$4!J1)##'C!\('*$(*(0B,C!
G#O)(''C!.$30>#/$0+!30*!P30+'3B)!

!! L!D$#B$3AA+!#&!,1)##'!B3%+!3,,+,,A+0%,!@3,!1#AA+01+*!
*
W(*-I"*!5\6,)*G#'(80%#-*!#%.#'&&"-!
!

!! 6+,(B0!@#$9!1#0%(0/+*!#0!3!>/,!,%#D!&##%@34!'(09!3'#0B!.)/$1)!P*C!\(09&(+'*!
*
W(*-I"*!"K"8-#,'(*'(K*4F)6,(.*W&0#%2"&"(-8*!#%.#'&&"D*
!

!! \#$9,!@+$+!1#AD'+%+*!#0!%)+!&##%@34a141'+%$319!'(09!#0!%)+!,#/%)!,(*+!#&!
\#9(0B)3A!P#3*!>+%@++0!</$0D(9+!P#3*!P#/0*3>#/%!30*!J%#0+4!P*F!

!! "$+'(A(03$4!*+,(B0!@#$9!1#AA+01+*!#0!3!0/A>+$!#&!&##%@34a141'+%$319!
,1)+A+,!(0!X3$B+,!5$(*B+!6$(?+C!X#0*#0!!P#3*C!"+31#19!X30+!30*!5++)(?+!
X30+!!

95
101



! ! !

!
W(*-I"*/"8,K"(-,'6*B-#""-*!'#M,(.*!#%.#'&&"D*
*

!! 6+%3('+*!*+,(B0,!@+$+!!13$$(+*!#/%!#0!3!%)($*!D)3,+!#&!#&&U,%$++%!D3$9(0B!
(01'/*(0B!73'+@##*C!7(B)&(+'*C!_/%'+4C!"+A>$#9+C!X('4!7(''!P#3*C!6++D&(+'*!
P#3*!30*!^39+B3%+,!

!! \#$9,!@+$+!1#AD'+%+*!#0!%)+!,+1#0*!D)3,+!#&!#&&U,%$++%!D3$9(0B!,1)+A+,!(0!
^''+$%#0C!\3?+$'+4C!P#,+*3'+!E3$*+0,!30*!53'&#/$!.$+,1+0%F!

!
B")-,%(*;ef*`,.IH'F*R%#M8-!
!

!! \#$9,!1#AA+01+*!(0!234!#0!%)+!0+@!LbHk!P#/0*3>#/%!30*!JD/$!P#3*!3,!
D3$%!#&!%)+!m+00+%%M,!"3$9!6+?+'#DA+0%!#&&U,(%+!)(B)@34!(AD$#?+A+0%!@#$9,!

!
G#'$$,)*'(K*B'$"-F*b#%50*
!
Casualty Reduction – Local Safety Schemes-!
!
G+3,(>('(%4!30*!*+,(B0!@#$9!(,!/0*+$@34!#0!%)+!&#''#@(0B!,1)+A+,-!

!! LbIk[!G#$+,%+$,!\34!a!23B*+'+0+!P#3*!P#/0*3>#/%!
!! P/00(0B!7#$,+!P#/0*3>#/%!

!
.#0,%$/1%(#0!)3,!>++0!1#AD'+%+*!#0!%)+!X#13'!J3&+% 4a.3D31(%4! 8AD$#?+A+0%!
J1)+A+!%#!,(B03'(,+!"(%%M,!5$(*B+F!
!
C-I"#*G#'$$,)*+'('."&"(-*B)I"&"8D*
!
\#$9,!)3?+!>++0!#$*+$+*!&#$!%)+!&#''#@(0B-!

!! \+,%+$0!P#3*!a!6#@0,)($+!\34!>/,!B3%+!dD)3,+!H!T!%$3&&(1!,(B03'(,3%(#0e!
!! "+*+,%$(30!$3*3$!$+?(+@!3%!,(B03'(,+*!1$#,,(0B,!dD)3,+!RaHe!

!
G+3,(>('(%4!a!"$+'(A(03$4!*+,(B0!@#$9!)3,!,%3$%+*!#0!%)+!&#''#@(0B!,1)+A+,-!

!! 7#$,+!`!E$##A!P#/0*3>#/%!U!.3D31(%4!8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! 6#013,%'+!P#3*!a!LbHk!5+$9,)($+!\34!P#/0*3>#/%!U!.3D31(%4!8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! .#$3'!P++&!m/01%(#0!U!.3D31(%4!8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! LbHk!X#0*#0!P#3*!dL,1#%e!Qa@!"$(# $4!P#3*!30*!G+$0>309!P#3*!U!.3D31(%4!

8AD$#?+A+0%!
!! HI!AD)!,D++*!'(A(%,!

!
JD++*!,/$?+4,!)3?+!>++0!1#AD'+ %+*!30*!%) +!3,,+ ,,A+0%!(,!#0UB #(0B!&#$!%) +!
&#''#@(0B-!
!

!! JD++*!3,,+,,A+0%!#&!X#13''4!8AD#$%30%!P#3*,!dD)3,+!Re!
!
_+B#%(3%(#0,!3$+!#0UB#(0B!@(%)!'30*#@0+$,!3%!23(*+0,!E$++0!.$#,,$#3*,!!
$+B3$*(0B!%)+!(0%$#*/1%(#0!#&!%$3&&(1!,(B03',F!
!
G#'$$,)*/".56'-,%(*C#K"#8*UG/CVD*
!
<)+!0+O%!# 0U,%$++%!D3$9(0B!$+,%$(1% (#0!<P^!)3 ,!>++0!&#$A3''4!3* ?+$%(,+*!30*!%)+ !
#>Q+1%(#0,!$+1+(?+*!3$+!1/$$+0%'4!>+(0B!1#0,(*+$+*F!!!
!
<)+!<P^!&#$!$+?(,+*!@3(%(0B!$+,%$ (1%(#0,!(0 !5/''!X30+!3@3(%(0B!&(03'!3 DD$#?3'!>4!%)+ !
KO+1/%(?+!2+A>+$F!

96
102



! ! !

/%'K*B'$"-F*1K5)'-,%(3*G#',(,(.*7*!5\6,),-FD*
!
<)+!&#''#@(0B!K*/13%(#0C!<$3(0(0B!30*!"/>'(1(%4!31%(?(%(+,!)3?+!%39+0!D'31+-!
!

!! S^'*+$!`!\(,+$M!6$(?+$M,!K?+0%!
!! J1)##'!.$#,,(0B!"3%$#''+$!%$3(0(0B!
!! "3$+0%!%3'9,!(0!,1)##',!30*!*34!1+0%$+,!
!! P#3*!J3&+%4!P#3*!J)#@!&#$!"$(A3$4!J1)##',!
!! P#3*!J3&+%4!K*/13%(#03'!"$+,+0%3%(#0,!&#$!9+4!'#13'!>/,(0+,,+,!
!! S80%+$UJ1)##'!P#3*!J3&+%4!c/(;M!!
!! _+@!#&&U$#3*!.41'+!<$3(0(0B!(AD'+A+0%3%(#0!
!! S<+**4!5+3$,!"(10(1M!T!D$+U,1)##'!+?+0%!!
!! S^@0!E#3'M!,/AA+$!6$(09!6$(?+!+?+0%!

*

`,.IH'F*Y"-H%#M*+'('."&"(-*

C))50'-,%(*%$*-I"*`,.IH'F*
!
J%$++%!@#$9,!A34!>+!1#0*/1%+*!*/$(0B!3!%(A+!13''+*!%)+!$+3,#03>'+!D+$(#*!3,!3B$++*!
>+%@++0!%)+!,%$++%!3/%)#$(%4!30*!%)+!,%3%/%#$4!/0*+$%39+$F!!80!$+3'!%+$A,!%)(,!(,!%)+!
D+$(#*!*+%+$A(0+*!>4!%)+!31%/3'!,%3$%!*3%+!#&!@#$9,!30*!%)+!D$#D#,+*!1#AD'+%(#0!
*3%+!(0!%)+($!0#%(1+!,/>Q+1%!%#!304!1)3''+0B+!>4!%)+!,%$++%!3/%)#$(%4F!!<)+!D+$&#$A301+!
#&!,%3%/%#$4!/0*+$%39+$,!(0!%)(,!$+B3$*!&#$!%)+!R,%!c/3$%+$!#&!HIRIaRR!)3,!$+,/'%+*!(0!
RRi!*34,!/0$+3,#03>'+!#11/D3%(#0!#&!%)+!)(B)@34!30*!hI!*34,!&#$!%)+!)(B)@34!
3/%)#$(%4F!!<)+!0/A>+$!#&!*/$3%(#0!1)3''+0B+,!(,,/+*!>4!%)+!,%$++%!3/%)#$(%4!)3,!
A+30%!3!,3?(0B!#&!3%!'+3,%!Y[!*34,!#&!#11/D3%(#0!#&!%)+!)(B)@34F!
!
B-#""-*R%#M8*W(80")-,%(8*
!
<)+!=/3'(%4!30*!,3&+%4!#&!,%$++%!@#$9,!(,!A+3,/$+*!>4!$30*#A!,3AD'+!(0,D+1%(#0,C!
%)+!=/3$%+$'4!$+,/'%,!#&!@)(1)!,)#/'*!,)#@!'+,,!%)30!RIZ!&3('/$+!$3%+!3%!+31)!
(0,D+1%(#0!13%+B#$4F!!<)+!$+*!)(B)'(B)%+*!&(B/$+,!3$+!'(9+'4!%#!$+,/'%!(0!+(%)+$!@3$0(0B,!
#$!+0&#$1+A+0%!31%(#0F!
!
?K&,(,8-#'-,%(*
!
<)+!7(B)@34!_+%@#$9!2303B+A+0%!)3?+!$+1+(?+*!i[HH!0#%(1+,!*/$(0B!c%$!R!
HIRIaRR!@)(1)!(,!30!300/3'!(01$+3,+!#&!hNZ!&#$!,%3%/%#$4!/0*+$%39+$,!30*!hi[Z!&#$!
%)+!)(B)@34!3/%)#$(%4!3,!@#$9,!D$#A#%+$F!!G$#A!^1%#>+$!HIIk!#0@3$*,!&(O+*!D+03'%4!
0#%(1+,!@+$+!(0%$#*/1+*!(0!3!D)3,+*!3DD$#31)!&#$!,%$++%!@#$9,!0#%(1(0B!#&&+01+,F!!
6/$(0B!%)+!c%$!R!D+$(#*!3!%#%3'!#&![b!G"_M,!@+$+!(,,/+*!%#!/0*+$%39+$,!3A#/0%(0B!%#!
3!D#%+0%(3'!(01#A+!#&!>+%@++0!jhHhI!%#!jNbNI!3!&/$%)+$!b!$+1+(?+*!@3$0(0B,F!!<)+!
)(B)@34!3/%)#$(%4!3,!@#$9,!D$#A#%+$!%$(BB+$+*!RhN!D#%+0%(3'!#&&+01+,!(0!%)(,!D+$(#*F!

97
103



!
!

!

?
(
(
"E
*`
D*
W(
-"
.
#'
-"
K
*G
#'
(
80
%
#-
*B
)I
"&
"8
*!
#%
.
#"
88
*-
%
*a
=*
N
")
"&
\
"#
*;
<<
S*

! 7
(B
)@
34
!_
+%
@
#$
9!
2
30
3B
+A
+0
%!!

*
4
'-
".
%
#F
*?
*

4
'-
".
%
#F
*J
*

4
'-
".
%
#F
*4
*

_
-,
6,-
F*
!
'8
8"
K
*

9
',
6"
K
*

N
"$
")
-,
2"
*

G
%
-'
6*

B
'&
0
6"
8*

9
',
6"
K
*

N
"$
")
-,
2"
*

j
***

!
'8
8"
K
*

9
',
6"
K
*

N
"$
")
-,
2"
*

G
%
-'
6*

B
'&
0
6"
8*

9
',
6"
K
*

N
"$
")
-,
2"
*

j
***

!
'8
8"
K

9
',
6"
K
*

N
"$
")
-,
2"
*

G
%
-'
6*

B
'&
0
6"
8*

9
',
6"
K
*

N
"$
")
-,
2"
*

j
***

5
<
!^
D+
0$
+3
1)
!

hY
!

I
hY

I
HI

Y!
H
Y

;S
k

I
k!

I!

_
3%
(#
03
'!E
$(*
!

E
3,
!

N!
b

k
aa

RI
RH
!H
H

QQ
I

I
I!

I!

J
1#
%%(
,)
!`
!

J
#/
%)
+$
0!

K
0+
$B
4!

HR
!R

HH
[

RN
R!

R
i

N
H

I
H!

I!

J
#/
%)
!K
3,
%!

\
3%
+$
!

bi
!I

bi
I

ki
R!

k
Y

R
RR

I
RR
!

I!

J
#/
%)
+$
0!
E
3,
!

_
+%
@
#$
9,
!

H!
H

h
Q<

R
I!

R
I

H
I

H!
I!

<
)3
A
+,
!\
3%
+$
!

R!
I

R
I

b
I!

b
I

H
I

H!
I!

:
+#
'(3
!\
3%
+$
!

h!
I

h
I

b
R!

h
;Q

N
R

i!
=P
*

:
($B
(0
!2
+*
(3
!

i!
R

Y
=a

i
R!

Y
=a

H
I

H!
I!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

G
#$
+,
%!.
#/
01
('!

Hh
!I

Hh
I

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

5
G
.
!J
K
.
!

K
'+
1%
$(1
3'
!

2
3(
0%
+0
30
1+
!

R!
I

R
I

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

0a
3!

G
C
G
?
O
*=
Q=
*

e
=Q
f

=Q
e

;P
*

=f
=

aP
=

aQ
*

*

"
##
$!
D+
$&
#$
A
30
1+
!+
0&
#$
1+
A
+0
%!3
1%
(#
0!
A
34
!&#
''#
@
F!

L
*+
=/
3%
+!
#?
+$
3'
'!D
+$
&#
$A
30
1+
!>
/%
!

1#
0%
(0
/+
*!
A
#0
(%#
$(0
B!
$+
1#
A
A
+0
*+
*F
!

E
##
*!
D+
$&
#$
A
30
1+
F!

!

9
8

104



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

N
1
+
?
Y
N
*+
?
Y
?
b
1
+
1
Y
G
*?
Y
N
*G
/
?
^
1
O
*4
`
C
W4
1
*

2
#>
('(
%4
!8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!

K
"
`
L
!

:
3$
(#
/,
!!

"
$#
B$
3A
A
+!
#&
!'#
13
'!

(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!3
0*
!$
+A
#?
3'
,!

#&
!>
3$
$(+
$,
!%#
!A
#?
+A
+0
%!

^
0B
#(
0B
!_
aL
!

_
aL
!

:
3$
(#
/,
!A
#>
('(
%4
!(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!

%#
!>
+!
(A
D'
+A
+0
%+
*!
%)
$#
/B
)#
/%
!

%)
+!
4+
3$
!+
B!
*$
#D
D+
*!
9+
$>
,C
!

$3
A
D,
!+
%1
s
L
$+
3,
!3
$#
/0
*!

)#
/,
(0
B!
&#
$!
+'
*+
$'4
!D
+#
D'
+!
%#
!

>+
!%3
$B
+%
+*
!%)
(,
!4
+3
$F
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

`
Wb
`
R
?
g
*4
?
!
?
4
WG
g
*?
Y
N
*/
C
?
N
*B
!
?
4
1
*?
O
O
C
4
?
G
WC
Y
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!
J
D#
$%
,!
.
+0
%$
+!

P
#/
0*
3>
#/
%!.
3D
31
(%4
!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!

<
8!U
!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

6
+,
(B
0!
30
*!
1#
0,
%$
/1
%(#
0!

\
#$
9,
!(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

m/
0U

RI
!

J
+D
U

RI
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

L
bH
H!
J
@
(0
'+
4!
5
#%
%#
A
!%#
!

L
bH
kd
2
e!
.
#$
$(*
#$
!\
#$
9!

"
)H
!d
"
31
93
B+
!

6
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%e
!!

!

<
8!
'+
3*
(0
B!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

^
?+
$!
%)
+!
4+
3$
!@
#$
9!
@
(''
!

1#
A
D$
(,
+!
*+
%3
('+
*!
:
8J
J
82
!

A
#*
+'
'(0
B!
#&
!1
#$
$(*
#$
!3
0*
!

%+
,%
(0
B!
?3
$(#
/,
!,
1+
03
$(#
,!

(0
1'
/*
(0
B!
X6
G
!,
(%+
!3
''#
13
%(#
0,
!

!

"
31
93
B+
!*
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%!

@
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

_
aL
!_
aL
!

5
3,
+!
4+
3$
!,
1+
03
$(#
!1
/$
$+
0%
'4
!

>+
(0
B!
?3
'(*
3%
+*
F!

:
8J
J
82
!A
#*
+'
'(0
B!
/0
*+
$@
34
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

L
bH
k!
.
#D
D(
*!
5
++
1)
!%#
!

m/
01
%(#
0!
#&
!X
#0
*#
0!

P
*a
G
+$
0>
30
9!
P
*!
.
#$
$(*
#$
!

\
#$
9!
"
)H
!d
"
31
93
B+
!

6
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%e
!!

<
8!
'+
3*
(0
B!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

^
?+
$!
%)
+!
4+
3$
!@
#$
9!
@
(''
!

1#
A
D$
(,
+!
*+
%3
('+
*!
:
8J
J
82
!

A
#*
+'
'(0
B!
#&
!1
#$
$(*
#$
!3
0*
!

%+
,%
(0
B!
?3
$(#
/,
!,
+0
3$
(#
,!

(0
1'
/*
(0
B!
X6
G
!,
(%+
!3
''#
13
%(#
0,
!

"
31
93
B+
!*
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%!

@
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

_
aL
!

_
aL
!

5
3,
+!
4+
3$
!,
1+
03
$(#
!1
/$
$+
0%
'4
!

>+
(0
B!
?3
'(*
3%
+*
F!

:
8J
J
82
!A
#*
+'
'(0
B!
/0
*+
$@
34
!

9
9

105



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

.
3D
31
(%4
a.
#0
B+
,%
(#
0!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!3
%!

J
(B
03
'(,
+*
!.
$#
,,
(0
B,
!

"
)3
,+
!H
!

<
`
J
!:
3$
(#
/,

!
8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!%#
!,
(B
03
'(,
+*
!

1$
#,
,(
0B
!$
3*
3$
!*
+%
+1
%(#
0!

+=
/(
DA
+0
%!&
#$
!D
+*
+,
%$
(3
0!

A
#?
+A
+0
%!%
#!
$+
*/
1+
!

/0
0+
1+
,,
3$
4!
%$
3&
&(1
!*
+'
34
,!

30
*!
1#
0B
+,
%(#
0F
!

\
#$
9!
(0
!)
30
*!
!

!
_
aL
!_
aL
!

! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
+$
9,
)(
$+
!\
34
a6
#0
13
,%
'+
!

P
*!
P
>%
!.
3D
31
(%4
!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!!
dJ
1)
+A
+!

6
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%e
!!

!

<
`
J
!

5
(0
&(+
'*
!

^
?+
$!
%)
+!
4+
3$
!@
#$
9!
@
(''
!

(0
1'
/*
+!
*+
,(
B0
C!%
#D
#B
$3
D)
(1
3'
!

,/
$?
+4
,!
30
*!
,%
3%
,!

(0
&#
a*
(?
+$
,(
#0
!1
#,
%,
F!

80
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!
@
#$
9!

/0
*+
$@
34
!

_
aL
!_
aL
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

.
#$
3'
!P
++
&!P
>%
!.
3D
31
(%4
!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!d
J
1)
+A
+!

6
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%e
!!

!

<
`
J
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!
!!!

\
(0
9&
(+
'*
!

^
?+
$!
%)
+!
4+
3$
!@
#$
9!
@
(''
!

(0
1'
/*
+!
*+
,(
B0
C!%
#D
#B
$3
D)
(1
3'
!

,/
$?
+4
,!
30
*!
,%
3%
,!

(0
&#
a*
(?
+$
,(
#0
!1
#,
%,
F!

!

80
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!
@
#$
9!

/0
*+
$@
34
!

_
aL
!_
aL
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

K
3,
%)
3A
D,
%+
3*
!

P
*a
\
+,
%+
$0
!P
*!
m/
01
%(#
0!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!d
J
1)
+A
+!

6
+,
(B
0e
!!

! !

<
`
J
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

^
?+
$!
%)
+!
4+
3$
!@
#$
9!
@
(''
!

(0
1'
/*
+!
*$
3&
%(0
B!
3!
,1
)+
A
+!
&#
$!

30
!(A
D$
#?
+*
!D
$(#
$(%
4!
Q/
01
%(#
0!

13
D3
>'
+!
#&
!'3
%+
$!
,(
B0
3'
(,
3%
(#
0!

%#
!+
03
>'
+!
*+
?+
'#
D+
$!
&/
0*
(0
B!
%#
!

>+
!(*
+0
%(&
(+
*F
!!

80
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!
@
#$
9!

/0
*+
$@
34
F!!

!

_
aL
!_
aL
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

1
0
0

106



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

X#
0*
#0
!P
*!
6
/3
''(
0B
!

d"
$(#
$4
!P
*!
%#
!G
+$
0>
30
9!
P
*e
!

dJ
1)
+A
+!
6
+,
(B
0e
!!

!

<
`
J
!

\
(0
9&
(+
'*
!

^
?+
$!
%)
+!
4+
3$
!@
#$
9!
@
(''
!

(0
1'
/*
+!
*+
,(
B0
C!%
#D
#B
$3
D)
(1
3'
!

,/
$?
+4
,!
30
*!
,%
3%
,!

(0
&#
a*
(?
+$
,(
#0
!1
#,
%,
F!

80
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!
@
#$
9!

/0
*+
$@
34
!

_
aL
!_
aL
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

7
#$
,+
!3
0*
!E
$#
#A
!P
>%
!

.
3D
31
(%4
!8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!

dJ
1)
+A
+!
6
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%!

30
*!
L
*?
30
1+
*!
V
%('
(%4
!

.
#A
D3
04
!6
(?
+$
,(
#0
,e
!!

!

<
`
J
!5
$3
19

0+
''!

\
#$
9!
%)
(,
!4
+3
$!
@
(''
!(0
1'
/*
+!

*+
,(
B0
C!%
#D
#B
$3
D)
(1
3'
!,
/$
?+
4!

30
*!
3*
?3
01
+*
!,
%3
%,
!

*(
?+
$,
(#
0,
F!

!

80
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!
@
#$
9!

/0
*+
$@
34
!

_
aL
!_
aL
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

G
/
?
9
9
W4
*+
?
Y
?
b
1
+
1
Y
G
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

V
<
2
.
!6
+?
+'
#D
A
+0
%!

"
)3
,+
!H
!

<
`
J
!!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

J
%$
3%
+B
4!
1#
A
D'
+%
(#
0!
30
*!

(0
(%(
3'
(,
3%
(#
0!
%)
(,
!4
+3
$!

\
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

2
3(
*+
0,
!E
$+
+0
!

.
$#
,,
$#
3*
,!
<
$3
&&(
1!
J
(B
03
',
!
<
`
J
!

\
(0
9&
(+
'*
!

8A
D'
+A
+0
%3
%(#
0!
#&
!,
(B
03
'(,
+*
!

D$
(#
$(%
4!
Q/
01
%(#
0!

!

<
)(
$*
!D
3$
%4
!'3
0*
!

0+
B#
%(3
%(#
0,
!/
0*
+$
@
34
!

!

<
5
L
!<
5
L
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

6
/9
+,
!P
(*
+!
J
D+
+*
!

2
30
3B
+A
+0
%!J
1)
+A
+!
!

!

<
`
J
!.

$#
@
%)
#$
0+
!

L
**
(%(
#0
3'
!:
+)
(1
'+
!L
1%
(?
3%
+*
!

J
(B
0,
!d
:
L
J
e!

!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
*+
,(
B0
!

^
1%
!

RR
!

^
1%
!R
R

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

1
0
1

107



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

J
D+
+*
!2
30
3B
+A
+0
%!

J
1)
+A
+!
!!

!

<
`
J
!\
(0

9&
(+
'*
!

\
(0
9&
(+
'*
!P
#@
!3
$+
3!

!
.
#0
1+
D%
!*
+,
(B
0!

G
+>
!

RR
!

G
+>
!

RR
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

E
3%
+@
34
!J
(B
0(
0B
!"
)!
b!
!

!
<
`
J
!\
(0

9&
(+
'*
!

\
(0
9&
(+
'*
!P
#@
!3
$+
3!
d,
/>
Q+
1%
!

%#
!A
+A
>+
$!
1#
0,
/'
%3
%(#
0e
!

!

.
#0
1+
D%
!*
+,
(B
0!

G
+>
!

RR
!

G
+>
!

RR
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

K
3,
%)
3A
D,
%+
3*
!P
#3
*!

Q/
01
%(#
0!
@
(%)
!a^
'*
!

\
#9
(0
B)
3A
!P
*!

<
`
J
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!%#
!?
(,
(>
('(
%4
!3
%!

Q/
01
%(#
0!

.
#0
,/
'%3
%(#
0!
@
(%)
!X
30
*!

^
@
0+
$!

<
5
L
!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

L
,,
+,
,A
+0
%!#
&!,
D+
+*
!

'(A
(%,
!#
0!
5
!1
'3
,,
!P
#3
*,
!

<
`
J
!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

<
)+
!3
,,
+,
,A
+0
%!#
&!%
)+
!

,/
(%3
>(
'(%
4!
#&
!%)
+!
+O
(,
%(0
B!

,D
++
*!
'(A
(%,
!#
0!
5
!1
'3
,,
!

P
#3
*,
F!

G
(0
3'
(,
(0
B!
$+
,/
'%,
!

_
aL
!

_
aL
!

J
(%+
!?
(,
(%,
!%#
!)
(B
)'
(B
)%
+*
!

D$
#>
'+
A
!$
#3
*,
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

^
0U
,%
$+
+%
!"
3$
9(
0B
!<
$3
&&(
1!

P
+B
/'
3%
(#
0!
^
$*
+$
!

!

<
`
J
!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

\
3(
%(0
B!
$+
,%
$(1
%(#
0!
<
P
^
!

L
,,
+,
,(
0B
!#
>Q
+1
%(#
0,
!

L
/B
!

RI
!

L
/B
!

RI
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
1
N
1
B
G
/
W?
Y
*?
Y
N
*4
g
4
O
WY
b
*

.
41
'+
!_
+%
@
#$
9!
J
(B
0(
0B
!

"
)H
!!

K
"
`
L
!:
3$
(#
/,

!
_
+O
%!D
)3
,+
!#
&!$
+1
+0
%'4
!

3D
D$
#?
+*
!1
41
'+
!0
+%
@
#$
9!

,(
B0
3B
+!
%#
!>
+!
*+
,(
B0
+*
!3
0*
!

(A
D'
+A
+0
%+
*!
'3
%+
$!
%)
(,
!4
+3
$F
!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!
#0
!0
+O
%!$
#/
%+
!%#
!>
+!

,(
B0
+*
!

!
!

!

1
0
2

108



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

X#
0*
#0
!P
#3
*!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!

dJ
)#
/'
*+
$!
#&
!2
/%
%#
0!
%#
!

m#
)0
!_
(9
+!
\
34
e!
!

!

K
"
`
L
!

5
(0
&(+
'*
!!

\
(*
+0
!&#
#%
@
34
!%#
!1
$+
3%
+!
0+
@
!!

,)
3$
+*
!,
/$
&3
1+
!

&#
#%
@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
!

J
1)
+A
+!
,/
>A
(%%
+*
!&#
$!

,%
3B
+!
H!
,3
&+
%4
!3
/*
(%!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

X#
0*
#0
!P
#3
*!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!
`
!

J
(B
03
'(,
+*
!.
$#
,,
(0
B!

d.
#D
D(
*!
5
++
1)
e!
!

!

K
"
`
L
!

5
(0
&(+
'*
!

_
+@
!&#
#%
@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
30
*!

,(
B0
3'
(,
+*
!1
$#
,,
(0
B!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

_
+@
!G
#$
+,
%!P
(*
+!

J
(B
03
'(,
+*
!.
$#
,,
(0
B!
!!

!

K
"
`
L
!

!
_
+@
!,
(B
03
'(,
+*
!1
$#
,,
(0
B!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

\
3%
+$
,D
'3
,)
!

X3
0+
aJ
/0
0(
0B
)(
''!
P
#3
*!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!
X(
09
!

(0
%#
!"
3$
9!
!

!

K
"
`
L
!

!
_
+@
!&#
#%
@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
'(0
9!

&$
#A
!\
3%
+$
,D
'3
,)
!X
30
+!
(0
%#
!

%)
+!
E
$+
3%
!"
3$
9F
!!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!!
.
#A
D'
(A
+0
%,
!

&#
#%
@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
D'
30
0+
*!
>4
!

P
5
\
2
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

K
3,
%+
$0
!E
3%
+!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!d
G
+3
,(
>(
'(%
4!

J
%/
*4
e!
!

K
"
`
L
!

!
G
+3
,(
>(
'(%
4!
@
#$
9!
(0
%#
!D
#,
,(
>'
+!

(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!%#
!%)
+!
+O
(,
%(0
B!

&#
#%
@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!
!

!

1
0
3

109



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
++
)(
?+
!X
30
+!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!!

!

K
"
`
L
!

!
8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!%#
!+
O(
,%
(0
B!

&#
#%
@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
(0
!

1#
0Q
/0
1%
(#
0!
@
(%)
!0
+@
!

*+
?+
'#
DA
+0
%!(
0!
%)
+!
3$
+3
!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

X3
$B
+,
!5
$(*
B+
!6
$(?
+!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!
!

!

K
"
`
L
!

!
G
##
%@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
'(0
9!
&$
#A
!

D$
#D
#,
+*
!,
(B
03
'(,
+*
!1
$#
,,
(0
B!

(0
!5
$#
3*
!X
30
+!
%#
!X
3$
B+
,!

5
$(*
B+
!6
$(?
+!

.
#0
,/
'%3
%(#
0!
,%
3B
+!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

"
+3
1#
19
!X
30
+!

G
##
%@
34
a.
41
'+
%$
31
9!

d\
49
+$
4!
.
#D
,+
!%#
!

"
+3
1#
19
!P
#/
0*
3>
#/
%e
!!

!

K
"
`
L
!

!
G
##
%@
34
a1
41
'+
%$
31
9!
'(0
9!
&$
#A
!

m+
00
+%
%M,
!"
3$
9!
30
*!
\
49
+$
4!

.
#D
,+
!%#
!"
+3
1#
19
!

P
#/
0*
3>
>#
/%
!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

O
C
4
?
O
*B
?
9
1
G
g
*B
4
`
1
+
1
B
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

P
/0
0(
0B
!7
#$
,+
!P
>%
!

d.
($1
/'
3%
#$
4e
!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!!

!

<
`
J
!5
$3
19

0+
''!

:
(,
(>
('(
%4
!(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!

!
"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
*+
,(
B0
!

^
1%
!

RI
!

^
1%
!R
I

!

1
0
4

110



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

L
bI
k[
!d
2
3B
*3
'+
0+
!P
*!

m/
01
%(#
0e
!8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!!

!

<
`
J
!J
30
*)
/

$,
%!

6
+&
+1
%(#
0!
30
*!
,(
B0
3B
+!

(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!

! !

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
*+
,(
B0
!

G
+>
!

RR
!

G
+>
!

RR
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
_
J
O
W4
*G
/
?
Y
B
!
C
/
G
*@
*J
_
B
*?
Y
N
*/
?
WO
*G
/
?
^
1
O
!

!
!

!
!

5
/,
!.
#0
%$
31
%,
!

<
8!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

P
+U
%+
0*
+$
!#
&!>
/,
!,
+$
?(
1+
![
b!
a!

[b
L
C!1
#0
,(
*+
$3
%(#
0!
#&
!,
+$
?(
1+
!%#
!

<
)+
!"
3$
9,
!(0
!'(
0+
!@
(%)
!J
+1
%(#
0!

RI
N!
L
B$
++
A
+0
%F!

L
03
'4
,(
0B
!,
/$
?+
4!
*3
%3
!

30
*!
'(3
(,
(0
B!
@
(%)
!

0+
(B
)>
#/
$(0
B!
1#
/0
1(
',
F!

!
!

<
+0
*+
$,
!&#
$!
[b
!>
+(
0B
!

+?
3'
/3
%+
*!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

.
#0
1+
,,
(#
03
$4
!G
3$
+,
!

<
8!

L
''!

.
#0
%(0
/+
!%#
!A
#0
(%#
$!
>/
*B
+%
!

+&
&+
1%
,!
#&
!L
D$
('!
HI
IY
!1
)3
0B
+,
!%#
!

J
1)
+A
+]
!P
+,
#'
?+
!

$+
(A
>/
$,
+A
+0
%!&
#$
!SE
$+
+0
!X
(0
+M
!

,+
$?
(1
+,
!

6
(,
1/
,,
(#
0,
!@
(%)
!G
($,
%!

30
*!
0+
(B
)>
#/
$(0
B!

3/
%)
#$
(%(
+,
F!6
+&
(0
(0
B!

,1
)+
A
+!
&#
$!
HI
Ik
aR
I!

!
!

RF
!
P
+?
(,
(#
0,
!%#
!D
/>
'(1
(%4
!

A
3%
+$
(3
'!3
0*
!@
+>
,(
%+
!

1#
A
D'
+%
+*
!%#
!3
1)
(+
?+
!

>+
%%+
$!
(0
%+
B$
3%
(#
0!
@
(%)
!

+l
13
$*
F!

HF
!
_
G
8!*
3%
3!
,)
3$
(0
B!

A
+3
,/
$+
,!
1#
A
D'
+%
+*
!

#0
!,
1)
+*
/'
+!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
/,
!J
%#
D!
X#
13
%(#
0!
6
3%
3!

<
8!

L
''!
P
+1
#0
1(
'(3
%(#
0!

>+
%@
++
0!

_
L
"
<
L
_
!*
3%
3!
)+
'*
!>
4!
<
$3
0,
+D
%!

d1
#0
,/
'%3
0%
,e
C!E
8J
!J
+1
%(#
0!
30
*!

1/
$$
+0
%!D
#,
(%(
#0
!#
0!
%)
+!
B$
#/
0*
!

J
#A
+!
,/
$?
+4
!@
#$
9!

/0
*+
$@
34
F!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

c
/3
'(%
4!
"
3$
%0
+$
,)
(D
!3
0*
!

"
/0
1%
/3
'(%
4!
8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!

<
8!

L
''!

8A
D'
+A
+0
%3
%(#
0!
#&
!"
3$
%0
+$
,)
(D
,!

c
"
!*
#1
/A
+0
%,
!>
+(
0B
!

D$
+D
3$
+*
F!

!
!

!

1
0
5

111



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

"
3$
%0
+$
,)
(D
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
/,
!J
%#
D!
8A
D,
!U
!

.
#0
0+
1%
(0
B!
"
3%
),
!!!

!

K
"
`
L
!

:
3$
(#
/,
!!

"
/>
'(1
!%$
30
,D
#$
%!3
11
+,
,(
>(
'(%
4!

(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
F!!

"
$+
'(A
(0
3$
4!
(0
?+
,%
(B
3%
(#
0!

,%
3B
+!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
/,
!"
$(#
$(%
4!
2
+3
,/
$+
,!

<
`
J
!

:
3$
(#
/,
!

\
+,
%+
$0
!P
*!
a!6
#@
0,
)(
$+
!\
34
!

5
/,
!E
3%
+!
!

J
(B
03
',
!+
=/
(D
A
+0
%!

#$
*+
$+
*!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

.
)/
$1
)!
P
#3
*!
G
##
%@
34
!

!
K
"
`
L
!\
(0
9

&(+
'*
!

.
#0
0+
1%
(0
B!
D3
%)
!%#
!5
/,
!J
%#
D!

2
+A
>+
$!
.
#0
,/
'%3
%(#
0!

J
%3
B+
!

!
!

.
#0
,/
'%3
%(#
0!
@
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!
P
3(
'@
34
!J
%3
%(#
0!
!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

<
#@
0!

G
#$
+1
#/
$%
!K
0)
30
1+
A
+0
%,
!

2
3(
0!
@
#$
9,
!1
#A
D'
+%
+!

!
!

!
G
+3
%/
$+
!'(
B)
%(0
B!
*+
,(
B0
!@
#$
9!
(0
!

D$
#B
$+
,,
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
?
/
k
WY
b
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

P
+,
(*
+0
%(3
'!J
%$
++
%!"
3$
9(
0B
!

K
"
`
L
!5
#$
#/
B)
!

P
+,
(*
+0
%(3
'!D
3$
9(
0B
!

(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!,
1)
+A
+,
!

\
#$
9,
!#
0B
#(
0B
!

!
!

P
#'
'(0
B!
D$
#B
$3
A
A
+!

!

B
_
B
G
?
WY
?
J
O
1
*+
C
N
1
B
*C
9
*G
/
?
^
1
O
*G
C
*B
4
`
C
C
O
*U
B
+
C
G
G
B
V*
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

80
&$
3,
%$
/1
%/
$+
!8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!

3%
!"
$(#
$(%
(,
+*
!J
1)
##
',
!!

K
"
`
L
!:
3$
(#
/,

!
!

80
&$
3,
%$
/1
%/
$+
!8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!3
%!

"
$(#
$(%
(,
+*
!J
1)
##
',
!!

"
$#
B$
3A
A
+!
#&
!

,1
)#
#'
!B
3%
+!

!
!

8A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%!,
1)
+A
+,
!3
',
#!

>+
(0
B!
@
#$
9+
*!
/D
!#
0!
)(
B)
!

1
0
6

112



!
!

!

B
5
\
d"
)-
*

G
"'
&
*

?
#"
'*

N
"8
)#
,0
-,
%
(
*

B
-'
-5
8*

*
9
,(
,8
I

4
%
&
&
"(
-8
*

!
!

3,
,+
,,
A
+0
%,
!

/0
*+
$@
34
F!

$3
09
(0
B!
,1
)#
#'
,!
&#
$!

(A
D'
+A
+0
%3
%(#
0!
'3
%+
$!
(0
!%)
+!

4+
3$
F!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

+
WB
4
1
O
O
?
Y
1
C
_
B
*

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

_
+@
!6
+?
+'
#D
+$
,!
E
/(
*+
!

!
K
"
`
L
!

_
aL
!

"
$+
D3
$3
%(#
0!
#&
!0
+@
!)
(B
)@
34
!

*+
,(
B0
!B
/(
*+
!&#
$!
*+
?+
'#
D+
$,
!

\
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

!
!

6
$3
&%!
B/
(*
+!
#/
%!%
#!
1#
0,
/'
%3
%(#
0!

m+
00
+%
%M,
!"
3$
9!
!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

5
(0
&(+
'*
!

L
*A
(0
(,
%$
3%
(#
0!
#&
!J
bY
!

3B
$+
+A
+0
%,
!3
0*
!(0
,D
+1
%(#
0!
#&
!

@
#$
9,
!

\
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

!
!

!

m+
00
+%
%M,
!"
3$
9!
!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

5
(0
&(+
'*
!

J
/D
+$
?(
,(
#0
!#
&!J
Hi
Y!
U!
L
bH
k!

P
#/
0*
3>
#/
%!\

#$
9,
!

\
#$
9,
!(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

#0
!,
(%+
!

2
34
!

RI
!

G
+>
!R
R!

!

J
%3
&&!
.
#'
'+
B+
!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

L
*A
(0
(,
%$
3%
(#
0!
#&
!J
bY
!

3B
$+
+A
+0
%,
!3
0*
!(0
,D
+1
%(#
0!
#&
!

@
#$
9,
!

\
#$
9!
(0
!D
$#
B$
+,
,!

!
!

!

<
@
#!
^
$1
)3
$*
,!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

"
$+
D3
$3
%(#
0!
#&
!J
Hi
Y!
3B
$+
+A
+0
%!

30
*!
(0
,D
+1
%(#
0!
#&
!@
#$
9,
!

\
#$
9,
!D
3$
%!

1#
A
D'
+%
+!

!
!

\
#$
9,
!1
#A
D'
+%
+*
!3
%!%
)+
!

\
+,
%+
$0
!P
*a
!.
3(
0!
P
*!
Q/
01
%(#
0F
!

<
)+
!(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!3
%!

K
3,
%)
3A
D,
%+
3*
!P
*!
a!\

+,
%+
$0
!

P
*!
Q/
01
%(#
0!
%#
!&#
''#
@
F!

J
30
*4
!X
30
+!
J
1)
##
'!

K
"
`
L
!

5
$3
19
0+
''!

"
$#
Q+
1%
!A
30
3B
+A
+0
%!#
&!)
(B
)@
34
!

(A
D$
#?
+A
+0
%,
!#
0!
>+
)3
'&!
#&
!%)
+!

,1
)#
#'
!3
,!
D3
$%
!#
&!%
)+
($!
+O
D3
0,
(#
0!

D$
#B
$3
A
A
+!

.
#A
D'
+%
+!
!

!
!

!

1
0
7

113



114

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

5 OCTOBER 2010 
 
 

HOUSING AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFITS SERVICE INSPECTION REPORT 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
 
1.1 This report presents the report resulting from the inspection of the Council’s Housing 

and Council Tax Benefits Service by the Audit Commission in September 2010.  The 
inspection report is attached for the Panel’s consideration. 
 
 

2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

2.1 That the attached inspection report of the Council’s Housing and Council Tax 
Benefits Service be considered by the Panel. 
 
 

3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

3.1 The Audit Commission inspection of the Benefits Service took place in May this year 
and the related report is attached.  Following submission of a self-assessment the 
Service was inspected over a week including interviews with the Executive Member 
for Finance, Resources and Assets, Councillor Ward, the Executive Member for Adult 
Services, Health and Housing, Councillor Dale Birch, the Chairman of the 
Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel, Councillor 
Finnie, and the Chairman of the Housing and Council Tax Benefits Working Group, 
Councillor Finch. 
 

3.2 Members may remember from the reports to the Panel that the Audit Commission 
inspection regime was a harder test than the previous Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment model.  Thus over the last year a benefit improvement plan has been in 
place steered by the Housing and Council Tax Benefits Working Group. 
 

3.3 The Audit Commission inspection is a snapshot of our on going journey towards the 
delivery of an excellent Benefits Service.  Therefore, it is gratifying that they have 
recognised the improvements that have been made recently and that our prospects 
for improving still further are promising.  The recommendations from the inspection 
cover work that is already in hand or planned and again it is reassuring that the Audit 
Commission has confirmed the Service is heading in the right direction. 
 

3.4 Four of the six Benefits Services in Berkshire have now been inspected.  Windsor and 
Maidenhead was inspected in November 2008 and achieved fair with uncertain 
prospects for improvement.  Slough was inspected in May 2010 and achieved a poor 
rating with promising prospects for improvement and West Berkshire achieved fair 
with uncertain prospects for improvement in May 2010.  The Bracknell Forest score is 
the best score achieved in Berkshire to date. 
 

3.5 A response to the Inspection report and the recommendations will be reported to the 
November meeting of the Executive. 
 

Agenda Item 6

115



 

 
Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Simon Hendey – 01344 351688 
e-mail: simon.hendey@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 

116



Benefits
Service
Inspection
Bracknell Forest Council

September 2010 

117



Contents

Service inspections 3

Summary 4

Scoring the Service 5

Recommendations 7

Report 9

How good is the Benefits Service? 11

What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 21

118



Service inspections 

Service inspections 
This inspection has been carried out by the Audit Commission under section 10 of the 
Local Government Act 1999 and is in line with the Audit Commission’s strategic 
regulation principles. These principles embody the objectives of our Strategic Plan and 
Strategic Regulation. They also reflect the principles from The Government’s Policy on 
Inspection of Public Services (July 2003). Audit Commission service inspections 
should:

! focus on public service outcomes from a user perspective; 

! act as a catalyst to help inspected bodies improve their performance; 

! concentrate inspection work where it will have most impact, so that it is 
proportionate and based on an assessment of risk; 

! be based on a rigorous assessment of costs and benefits, with a concern for 
achieving value for money both by the inspected organisation and within the 
inspection regime itself; 

! be, and be seen to be, independent of the inspected organisation;

! report in public, using impartial evidence to inform the public about the 
performance of public services so as to enhance accountability; 

! involve collaborative working with other inspectorates and external review agencies 
to achieve greater coordination and a more holistic approach to the assessment of 
performance by audited and inspected bodies; 

! share learning to create a common understanding of performance that encourages 
rigorous self assessment and better understanding of their performance by 
inspected organisations; 

! be carried out objectively by skilled and experienced people to high standards and 
using relevant evidence, transparent criteria, and open review processes; and 

! enable continuous learning so that inspections can become increasingly effective 
and efficient. 

We assess services using published key lines of enquiry (KLOE) to inform our 
judgements. The KLOEs can be found on the Audit Commission’s website at 
www.audit-commission.gov.uk.

This report is issued in accordance with the Audit Commission’s duty under section 13 
of the 1999 Act. 

3  Bracknell Forest Council 119



Summary 

Summary
1 The Benefits Service (the Service) at Bracknell Forest Council is fair with promising 

prospects for improvement.

2 The Service responds well to local need by helping people access money they are 
entitled to, by using Discretionary Housing Payments (DHPs) to help the most 
vulnerable; and seeking service users’ views to make improvements. Policies and 
plans are shaped by local people’s views but more use could be made of the views of 
internal and external partners.

3 Access to the Service is fair. There are no delays at Council offices, and response 
times for the phone have improved. Leaflets and forms are in offices but they don’t all 
state if they are available in other languages or formats such as Braille. Information is 
now easier to find on the Council’s website. Decision letters are poor – they are hard to 
read and understand – but the quality of customer care overall has improved over the 
last six months. 

4 Decisions on new claims or changes to claims take too long, though they are 
improving and there is now a fast-track service for some claims. Preventing fraud and 
error is a high priority and a high level of sanctions is applied.  

5 The Service takes appropriate steps to ensure that the money it pays out is based on 
accurate assessments. But too many reconsiderations and appeals are being revised 
which means that some users are not always getting the right decision on their claim, 
first time. The Service is also taking too long to submit appeals to the Tribunal Service.

6 Overpayments are not managed well and the level of debt is rising. Action is being 
taken but the Service does not know clearly how much of the total debt outstanding is 
fully recoverable. 

7 The recent record on improvement is good including faster processing times, a
fast-track system and take-up events for the most disadvantaged. But some of this is 
relatively recent with no sustained track record.

8 The Service is low cost and value for money is improving through benchmarking, and 
closely monitoring and reducing costs. Capacity is increasing through a new IT and 
telephone system and home working.

9 The prospects for improvement are promising because senior officers manage 
planning and performance effectively whilst communication and learning are good. 
There is a clear vision supported by objectives, though targets are not always SMART. 
Longer-term plans for the Service are not well documented, but strong officer and 
political leadership is effective. Complaints are dealt with appropriately, but the Service 
cannot show it is effectively learning from such feedback or from appeals.

10 Capacity is good. Outsourcing and home working give the Service flexibility, additional 
capacity and better productivity. Staff are well managed, team working is strong, and 
sickness rates are low. Procurement of the new IT system is well managed. Training is 
good and includes sharing with neighbouring authorities.

Bracknell Forest Council 4120



Scoring the Service 

Scoring the Service 
11 We have assessed Bracknell Forest Council as providing a ‘fair’, one-star service that 

has 'promising' prospects for improvement. Our judgements are based on the evidence 
obtained during the inspection and are outlined below. 

Figure 1 Scoring charti

Prospects for improvement? 

Excellent 

Promising !

Uncertain

Poor

A good 
service?

Poor Fair
"

Good
""

Excellent
"""

‘a fair service that 
has promising 
prospects for 
improvement’

Source: Audit Commission 

12 The Service is a fair, one star service because: 

! benefit take-up work is giving local people access to money they are entitled to; 

! customers do not experience delays when visiting or contacting the Service; 

! there is a wide range of leaflets and forms available to customers in the offices and 
on the website;

! high levels of sanctions, regular campaigns to remind customers to report changes 
and targeted staff training are helping to reduce fraud and error; and

! the views of service users are used to make changes and improvements that 
people want.

i  The scoring chart displays performance in two dimensions. The horizontal axis shows how good the service or function 
is now, on a scale ranging from no stars for a service that is poor (at the left-hand end) to three stars for an excellent 
service (right-hand end). The vertical axis shows the improvement prospects of the service, also on a four-point scale. 

5  Bracknell Forest Council 121



Scoring the Service 

13 However it has some weaknesses. These include:  

! benefit claims are not being dealt with as quickly as they could be; 

! some people may not be getting the right decision on their claim first time as a high 
number of reconsiderations and appeals are being revised; 

! letters are not easy to understand; 

! not all leaflets contain details about how people with specific needs could have 
them in different formats; and

! management information about the level of overpayment debt is not effective.

14 The Service has promising prospects for improvement because: 

! it has a good, recent track record in delivering sustainable improvements which are 
noticeable by users, partners and staff, such as better processing and waiting 
times;

! it provides improving value for money with relatively low and reducing costs; 

! officer and political leadership of the service is strong, accompanied by 
empowered, well-trained staff with high satisfaction, good team-working and 
morale;

! it actively seeks best practice from others to implement in-house; and 

! it has good capacity to improve, with investments in a new IT system, effective use 
of off-site staff and the roll-out of home working. 

15  However there are some barriers to improvement. These are:

! some improvements have only been in place for about six months and do not have 
a sustained track record; 

! the direction of travel of some performance indicators is mixed, with missed 
targets; and 

! business plans do not clearly articulate longer term plans for the service, and not 
all actions have clear targets.

Bracknell Forest Council 6122



Recommendations

Recommendations
16 To rise to the challenge of continuous improvement, Councils need inspection reports 

that offer practical pointers for improvement. Our recommendations identify the 
expected benefits for both local people and the Council. In addition, we identify the 
approximate costsi and indicate the priority we place on each recommendation and 
key dates for delivering these where they are considered appropriate. In this context, 
the inspection team recommends that the Council should do the following. 

Recommendation

R1 Provide a better service to customers by: 
!  ensuring that customers are aware that all leaflets and information about the 

Service are available in different formats and community languages; 
!  contacting customers that have complained for their suggestions on how the 

Service could be improved; and 
!  understanding the reasons for high numbers of revisions and using this to make 

changes within the Service. 

The expected benefits of this recommendation are: 

! reducing the need for customers to make additional calls to resolve council tax 
queries;

! making the Service more accessible to people with specific needs; 

! the views of customers are used to shape and design the delivery of the Service; 
and

! improving decision making to ensure benefit is paid correctly, first time. 

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with low costs. The 
implementation plan should be agreed by November 2010. 

i  Low cost is defined as less than 1 per cent of the annual service cost, medium cost is between 1 and 5 per cent and 
high cost is over 5 per cent.  

7  Bracknell Forest Council 123



Recommendations

Recommendation

R2 Improve value for money by: 
! understanding the profile of outstanding debt to target recovery action; and
! ensure that recovery action is taken against all overpayments identified as 

recoverable.

The expected benefit of this recommendation is: 

! reduced level of overpayment debt owed to the Council. 

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with medium costs. 
This should be implemented by March 2011. 

Recommendation

R3 Continue with plans to improve by: 
! consulting consistently with stakeholders and internal and external partners on 

plans for future changes and improvements; 
! ensuring there are SMART objectives for all actions in the Benefits business 

plan; and 
! ensuring that potential risks that may arise from the new system implementation 

are well-mitigated. 

The expected benefits of this recommendation are: 

! improved focus on the needs of service users; 

! improved performance management; 

! assurance that objectives will be delivered; and 

! delivering the new system within time and on budget. 

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with low costs. This 
should be implemented by November 2010. 

Bracknell Forest Council 8124



Report

Report
Context

The locality 

17 Bracknell Forest Council is a Unitary Authority located in Berkshire, around 30 miles 
from London. It has a population of 114,000. 

18 The population is predominantly white British, which accounts for nearly 91 per cent of 
the population. Nine per cent of the population classify themselves as being from a 
Black and Minority Ethnic Group. Bracknell has low levels of deprivation and is ranked 
320 out of 354 in the Index of Multiple Deprivation, where one is the most deprived. 
Eighty six percent of residents are satisfied with the area in which they live, which is 
above average. 

19 The working age population is above average at 65 per cent. People of retirement age 
make up only 14 per cent of the population. Wages are above average at £567.30 per 
week. The majority of jobs are within the services industry such as finance, IT and 
other business activities. 

20 Bracknell Forest has 8.9 per cent of working aged residents claiming benefits, which is 
below average. In March 2010, 1,970 people claimed Job Seekers Allowance, which is 
2.7 per cent of the working aged population, lower than average. This is an increase of 
13 per cent over the last 12 months - much higher than the average increases in the 
South East and England. Of the working age population, 3.4 per cent claim 
Employment Support Allowance and 1.2 per cent claim lone parent benefits, both of 
which are below average.

21 The average house price is £202,887, above the national average of £164,455. In 
terms of housing tenure, 73 per cent of households in Bracknell own their own home, 
10 per cent rent from a private landlord, and 17 per cent rent from a housing 
association.

The Council 

22 Bracknell Forest has 42 Councillors representing 18 wards. The Council is controlled 
by the Conservatives, with a political make-up of 39 Conservatives and 3 Labour.

23 The 2009 Organisational Assessment found that overall, the Council performs well. 
The Council scored 3 out of 4 for managing performance and 2 out of 4 for use of 
resources.

24 The Council’s vision is ‘to make Bracknell Forest a place where all people can thrive; 
living, learning and working in a clean, safe and healthy environment'. It has six 
priorities which are: 

! A town centre fit for the 21st Century; 

! Protecting and enhancing our environment; 

9  Bracknell Forest Council 125



Report

! Promoting health and achievement; 

! Creating a borough where people are, and feel, safe; 

! Value for money; and 

! Sustain economic prosperity. 

25 In February 2008, the Council transferred its housing stock to Bracknell Forest Homes. 
They are a non-profit housing association who own and manage the 5,600 rented and 
1,100 leasehold properties transferred. 

The Council’s Benefits Service 

26 Housing Benefit (HB) and Council Tax Benefit (CTB) are national welfare benefits 
administered by the Council on behalf of the DWP. A complex legal framework is in 
place to define who is entitled to benefit and to reduce fraud and error in the system. 
The Benefits Service within a Council has a responsibility to pay the right benefit to the 
right person at the right time. 

27 Our responsibility to provide assurance (to government, Councils, taxpayers and 
benefit customers) means that we will consider inspection where there is a current or 
future risk to the service and its customers. In the case of the Bracknell Forest Council, 
the reasons for commissioning the inspection were: 

! the average speed of processing was below average, when compared to others; 

! signs of deterioration in performance in 2009; 

! to ensure the service had prepared for the new IT system due in October 2010; 

! a previous data quality audit in 2008 resulted in some reported performance 
information being reserved; and 

! concerns that the Council was not fully exploiting the degree to which an effective 
Benefits service would support corporate objectives around social inclusion. 

28 The key objectives of this inspection were: 

! to assess the effectiveness of Bracknell's Benefits Service in meeting the needs of 
the vulnerable people it serves, and contributing to the Council’s wider corporate 
objectives; and 

! to provide assurance to the DWP and other stakeholders regarding the quality of 
service provision. 

29 The Service is run in-house as part of the housing service within the Environment, 
Culture and Communities. It has 22.5 full time equivalent staff, with some benefits 
assessment and overpayments collection contracted out to a third party. In 2008/09, 
the Council's total administration spend was £1,444,000. The proportion of subsidy 
grant from DWP was £626,000 (44.6 per cent), with the remaining £778,000 met by tax 
payers (55.4 per cent). The subsidy grant claim for 2009/10 was £32,000,000. 

30 In 2009/10, the Bracknell Forest Benefits Service made £28,000 rent allowances and 
rent rebates and £21,799,000 mandatory rent allowance payments. Its caseload at 
March 2010 was 6,812, an increase of 13 per cent from the previous year. 

Bracknell Forest Council 10126



How good is the Benefits Service? 

How good is the Benefits 
Service?
What has the Service aimed to achieve? 

31 The Service supports wider local area agreement priorities through its benefits work in 
helping vulnerable people achieve independent living and reducing the number of 
households in fuel poverty. This links to the Council's corporate priorities in: 

! seeking to ensure that every resident feels included and able to access the service 
they need - by increasing access to service by electronic means; 

! limiting the impact of the recession - by promoting the take-up of benefits 
allowances and concessions; and  

! promoting independence and choice for vulnerable adults and older people.

32 To support the Council's corporate objectives and priorities, the Benefits Service vision 
is to 'ensure we pay the right benefit to the right person at the right time'. It aims to do 
this by: 

! extending the benefits service; 

! providing the right service; and 

! providing the best service. 

33 The benefits business plan sets out the actions required to meet these objectives in 
2010/11.

Is the Service meeting the needs of the local community and users?  

Access, customer care, user and community focus  

34 The Service uses the views of customers to make changes that people want. A focus 
group made up of customers discusses changes and potential improvements they 
would like to see. Using feedback from this group the Service has redesigned the 
benefit claim form and made changes to the new benefit service standards such as 
introducing timescales for responding to emails. Responding to the specific needs of 
service users means that customers are more likely to get the Service they want and 
need.

11  Bracknell Forest Council 127



How good is the Benefits Service? 

35 The quality of customer care shown by frontline staff is fair. Customers and 
stakeholders told us that they have seen improvements over the last six months in the 
quality of care shown by staff. Our own reality checking found that staff dealing with 
benefit visitors and telephone callers were polite, knowledgeable and helpful. But both 
customers and stakeholders expressed concerns that some people still experienced 
mixed customer care when contacting the Service. Inconsistent customer care can 
deter customers from contacting the Service, which means they could miss out on 
information and advice to help them with their claim.

36 The Service uses good information about the community to target benefit take-up work 
effectively. Community profiling information is used to identify which groups in the 
community are potentially under claiming. Between February 2009 and March 2010, 
this information was used to target low-income families that resulted in extra annual 
awards of housing and council tax benefit totalling £18,396. The Service has also 
helped older people access benefits by referrals to the Pension Service resulting in 
£25,462 additional benefit during 2009/10. Using detailed community profiling 
information helps the Service to target take-up to people most in need.

37 The Service promotes and encourages benefit take-up and money advice at 
community events. Activities undertaken include; joint awareness and advice open 
days with partners such as Age Concern, the Pension Service and the Council’s 
Supporting People team, surgeries held with registered housing providers Bracknell 
Forest Homes (BFH) and Southern Housing, and, a specific roadshow called ‘benefits 
for you’ held in the local shopping centre. Take-up work is evaluated for effectiveness 
and value for money. For example, outreach work was ended within Sandhurst Town 
Council building following consultation with the customer focus group. The decision 
was taken to stop this work and redirect resources elsewhere, because very few local 
people were using this service. During 2009/10, take-up resulted in extra annual 
awards of housing and council tax benefit of £63,130. An extra £5,245 was also 
awarded in backdated housing and council tax benefit during this time. Effective 
targeted take-up campaigns help local people most in need, access services and 
financial help they are entitled to, which boosts the wider local economy.i

38 Access to the Service is fair. The main strengths identified are as follows. 

! Benefits visitors do not experience long waiting times when visiting the Council 
offices. From October 2009 to March 2010, the average time that benefit visitors 
had to wait was less than two and a half minutes. Our own reality checking found 
that customers were not experiencing any delays when waiting to see someone. 

! The main office for benefit visitors at Time Square is well located and within easy 
reach of the main shopping centre, bus station and local health centre. Office hours 
are well advertised and open during normal working hours. Disabled parking 
spaces are available outside the offices and access to the building is good for 
people that need extra help such as ramps and automatic doors. In the main 
reception area there is access available to the Council’s website. Benefit visitors 
can also hand in information and get advice from the other Council office at 
Easthampstead House also located in the town centre. 

i  'The Money Trail' published (in 2002) by the New Economics Foundation estimates that for every £1 increase in 
benefits paid through take up work, 77 pence is spent in the local economy. 

Bracknell Forest Council 12128



How good is the Benefits Service? 

! Customers are routinely offered interviews with a dedicated member of staff in a 
private interview room and when possible, staff will also see customers who want 
to speak in private but have not booked an appointment. 

! Fast tracking of new claims is offered to customers. If customers supply all the 
information needed in support of their new claim, the Service guarantees to 
process their claim within 48 hours. 

! Frontline staff have access to staff within the Council to help with translation 
services. Over 30 members of staff are able to speak and/or read a wide variety of 
community languages. Some staff are also trained to interpret through sign 
language.

! The benefit claim form is clear and easy to use and has recently been crystal 
marked. Guidance notes are available to help customers complete the form, and 
the form is available in other formats such as large print, easy read, audiotape, and 
other languages. Customers needing help are also advised to contact the Council. 
A checklist helps customers provide the information and evidence they need in 
support of their claim. 

! Staff are encouraged to refer customers with financial problems to the Citizens 
Advice Bureau (CAB) for money and debt advice, following staff training in debt 
awareness. 

! There is a good range of information available in leaflets and posters. Leaflets are 
widely available in the main reception as well as on the benefit pages of the 
Council’s website. 

39 The Service has recognised that access through some routes was weak and has 
addressed this. During the period April 2009 to September 2009, one in four callers 
that contacted the Service by phone could not get through to speak with someone. 
Following implementation of the new telephone system improvements in call 
answering have led to only 1 in 20 callers, from October 2009 to March 2010, hanging 
up before their call was answered. Our own reality checking found that calls were 
answered quickly. Getting quick and easy access to the Service by telephone means 
that people are able to get the information and advice they need about benefits, 
reducing the need for further unnecessary phone calls and visits to the offices. 

40 Information about benefits is now easier to find on the Council's website. Results of 
mystery shopping carried out by the Service in 2009, found customers could not 
always find the information they needed on the website to answer their query. The 
website was reviewed and changed to make it easier for customers to navigate to 
benefits information. Our own reality checking found the website easy to use and 
information is accessible through text and audio. A wide range of leaflets and 
downloadable forms are available as well as a benefits calculator to help people work 
out potential entitlement to housing and council tax benefit. Improving web access 
helps people choosing this route, get to the right information and advice they need.

13  Bracknell Forest Council 129



How good is the Benefits Service? 

41 Some weaknesses exist that may make it difficult for customers with specific needs to 
get information they need. For example some leaflets do not include any information 
about whether they are available in different languages or in different formats for 
example in Braille or in large print. Some don’t have contact details for hearing 
impaired people for example, minicom. This means that some customers may find it 
difficult to understand and provide the information needed to get the money they are 
entitled to.

42 Some service users and external stakeholders told us that system-produced decision 
letters are hard to read and difficult to understand. The Service has tried to make these 
letters easier to understand by sending an explanation leaflet with every letter to 
explain what various parts of the letter mean. The Service is implementing a new 
benefits operating system in the autumn of 2010 and hopes to address issues around 
quality of letters. But the poor quality of letters means that currently some people do 
not fully understand the outcome or status of their claim leading to unnecessary 
contact with the Service and other agencies, for help.

43 Customers are helped to provide information quickly to speed up the time taken to deal 
with their claim. Customers are contacted by phone within ten days of a claim being 
received, to discuss what further evidence is needed in support of their claim. If no 
response or information has been received within ten days, a further call is made to the 
customer. If information is still not received after 28 days from receipt of the claim, 
customers are contacted again before the claim is finally made defective. Managers 
monitor claims to make sure that contact is being made with customers to help them 
provide the information needed. Proactively helping customers to supply information in 
support of their claim helps to speed up the time taken by the Service to make a 
decision or payment to its customers. 

44 The Service also works with partners to speed up the time taken to deal with claims. 
Partners such as registered housing providers, Look Aheadi, the Pension Service and 
private sector landlords have received benefits awareness training and information 
about how they can help their clients make a claim for benefit. In addition staff from 
BFH and the Pension Service are trained to verify documents and able to collect 
evidence and submit claims. This means that partners can provide more support and 
advice to their clients on supplying the right information and evidence to have their 
claim dealt with quickly. This offers tenants more choice about how they claim benefit 
as well as access to advice and information about the benefits scheme or their claim.  

45 Service users know how long they can expect to wait, to be dealt with. New benefit 
service standards have been developed and were published in April 2010. Customers 
were consulted in the design of the standards. The standards set out clear targets for 
how customers will be dealt with depending on how they access the Service as well as 
how long they can expect to wait. These are well publicised in the Council offices as 
well as on the Council’s website. A leaflet setting out these standards is also sent with 
every decision letter sent by the Service to ensure that customers know what the 
standards are. Clear and comprehensive standards ensure that customers know what 
level of service they can expect to receive.

i  Look Ahead is an organisation that supports young, vulnerable adults 

Bracknell Forest Council 14130



How good is the Benefits Service? 

46 The Service communicates and consults with its customers and the wider community. 
As well as regular liaison with the customer focus group, users are invited to take part 
in mystery shopping to give feedback to the Service. Draft service plans and policies 
are regularly published on the Council’s website for consultation and people are 
encouraged to submit their comments. Some recent examples of these include the 
draft Benefits Service Business Plan for 2010/11, the draft discretionary housing 
payment (DHP) policy and the draft overpayments policy. Consulting and engaging 
with service users and non users helps the Service to use learning and feedback to 
make changes and improvements that users want and need.

47 The Service has good relationships with internal and external stakeholders, but their 
views are not always sought when improvements are being made to service delivery. 
Regular liaison takes place with a wide range of external partners such as registered 
providers, private sector landlords, DWP, Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) and the 
Pension Service. There is also regular liaison with colleagues from other parts of the 
organisation including Council Tax, Housing and Adult Social Services. The Service 
provides training, updates and information about the benefits scheme to help partners 
assist their clients with making a claim. But partner's views were not sought on the 
design of the benefit service standards which means that opportunities were missed to 
use the knowledge that partners have about their customers to design and deliver 
services based on an understanding of users need. 

Diversity  

48 Some staff within the Service lack awareness of equalities and diversity. Some new 
starters within the last six months state that they have not received equalities and 
diversity training at their induction. However, the corporate induction, which all staff 
have attended, does include equality awareness training, and so the impact of this 
training is uncertain. Overall, this means that some staff are not fully aware of how they 
can ensure through their role, that customers receive fair and equal access to the 
Service.

49 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) are used by the Council to help support 
vulnerable people in the community. During 2009/10, in line with the corporate priority 
to limit the impact of the recession on the local community, the Council has committed 
to providing additional funds on top of the annual grant to support local people and 
alleviate hardship. The Service paid out discretionary payments of £12,577 compared 
to the annual grant of £8,413. Providing additional funds on top of the annual grant 
ensures that more people can access these funds to relieve financial hardship.  

15  Bracknell Forest Council 131



How good is the Benefits Service? 

Service outcomes for users and the community  

50 The Service has not met targets it set itself to reduce the time taken to deal with 
benefit claims. The Benefit Service Business plan for 2009/10 set a target to reduce 
the average processing time for new claims and change events (National Indicator 
181) to less than 11 days by the end of March 2010. During 2009/10, the Service took 
on average 14.7 days. The DWP have recently published national performance 
statistics in respect of National Indicator 181i. The published data for the first two 
quarters of 2009/10 shows, this is below the average performance of 12 days when 
compared to other English Councils. Although the Service was not able to achieve its 
target by the end of March 2010, there have been recent improvements in the time 
taken to process new claims and change events. Over the last six months the Service 
is taking, on average, under 11 days to process these.

51 Benefit customers are waiting longer than necessary for their new claims and changes 
in circumstances to be dealt with. During 2009/10, the Service had a target to process 
new claims for benefit, on average, in under 22 days by March 2010. The Service took 
on average, 24.5 days. Compared with the published data from the DWP, this 
performance would place the Council below average performance of 22 days. During 
the same period it took on average 10.4 days to deal with a change of circumstance 
against a target of seven days. When compared with other English Councils this is also 
below average performance of nine days. Customers who make a new claim or who 
report a change are waiting too long for a payment or decision which could create 
unnecessary anxiety and hardship as well as act as a deterrent to people reporting a 
change in the future.

52 Satisfactory arrangements are in place to check the accuracy of benefit payments and 
claims. The Service carries out a minimum 8 per cent check of all claims dealt with by 
staff. For newer members of staff there are different arrangements and 100 per cent of 
their work is checked. During 2009/10, the Service achieved a financial accuracy rate 
of 92 per cent of claims checked. The Service also measures how many non-financial 
errors were made. When this is taken into account the Service achieved an overall 
accuracy rate of 91 per cent for 2009/10. The results of accuracy checking are fed 
back through to staff on a one-to-one basis which helps managers and staff identify the 
appropriate learning and development needs. Monitoring cases for error gives the 
Service a level of assurance that the money it pays out to customers is correct and any 
potential errors or mistakes are being mitigated. 

53 A high number of claims are being revised which may mean that people are not always 
getting the right amount of money they are entitled to. During 2009/10 of the 71 
appeals received by the Service, 74 per cent were revised and a new decision was 
made. In the same period, the Service received 145 reconsiderations and revised  
48.3 per cent of these. Managers do not fully understand why higher numbers of 
appeals and reconsiderations have been revised when the claim has been looked at 
again and has not analysed what the reasons may be for this. This means the Service 
is missing opportunities to use this information to help staff make the right decision, 
first time, on claims they deal with. 

i  The Right Time Indicator (NI181) measures the average processing times for new claims and change events. 

Bracknell Forest Council 16132



How good is the Benefits Service? 

54 Despite the high numbers of revisions, reconsiderations are dealt with promptly. During 
2009/10, the Service dealt with 77 per cent of reconsiderations received, within 28 
days, against a target of 65 per cent. Dealing with reconsiderations promptly means 
that the Service is reducing undue worry and anxiety as people wait for a decision to 
be made. 

55 Customers that appeal the Council's decision on whether they will receive the benefits 
they claimed for experience delays. During 2009/10, only 25 per cent of appeals 
submitted to the Tribunals Service were submitted within four weeks against a target of 
65 per cent. All of the appeals received by the Service were submitted to the Tribunal 
Service within three months. Delays in dealing with appeals, unduly increases the time 
that people have to wait to hear the outcome of an appeal.

56 The Service is effective in identifying unreported changes of circumstance that affect 
the amount of benefit people receive. Customers receive information about how to 
report a change when they receive their decision letters from the Service and publicity 
campaigns take place annually. The last campaign in December 2009, ‘time to tell’, 
resulted in 700 calls to the Service over two days from customers. Outcomes from 
campaigns are reported in the local borough newspaper to ensure that the community 
is aware of the impact of fraud and error. Risk based reviews and interventions activity 
take place on a regular basis. Targeted visits are carried out by the Service based on 
known risks, and there is an annual target to complete 550 visits annually, which is 
regularly achieved. During 2009/10, 22 per cent of these visits were referred to the 
Fraud Team of which 40 per cent received a sanction. Changes of circumstances 
which could result in benefit reducing are suspended by the Service and these claims 
prioritised, to prevent high levels of overpayments. Proactive work to identity 
unreported changes of circumstances helps the Service minimise overpayments and 
ensures that the right benefit is being paid. 

57 There are effective measures in place to tackle fraud and error. These include: 

! appropriate management arrangements in place to risk assess referrals. Risks 
ratings are reviewed annually based on outcomes achieved over the year and 
workloads are regularly monitored; 

! a flexible prosecutions policy which allows staff to take account of each individual 
case and any mitigating factors, to determine the appropriate sanction to apply; 

! management monitoring of the quality of fraud referrals received from all sources. 
Feedback is given where possible for example to benefits staff to help improve the 
accuracy and quality of future referrals;

! regular fraud awareness training delivered to staff within the organisation. Staff 
within the Benefits Service, Customer Services, Council Tax team and partners 
such as Bracknell Forest Homes and the Pensions Service, have all received fraud 
awareness training in the last 12 months; 

!  good level of publicity in the local press about successful prosecutions; 

! dedicated ‘Cheat Chasers’ telephone hotline which is clearly advertised on letters 
and information sent out from the Service; 

! appropriate use of National Fraud Incentive (NFI) data to investigate potential 
cases where there may be fraud/and or error; 

17  Bracknell Forest Council 133



How good is the Benefits Service? 

! proactively dealing with Housing Benefits Matching Service (HBMS) data 
appropriately, which is sifted by the Fraud Team and cases where the team can 
undertake investigations are identified and dealt with; and

! joint working with the DWP to investigate potentially fraudulent cases for benefit. In 
2009/10 the Service identified 15 cases to work on a joint investigation with the 
DWP.

58 Outcomes from counter fraud work are good. In 2009/10, the Service achieved 64 
sanctions against a target of 45. This equates to 9.82 sanctions per 1000 caseload 
which is above average when compared to the last set of published performance data 
in 2007/08 when the average nationally was 5.6 cases per 1000 caseload. Through 
counter fraud activity, the Service has identified £195,109.51 in overpayments 
attributable to fraud. Ensuring that fraud and error is minimised through effective 
management arrangements, good quality referrals, and high profile publicity means the 
Service is taking good steps to detect and prevent fraud which reduces the burden on 
the public purse.

59 The Benefits Service is contributing to the achievement of wider Council priorities to 
improve outcomes for local people. The Council has targets to reduce the number of 
households in fuel poverty, through take-up work, benefits staff promote energy 
efficiency and the availability of home energy grants when visiting benefit customers. 
In addition, staff from the Service attend Council-led energy efficiency events to 
promote the take-up of benefits and grants to reduce fuel poverty. In June 2010, 
referrals from the Service resulted in a spend of £40,000 for warm front grants. This 
shows the Service is making a positive contribution to reducing fuel poverty within the 
community.

60 Customer satisfaction with the Service is improving. Results from the 2009 customer 
survey found that 76.9 per cent of customers who responded rated the Service as 
good. This is an improvement from the last time this was reported in 2006/07, when 
satisfaction was rated as good by 71.2 per cent of customers. But the recent results 
did not meet the target that the Service set itself of 80 per cent. Service users and 
stakeholders told us although they recognised improvements have been made by the 
Service these have only been seen over the last six months. The Council’s own 
mystery shopping in 2009 identified low satisfaction rates of 40 per cent with the 
telephone service. But steps have been taken to improve this with the implementation 
of a new telephone system. Actively seeking out the views of service users gives the 
Service a good overview of what customers think about the quality of service they 
receive.

61 Customers are happy with the facilities available to them when they visit the Council 
offices. From the 2009 customer survey, 97.3 per cent of respondents were satisfied 
with the reception area and agreed that it was clean and tidy. Clean and comfortable 
surroundings help visitors feel more welcomed and valued.  

Bracknell Forest Council 18134



How good is the Benefits Service? 

Is the Service delivering value for money? 

62 The Service has a clear understanding of its costs and how these compare with others. 
The Council’s Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
set up a working group in 2009 to review the Housing Benefit Improvement Plan. As 
part of that review the Service was benchmarked against 18 other Councils and found 
the Service to be below average cost when compared to others. The
Audit Commission's value for money profile that looks at costs from 2008/09 also 
shows the Service is below average cost when compared to other Councils with similar 
demographics and caseload.

63 Areas of higher spend are balanced with the need to meet service priorities. The 
Service has procured an off site processing contract for three years. The annual cost 
of this arrangement to the Service is more than it would pay for two full time equivalent 
posts locally. But current productivity from the contract is high with an accuracy rate of 
99 per cent. This arrangement helps the Service build the additional capacity and 
resilience it needs to improve processing times despite an increasing benefits 
caseload (13 per cent in 2009/10). Careful consideration of costs helps the Service to 
ensure that areas where there is higher spend, delivers the desired improvements in 
performance and accuracy of benefit payments.

64 Areas of high cost have been identified and savings have been made. Benchmarking 
data has helped the Service to target higher cost areas. This has led to the use of 
offsite processing staff and introducing a home working pilot. This pilot cost £1,500 to 
set up, but it has improved productivity and is being extended. Other areas where 
savings have been achieved include joint training being delivered for staff from other 
Berkshire councils. In addition, despite a reduction of £53,000 in 2009/10 in the annual 
administration subsidy from Central Government this has been absorbed by 
restructuring the Service to remove the need for pre-assessment staff. These strategic 
decisions and actions demonstrate a clear focus on reducing costs and achieving 
better value for money.

65 Although Service costs are low, local residents make a higher than average 
contribution to the costs of running the Service, through the Council Tax. The  
Audit Commission's value for money profile shows that Bracknell’s tax payers 
contributed over 55 per cent to the costs of running the Service in 2008/09 compared 
with the national average of 45 per cent.

19  Bracknell Forest Council 135



How good is the Benefits Service? 

66 Management of housing benefit overpayment debt is not effective and overpayment 
debt is rising. The Service does not have a clear understanding how much of its 
overpayment debt is recoverable. The outstanding debt is split and held on two 
different systems. Over £380,000 of pre-2005 debt is held on one system. The Service 
believes that 90 per cent of this debt may no longer be recoverable but plans to write 
these debts off, are not clear. The remaining debt sits on the current operating system. 
At the start of April 2009, £1.2 million was outstanding on the current operating system 
but the Service is unable to identify and report how much of this is being recovered 
through ongoing benefit entitlement or other methods of recovery. During the year 
resources were diverted away from collecting debt to review all the benefit debt 
outstanding, to determine how much is recoverable. This resulted in £137,598 of debt 
written off as it can no longer be recovered. This review is ongoing and due to be 
completed by October 2010. The total amount of overpayment debt is increasing. 
Debts stood at £1,585,983 (April 2009) an increase of 9.1 per cent on the previous 
year. During 2009/10, £838,205 of overpayments were identified but only £540,489
(64 per cent) was recovered. This is significantly below the Council’s own target of  
75 per cent. Prompt action to recover overpayments helps to reduce the costs of 
running services to local taxpayers.  

67 Arrangements to recover benefit overpayments which have been identified as 
recoverable, are satisfactory. When overpayments are identified, customers are 
contacted to make arrangements to repay. The Service considers the ability of people 
to pay and offers opportunities for customers to repay in instalments. All available 
methods of recovery are considered such as recovery from ongoing benefit and 
blameless tenant recoveryi. Where the Service is unable to put in place arrangements 
to recover an overpayment, this is passed to a collection agency. The agency uses 
various methods to recover including telephone contact, letters, text messages and 
home visits. Outsourcing elements of overpayment recovery offers the 
Service improved opportunities to reduce the level of debt it is owed. 

68 Satisfactory arrangements are in place to manage and monitor benefit subsidy. The 
subsidy claim is monitored weekly. Variances are discussed with team leaders to 
highlight any issues or potential training needs for staff. Managers work with finance 
colleagues to manage the claim which includes building in forecasts over the year for 
any potential changes that may have an impact. Local authority error overpayments 
during 2009/10 did not exceed the lower threshold limit which means the Service will 
be able to claim 100 per cent subsidy against these overpayments. The 2008/09 claim 
was initially qualified by auditors but following additional information from the Service, 
the DWP have confirmed there will be no direct loss in payments. Effective 
management of the subsidy claim ensures that the Service is minimising potential loss 
in income.

i  ‘Blameless Tenant’ is the process of recovering an HB overpayment made to a landlord or agent from HB paid directly 
to that landlord or agents in respect of a tenant whose benefit was not overpaid. The tenant whose HB is being 
deducted will be deemed to have paid their rent to the value of that recovery. 

Bracknell Forest Council 20136



What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 

What are the prospects for 
improvement to the Service? 
What is the service track record in delivering improvement? 

69 The Service has a good, recent track record in delivering improvements. The Service 
has made significant improvements that have been experienced by users such as 
faster processing times, improved fraud detection and prevention, an improved 
telephone system and take-up events focussing on the most disadvantaged. A 
restructure, better value for money, use of better performance management 
information and off-site staff have also helped to improve the service in a sustainable 
way, despite an increase in caseload due to the recession. However, many of these 
improvements have only been in place for the last six months and so performance 
indicators have yet to show a sustained direction of travel. 

Table 1 Local Performance Indicators 
Track record of performance 

Local performance indicator 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10

National Indicator 181 (average days) 15.6 14.7

Average time taken to process new claims (days) 28.4 31.3 24.5

Average time taken to process a change in 
circumstance (days) 

9 10.2 10.4

Source: Audit Commission/Bracknell Forest Council 

70 The direction of travel of some key performance indicators is mixed, although there 
have been recent improvements in most areas. Performance over three years shows 
improvements in areas such as time to process claims and changes, avoidable contact 
rates, satisfaction rates and sanctions. The Service had poorer performance in many 
areas in 2008/09 and targets were missed in 2009/10. As at September 2009, it was 
performing below average for NI181 compared nationally. But satisfaction rates have 
increased from 71.2 per cent to 76.9 per cent and avoidable contact has reduced from 
14 per cent to 11 per cent, meaning improved outcomes for customers. Also, although 
the 2009/10 result for NI181 was 14.7 days overall, performance improved steadily in 
the second half of the year, and has been within the 11 days target for the last three 
months. Fraud work remains good and new fast track times are also performing well 
with claims being processed within 48 hours. Recovery of overpayments has recently 
dropped due to a decision to focus on write-offs instead. 

21  Bracknell Forest Council 137



What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 

71 The Service can show significant improvements experienced by users. Improvements 
include the fast track service, promotion of the take-up strategy and a new telephone 
handling system that has improved call waiting times. A successful ‘Benefits For You’ 
event was held in August 2009 which gave advice to residents. This promotion is 
helping support the Council's corporate priority to 'limit the impact of the recession'. 
Due to its success another one is being held this year. Many stakeholders have 
noticed the improvements in the service. They recognise the better communication and 
improved processing times. Users, for example, have commented on the improved, 
faster telephone service, quicker waiting times in reception and a better appointments 
system which saves queuing time. Although issues such as confusing letters, remain. 
By the end of June 2010, feedback from users will have led to reception improvements 
including lower desks for easier access, more computers, improved privacy areas and 
a scanner to copy residents’ documents more quickly. The Service has used the good 
information it has about its local community to target more vulnerable residents as part 
of its take-up strategy. A restructure led to a new service development officer which 
enabled the take-up strategy to be implemented. The restructure also enabled new 
dedicated teams to process new claims and changes faster, despite an increased 
caseload. The Service recognises the need to improve entitlement letters further, and 
the new IT system in October will address this. These improvements are helping the 
Council meet its objectives. 

72 The Service delivers improving value for money. It can demonstrate that it is identifying 
efficiencies by reducing its costs over time and that costs are relatively low. The impact 
of restructures, improved performance and increased case load showed the gross cost 
of processing a claim fell from £79.20 in 2008 to £67.20 in 2009, which is below the 
average of the Council’s 18 other benchmarked authorities. The new flexible offsite 
processing contract has enabled additional support at competitive rates with an option 
to increase resources if necessary. Although the Council is paying 19 per cent more 
than it would for two posts, the offsite contractors have 99 per cent accuracy and
28 per cent better productivity. 

73 The Service has identified areas of high cost and made savings as a result. It has 
targeted higher cost areas through its benchmarking and survey work. This has led to 
the use of offsite staff, joint training and a home working pilot. This pilot cost £1,500 of 
capital money to set up, but it has improved productivity and is being extended shortly. 
The Service is focussing on older debt work for recovery and write off. A £56,000 cut in 
the administrative grant was achieved by restructuring the Service to delete the
pre-assessor posts. These strategic decisions and actions demonstrate a clear focus 
on value for money. 

74 The Service has plans to save more money in future years. Future saving plans that 
have been secured include the investment in a new IT system, extending the agency 
staff contract and the purchase of the Mosaic database. For example, the cost of the 
Mosaic database has already been shared with other Council services such as the 
Leisure service and there are plans to extend this to other departments. This will 
reduce the burden on the service budget but help maintain service delivery. 

Bracknell Forest Council 22138



What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 

How well does the service manage performance? 

75 The aims of the Service are clear and challenging, with business plans supporting 
these aims for the forthcoming year. The Service has a clear vision for what it wants to 
achieve, and its objectives are addressing the right things to realise this. The 2010/11 
business plan contains clear, challenging targets, such as achieving 960 fast track 
applications (compared with 400 last year) and 99 per cent accuracy rates. It also has 
a clear drive to engage further with harder to reach groups, increase take-up and 
improve fraud and error detection. These support corporate objectives. The 2009/10 
business plan contained some challenging targets such as to achieve NI181 within
11 days by March 2010 and a five per cent increase in satisfaction which were both 
achieved. The benefits improvement plan, produced after the 2009/10 business plan 
as a result of a working group investigation of the Service, was also accomplished with 
actions delivered including expanding offsite processing, explaining technicalities 
better to customers, and pursuing best practice by visiting high performing Councils. 
Ongoing actions have been amalgamated into the new 2010/11 business plan. 
However, the plan is at a high level and not all actions have SMART targets, such as 
meeting efficiency targets or promoting community cohesion. Despite a robust annual 
business plan process, clear, documented longer term plans for the Service are not in 
place. Although there is a vision to be an excellent service, this has not yet been 
articulated other than in a report to explore shared services after the new IT system 
has been implemented. This means that stakeholders do not have a shared 
understanding of the longer term plans for the service.

76 Service plans link well to Local Area Agreements and corporate objectives. The 
benefits business plan for 2010/11 follows the corporate business planning system and 
links to three of the Council’s three-year corporate objectives. The plan was consulted 
on with, for example, the benefits user group and staff, as well as being available on 
line for comment. This ensures plans are co-ordinated and deliverable. Key actions 
carried out to support corporate objectives include an action to ‘maximise availability of 
benefits’ which the Service has done. For example by December 2009, £51,890 
additional benefits had been issued by proactive campaigns. A range of procedures 
are in place, up-to-date and have been consulted on, such as the new take-up strategy 
and Discretionary Housing Payment scheme. However, although the business plan 
states that it links to directorate service plan objectives, it is not clear which ones. 
Overall, the plans show how the Service contributes to the Council's wider aims.

77 The Service has effective leadership. Officer and political commitment to the Service is 
strong, with a highly-regarded head of service. Overview and Scrutiny Committee play 
an active role by providing independent challenge through a working group and
in-house inspection. As a result of this working group, improvements such as 
explanation leaflets are now provided with letters including links to online information. 
Staff report of good team working, improved morale, and approachable senior staff. 
Councillors are very positive about the leadership of benefits senior staff, have a high 
level of involvement and view the Service as a priority in helping the Council achieve 
its objectives. The portfolio holder attends monthly meetings with service managers 
and provides a visible presence to staff. This leadership and commitment provides a 
culture within which the Service is supported to improve. 

23  Bracknell Forest Council 139



What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 

78 Performance is managed well. This is demonstrated by recent improvements in 
performance, annual appraisals and targets for all staff, weekly performance meetings 
and monthly meetings with housing management and the portfolio holder. A quarterly 
performance monitoring report including finances is reported to the senior 
management team, Overview and Scrutiny Committee, all councillors and the 
executive. Councillors report that the level of information they receive enables them to 
ask questions and challenge areas where appropriate, such as via the recent working 
group. Quarterly performance is also posted on the website, sent to landlords, and 
available in reception. Arrangements are in place to report on performance against the 
new benefits standards from the end of June 2010. Staff are also managed effectively. 
Regular one to ones are held and work plans include performance targets and training. 
This means that staff are well-informed and engaged with the whole performance 
management process, although customer service staff would also welcome this weekly 
performance information. New quality monitoring reports are in place for individual 
assessors, including off-site staff. Issues raised in staff meetings such as the need for 
a weekly performance update and reception refurbishment have been addressed. Past 
issues with data quality have been improved by corporate training, a new performance 
management system and clearer ownership of data. Overall, this effective performance 
management ensures the Service is able to take appropriate action to ensure 
continuous improvement. 

79 The Service understands the profile of its users. The Service's Equality Impact 
Assessment shows a good recognition of equality and diversity issues and good efforts 
are made to understand the make-up of benefit recipients. The Service is making use 
of the new Mosaic database which has led to a targeting of more deprived 
neighbourhoods and low income families, for example, by holding out of town 
surgeries. It has used this information to improve the service for harder to reach 
groups. It has produced leaflets in different languages, promoted the Service in school 
letters sent to parents, published a survey on community TV, held a Polish event day 
to offer housing and benefits advice, and promotes home visits for those unable to visit 
the Council. These actions help ensure that every resident is able to access the 
service they need. 

80 Communication and learning within the Service is good overall. The Service actively 
seeks best practice from others to apply in-house. Staff have visited high-performing 
councils to gain an understanding of how they operate. As a result, this benchmarking 
has led to a staff restructure, the deletion of pre-assessment posts, and the roll-out of 
home working. This in turn has led to cost savings, improved performance, and the 
ability to deal with peaks and troughs in workload. Complaints are monitored and dealt 
with appropriately. Most staff view communications with other services as very good. 
However, the Service cannot demonstrate effective learning from its reconsiderations 
and appeals. Liaison with the revenue service remains an issue. Problems include the 
time taken to update council tax accounts, the revenue service's lack of awareness of 
some benefits service developments such as the restructure, and the Service’s 
location in a separate building, meaning that complicated queries may result in 
telephone calls to the Council Tax department based in another office. 

Bracknell Forest Council 24140



What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 

Does the service have the capacity to improve? 

81 The Service has good capacity to improve. It is investing well to deliver further 
sustainable improvements. The current IT system is due to be replaced in October 
2010. The £650,000 capital investment in this new IT system will lead to online 
applications, improved letters and more efficient working. The Service is also investing 
in rolling out home working and expects to increase productivity by 10 per cent as well 
as freeing up office space and improving workforce planning. A new £10,000 
telephone system has been in place for six months resulting in more effective call 
management. The system enables staff to listen into calls where necessary for training 
purposes and monitor the abandonment rate, waiting times and queue numbers. An 
£81,000 capital refurbishment of the reception area is due to be completed by the end 
of June 2010. Offsite staff also offer increased capacity. These are all longer term 
sustainable solutions, as well as early plans for the new IT system to enable potential 
shared services in the future. 

82 Workforce and financial planning is adequate. Staff are well-managed, with low 
sickness and turnover rates. Morale and job satisfaction are high with improved career 
structures, the training of pre-assessors to become full assessors and a new 
development post enabling better outreach work, particularly to harder to reach 
groups. A workforce plan is in place which links to the corporate workforce plan. It 
includes actions such as exploring partnership working, a retraining scheme and 
increased opportunities for professional qualifications. It has led to the implementation 
of a three-year contract for outsourcing processing and the roll-out of a home working 
pilot which is being extended. Although some actions are SMART, such as details on 
outsourcing and home working, other actions such as improving skills gaps are not 
specific meaning it is unclear how the service intends exactly to increase skills. As part 
of its workforce planning, the Service has contracted out part of its work to an offsite 
processing company to process claims. This flexible arrangement offers the Service 
additional capacity, higher accuracy rates of 99 per cent and 28 per cent better 
productivity. Financially, the Service is well managed and has no planned budget cuts 
for this year. Procurement of the IT system has been evaluated effectively, with a 
detailed evaluation report submitted to the board for approval. This planning helps 
support future, longer-term sustainable improvement of the Service. 

25  Bracknell Forest Council 141



What are the prospects for improvement to the Service? 

83 Risk management is good. Risks are regularly reported to the overview and scrutiny 
committee and are on the corporate risk register to raise their profile. Major risks 
around the implementation of the new IT system have been mitigated well. For 
example, a £40,000 contingency budget is in place to ensure that data is accurate 
before input, staff were involved in evaluating the new system including site visits, and 
agency staff have been employed to cover those on secondment to the project. 
Training on the new IT system has been well-planned and is being overseen by 
corporate training staff to ensure the training meets its objectives. A ‘train the trainer’ 
scheme is also in place to provide local support. Experienced, Prince2 trained project 
management Council staff and from the IT supplier are on the project board. The 
project is on schedule and has good buy-in from staff and councillors. The revenues 
service, in a separate directorate, will also be using the new IT system, but it is unclear 
if the two services are in agreement as to how the new system should operate. Overall, 
the project is well-supported and managed and will help deliver efficiencies and 
improvements.

84 Training within the Service is good and meets the needs of staff. It is well-planned and 
effective, ranging from customer care, IT and the opportunity to study for NVQs. 
Professional training is provided where necessary and reasonable budgets are 
available, slightly above benchmark levels. Training for staff to prevent fraud and error 
has been particularly well planned. The different needs of staff have been taken into 
account and training is tailored to meet these needs. Fraud training is carried out 
annually, as well as via e-learning and is available to landlords, off-site staff and staff 
from other services. For example, staff from HR and Education have attended it. The 
Service has also efficiently shared training with neighbouring authorities. Training has 
been provided to allow pre-assessment officers to progress to full assessment officers 
which has improved their career path. Training is evaluated to ensure that it is 
effective, with results from training activities fed back and discussed with staff 
individually. Some staff have suggested more refresher training, for example, on the 
impact of recent legislative changes. And not all councillors have taken up the training 
available meaning they may not have up-to-date knowledge of the service. Overall, 
well-planned and delivered training is helping the Service ensure staff have the right 
skills and knowledge to undertake their roles effectively. 

85 Partnership working is adequate. The Service is proactive in developing relations with 
neighbouring benefits services. For example, it co-ordinated a Berkshire-wide group of 
benefits services to identify joint working opportunities, such as the recent joint benefits 
training which reduced costs. It has also recently agreed a shared mystery shopping 
exercise to improve learning opportunities. A recent event was held in conjunction with 
other partners such as the NHS and Citizens Advice Bureau in the town centre to raise 
awareness of issues such as benefits and home insulation grants. This partnership 
working is making the Service more accessible to residents and helping limit the 
impact of the recession. However, plans to share services are only in their infancy. 

Bracknell Forest Council 26142



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, audio, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

143



144

This page is intentionally left blank



INFORMATION ITEM 
 

ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
5 OCTOBER 2010 

  
 

re3 UPDATE AND RECYCLING FIGURES 
[Chief Officer:  Environment & Public Protection] 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council is in a partnership along with Wokingham and Reading Councils that 

provides for the disposal of our waste until 2031.  The partnership was developed as 
part of a Private Finance Initiative and had a value at the time of commencement in 
excess of £600M over the term of the 25 year contract.  This arrangement gives rise 
to predicted refuse disposal savings to each party in excess of £25M when compared 
to the 'do nothing' option over the same period.  

 
1.2 Save for the rectification of minor building construction matters, we have now moved 

into the longer and more challenging delivery phase of the project. 
 
1.3 The project is managed by the Joint Waste Disposal Board under the chairmanship 

of Councillor Mrs Dorothy Hayes.  The Board is comprised of two Executive 
Members from each Authority.  Reporting to the Board is a Project Director (a 
nominated senior officer with a part time role) and a full time Project Manager.  
Senior officers from each Authority meet under the leadership of the Project Director 
to ensure overall delivery. 
 
 

2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

2.1 That the Panel notes this re3 and recycling update report. 
 

 
3 KEY ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Board meets quarterly.  It has its own operational budget and its challenge in the 

current economic climate is to identify potential savings.  Savings can be gained 
through operational efficiencies and finding cheaper waste disposal alternatives to 
landfill.  The Board have looked at their operational budget needs for 2011/12 and 
have identified savings of £54k (24% of total net budget).  Discussions are also 
ongoing at an officer level with the contractor WRG with a view to finding savings in 
their operational costs, alternatives to landfill and other business opportunities such 
as the potential sale of spare capacity in the Materials Recycling Facility (MRF). 
 

3.2 The hope was that in the current year the project would be achieving a recycling rate 
of 40%.  The latest information suggests that this target may not be reached.  There 
are several reasons for this: 
 
� The delay in the opening of Lakeside Energy from Waste site 
� The decline in waste tonnages being disposed of at the Household Waste 

Recycling Centres (down from 239 tonnes in 2001/02 to 193 tonnes in 2009/10) 
� The impact of the recession generally 
� Waste diversion and minimisation 

Agenda Item 7

145



 
3.3 A further factor that has not helped in relation to achieving this target is the level of 

contamination of the recyclable materials being put into the MRF (in Bracknell Forest 
from the contents of the blue bins) for processing.  The plant is working at its 
optimum speed but it is trying to cope with an average contamination rate of 20%.  
Through changes to the operation it is intended to draw out more of the 
contamination over the coming months but there is a responsibility upon the 
collection authorities to do more to help.  A significant cause of the problem is due to 
residents across the partnership putting their recycling material in small shopping 
bags.  Whilst the plant has provision for bag splitting it struggles with small tightly 
sealed bags.  Problems also occur when paper and cardboard goes in wet.  In 
Bracknell Forest the use of blue wheeled bins helps with the process but we still have 
to do more to help ensure that residents use their bin for the right materials and 
ideally don’t use bags. 
 

3.4 Another challenge for WRG is finding sustainable and economically viable outlets for 
whatever is collected.  It is not acceptable for the Partnership to dispose of materials 
at any fiscal or environmental cost.  Accordingly, the final destination of all material is 
carefully monitored.  What ever the final destination source, it will invariably require a 
product delivered to a given standard.  Accordingly WRG have often to meet tight 
tolerance limits or risk having the load rejected.  This is particularly the case with 
plastics.  We select out the higher value plastics and the tolerance limits are very 
tight.  There is still little market in the UK for many of the forms of plastic in use and 
therefore there are few places that will take such material. 
 

3.5 Notwithstanding the above the project is projecting an end of year recycling rate of 
37-38%.  The recent introduction of a mixed wood service at Longshot Lane and 
Smallmead has had a major impact on performance.  The wood trials are showing 
good results in respect of extracting waste for re-use.  A trial will also soon 
commence at Longshot Lane to extract more recycling material from the general 
waste stream (i.e. over the wall).  The results of all such trials will be reported to the 
Joint Waste Board in due course. It is expected that such initiatives will improve 
recycling rates by a further 1.87% but this will still be below the 40% target.  Other 
initiatives are being developed and this will continue to be so over the term of the 
contract. 
 

3.6 As of mid-September the latest outturn figure for re3 for the year was £5,888,772 
against a budget of £5,832,480.  The pressure has been reported through the budget 
monitoring process.  The forecast takes account of the increase in business rates, 
the rate of inflation applied via the contract being higher than budget and a reduced 
tonnage in the first quarter. 
 

 
4 OTHER ISSUES 
 
4.1 Waste disposal is directly linked to waste collection.  Officers are currently in the 

process of evaluating the bids for a new refuse contract for the Borough from August 
2011.  The opportunity has been taken as part of the process to build in stronger 
links between the two service areas.  The new collection contractor will for example 
have to commit themselves to helping reduce contamination rates as collected from 
the kerbside. 

 
4.2 As WRG have found it challenging to achieve recycling targets so have the Council.  

All targets were set against a background of an expectation of increasing household 
disposal rates.  This is no longer the case.  The table below shows the situation 

146



locally as regards the overall tonnages and our performance: 
 

  2008/09 2009/10 
NI191 - residual household waste (kg/hh) 677.46 646.69 
NI192 - % household waste sent for reuse, recycling or 
composting 40.44 37.83 
NI193 - % of municipal waste sent to landfill 56.34 44.48 
Total household waste collected (tonnes) 52459.88 47973.36 
Total household waste recycled, reused and composted 
(tonnes) 21214.07 18146.58 

 
4.3 Whilst the overall fall in waste tonnages is making the achievement of our 40.4% 

recycling target harder, we are doing well against our targets for residential waste per 
household (2009/10 target 675 max - achieved 646.24 kg).  We have also seen a big 
improvement with the coming on line of Lakeside in respect of the percentage of 
waste landfilled (achieved 44.5% in 2009/10 with Lakeside versus 56.3% previous 
year). 

 
4.4 It evident that whilst we have done well as a Borough thanks to the support of our 

residents we have still got a long way to go.  We still see avoidable contamination of 
our recycling collection.  Waste is going into the green residual waste bins that could 
be recycled.  Bracknell Forest Council has commissioned Waste Watch to undertake 
door knocking in two poor performing areas and this work is complete.  This will help 
us to improve our communication to help residents to understand what can and 
cannot be recycled.  In addition leaflets, bin stickers and calendars have all been 
revamped to include a strong message about the correct materials to recycle.  
Having regard to all of the initiatives already in place locally there is little excuse for 
not recycling but it is evident that education and the promotion of clear messages is 
perhaps the only way to effect continued improvement.  Many look to the Council to 
collect more of their sorted waste but without sustainable outlets doing so would only 
be possible at very high cost. 
 

4.5 Our experience with plastic for example is being fed back to Government as part of 
the consultation on waste.  Like other Councils we are keen to inform them of the 
barriers to recycling.  We also would like to see a shift in responsibility to put more 
obligations on the retailers when they specify packaging so that there is less 
wastage. 

 

Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Steve Loudoun 
Chief Officer: Environment & Public Protection 
01344 352501 
Steve.loudoun@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Document Reference 
CO/DMT/ECCO&SPanel/2010/ re3UpdateandRecyclingFigures (a) 

147



148

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

5 OCTOBER 2010 
 
 

PLANNING POLICY UPDATE FOLLOWING THE REVOCATION OF REGIONAL 
STRATEGIES 

Director of Environment, Culture and Communities 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 This report advises the Panel of recent changes to planning policies. 

 
 

2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

2.1 The Panel notes the Government’s advise on the immediate issues arising from 
the revocation of Regional Planning Strategies. 
 
 

3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Issues Arising from the Revocation of Regional Strategies 
 

3.1 On 6 July 2010 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
announced the revocation of Regional Strategies with immediate effect.  Attached to 
a letter informing Chief Planning Officers in England of this change was advice on the 
immediate issues arising from this change.  This update report is based on that 
advice and is set out in the form of questions and answers.  The implications for 
Bracknell Forest are in italics. 
 

3.2 The final part of the paper covers the Government’s announcement that council’s 
should do more to reduce street clutter. 
 

3.3 Do National Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) remain in force? 
 
Yes.  PPSs provide planning policies on a wide range of topics including Green Belts, 
Sustainable Economic Growth, Housing and Climate Change.  The Policy Statement 
on Regional Strategies (February 2010) is cancelled, and references to Regional 
Strategies in other Policy Statements are no longer valid.  However, all other PPSs 
will continue to apply until they are replaced by the National Planning Framework. 
 

3.4 How will the change affect planning applications? 
 
In determining planning applications local planning authorities must continue to have 
regard to the development plan.  This will now consist only of: 
 
• Adopted DPDs;  
• Saved policies; and  
• Any old style plans that have not lapsed. 
 
Local planning authorities should also have regard to other material considerations, 
including national policy.  Local planning authorities can also refer to evidence that 
was developed in support of the revoked Regional Strategies as a material 

Agenda Item 8

149



consideration if relevant.  Where local planning authorities have not yet issued 
decisions on planning applications that have already been submitted, they can review 
those decisions in light of the new freedoms following the revocation of Regional 
Strategies.  The revocation of the Regional Strategy may also be a material 
consideration. 
 

3.5 Should we continue preparing LDF documents? 
 
Yes.  The revocation of Regional Strategies is not a signal for local authorities to stop 
making plans for their area.  Local planning authorities should continue to develop 
LDF core strategies and other DPDs (such as the Site Allocations DPD), reflecting 
local people’s aspirations and decisions on important issues such as climate change, 
housing and economic development. 
 
These local plans will guide development in their areas and provide certainty for 
investors and communities.  Local authorities may wish to review their plans following 
the revocation of Regional Strategies and the government recommends that where 
reviews are undertaken, these should be commenced as quickly as possible. 
 

3.6 How does this affect adopted local plans / LDFs? 
 
Adopted DPDs and saved policies will continue to provide the statutory planning 
framework. Local authorities may decide to review these now that Regional Strategies 
have been revoked.  There is no need to review the whole LDF, only those issues or 
policies which local authorities wish to revisit. 
 
For Bracknell we already have an adopted Core Strategy DPD and a set of saved 
policies.  Our situation is unusual in that our Core Strategy contains housing numbers 
based on a draft version of the Regional Strategy that had a lower housing target than 
the final adopted version.  This figure was justified based on the evidence available at 
that stage of the RSS preparation. 
 

3.7 What if an LDF document is still being prepared? 
 
Where local planning authorities are currently bringing forward development plan 
documents they should continue to do so.  Authorities may decide to review and/or 
revise their emerging policies in the light of the revocation of Regional Strategies.  
Where authorities decide to do this they will need to ensure they meet the 
requirements for soundness under the current legislation.  When undertaking 
consultation and sustainability appraisal on their draft policies, authorities should take 
an approach that considers the stage reached, the extent of work already undertaken 
and the scope of the policy changes they are making. 
 
On the basis of this advice it would appear that the current advice is that we carry on 
with the Site Allocations Development Plan Document but have the option to revise 
the RSS housing target, provided this can be shown to be a sound approach.  At this 
time, and based on other parts of the government advice, the Council is working on 
the assumption that the figure in the adopted Core Strategy is the housing target for 
Bracknell Forest. 
 

3.8 Who will determine housing numbers in the absence of Regional Strategy 
targets? 
 
Local planning authorities will be responsible for establishing the right level of local 
housing provision in their area, and identifying a long term supply of housing land 

150



without the burden of regional housing targets.  Some authorities may decide to retain 
their existing housing targets that were set out in the revoked Regional Strategies.  
Others may decide to review their housing targets.  We would expect that those 
authorities should quickly signal their intention to undertake an early review so that 
communities and land owners know where they stand. 
 
The implication of this is that, if we wish to change from the target set in the adopted 
Regional Strategy, we need to review the target and signal our intention to do so 
quickly.  However, initial informal advice from GOSE is that we can use our adopted 
Core Strategy for this purpose, until and unless a review of this is undertaken. 
 

3.9 Will we still need to justify the housing numbers in our plans? 
 
Yes.  It is important for the planning process to be transparent, and for people to be 
able to understand why decisions have been taken.  Local authorities should continue 
to collect and use reliable information to justify their housing supply policies and 
defend them during the LDF examination process.  They should do this in line with 
current policy in PPS3. 
 
If we wish to adopt an alternative to the Core Strategy housing target, and/or when we 
start to plan for the period beyond 2026 the Council will need to establish a housing 
target based on a number of considerations including: 
 
• current and future levels of need and demand for housing 
• the need to improve affordability and increase housing supply 
• the availability of suitable land, 
• the latest published household projections, 
• economic growth forecasts,  
• sustainability Appraisal, and 
• existing and planned infrastructure and any new infrastructure 

requirements 
 

3.10 Can I replace Regional Strategy targets with the numbers agreed by local 
authorities for submission to the Regional Planning Board during the 
preparation of the South East Plan (the ‘option 1’ numbers)? 
 
Yes, if that is the right thing to do for our area.  Authorities may base revised housing 
targets on the level of provision submitted to the original Regional Spatial Strategy 
examination (Option 1 targets), supplemented by more recent information as 
appropriate.  These figures are based on assessments undertaken by local 
authorities.  However, any target selected may be tested during the examination 
process especially if challenged and authorities will need to be ready to defend them. 
 
The option 1 number is very close to the figure in the adopted Core Strategy.  The 
option 1 figure for Bracknell Forest was 10,780, the Core Strategy figure in Policy 
CS15 is 11,139 - the extra 359 units represent the carry over of a shortfall from the 
previous plan period.  Subsequent advice from GOSE was that no allowance needs to 
be made for any previous shortfall.  Removing the shortfall allowance would reduce 
our requirement by 2,000 from the adopted Regional Strategy target of 12,780 for the 
period from 2006 to 2026.  Until and unless a review is undertaken, the Council will 
work on the 10,780 housing figure. 
 

151



3.11 Do we still have to provide a 5 year land supply? 
 
Yes.  Although the overall ambition for housing growth may change, authorities 
should continue to identify enough viable land in their DPDs to meet that growth.  
Strategic Housing Market Assessments and Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessments can help with this.  Local planning authorities should continue to use 
their plans to identify sufficient sites and broad areas for development to deliver their 
housing ambitions for at least 15 years from the date the plan is adopted.  Authorities 
should also have a five year land supply of deliverable sites.  This too will need to 
reflect any changes to the overall local housing ambition. 
 
Bracknell Forest can currently show a housing land supply of: 
 
3.5 years against the revoked Regional Strategy target of 12,780, and  
4.3 years against the ‘option 1’ target of 10,780 
 
Note - These are estimates based on the latest available completions data. 
 
Even with the lower target we are unable to demonstrate a five year supply and it is 
therefore important that we continue to work on the Warfield SPD and Site Allocations 
DPD. 
 
There has been an unavoidable delay to the SADPD programme resulting from the 
change in national and regional policy which means that the final SADPD may not 
now be adopted until 2012. 
 

3.12 10. How do we determine the level of provision for travellers’ sites? 
 
Government has advised that Local councils are best placed to assess the needs of 
travellers.  Local authorities will now be responsible for determining the right level of 
site provision, reflecting local need and historic demand, and for bringing forward land 
in DPDs.  They should continue to do this in line with current policy.  Gypsy and 
Traveller Accommodation Assessments (GTAAs) have been undertaken by all local 
authorities and if local authorities decide to review the levels of provision these 
assessments will form a good starting point.  However, local authorities are not bound 
by them.  The government has stated that it will review the relevant regulations and 
guidance in due course. 
 
The Council does need to take account of the GTAA as the most recent evidence 
gathered on local need. 
 

3.13 Does the end of Regional Strategies mean changes to Green Belt? 
 
No.  The Government is committed to the protection of the Green Belt and the 
revocation of Regional Strategies will prevent top-down pressure to reduce the Green 
Belt protection.  Local planning authorities should continue to apply policies in PPS2.  
As part of their preparation or revision of DPDs, planning authorities are advised to 
consider the desirability of new Green Belt or adjustment of existing Green Belt 
boundaries, working with other local planning authorities as appropriate. 
 
Bracknell Forest Council remains committed to the protection of the Green Belt and 
does not intend to review the Green Belt boundary in the Borough. 
 

152



3.14 What does the recent ‘garden grabbing’ announcement mean in practise? 
 
The government has also recently re-issued PPS3 (national planning guidance on 
housing).  The changes include the removal of residential gardens from the definition 
of previously developed land. 
 
Bracknell Forest Council will continue to judge each site on its merits and in 
accordance with its policies and guidance, including its recently adopted Character 
Area Assessments.  To be clear, this change does not stop development of gardens 
within existing residential areas where it is considered acceptable to do so. 
 
For the Site Allocations work, the priority order for identifying sites is set out in 
adopted Core Strategy Policy CS2 – Locational Principles.  This establishes that we 
would firstly allocate land for development within Bracknell Town Centre, then using 
previously developed land and buildings in defined settlements and then other land 
within settlements where it would not conflict with other policies.  The final priority in 
the sequence is extensions to defined settlements.  This means that residential 
gardens would drop from the second level of the sequence to the third but that, 
providing there was no conflict with other policies, such sites would still be allocated in 
preference to urban extensions. 
 

3.15 What does the deletion of the indicative minimum density mean? 
 
The other change in the new PPS3 is the deletion of the national indicative minimum 
density of 30 homes per hectare. 
 
The options consultation was carried out on the basis of site capacities arising from 
development densities of 35 and 40 units to the hectare so were in any event above 
the indicative minimum.  There are a number of implications that arise if lower 
densities of development are adopted as the norm.  These include lower ability to 
support public transport services, higher levels of car usage to access facilities and 
the need to allocate a greater area of land to accommodate a given number of 
homes.  The government is still emphasising the need for sustainable development 
that minimises the need to travel, especially by car, and the need to use available 
land efficiently. 
 
For Bracknell Forest our Core Strategy Policy CS1 also seeks the efficient use of land 
and buildings and locating development so as to reduce the need to travel, which 
would support higher densities.  However, this is balanced by the need to protect and 
enhance the character and quality of local landscapes (Policy CS1) and respect local 
patterns of development (Policy CS7).  Density level assumptions for the SADPD will 
be included in the preferred option for public consultation later this year. 
 
Reducing Street Clutter 
 

3.16 On 26th August 2010, councils were urged to get rid of unnecessary signs, railings 
and advertising hoardings in a bid to make streets tidier and less confusing for 
motorists and pedestrians. 
 

3.17 Communities Secretary, Eric Pickles, and Transport Secretary, Philip Hammond, are 
concerned that the character of the country's urban spaces is being damaged and 
have written to councils’ leaders calling on them to reduce the number of signs and 
other 'street clutter'. 
 

153



3.18 The Government announcement identified a number of sources of guidance on how 
to achieve reductions and to some examples of best practice. 
 

3.19 Government advice in Manual for Streets states that "the excessive or insensitive use 
of traffic signs and other street furniture has a negative impact on the success of the 
street as a place" and that "street signs are periodically audited with a view to 
identifying and removing unnecessary signs" (Manual for Streets, Department for 
Transport, 2007. 
 

3.20 For Bracknell Forest there is the opportunity to incorporate best practice advice in the 
forthcoming Streetscene SPD.  A key aspect will be co-ordinating the approach to 
street signage in new development and combining signage and mounting signs on 
buildings as appropriate to reduce the number of individual posts. 
 

3.21 A new edition of Manual for Streets is expected soon and will probably incorporate up 
to date advice on reducing clutter. 
 
 

Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Max Baker – 01344 351902 
e-mail: max.baker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

 

154



 

ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
5 OCTOBER 2010 

 
 

WORKING GROUP UPDATE REPORT 
Lead Working Group Members 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report provides an update in respect of the recently reconvened Working Group 

of the Panel reviewing highway maintenance and the newly formed Commercial 
Sponsorship Member Reference Group. 
 
 

2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

2.1 That this update report be noted. 
 
 

3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Highway Maintenance 
 

3.1 A working group was established by the Panel in September 2009 to review highway 
maintenance.  The Working Group met on three occasions between September and 
December 2009.  At its first meeting, the Working Group received an introductory 
briefing in respect of highway maintenance and discussed the scope of the review.  
The scope was agreed by the Working Group at its second meeting when it received 
a presentation concerning highway asset management.  The Working Group received 
a briefing at its third meeting in respect of the financial and other resources given over 
to highway maintenance, the sufficiency of the current level of investment to maintain 
the quality of the highway asset, whether the Council maximised government funding 
and how the Council’s expenditure compared to other local authorities.  In the light of 
the proposed 2010/11 highway maintenance budget reduction of £315,000, Members 
decided that in times of financial constraint, safeguarding the existing highway asset 
had a higher priority than improving that asset and submitted a report to this effect to 
the Panel to consider at the time they met to consider the proposed budget for 
2010/11. 
 

3.2 The highway maintenance review was discontinued in January 2010 owing to a 
reduction in staffing resources.  However, as other Overview and Scrutiny review 
work has subsequently been completed, resources have now become available to 
resume the review and the Working Group is being reconvened.  The Lead Member 
has agreed that the review will adhere to the original scoping document and 
arrangements are in hand for its next meeting which will feature a recap of past work, 
asset management data concerning the condition of the Borough’s highways, 
examples of highway projects and funding arrangements. 
 
Commercial Sponsorship 
 

3.3 The Council’s Corporate Management Team have requested that the possibility of the 
Council attracting some income through an organised commercial sponsorship 
scheme be looked into and a Member Reference Group has been established to 
provide views and advice to the Director of Environment, Culture and Communities on 

Agenda Item 9

155



 

a prospective procurement of an agency service to attract commercial sponsorship 
income for Bracknell Forest.  It has been labelled a Member Reference Group instead 
of an Overview and Scrutiny Working Group as the membership includes the 
Chairman of the Planning and Highways Committee and the Executive Member for 
Finance, Resources and Assets in addition to Members and Substitute Members of 
this Panel. 
 

3.4 The Member Reference Group’s first meeting was held on 20 September 2010 when 
it agreed that a commercial sponsorship scheme would be acceptable in principle and 
that the possibility of introducing a viable scheme be explored.  A second meeting of 
the Group is being arranged to receive briefings in respect of the Council’s corporate 
identity standards and the planning policies and constraints applying to signage and 
other issues relating to sponsorship.  The briefings will inform a discussion to develop 
a framework around key policy, infrastructure and other limitations / issues which 
could apply to commercial sponsorship for briefing representatives of prospective 
agents who will be invited to the Group’s third meeting. 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Andrea Carr – 01344 352122 
e-mail: andrea.carr@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 

156



 
ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

5 OCTOBER 2010 
  

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROGRESS REPORT 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1 This report sets out the Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) activity over the period 
February to August 2010, also the significant national and local developments in 
O&S. 
 
 

2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

2.1 That the Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
notes the Overview and Scrutiny activity over the period February to August 
2010, set out in section 3 and Appendices 1 and 2. 
 

2.2 That the Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
notes the developments in Overview & Scrutiny set out in section 4. 
 
 

3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
(i) Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 
Changes to Overview and Scrutiny  

 
3.1 Consequent on the reduction in the O&S officer team, various changes were decided 

upon by the O&S Commission on 28 January. These have included: a reduction in 
the frequency of O&S Progress reports to CMT and O&S Members from quarterly to 
six monthly; reductions in the frequency of public meetings, also reductions in the 
O&S Work programme. The changes have been implemented, and the O&S 
Commission has asked for a review of these new arrangements during 2010-11. The 
reduction in frequency of meetings has aligned the production of quarterly 
Performance Monitoring Reports with the O&S Commission’s meetings, but it is 
causing some difficulties synchronising the PMR’s with the Panel meetings, which are 
now every four months.  
 
Overview and Scrutiny Working Groups 

 
3.2 The table at Appendix 1 sets out the current status of the O&S Working Groups, 

along with the list of completed reviews. 
 
Partnership Scrutiny 

 
3.3 Good progress has been made with implementing the agreed approach to partnership 

scrutiny. The round of questionnaires and meetings with the Theme Partnerships is 
almost complete, with the final meeting in October. The Partnership Overview and 
Scrutiny Group held its third meeting on 14 May 2010. 

 

Agenda Item 10

157



3.4 Representatives of the Audit Commission met the Chairman of the O&S Commission 
and the Head of O&S on 3 February to enquire about O&S of the Bracknell Forest 
Partnership, as part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment process.  

 
3.5 We put forward an entry for the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s ‘Good Scrutiny Awards’ 

based on our joint working in the field of partnership scrutiny, and received a 
commendation. The judges said they shortlisted Bracknell Forest Council, ‘because 
the group has created a powerful, independent and respected resource which is able 
to feed into the development of strategic planning. It also shows a commitment to 
partnership working and to the continuous development of scrutiny’. 

 
3.6 Over the next quarter, officers will draw together the results of the partnership scrutiny 

work in the Commission, the O&S Panels, and the Partnership O&S Group. This will 
be used to compile an annual report of that group as required in its terms of 
reference. 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission 

 
3.7 The O&S Commission now meets on a quarterly cycle. At its last meeting on 15 July, 

the main items considered were: receiving a progress update on the Bracknell 
Healthspace from NHS Berkshire East; considering and adopting the O&S Working 
Groups’ reports on Preparedness for Public Health Emergencies, Housing and 
Council Tax Benefits, the Supporting People programme, and the Council’s 
Response to Severe Weather; and reviewing the Performance Monitoring Reports for 
the Chief Executive’s Office and Corporate Services Department, also the Corporate 
Performance Overview Report for quarter four (January to March) of the 2009/10 
financial year. The O&S Commission’s next meeting is on 28 October. 

 
Environment, Culture and Communities O&S Panel 

 
3.8 The Panel now meets on a four-monthly cycle. It last met on 22 June, and the main 

items included: electing a Chairman and appointing a Vice Chairman; considering the 
Department’s Performance Monitoring Report for quarter four; and considering the 
O&S Working Groups’ reports on Preparedness for Public Health Emergencies, 
Housing and Council Tax Benefits, the Supporting People programme, and the 
Council’s Response to Severe Weather. The Panel’s next meeting is on 5 October. 

 
3.9 Additional to the work in the Panel and in its Working Groups, the Panel Chairman 

and a member of the O&S officer team have been involved, in an observer capacity, 
in an O&S review by Reading BC of the waste recycling contract. 

 
3.10 As a number of this Panel’s working groups have recently completed their reviews, 

there is some scope and capacity to undertake further work, and arrangements are in 
hand to resume the review of Highway Maintenance. Additionally, Members are likely 
to be involved in a Member reference group currently being established to explore 
opportunities for commercial sponsorship income from roundabouts and other means. 

 
Health O&S Panel  

 
3.11 The Panel now meets on a four-monthly cycle. At its last meeting on 17 June, the 

Panel elected a Chairman and appointed a Vice Chairman, and other key items 
included: receiving a presentation on the transfer of Community Health Services from 
NHS Berkshire East; considering the report of the working group on Preparedness for 
Public Health Emergencies; reviewing the position on the Bracknell Healthspace, and 
noting the draft minutes for the Joint East Berkshire Health Overview and Scrutiny 

158



Committee meeting on 30 March 2010. The Health O&S Panel’s next meeting is on 7 
October. 

 
3.12 We have recently secured the agreement of the Chief Executives of the six NHS 

Trusts serving Bracknell Forest to our updated Health Scrutiny Protocol, summarising 
the legal and operational framework, and setting out the respective responsibilities of 
the Trusts and the O&S Panel. In reaching this agreement, we have had some quite 
complimentary remarks from the Chief Executives, for example: 

 
• ‘I am very happy to sign up to the requirements.....I welcome the opportunity 

to work closely with the Overview and Scrutiny Panel to ensure we are 
listening and responding to our local community' (CEO Royal Berkshire 
Hospital) 

• ‘I have now reviewed the code of practice that you sent through.  It is the only 
one I have seen and as you know SCAS covers an area with quite a number 
of HOSCs.  It is an extremely helpful and welcome document and one I would 
certainly like to see adopted as good practice in other areas.' (CEO South 
Central Ambulance Service). 

 
Children, Young People and Learning O&S Panel 
 

3.13 The Panel now meets on a four-monthly cycle. At its last meeting on 30 June the 
Panel elected a Chairman and appointed a Vice Chairman. The main items 
considered by the Panel included: the annual reports of the Independent Reviewing 
Officer and Children’s Social Care Complaints; receiving progress reports on new 
youth facilities in South Bracknell and the Playbuilder project; and receiving an 
update on the Working Group reviewing arrangements for safeguarding children. The 
Panel’s next meeting is on 27 October. 
 
Adult Social Care O&S Panel 

 
3.14 The Panel now meets on a four-monthly cycle. At its last meeting on 8 June, the 

Panel elected a Chairman and appointed a Vice Chairman. The main items 
considered by the Panel included: meeting officials from the Care Quality 
Commission to discuss the new role for local authorities to comment on service 
performance; receiving the annual report on adult social care complaints; and 
receiving update presentations on the Departmental Service Plan, the Carer’s 
Service, and the Personalisation Pilot. The Panel’s next meeting is on 12 October. 

 
Joint East Berkshire Health O&S Committee 

 
3.15 This Committee now meets on a four-monthly cycle, rotating between the three 

Councils’ venues. Bracknell Forest Council has assumed Chairmanship and officer 
support for this Committee for the 2010/11 municipal year. The last Committee 
meeting was on 16 June in Slough, when the Committee: elected a Chairman and 
appointed two Vice Chairman; appointed co-optees from Runneymede Borough 
Council and the three Local Involvement Networks; received a presentation from the 
Director of Public Health; received an update on the Working Group reviewing car 
parking charges at NHS Establishments; received an update on the budgetary 
position of Heatherwood and Wexham Park Hospitals Trust; and conducted the 
annual review of the Committee’s terms of reference. The Committee’s next meeting 
is on 6 October 2010 at Wexham Park Hospital.  

 

159



Other Overview and Scrutiny Issues 
 
3.16 Responses to the feedback questionnaires on the quality of O&S reviews are 

summarised in Appendix 2, showing a consistently high score across the various 
questions posed. 

 
3.17 Four-monthly review and agenda-setting meetings between O&S Chairmen, Vice 

Chairmen, Executive Members and Directors are taking place regularly for the Panels 
(quarterly for the O&S Commission).   

 
3.18 External networking on O&S in the last six months has included Members and an 

officer attending the South Central Health O&S Committees meeting on 20 July in 
Winchester, and Members and officers attending the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s 
annual conference.  

 
3.19 Efforts were made to recruit to the vacancies of Parent Governor, Children’s Social 

Care representative, Catholic Church representative and teacher representative in 
June. This resulted in one vacancy being filled. The other vacancies will be re-
advertised in six months time.  

 
3.20 The O&S Annual Report was adopted by Council on 21 April.  
 
4 (ii) Developments in O&S 
 
4.1 The O&S provisions in the Local Democracy, Economic Development and 

Construction Act commenced in the period. The two new requirements on O&S have 
been addressed by: the Deputy Chief Executive being appointed as the statutory 
Scrutiny Officer; and Council adopting a new petitions scheme at its meeting on 21 
July, which includes a new role for Overview and Scrutiny to review any petitions 
where the petitioner is not content with the Council’s response. 

 
4.2 The monitoring of the O&S function is carried out by the statutory Scrutiny Officer on 

a quarterly basis, who has commented that good progress has been made on the 
agreed programme of work by Overview and Scrutiny in the last six months and the 
quality of the work done continues to be high.  

 
4.3 The regulations and guidance for the O&S provisions in the Local Government and 

Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 are still awaited, despite the Act having 
commenced on 1 April 2009. CLG is continuing to work with the Centre for Public 
Scrutiny to develop these. 

 
4.4 The Government’s consultation entitled ‘Strengthening Local Democracy’, which the 

Council responded to, resulted in the previous government supporting a Private 
Member’s Bill to extend the remit of O&S. The Private Member’s Bill failed to survive 
its third reading debate. 

 
4.5 The Government has published a major White Paper on the NHS, with a series of 

consultation documents, one of which proposes a complete change to local authority 
O&S of NHS services. Arrangements are being made to ensure that O&S Members' 
views are reflected in the Council’s response to the consultation. 

 
4.6 A new approach to improving public engagement was agreed by the O&S 

Commission, in consultation with the Leader and Chief Executive. This is in the 
course of being implemented, and has included the design and issue of a new 
publicity ‘flyer’ explaining the role of O&S and encouraging greater involvement 

160



 
 
Background Papers 
 
Minutes and papers of meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission and Panels.  
 
 
Contact for further information 
Victor Nicholls- 01344 355604 
Victor.Nicholls@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Richard Beaumont- 01344 352283 
Richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Doc. Ref 
Alluse/Overview and Scrutiny/2010/11 O&S Progress Report 
 

161



Appendix 1 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORKING GROUPS – 2010/11 
Position at 3 August 2010 
  
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
 
WORKING 
GROUP  

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING DRAFT 
REPORT / SUBMISSION 

FINAL 
REPORT / SUBMISSION 
 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

The Council’s 
response to the severe 
weather   

Finnie, 
Harrison, Turrell 

Vincent 
Paliczka 

None √ 
 

√ √  Sent to the 
Leader on 20 July 

 
 
Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
WORKING GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK OFFICER 
 

O&S LEAD OFFICER SCOPING DRAFT REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 

FINAL REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 

EXECUTIVE RESPONSE CURRENT STATUS 
Safeguarding 
Vulnerable Adults - Personalisation 

Mrs 
Fleming, Turrell (Lead Member), 
Leake, Edger and  
Mrs Shillcock 

Zoe 
Johnstone 

Andrea 
Carr 

√    Information 
gathering nearing an end 

  

162



 
 
 
Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
WORKING 
GROUP  

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER  

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING DRAFT 
REPORT / SUBMISSION 

FINAL 
REPORT / SUBMISSION 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

Supporting People - 
Monitoring  

Mrs. Shillcock (Lead) & Mrs. 
Fleming 

Simon Hendey / 
Clare Dorning 

Andrea Carr √ 08/09 √ (Annual 
monitoring) 

08/09 √ (Annual 
monitoring) 

 Sent to the Executive 
Member on 21 July  

Review of Highway Maintenance  
 
[On hold] 

Mclean (Lead) Beadsley, Brossard, 
Leake and Parish and 
Town Councillors:  Edwards 
(Binfield) Kensall 
(Bracknell) Withers 
(Crowthorne) Mrs Cupper (Sandhurst) 
  

Steve Loudoun Richard Beaumont   
√   The Commission decided on 28 January to 

suspend this review until other O&S reviews have been completed and resources become 
available. This is now expected to be in September 2010. 

The Group has now met three times. The 
scoping document has 
been agreed, also a report to the Panel on 
the highways maintenance 
budget reduction.  

  
  
   
 

163



 
 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
WORKING GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK OFFICER O&S LEAD OFFICER SCOPING DRAFT REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 

FINAL REPORT / 
SUBMISSION  

EXECUTIVE RESPONSE CURRENT STATUS 

Preparedness for Public 
Health Emergencies 

Burrows (Lead), Mrs. 
Angell, Thompson. Mrs. Mattick 

David Steeds Andrea Carr √ √ √  Sent to the Executive 
Members on 22 July 

Bracknell Health Space 
(Reconvened) 

Virgo (lead) Mrs Angell, 
Baily, Leake, Mrs Shillcock   

Glyn Jones/ Mary Purnell Richard Beaumont      First reconvened 
meeting arranged for 5 August  

 
 
 
Joint East Berkshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
WORKING 
GROUP  

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK 
OFFICER 

O&S LEAD 
OFFICER 

SCOPING DRAFT 
REPORT / SUBMISSION 

FINAL 
REPORT / SUBMISSION 
 

EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE 

CURRENT 
STATUS 

Hospital Car 
Park Charges 

Plimmer 
(Slough, Lead member),  Virgo, 
Endacott (RB W&M) 
Jacky Flyn (LINK) 

TBC Andrew 
Millard (Slough BC) 

√ √    

 

164



 
 
Children's Services and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
WORKING GROUP 
 

MEMBERS DEPT. LINK OFFICER O&S LEAD OFFICER SCOPING DRAFT REPORT / 
SUBMISSION 

FINAL REPORT / 
SUBMISSION  

EXECUTIVE RESPONSE CURRENT STATUS 

Safeguarding Children Cllrs Mrs McCracken 
(Lead) , Mrs Birch, Mrs Angell, 
and Kensall. Miss V 
Richardson, Mrs P 
Ridgway 

Penny Reuter Richard Beaumont √    Information gathering about 
1/3 completed 

 
 

165



Completed Reviews 
 
 
Publication Date Title 

 
December 2003 South Bracknell Schools Review 

 
January 2004  Review of Adult Day Care Services in Bracknell Forest (Johnstone 

Court Day Centre & Downside Resource Centre) 
 

May 2004 Review of Community & Voluntary Sector Grants  
 

July 2004 Review of Community Transport Provision  
 

April 2005 Review of Members’ Information Needs 
 

November 2005 The Management of Coronary Heart Disease 
 

February 2006 Review of School Transfers and Performance 
 

March 2006 Review of School Exclusions and Pupil Behaviour Policy 
  

August 2006 Report of Tree Policy Review Group 
 

November 2006 Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) – Review of the ASB Strategy 
Implementation 
 

January 2007 Review of Youth Provision 
 

February 2007 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006 
 

February 2007 Review of Library Provision  
 

July 2007 Review of Healthcare Funding 
 

November 2007 Review of the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

December 2007 Review of the Council’s Medium Term Objectives 
 

March 2008 2007 Annual Health Check Response to the Healthcare Commission 
 

April 2008 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2007/08 
 

May 2008 Road Traffic Casualties 
 

August 2008  Caring for Carers 
 

September 2008 Scrutiny of Local Area Agreement 
 

October 2008 Street Cleaning 
 

October 2008 English as an Additional Language in Bracknell Forest Schools 
 

166



Publication Date Title 
 

April 2009 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2008/09 
 

April 2009 Healthcare Commission’s Annual Health Check 2008/09 (letters 
submitted)  
 

April 2009 Children’s Centres and Extended Services in and Around Schools in 
Bracknell Forest  
 

April 2009 
 

Older People’s Strategy 
April 2009 Services for People with Learning Disabilities 

 
May 2009 Housing Strategy 

 
July 2009 Review of Waste and Recycling 

 
July 2009 Review of Housing and Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan 

 
December 2009 NHS Core Standards  

 
January 2010 Medium Term Objectives 2010/11 

 
January 2010 Review of the Bracknell Healthspace 

 
January 2010 14-19 Years Education Provision 

 
April 2010 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2009/10 

 
July 2010 Review of Housing and Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan 

(Update) 
 

 
 

167



Appendix 2 
 
Results of Feedback Questionnaires on Overview and Scrutiny Reports 
 
Note – Departmental Link officers on each review were asked to score the key aspects of each 
O&S review on a scale of 0 (Unsatisfactory) to 3 (Excellent)  
 
 Average score for 

previous 11 Reviews1 
PLANNING 
Were you given sufficient notice of the review? 
 

2.8 

Were your comments invited on the scope of the review, 
and was the purpose of the review explained to you? 
 

2.9 

CONDUCT OF REVIEW 
Was the review carried out in a professional and 
objective manner with minimum disruption? 
 

2.7 

Was there adequate communication between O&S and 
the department throughout? 
 

2.7 

Did the review get to the heart of the issue? 
 

2.6 
REPORTING 
Did you have an opportunity to comment on the draft 
report? 
 

2.9 

Did the report give a clear and fair presentation of the 
facts? 
 

2.5 

Were the recommendations relevant and practical? 
 

2.5 
How useful was this review in terms of improving the 
Council’s performance? 
 

2.6 

 
 
 
 

 

                                                
1 Road Traffic Casualties, Review of the Local Area Agreement, Support for Carers, Street Cleaning, 
Services for Adults with Learning Disabilities, English as an Additional Language in Schools, Children's 
Centres and Extended Services, Waste and Recycling, Older People’s Strategy, Review of Housing and 
Council Tax Benefits Improvement Plan, and 14-19 Education. 

168



 
ENVIRONMENT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

5 OCTOBER 2010 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
The purpose of this report is to invite Members of the Environment, Culture and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel to consider and suggest review items to be 
added to the Panel’s draft indicative work programme for 2011/12, which is attached at 
Appendix 1 to this report.  The indicative work programme will be included in the 
2010/11 Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny and will be adopted by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Commission once it has formally consulted the Corporate Management 
Team and the Executive thereon, as required by the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

2.1 That the Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
considers and suggests review items to be added to the Panel’s draft indicative 
work programme for 2011/12. 
 

 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont – 01344 352283 
e-mail: richard.beaumont@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Andrea Carr – 01344 352122 
e-mail: andrea.carr@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 
Doc. Ref 
- 
 

Agenda Item 11

169



Appendix 1 
 

Work Programme for Overview and Scrutiny in 2011/12 
 

 
The work programme for Overview and Scrutiny in 2011/12 is aimed at maintaining a strategic and 
coordinated work programme based on major areas of Council and partner organisations’ activity, 
of direct and significant interest to residents.  The programme incorporates the routine, on-going 
work of Overview and Scrutiny and the completion of reviews currently underway.  It proposes a 
limited number of new Overview and Scrutiny reviews which are seen to be timely, relevant, 
significant and likely to add value. 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
1. Monitoring the performance of the Environment, Culture and Communities 

Department 
To include on-going review of the Performance Monitoring Reports; review of any 
inspection reports or self-evaluations; and monitoring the action taken by the 
Executive to earlier reports by the Panel. 
 

2. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the Executive Forward Plan 
 

3. 2012/13 Budget Scrutiny 
To review the Council’s Environment, Culture and Communities budget proposals for 
2012/13, and plans for future years. 
 

4. Monitoring the Implementation of the Action Plan for Supporting People 
To monitor the implementation of the Supporting People Programme Action Plan on 
an annual basis. 
 

5. 
 

Highway Maintenance 
To complete the review of the Council’s plans and performance for highway 
maintenance. 
 

6. Commercial Sponsorship 
To be involved in the Member Reference Group exploring the possible procurement 
of a commercial sponsorship scheme. 
 

 
Note – This programme may need to be amended to meet new requirements arising during the 
year. 
 
 

170



ENVIRONEMNT, CULTURE & COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

REFERENCE I020719 
 
TITLE: Bracknell Forest Borough Local Development Framework Site Allocations 
Development Plan Document 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: 'To approve a Preferred Option of the Site Allocation 
Development Plan Document for Consultation under Regulation 25 (Public participation 
provisions) 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Resources need to be reviewed in the light of in-year savings and 
loss of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant. 
 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: All Bracknell Forest Council Chief Officers. 
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined. 
DATE OF DECISION: 19 Oct 2010 
 
 
 
 
 

REFERENCE I019818 
 
TITLE: Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation 
Supplementary Planning Document Draft 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To note the draft Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document. 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: None. 
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Public Notice  
DATE OF DECISION: 19 Oct 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12

171



REFERENCE I023917 
 
TITLE: Legal Agreement for Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Strategic 
Access Management and Monitoring Project. 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: 1.To seek authorisation to collect contributions from new 
additional dwellings to be spent on a strategic sub–regional project.  
2.To seek authorisation to sign a contract between BFC, Natural England and 10 other local 
authorities.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive Member for Planning, Transport & Economic 
Development 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Not applicable  
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  None  
DATE OF DECISION: 19 Oct 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REFERENCE I025009 
 
TITLE: Traffic Calming - Revised Policy 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve changes to the current Traffic Calming Policy.  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive Member for Planning, Transport & Economic 
Development 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: None. 
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  None. 
DATE OF DECISION: 4 Nov 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

172



REFERENCE I020424 
 
TITLE: Warfield Supplementary Planning Document 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve the Warfield Supplementary Planning Document for 
consultation purposes  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Prescribed by Statutary Regulations  
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined  
DATE OF DECISION: 16 Nov 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REFERENCE I024078 
 
TITLE: Consultation on Draft Local Transport Plan 3. 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To seek authorisation to consult on the draft Bracknell Forest 
Borough Local Transport Plan 3; its draft Implementation Plan; and a Draft Strategic 
Environmental Assessment.  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Resources need to be reviewed in the light of in-year savings. 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive Member for Planning, Transport & Economic 
Development 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: To be determined but which includes the 
public, organisations with a transport plan interest and other interested parties.  
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Letter/website/deposit of draft consultation documents in 
public buildings (e.g. libraries, council offices and town and Parish Offices). 
DATE OF DECISION: 16 Nov 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

173



REFERENCE I025102 
 
TITLE: Declaration of Air Quality Management Areas 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree the method of informing stakeholders and the extent of 
the air quality management areas.  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: To be determined  
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined  
DATE OF DECISION: 16 Nov 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REFERENCE I024080 
 
TITLE: Streetscene Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and Bracknell Forest 
Highways Guide for Development 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To adopt final versions of:  
1. The Streetscene Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), and  
2. Bracknell Forest Highways Guide for Development. 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Resources need to be reviewed in the light of in-year savings and 
loss of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant. 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive Member for Planning, Transport & Economic 
Development 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED:  
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  A public consultation was completed June/July 2010. 
Copies of the final documents will be made available on the website and in public buildings 
(e.g. Libraries, Council Offices and Town and Parish Offices) on approval and adoption.  
DATE OF DECISION: 14 Dec 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

174



REFERENCE I023585 
 
TITLE: Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation 
Supplementary Planning Document Adoption 
PURPOSE OF DECISION: To adopt the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document. 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 
WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 
PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: None. 
METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Public Notices 
DATE OF DECISION: 14 Dec 2010 
 

175



176

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes and Matters Arising
	5 Performance Monitoring Report
	6 Report of the Inspection of the Housing and Council Tax Benefits Service
	06 Inspection report Sept 2010

	7 RE3 Update and Recycling Figures
	8 Planning Policy Update Following the Revocation of Regional Strategies
	9 Working Group Update Report
	10 Overview and Scrutiny Bi-annual Progress Report
	11 Work Programme 2011/12
	12 Executive Forward Plan

